/¢4 %ﬁf—;

In accordance with
Regulation 32 of the
Overseas Compames

OS AADT

&8

Regulations 2003 Statement of details of parent law and other Companies House

information for an overseas company

J What this form s for What this form 1s NOT { )

You may use this form to You cannot use this form

3CCOMpany your accounts an alteration of manner o

disclosed under parent law with accounting requirem *A3BPBKBL"

AQ5 08/07/2014 #8
COMPANIES HOUSE ’

Part 1 Corporate company name 3 Filling 1n this form

Fc 1096

Corporate name of
overseas company @

| DBS Bank Ltd

UK establishment
number

[efrTofolofefefa]

Please complete n typescript or in
bold black capitals

All fields are mandatory unless
speofied or indicated by *

©This 1s the name of the company in
its home state

Part 2

Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company

Legislation

Please give the legislation under which the accounts have been prepared and,
if applicable, the legislation under which the accounts have been audited

O This means the relevant rules or
legistation which requlates the
preparation and, If applicable, the

Legislation @ [Smgapme Companies Act audit of accounts
w Accounting principles
Accounts Have the accounts been prepared in accordance with a set of generally accepted

accounting principles?
Please tick the appropriate box
[ No GotoSection A3

Yes Please enter the name of the organisation or other
body which 1ssued these principles below, and then go to Section A3

Name of organisation I

© Please insert the name of the
appropnate accounting organisation
or body

or body © Singapore Financial Reperting Standards
Accounts
Accounts Have the accounts been audited? Please tick the appropnate box

[] No Goto Section AS
Yes Go to Section Ad

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 5 0
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

m Audited accounts
Audited accounts Have the accounts been audited in accordance with a set of generally accepted @ Please insert the name of the
auditing standards? appropriate accounting

organisation or body
Please tick the appropnate hox

[J No GotoPart 3 ‘Signature’

Yes Please enter the name of the organisation ar other body which 1ssued
those standards below, and then go to Part 3 'Signature’

Name of organisation |S|ngapore Financial Reporting Standards
or body @

E Unaudited accounts

Unaudited accounts | Is the company required to have its accounts audited?

Please tick the appropniate box
] No
(] Yes

Part 3 Signature

l | am signing this form on behalf of the overseas company

Signature Signature

X W X

This form may be 5|
Director, Secretary, Perm anent representative

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 5 0
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Statement of details of parent law and other information for an overseas company

B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do it will help Compantes House if there 1s a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record

Contact name

Richard Tan

Comeny 2T DBS Bank Ltd

| 9% 4th Floor, Paternoster House

|65 St Paur's Churchyard

London
County/Region

N N O N N

[ Post town

oo ENGLAND

|D)(

Telephone

020 7489 6582

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

O The company name and, if appropriate, the
registered number, match the information held on
the public Register

O You have completed afl sections of the form,
if appropriate

(1 You have sighed the form

Please note that all this information will appear
on the public record

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies
House address

England and Wales

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth fioor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountambridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 {Legal Post)

Northern freland

The Registrar of Companies, Companses House,
Second Floor, The Linenhali, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG

DX 481 N R Belfast 1

ﬂ Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enquines@companieshouse gov uk

This form 1s available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been prowided fiee of charge by Companses House

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 50
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DBS. Living, Breathing Asia




Forging DBS - previously known as the Development Bank of Singapore
- has over the years played a key role in Singapore’s meteoric

A H E A D nse from third world to first

1n Dynamic Asia Today, as a leading Asian bank with a network across 17 markets,
DBS 1s committed to helping Asia transform We help individuals
prosper, enable business growth and expansion, and develop
Asia’s capital markets

We will continue to break new ground as we embrace the digital
frontier and shape the future of banking Our understanding

of Asia, and our ability to move swiftly to seize opportunities,
have enabled us to forge ahead in a dynamic Asia

mBanking

dlye)

\\‘7

~
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HIGHLIGHTS

SHAREHOLDERS

8,927
G B CORRC! Total income rose 11% to a record
SGD 8.93 billion from higher
0 loan volumes and broad-based
+ o non-interest income growth
7,066 W 7.631 [l 8,064

1 11 2012 200
SGD 8,927 m 21020 3
2012: 5GD 8,064 m RO TN ECOTIRES G HH B

A |

45
44

43
4

Income-expense jaws Expense growth was contained

at 8%, resulting In a positive
o Income-expense jaws of 3% points
+ o t The cost-income ratic iImproved
10 44% from 45% n 2012 5%
a0 m Cost/income (%) 2010 2011 2012 2013
2012 -3% pt B Income-expense Jaws (YoY % pt)

3501
Xzt Lrotil Net profit before one-time items
l 0/ rose 4% 1o a record SGD 3.50 billion
2,650 | | 3,035 | | 3,359

SGD 3,501 m 2010 2011 2012 2013
2012:5GD 3,359 m




HIGHLIGHTS

CUSTOMERS REGULATORS

Internet banking users: %’7 \\

One of first two

A 200'000 foreign banks to be

given a licence to
set up sub-branch
Mobile banking users: in Shanghai Free

Trade Zone
4 240,000

EMPLOYEES SOCIETY

B O R TR R COMMITTED
Ranked among SGD

“wp 2L of all 5 0 m
companies surveyed DBS FOUNDATKT,S

by Gallup globally TO STRENGTHEN
| CSR EFFORTS

SN
TN




The pace of change that is upon us is extremely daunting. The world
which we live, work and bank in today is continuously changing.
Consumers today are far more demanding, our ability to access
information and make choices have changed dramatically, and new
technologies are revolutionising our way of life. In a highly-wired Asia,
we have made innovation a large part of our agenda, and we

have sought to be at the forefront of the digital revolution.




Deveiopments across Asia-Pacific in recent years have seen the adoption of technology to enhancg

the customer experience. At DBS, our emphasis has always been on driving innovation to deliver
greater productivity and customer efficiencies. This will continue to be a strategic focus as
e entrench our position as a leading Asian bank.

In 2013, DBS pioneered the launch of a fully automaied online account opening service for
ompanies in Singapore. With this service, the time taken to open a corporate account
has been significantly reduced.

ith DBS Remit, we are the only bank in Singapore to offer same-day online transfers to banks in
nctla and Indonesia. DBS IDEAL™ 3.0, our enhanced regional corporate internet bankingglat{oss
skes online banking for our carporaie customers faster and simplyg
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At DBS, we are committed to putting the customer at the heart of the banking experience.
hat includes making banking interactive and intuitive. DBS® llagship branch at our headauarters
in Marina Bay Financial Centre was designed with the customer in mind. In the past year, we also
ontinued 1o enhance our mobile apps and wealth websiie so that customers can bank easily
ith us while they are on the move, or in the comfort of their own homes.

cerpt from “For the Service Edge, Think Like A Designer” published in TODAY newspaper on 19 February 2014

rom entering its pod-iike lobby at the Marina Bay Financial Centre, which looked like a cross between
five-star-hotel reception and a spaceship, | was mesmerised. Could this really be a hank?”

How often, particularly in a business-to-business context, and in a bank for that matter, do you walk away
thinking and feeling that you have had a beyond-great customer experience? That's service innovation -
across every conceivable touchpoint and customer interaction, down to the smallest detail.”

— Natalie Turner,
ounder and CEQ of The Entheo Network, a leadership innovation consulla




echnology has transiormec
physical branches o the online and mobile space, banks need to develop new ways of engaging
customers. The engagement goes heyond products and services to relationships and insights.

Harnessing analytics and big data is key to building this engagement. DBS has been using voice

analytics at our customer call centre to improve customer satisfaction. Customer touchpoinis suct

as ATMS, which were merely output channels previously, are now a customer sensor point for us,

delivering real-time information that we can use to form a beiter picture of our customers and ihe
needs, We are fapping on IBM Watson {0 assisl aur wealth relationship managers to analyse large
olumes of data, so as o provide better quality insights to our cusiomers,

e are also helping customers benefit from useful analysis and insights. For example, the DBS Home
Connect mobile app offers them property information and other useful data on the go.

AN\
iR
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HOW WE CREATE VALUE

What We Do

Cur aim 1s to become “The Asian Bank of Chowe for a new Asia” We are an Asia-centric :

commercial bank focused on harnessing the region’s long-term potential as the centre of AS’A’S THREE KEY ‘
economic gravity shifts eastwards to Asia To differentiate ourselves, we have developed a AXE s O F G R O WTH

unigue brand of banking, Banking the Asian Way We seek to provide a kind of banking
that is Joyful and trustworthy as we help to transform this region that we live in

We are distinct from local tenders or global players As an Asian specialist, we have ]
the reach and sophistication to outcompete local lenders, and deep Asian insights G reater C h na
that distinguish us from global competitors

We seek to mtermediate trade and investment flows between Asia’s three key axes
of growth — Greater China, South Asia and Southeast Asia — as well as participate in
Asia’s growing affluence Our key franchises are in Singapore, Hong Kong, China, .
Taiwan, india and Indonesia SOUth AS|a

In Singapore, our home market, we are a urwversal bank serving all customer segments,
including the mass market through the DBS and POS8 “People's Bank” franchise In
other markets, we focus on three lines of business

Southeast Asia

+ Corporate/investment banking (covering large corporations and institutional investors)
+ SME banking
+  Wealth management

We see an opportunity to leverage digital technology as a means to reach customers
across Asia

Why We Do It

DEL’VERING Banking benefits the community when 1t creates long-term economic value and generates
VAL UE TO profits sn a responsible way We have the ability to improve lives with our products and
services A housing loan can empower individuals to build homes for their families, a business
MULTIPLE loan can create job opportunities for thousands We recognise we have obligations to
multiple stakeholders — shareholders, customers, employees, regulators and socety —

STA KEHOL DERS and strive to consistently delwer value to all of them

Given our rgots as the Development Bank of Singapore and unique position as the

custodian of Singapore’s oldest and much-loved Post Office Savings Bank (now known as |
POSB), we believe that banking 1s more than just being a commercially-centred enterprise |
We are committed 1o the philosophy of doing the right thing for our stakeholders and have \
embedded it in our business Apart from creating long-term economic value, we also seek |
to positively benefit the communities we are present in, and deliver social value To further |
our corporate social responsibility efforts, we recently established a SGD S0 million foundation

to further our commitment to be a force for good




HOW WE CREATE VALUE g

Where We Do It

LARGEST BANK IN SINGAPORE

» Extensive network of more than 2,300 DBS/POSB branches and self-service
banking machines

* Leading market share across corporate and consumer banking, serving over
4 & million retail customers

GREATER CHINA

* Hong Kong Anchor of our Greater China franchise with 50 branches

« China Locally incorporated in 2007, first Singapore bank to do so,
29 branches in 10 major cities today

* Tawan Locally incorporated in 2012, first Singapore bank to do so,
43 branches today

OVER 250 BRANCHES
SOUTH AND SOUTHEAST ASIA ACROSS ASIA

* India 12 branches in 12 major cities, largest network for & Singapore bank
+ |Indonesia 39 branches across 11 major aties

ﬂ China 29 branches 1 representative office . 2,
B Korea 1 branch _ - | Japan 1 branch
\ : feé}d’
of
B8 india 12 branches e
- | Myanmar 1 representatve offi . ¢
-
8 Macau 1 branch n £ . B3 Hong Kong 50 branches
* 88 Taiwan 43 branches
n Vietnam 1 branch 1 representative office
P > . $ Philippines 1 representative ofiice
B Thailand 1 representative office L ' v =
P As of 31 December 2013
Branches include sub-branches and
centres D85 also has branches and
a Malaysia 1 branch 1 representative office R . » outlets in London, Los Angeles and Dubat
n . in addition, DBS Vickers has offices in
Singapore 89 branches . ? Singapore Hong Kong, Indonesia
b4 = Thadand, UK and US
D = o =
=] Q=
G

8 Indonesia 39 branches s g
- @ od
0 o e
S
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How We Bank

Banking the Asian Way

15 how we intend to become the bank of choice for customers it comprises

l“ft\?\

Asian Relationships

For us, customer centnicity 1s not Just a buzzword We strive to
embody elements of what relationships are about In Asia

a) being there for the long haul, through good times and bad,

and b} recognising that relationships have swings and roundabouts,
and that every transaction does not have to be profitable in its
own right At DBS, we also value relationships with staff and

the community

Asian Connectivity

We work In a collaborative manner across geographies, supporting
our customers as they expand Our one-bank approach lets us nse
above indmidual country and business line priorities

Asian Service

We aim for every customer to walk away from any interaction
feeling that we have been Respectful, Easy to deal with and
Dependable Our service ethos Is characterised by the “humility
to serve and the confidence to lead”

©

Asian Insights

We know Asia better and use our knowledge of how to do
business in this region to provide unique Asian insights to
support our customers’ growth We leverage our knowledge
of local markets to create Asian-specific products to address
our customers’ bespoke needs

Asian Innovation

We understand that some global solutions do not necessarily apply
to Asia We leverage our insights to constantly innovate new ways of
banking as we strive to make banking more intuttive and interactive
for our customers
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WHAT GUIDES US INTERNALLY

We are commutted to the highest standards of integrity, ethics and professionalism
We believe that sound and effective corporate governance 1s fundamental to the Group's
long-term success and sustainability 1t forms the basis for responsible management,
ensures rigour in the decision-making process, and guides our commitment to safeguarding
stakeholders’ interests and maximising shareholder value Our governance Is in accordance
with relevant provisions in the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance and related
guidelines, and banking regulations 1ssued by the Monetary Authonty of Singapore

We also align ourselves with international corparate governance best practices

To achieve effective corporate governance, we have put in place a framework that
combines competent leadership, effective nsk management and a values-led culture

The Group 1s directed by an independent Board comprising tndividuals with diverse skill-sets
and expernence Two-thirds of the Board are former bankers and the rest are industry
experts in domains ranging from consumer goods to accounting The Board seeks to
ensure that the Group 1s well-positioned for growth and nsk, and provides direction for
management by setting, reviewing and overseeing the implementation of the Group's
strategy Effective sk management i1s central to all parts of our organisation Our risk
management frameworks — approved by the Board (please refer to page 78 for Section 3
of Risk Management) — sets the boundanes in which our business groups can operate

and achieve their objectives m accordance with our scorecard (please refer to page 23 of
Management Discussion) Qur performance against these objectives determines individual
benefits induding remuneration and helps drive appropnate behaviours

We also consider the impact our decisions will have on all our stakeholders and strive to
strike a balance between long-term prionties and short-term objectives Qur organisational
values shape the way we do business and work within the Group We believe that what
we do goes beyond banking We value relationships and teamwork We embrace change
and innovation to challenge the status quo to provide better banking solutions We have
the courage to take responsibility for decisions and are empowered to make things happen
Finally, we aim to build an organisation where people feel good and energised about being
part of an exciting workplace

How We Measure Ourselves

EFFECTIVE
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Competent Leadership

220,
i
+
Effective Risk Management

L

e

+

Values-led Culture

N

We understand the importance of delivering sustained performance to our stakeholders and executing to our strategy.
Our progress is tracked against a balanced scorecard that maps our key performance indicators and measures the value

we create for various stakeholder groups, including shareholders, customers, employees, regulaters and society. This allows
us to monitar the progress made in execution of our strategy and accountability to each stakeholder group. Our balanced
scorecard is cascaded down the organisation. It is aligned for all business units, markets and support functions and used to

measure their individual performance and remuneration.




12 DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013
\

BOARD OF DIRECTORS |




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1 Andre Sekulic 2 Piyush Gupta 3 Ho Tian Yee 4 Peter Seah Lim Huat
5 Danny Tech Leong Kay 6 Ow Foong Pheng 7 Nihal Vijaya Devadas
Kaviratne CBE 8 Euleen Goh Yiu Kiang 9 Bart Joseph Broadman

For more information on directors please refer to pages 188 to 192
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GROUP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Group Management Committee comprises
a total of 19 members, including members
of the Group Executive Committee




GROUP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

AN R g P SRS

1

1 Piyush Gupta*, Chief Executive Officer 2 Enc Ang, Capital Markets 3 Sanpiv Bhasin, DBS India 4 Jerry Chen, DBS Taiwan

5 Chng Sok Hur*, Chief Financial Officer 6 Domenic Fuda, Consumer Banking and Wealth Management Group 7 Nell Ge, DBS China

& David Gledhill*, Group Technolegy & Operations 9 Sue Lynn Koo, Group Legal, Compliance & Secretariat 10 Lee Yan Hong,

Group Human Resources 11 Andrew Ng*, Treasury and Markets 12 immy Ng, Group Audit 13 Karen Ngui, Group Strategic Marketing
& Communications 14 Sebastian Paredes*, DBS Hong Kong 15 Elbert Pattyn~, Chief Risk Officer 16 Sim S Lim*, DBS Singapore

17 Tan Su Shan*, Consumer Banking and Wealth Management Group 18 Melvin Teo, DBS Indonesia 19 Jeanette Wong*,

Institutional Banking Group

Those marked by ™ are also in the Group Executive Commuttee
For more information on the Group Management Commuttee members, please refer to pages 193 to 194

15




16 DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

“Qur record performance in a cimate of continuing

low Interest rates is testament to the soundness
of our strategy »?

— Chairman Peter Seah and CEQ Piyush Gupta

2013 was a challenging year for the global
economy Growth in the developing world
slowed The US economy continued 10
grind along at a tepid growth rate of 1 9%
Europe continued to be a drag, with GDP
falling by 0 4%

In China, the world's second-largest
economy, growth held steady at 7 7%,
but 1ts leadership has signalled plans to

pursue a more sustainable growth target of
7 5% per year

Despite these external headwinds, Singapore,
our home market, made a solid recovery,
with growth of 4 1% compared to 1 9%

the previous year Hong Kong, our second-
largest market, also fared better, with resilient
private consumption maore than offsetting
the impact of weaker external demand




ansing from the slowdown in China
In 2013, Hong Kong's GDP growth rose
to 2 8%, from 1 5% in 2012

Growth in India and indonesia, two of our
other key markets, slowed down with GDP
growth of 4 8% and 5 8% in 2013

Financial market activities were also hit by
volatiity that arose from expectations that
the US would roll back 1ts accommodative
monetary policy of recent years

EARNINGS AND INCOME
AT RECORD HIGHS

For DBS too, the year was not without its
challenges While we started 2013 on a
very solid note with strong business
momentum and broad-based growth,

as the year progressed, we had to grapple
with periodic bouts of market volatihty

Notwithstanding this, we saw our top-

line grow by 11% to SGD 8 93 billion, an
all-time high Our growth was high-quality,
propeiled by multiple engnes, and fuelled by
key businesses we have been emphasising

In recent years We also continued to move
the agenda on areas such as innovation

and customer experience, which will be key
drivers of our future success

During the year, we saw credit costs rise
from 10 basts points to 18 basis points

of loans, due principally to pressures in some
portions of our India book

Full-year earrungs it a record SGD 3 50
billion Including one-time items, net

profit was SGD 3 67 billion Our balance
sheet I1s healthy, with capital, hquidity and
asset quality remaining strong To reward
shareholders, we have proposed raising our
full-year dwdends

RESHAPING OUR FRANCHISE

Qur record performance 1n a chmate of
continuing low interest rates Is testament
to the soundness of our strategy

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Since 2010, we have progressively
entrenched our leadershup in Singapore,
repositioned Hong Kong and diversified
our earnings base We have also built
leading regional customer franchises

in wealth management, SME banking,
transaction banking and treasury actmities,
all of which showed record income

In 2013, we strengthened our wealth
proposition further by being the first
Singapore bank to create a “one-stop
shop”, offering banking and brokerage
products under one roof We believe the
holistic bank brokerage model 1s integral

to the future of banking With this inttiative,
our customers can now trade shares without
the need to maintain separate relationships
with us and a broking firm

We also continued to carve a niche for
curselves as a leading player in the Asian
fixed income and offshore RMB space

Despite the property cooling measures and
other business pressures, including the low
interest rate environment, our Singapore
franchise saw Income nse to an all-tme high
of SGD 5 42 billion This 1s significant given
the maturity of the market Excluding our
regional trading book, our core Singapore
franchise recorded double-digit growth in
its top and bottom hines We are deeply
honoured that for the first time, DBS was
ranked by Brand Finance, a leading brand
consultancy, as the most valuable brand

In Singapore Our overall brand valug has
more than doubled in the past four years,
nsing from USD 1 36 bullion in 2008 to
USD 3 47 brllron 1n 2013

Hong Kong, which anchors our Greater
Chena presence, Is also a much stronger
entity, our focus on the affluent segment
and our ability to leverage the China
connectivity continue to pay off This
helped drive 2013 income to a record
SGD 1 86 bithon, up 22%, outpacng
the market Full-year earnings reached
SGD 851 miflion, an all-ime high

17

We also continued to strengthen our
franchise i our other key markets, China,
Tawan, India and Indonesia

For example, in China, we were one of
the first two foreign banks to be given
a licence to set up a sub-branch in the
newly established Shanghai Free Trade
Zone This I1s an important milestone as
we employ our insights to help chents

capture new growth opportunities

In Taiwan, we continued to strengthen our
wealth management proposition, as well
as our position as a leading SME partner

In 2013, we became the second-largest
SME lender ameng foreign banks in Taswan

In India, we are the fourth-largest foreign
bank, and will continue to build on our
solid platform while being watchful of the
economic cycle We are cautiously optimistic
about the prospects for expansion under
the wholly-owned subsidiary framework,
and are studying the conditions carefully

In Indonesia, the agreemenit to acquire a
majonty stake in Bank Danamon lapsed

16 months followang the announcement of
the transaction We remain positive about
Indonesia’'s prospects and are committed to
the market DBS is already widely known as
one of the top three wealth management
banks, and we intend to accelerate our
organic growth plans in the country

D8S’ presence in the Shanghat Free Trade Zone
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Income contribution from our key growth markets accounts for 14% of Group income

In ine wrth our focus on our core markets,
we divested our remaining 9 9% stake in
the Bank of the Philippine Islands for a total
consideration of SGD 850 million

Hwang-DBS (Malaysia) (HDBS), in which
we hold a 27 7% stake, 15 1n the process
of selling several of 1ts key operating
businesses We are supportive of this
decision by HDBS' Board

As we continue to execute on strategy,
the fundamental construct of the bank
has changed

Income contribution from our key growth
markets of China, Taiwan, India and
Indonesta has increased, accounting

for 14% of Group mncome, up from

11% in 2009

We have also shifted the composition of our

business, and income from higher-return
annuity businesses has grown substantially
For example, wealth management,
transaction banking and treasury customer
business today account for 58% of the
Group’s non-interest income, compared

to 44% in 2009

Qur achievements are being recognised
In 2013, DBS was recognised as the
"Best Managed Bank in Asia-Pacific” by
The Asian Banker magazine We also
continue to be named the "Safest Bank
In Asia” by Global Finance magazine for
the fifth straight year

PUTTING THE CUSTOMER AT
THE HEART OF THE BANKING
EXPERIENCE

At DBS, we are committed to putting

the customer at the heart of the banking
experience Over the past four years, our
efforts have been primariy centred on
improving our service delivery by enhancing
our processes Through these efforts, more
than 240 million hours of customer waiting
time have been eliminated While we
continue to work on IMProving our processes,
a key focus 1n 2013 was on customer journey
projects We introduced the concept of
Human-Centred Design {HCD) thinking in

DBS to enhance the management, design
and delivery of customer journeys

The idea 1s to put ourselves in the shoes
of our customers, and think through the
way they would prefer to interact with us
from start to finish so as to enhance the
customer experience

To this end, we also established our first
Customer Journey Destgn Lab in DBS to
foster HCD thinking and innovation The
lab 15 a facility where staff can spend time
with coaches, who will help them design,
prototype and test their customer-centred
concepts before roll-out

SHAPING THE FUTURE OF BANKING

Recognising that new technologies have
revolutionised the way people bank, we
continued to innovate new ways af banking
Much progress has been made on this front

In Singapore, we launched DBS Home
Connect, an app designed to make the
home-buying process easier for our
customers by providing them with all the
essential information they require 24 x 7 via
their mobite devices In the corporate banking

D8S is establishing a SGD 50 milion foundation to strengthen our CSR efforts i Singapore and across Asia




space, we pioneered the launch of a fully
automated onhne account opening service
for companies In 2014, we announced an
agreement with I1BM in which we will deploy
its Watson cognitive computing tnnovation
to deliver a next-generation customer
experience We are also collaborating with
research agency A*STAR to set up a joint lab
to research emerging technologies for the
benefit of customers

Our efforts to be at the forefront of

banking Innovation have been recognised

In 2013, our mobile banking apps strategy
was ranked #1 n the world by Swiss research
firm MyPrivateBanking We were named
"Maost Innovative Transaction Bank in
Asia-Pacific” by The Banker magazine, and
“Trailblazer of the Year in Asia-Pacific” by
Banking & Payments Asia

To step up our game in the INnovation space,
we recently announced plans to invest

SGD 200 million over the next three years

to better harness digital technologies This
will enable us to access large retall banking
markets and better integrate banking into
our customers’ hfestyle A new digital
banking organisation has been created

to spearhead this transformation

ENGAGING EMPLOYEES AND
GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY

DBS 1s commutted 10 our employees Over
the past four years, we have invested in our
people, creating a sense of purpose and
pride, and a lngh degree of engagement
Our people are among the most engaged
globally, ranking among the top 10% of all
companies surveyed by Gallup, a leading
management consultant In 2013, DBS was
one of just three Asian firms to win the
Gallup Great Workplace Award

We also recognise that the future of
business 1s to be a force for good
Underhining our commitment to gving
back to scaety in a sustained manner,
in February 2014, we announced the
establishment of a SGD 50 million

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND CEQ

foundation This inttiative wili strengthen
our corporate social responsibility (CSR)
efforts in Singapore and across Asia

In our home market Singapore, we are
privileged to play a significant role in banking
the heartlands and serving every level of
society At POSB, we are "Neighbours first
and Bankers second” and wall continue to
recognise and uphold the responsibility we
have as custodian of the nation’s oldest

and most loved bank To bring value to
customers, we launched the POSB HDB Loan,
a first-of-its-kind Housing & Development
Board (HDB) loan This was the first floating
rate programme tn Singapore to provide HDB
homebuyers with the security of having their
interest capped below HDB concessionary
rates for 10 years while benefiting from the
present low (nterest rates

In 2012, DBS was the first Singapore
member of a pilot programme set up by
the International Integrated Reporting

Councll (IRC), which 1s focused on enhancing

the way companies communicate therr
strategies and values to stakeholders

Our belief that we need to deliver value
to all our stakeholders underlines our
continued commitment to using the
integrated reporting format for our
annual reports Following IIRC's newly
1ssued framework, we have made further
enhancements to our 2013 annual report,
which we believe will help our stakeholders
better understand the bank’s integrated
approach to doing business

DIVIDENDS

The Board has proposed a final dividend

of 30 cents per share for approval at

the forthcoming annual general meeting
This compares to a final dvidend of

28 cents per share in 2012, and raises

the full-year payout from 56 cents per

share to 58 cents per share The increase

s 1n ine with DBS’ dividend policy of

paying sustainable dividends commensurate
with our capital management objectives and
long-term growth prospects

FORGING AHEAD IN
DYNAMIC ASIA

Despite the slowing growth in some Asian
markets, we believe that in the medium term,
Asia’s structural growth prospects are intact
and the region Is powening its own growth

As an Asian bank, DBS 15 well-placed to
capture the opportunities before us We have
invested in our franchise — in our people,
platform and products — and continue to be
well-positioned to intermediate the growing
capital and trade flows in Asia and beyond

At the same time, as the banking landscape
continues to change and customer
behaviours rapidly evolve, we are well aware
of the need to remain nimble and agile We
thank our customers and shareholders for
their continued support With the passion
and commitment of our 19,000 colleagues
around the region, we will continue to forge
ahead in a dynamic Asia

Peter Seah Lim Huat
Chairman, DBS Group Holdings

Piyush Gupta
Chief Executive Officer,
DBS Group Holdings
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INTERVIEW WITH CEO

DBS CEOQ Piyush Gupta shares his views on the global economy
and Asia’s prospects, as well as opportunities and challenges
facing the banking industry

Q There are rising concerns about
the macroeconomic stability of
Asia. What 1s your view on that?

A Due to the turbulence seen across
Asian markets in 2013, | have increasingly
heard concerns that a repeat of the 1997
Asian financial crisis 1s imminent [ don't
beheve this is ikely Asia as a region is in a
much stronger position than it was in 1997
Current accounts are mostly in surplus
Banking systems are more robust today,
with better regulatory systems and buffers
There are no huge mismatches between
assets and liabilities, and governments and
companies hold more of their debt in local
rather than foreign currency, so currency
fluctuations would not cause spikes In
debt-servicing costs The regton also has
much higher foreign exchange reserves and
established multi-lateral swap agreements
1o buffer outfiows

The more vulnerable countries in Asia are
Indonesia and India, both of which face the
challenge of duat deficits Consequently,
both countries came under some pressure

in the middle of last year, with significant
depreciation in their currencies However,
the markets appear to have already priced in
therr weaknesses In addition, both countries
took some measures that have been helpful,
including tighter monetary policy

So while the Fed i1s likely to continue 1ts
tapering plans in 2014, | do not see a
massive sell-off in these countnes this year
However, | do expect to see continued
volatdity as financial markets in Asia remain

relatively underdeveloped Shallow and
ilhiquid markets will remain vulnerable
to capital outflows, leading to bouts of
turbulence during the year

At DBS, we are well-prepared for further Fed
tapenng We have adequate USD hguidity
buffers and have kept our securities portfolio
duration short since end-2012 \We are thus
well-positioned to benefit from a nising
interest rate envirgnment

Q What 1s your outlook on Asia’s
growth prospects in 2014 and
beyond? Could you share your
perspective, especially on China,
India and Indonesia?

A Asia‘’s economies have built up strong
foundations over the past decade, positioning
them well to weather short-term economic
volatility as they realise their long-term
potential Young populations, a ready pool
of savings, improvements in education and
health care, rising consumption as well as
growing regional trade and investment flows
have enabled Asia to grow under its own
steam In light of Asia’s growth prospects,

I believe that this part of the world will
remain one of the best places to operate In

However, the regron 1s likely to face
headwinds in 2014 China has been
powering growth in the region for the
past decade but expansion has cooled
as the leadership strives to implement
market-oriented economic reforms and
nurture domestic demand This will have
a dampening effect on growth in the

““Increasingly, customers do not need banks but
they want to do their banking on the fly, while
they are going about their daily activities

region in 2014 However, If conditions
continue to imprave in the United States
and Europe, this could bolster exports
from the region and mitigate the impact
of slowing growth n China

In China, we will see further bouts of
volatihity in hquidity as the authorities attempt
to rein in the shadow banking sector This
attempt to correct financial imbalances in

the system is positive over the long term,

but the complexity of the shadow banking
system means that there will be a need to
proceed cautiously

2014 will be an impaortant election year for
Incha and Indonesia Reforms are key to
unlocking the long-term potential of these
two markets, and the outcome of elections
this year will determine if they adopt pro-
growth agendas, especially in India where
the likelihood of a coalition government
remains high

At DBS, we believe in the growth potential
of these economies and the importance
they play in our expansion strategy While
we may calibrate our plans for short-term
cycles, we are invested for the long-term In
these geographies

Q Across industries, companies
that are not innovating fast
enough are falling by the wayside.
Is the digital revolution a concern
for banks?

A Yes, definitely Rapidly changing
technology and customer behaviours are
causing a digital disruptron to our industry
Increasingly, customers do not need banks
but they want to do their banking on the
fly, while they are going about their daily
activities We are also facing increased
competition from non-banks such as
Alibaba, PayPal and Square, which are
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“We believe we should not only create shareholder

value but also shared value for our customers,
staff and the communities we operate in »

seeing tremendous momentum In areas
such as payments, investments and loans,
enabled by ther online and mobile platforms

While these are threats, they also present
opportunities for us By leveraging the

power of technology, we can change the
rules of the game In countries where we are
constrained by our brick and mortar network
As part of our ambition to build out a pan-
Asian commercial bank, we are embarking
on a digital Iniiative of our own We recently
announced plans to invest SGD 200 million
over three years in digital banking We have
formed a new digital banking organisation to
spearhead a transformation of DBS across the
front and back end New frontiers including
advanced usage of data analytics will also

be explored through strategic collaborations
with partners such as IBM and A*STAR

At the same time, we need to be mindful of
cybersecunty, which has become an issue of
global importance Cruminal actwity today

Is Increasingly sophisticated and prevalent,
and attacks range from "phishing” for
personal information, viruses and malware
targeting online and mobile devices, to
attacks on servers and databases To give
customers peace of mind, we need to remain
ever vigilant in ensuring their protection
Achieving the balance between serviaing our
customers seamlessly, while keeping therr
information safe, will be our utmost priority

Q What s your take on the wide
swathe of regulatory changes
facing the banking sector?

A Five years after the global financial cnsis,
banks are facing a more complex regulatory
environment New rules such as Basel lll and
the entire regulatory edifice around central
clearing of derivatives, as well as extra-
ternitoral regulations such as Dodd Frank and
FATCA, are re-shaping the global banking

industry, altering existing business maodels
and transforming nsk-return dynamics

Financial stability is a prerequisite for effective
financial intermediation, but we must remain
mindful of side effects associated with
remedial regulatory measures The industry
has always cautioned against the unintended
consequences of regulatory reform, this
tension remains with us today In particular, it
15 here In Asia where we need to ensure that
the nght balance 1s struck between economic
growth and regulatory change

The banking system remarns a primary
source of finance In Asia, due to relatively
under-developed capital markets The
capital needs of Asian banks as they seek

to meet credit demand under a Basel Ili
regime will not be trivial, and at rnisk are
credit extensions to the life-blood of Asian
economies SMEs, trade and infrastructure
In stark contrast to the Western world,

Asia needs to incentivise development of
deeper bond markets and related exposure
management tools A one-size-fits-alt
regulatory agenda may therefore not be
appropnate to serve the economic needs of
Aslian nations Jo better preserve the growth
trajectory and continued access to credit,
the scope for a reasoned exercise of national
discretion and a more moderate calibration
In supervisory add-ons to Basel [l minimum
standards should be considered

Separately, the implementation of denwvatives-
related reforms could be better coordinated
A unilateral, junsdiction-specific approach
introduces frictional inefficiencies, Increasing
transaction costs as liquidity becomes
fragmented and collateral management
more complex | would also add that the
heightened tendency for national regulators
to ningfence capital and hquidity creates
inefficiencies in the system of global finance,
and needs closer scrutiny
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Scan here to watch a
video interview with
CEQ Piyush Gupta

Q What do you think about the
role of banks and where do you
see It going?

A Companies across all iIndustries

are increasingly expected to go beyond
maximising shareholder value and deliver
value to muliiple stakeholders (shareholders,
customers, employees, regulators and
society) This requires a perceptible shift
from expediency to values and from short-
term profit maximisation to long-term
profit sustainability The banking industry,
which plays a fundamental role in society,
15 Increasingly under pressure to fuffil its
responsibilities to the stakeholders that

it serves

At DBS, we believe that banks serve a higher
purpose beyond simply being stewards of
capital We believe we should not only create
shareholder value but also shared value for
our customers, staff and the communities
we operate In

As the former Development Bank of
Singapore, helping in the industnalisation
of Singapore, we believe one of the ways
tn which we can be a force for good 15 by
supporting the growth of social enterprises
We are passicnate about this cause because
while Asia has emerged as the global
engine of growth, not everyone has had
the opportunity to participate in its wealth
In Asia, as in other parts of the world, there
Is an ever-widening Income divide We
believe social enterprises can play a role in
addressing some of these alls, moreover,
they resolve soaal 1ssues through financally
viable solutions, enabling them to sustan
their efforts over the long term
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

How We Measure Long-term Performance

ENGAGING MULTIPLE STAKEHOLDERS

Our actions are guided by a fong-term perspective and the interests of our stakeholders — shareholders, customers, employees,
regulators and society To this end, we have a balanced scorecard that measures our performance against our strategy The Group's
balanced scorecard 1s cascaded throughout the organisation, the performance goals of every business, market and support function

are aligned to those of the Group

£3 SHAREHOLDERS

Qur shareholders expect
superior and sustainable returns
commensurate with their nsk
appetite, with profits earned

In a responsible manner

£} CUSTOMERS

To differentiate ourselves in an
industry as commoditised as
banking, we must put our customers
at the centre of all that we do This
means anticipating our customers’
needs as well as offering better
products, a superor experience

and greater convenience

B3 EMPLOYEES

People are at the heart of banking
and we are committed to being
an employer of choice

XSRS EEERERE R ﬂDBS 122222222220 000

B3 REGULATORS

We believe we can contribute to
the stability of the financial system
by engaging requlators and industry
bodies to shape the development
of policies We actively participate
in forums to do so

B} SOCIETY

Our role in society goes beyond
corporate citizenship and philanthropy
We believe we have a much broader
social purpose — to create long-term
economic value through responsible
banking tc enhance the communities
we serve




DBS® BALANCED SCORECARD

The scorecard 1s dwided into two parts of
equal weighting Specific objectives for each
part are updated every year and approved
by the Board Specific key performance
indrcatars (KPIs) are in place to track the
progress made in serving the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees
KPIs relating to regulators and society

are embedded in our scorecard and cut
across all aspects of our operations As we
operate in a regulated industry, upholding
regulatory requirements s paramount and
underhes all our decisions and actions

BALANCED SCORECARD APPROACH

Shareholder

Achieve sustainable growth

* Income growth

* Manage expenses

* Returns

*  Portfolio nisk

« Controls and compliance

Traditional KPIs 50%

Geographies

Regional businesses

Enablers

=
a
o
o
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=
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=
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Other areas of focus

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

We recognise the importance of serving
soctety at large and are committed to giving
back to the community

The top part of the scorecard comprises

KPIs set for the current year Shareholder
metrics measure the financial results achieved
and include income growth, expense-related
ratios and return on equity We measure
nsk-related KPIs to ensure that the Group’s
income growth Is balanced against the level
of nsk taken Control and comphance KPIs
are also a focus in this section Customer
metrics measure the Group’s achievement

In increasing customer wallet share and

Customer

Position DBS as Bank of Choice

+ Increase wallet share
* Customer satisfaction

Entrench leadership in Singapore

Reposition Hong Kong

Strengthen wealth proposition

chent expertence

Rebalance geographic mix of our business

Place customers at the heart of the banking expenence

23

satisfaction Employee KPIs, such as employee
engagement, training, mobihity and turnover,
seek to measure the progress we have made
in being an employer of choice

The bottom part of the scorecard sets out
the imitiatives we intend to complete
the current year as part of our longer-term
Jjourney towards achieving our strategic
objectives Specific KPls and targets are set
for our nine prionties and cther areas of
focus Our ability to meet the current-year
targets in the first part 1s dependent on
successfully executing the second part in
preceding years

Employee

Position DBS as Employer of Choice

* Employee engagement
» People development

S

Build a leading Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) Banking business
Build out transaction banking and treasury customer businesses

Focus on management processes, people and culture ]
Strengthen technology and infrastructure platform ]
Scale up institutional investor and western MNC businesses

Build a leading Asian fixed income business

Leverage nnovation to extend customer reach and offer differentiated

Champion social entrepreneurship 1n Singapore and across Asla




24 DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

SELECTED KPis IN OUR SCORECARD

TRADITIONAL KPIs (50% WEIGHTING)

SHAREHOLDER KPIs

1 Grow income Income (SGD m)

Target Delver consistent Income growth +11%
Outcome Double-digit percentage income growth to record of SGD 8 93 billion
Man-interest income and net interest income at new highs

B 927

7,631 BG4

I i I I

2009 2030 2011 2012 2013

2 Manage expenses Cast/income (%)

of 45% or better

4 43 g
Outcome Cost-income ratio better than target of 45% Investments paying off
positive 3% pt Income-expense jaws after three years of franchise investments I
|

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

|
\
! Target Be cost efficient while investing for growth, cost-income ratio target
|
\
|
|
|

3 Manage portfolio risk SP/average loans (bp)

Target Grow exposures prudently, aligned to risk appetite Expect specific allowances (SP}
to average 25 basis points of loans through the economic cycle

Outcome 5P as a percentage of loans moved towards normalisation after exceptionally
low levels m 2011 and 2012
- o B

2009 2000 2001 2012 2013

4 Improve returns Return on equity (%)

Target Return on equity of 12% or better in a normalised interest rate environment
Qutcome Double-digit return on equity in a historically low interest rate environment 10 112 198

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R _— P L= I o
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CUSTOMER KPIs

5 Increase wallet share IBG non-loan income ratto (%) CBG non-interest income ratio (%)

Target Deepen wallet share of indwidual

and corporate customers ¢ 50 50 34 38 41
Outcome Institutional Banking (IBG) 39 Al 30 32
non-loan to total Income ratio was
maintained and Consumer Banking {CBG)
non-interest INncome ratio rose
2009 2010 2011 2012 20132 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Customer satisfaction scores* 2012 2013

6 Increase customer satisfaction

Wealth Management customer engagement score
Target increase customer satisfaction ! agement cu engageme 381 402

Outcome |Improved customer Consumer Bank customer engagement score 3N 386 |
satisfaction in Institutional Banking )
and Consumer Banking based on

customer surveys

Large corporate bank ‘core bank' score 59% 65%

SME bank customer engagement score 403 405

[_
L

*  Customer engagement scores (1 = worst, 5 = best) based on survey to measure customers satisfaction with DBS acrass markets “Core bank score is the percentage
of surveyed customers across the requon who view DBS as a top 3 bank

EMPLOYEE KPIs

7 Maintain high employee engagement DBS Q' grand mean score

Target Build a highly engaged organisation
Outcome The Gallup Q2 grand mean score was maintained at 4 31 out of 392 400 411 431 431

a possible 5 We were awarded the Gallup Great Workplace Award 2013 for
the high level of engagement

2009 2010 2001 2002 2013

8 People development Mobiity

‘ Target Provide our people with development opportunities for professional ® Jarget
; and personal growth ® Actual
|
i
i
1

28%
Outcome Enabled our people to broaden their exposure across businesses and 20%
markets More than one-quarter of positions filled internally 1n 2013 l

Positions filled internally
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES {50% WEIGHTING)

GEOGRAPHIC KPIs

1 Entrench leadership in Singapore

Target Be the dominant unwversal bank in our home market

Outcome Record income and earnings despite fow interest rate environment
Excluding regional trading income bocked 1n Singapare, the core domestic franchise
posted double-digit percentage growth in income and earnings

2 Reposition Hong Kong

Outcome Income and earnings at new highs as we repositioned our franchise
1o capture the benefits of Hong Kong-China connectivity and the growing affluent

!
1
‘ Target Anchor of our Greater China franchise to capture China-related flows
|
\
customer segment

|

3 Rebalance the geographic mix of our business

Target Budd out our franchises in growth markets of China, Tawan, Indonesia and
India to achieve a more balanced geographic mix

Qutcome Made headway in growth markets with China's and Indonesia‘’s

Income at new highs, tempered by the macroeconomic environment in India

Income {SGD m)

4,426

3,991

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

lncome (SGD m)

+22%

1 ,B63
1,532
1,366 1,465 1,453

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Chena, Taiwan, indonesia and
Indra income (SGD m)

1,249

1,161

1,056

] I

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

M% —————» 4%
% of Group income
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REGIONAL BUSINESS KPIs

4 Build a leading SME Banking business SME Banking income (SGD m)

Target Serve SMEs by leveraging our local franchises and insights
Outcome Record income through asset growth and stronger non-interest income actwities

+11%
1, 370

1,229
1,024 1,641 1.092 II

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

5 Strengthen wealth proposition Wealth income {(SGD m)

Target Serve Asia‘'s growing affluent by leveraging our expertise to offer a strong
Astan wealth management proposition

Outcome [ncome at record, underpinned by customer acquisition

and deepening relaticnships

+18%

T III

2009 2010 2011 2002 2013

6 Buwld out transaction banking Trade and cash* income Treasury customer income
and treasury customer businesses (SGD m) (SGD m)
Target Leverage on our trade, cash and +4% +19%
treasury expertise to offer customers
differentiated financial solutions 1,371 1 430 ‘ 037

] I I I I
Trade and cash are part of the transaction I

banking busimness 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 201Q¢ 2011 2012 2013

QOutcome Transaction banking 1046
income and treasury customer income .
at new highs 673 706 I
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GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS SUMMARY

2013 2012 % chg
Selected income statement items (SGD m)
Net interest income 5,569 5,285 5
Net fee and commussion income 1,885 1,579 19
Net trading income 1,095 689 59
Other income 378 511 (26)
Total income 8,927 8,064 11
Expenses 3,918 3,614 8
Profit before allowances 5,009 4,450 13
Allowances for credit and other losses 770 417 85
Profit before tax 4,318 4157 4
Net profit 3,501 3,359 4
One-time rtem {Gain from sale of BPI) 221 450 (51)
One-time item (DBS Foundation) (50) - NM
Net profit including one-time items 3,672 3,809 (4
Selected balance sheet items (SGD m)
Customer loans 248,654 210,519 18
Total assets 402,008 353,033 14
Customer deposits 292,365 253,464 15
Total habilities 364,322 317.035 15
Shareholders’ funds 34,233 31,737 8
Key finanaal ratios (%) (excluding one—time items)
Net interest margin 1.62 170 -
Cost/income ratio 44 45 -
Return on assets 091 097 -
Return on equity’ 108 112 -
Loan/deposit ratio 85 83 -
NPL ratio 11 12 -
Specific allowances (loansyaverage loans (bp) 18 10 -
Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio? 137 - -
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratic? 137 140 -
Total capital adequacy ratio? 163 171 -
Per share data {SGD)
Per basic share
- earnings excluding one-time 1tems 143 139 -
— earnings 150 157 -
~ net book value 1361 12 96 -
Per diluted share
- earnings excluding one-time rtems 142 137 -
~ earnings 148 156 -
~ net book value 1351 12 86 -

nM Not Meaningful

I Calculated based on net profit attributable to the shareholders net of dividends on preference shares and other equity instruments Non-controling interests,
preference shares and other equity instruments are not included as equity in the cornpuitation of return of equity

2 With effect from T January 2013 Basel il capital adequacy requirements came into effect in Singapore Changes due to Basel it affected both eligible capital
and rnisk-weighted assets Uniess otherwise stated, caprtal adequacy disclosures refating to dates prior to 1 January 20173 are calculated in accordance with the
then prevailing capital adequacy regulations and are thus not directly comparable to those pertaining to dates from 1 January 2013
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“Total Income increased 11% to a new high
of SGD 8 93 billion, reflecting the depth and
resilience of our regional franchise in a year
marked by market volatility.”

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
OVERVIEW

Net profit rose to a record SGD 3 50 billion
for 2013 Including one-time items, net profit
was SGD 3 67 bilon

Record operating performance

Total Income increased 11% to a new high
of SGD 8 93 bilhon, propelled by higher
{oan volumes and broad-based non-interest
income growth The double-digit top-line
growth reflected the depth and resilience
of our regional franchise in a year marked
by market volatility

Net interest income rose 5% to a record
SGD 557 billion Loans increased 18%
or SGD 38 billion to SGD 249 hillion,

led by regional trade loans, Singapore
corporaie borrowing and secured consumer
loans While the net interest margin of

1 62% was eight basis points below the
previous year due to lower average loan
spreads and yields on secunities, it was
stable duning the course of the year with
httle quarterty fluctuations

Non-interest income increased 21% to a
record SGD 3 36 billign Fee income rose
19% to SGD 1 82 billon  Alf fee segments
grew by double-digit percentage terms, with
contnbutions from weaith management

and transaction banking services reaching
new highs Stockbroking commussions and
investment banking income benefited from
stronger capital market activity, particularty
in the first half Other non-interest income
increased 23% to 5GD 1 47 billion as higher

treasury customer income and trading gamns
were partially offset by lower income from
Investment securities

By customer segments, Wealth Management
income increased 18% to SGD 924 million
and SME Banking income grew 11% to
SGD 1 37 bilhon By product lines, income
from treasury customer activities rose

19% to SGD 1 04 billon, accounting for

a record 50% of total Treasury income
from 44% n the previous year Income
from Global Transaction Services increased
5% to SGD 1 48 billton as double-digit
percentage increases in trade loans and
cash management deposits were offset

by lower rates

Institutional Banking and Consumer Banking
/ Wealth Management, the two customer-
facing business units, respectively accounted
for 52% and 28% of the group’s total

income The remaining 20% was attributable
to other activities, including balance sheet
management, market making, and investment
and trading gains

Expense growth was contained at 8% to
SGD 3 92 billion, giving a positive Jaw of
three percentage points The cost-income
ratio improved to 44% from 45% a year ago

Profit before allowances increased 13%

to ¢ross SGD 5 billion for the first time

The stronger operating performance was
partially offset by higher general and speafic
allowances Total allowances rose 85%

to SGD 770 milhen General allowances
increased 1in ine with stronger loan growth
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while specific allowances rose to 18 basis
points of loans from exceptionally low
levels a year ago

One-time 1tems amounted to SGD 171
miilion, comprising a gan of SGD 221 million
for the partial divestment of a stake in the
Bank of the Philippine Islands less a sum of
SGD 50 mulhon set aside to establish the DBS
Foundation to further our commitment to
social and community devefopment

Balance sheet remains strong

Asset quality remained healthy The non-
performing loan rate was little changed
from recent quarters at 1 1% Allowance
coverage was at 135% and at 204% If
collateral was considered

Liquidity continued to be ample Deposits
grew 15% or SGD 39 billion during the year
to SGD 292 billion, in line with loan growth,
and the loan-deposit ratio was maintained
around recent quarters’ levels at 85%
Three-fifths of the deposit growth during
the year was In US dollars from western
multinationa!l corporations, institutional
investors and other customers

The Group was also well capitalised, with
a total capital adequacy ratio of 16 3% and
a Common Equity Tier-1 ratio of 13 7%
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Shareholders

REVIEW BY BUSINESS UNITS

CONSUMER BANKING / WEALTH MANAGEMENT

HIGHLIGHTS

Total income (SGD m) Leans (SGD bn)
2,538 T
2,300
2,204 . 62
2,008 2,065 55
50
I | I I
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 20mM 2012 2013
Wealth total earnings assets* (SGD bn) Non-interest income ratio (%)
134 4
116 38
34
103 32
91 30
| I I I
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

*

DBS Treasures, DBS Treasures Private Chent and DBS Private Bank

# m3anking Users # i2anking Users # \ileaitn Customers

839,000 2,440,000 283,000
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Focus areas

* Build out regional wealth husiness

« Bank mass market in Singapore, consider consumer finance

opporturustically in ather countries

Prionties in 2014

+ Increase focus on digitisation to enhance efficiency
* Make the customer expenence more interactve and inturtive

» Leverage analytics and the use of big data

INTRODUCTION

Consumer Banking / Wealth Management
{CBG) provides indivtdual customers with a
diverse range of banking and related financal
services Our customers can take comfort that
we have been consistently named " Safest
Bank in Asia” by Global Finance magazine
since 2009 We have deep roots In Singapore,
where we serve all parts of the community
through our extensive network of more than
2,300 DBS and POSB branches, ATMs and
self-service banking machmes

Qur Wealth Management franchise

offers a full suite of products and services
Affluent individuals are served in the DBS
Treasures customer segment while high

net worth individuals wath assets of more
than SGD 1 5 millien are served in the DBS
Treasures Private Client and DBS Private Bank
segments In addition to offering customers
the safety that comes from being well-
capitalised and having one of the highest
credit ratings, we are differentiated by our
insights on Asia and access to investments
that tap into Asia’s growth

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

CBG’ total Income rose 10% to

SGD 2 54 billion Net profit increased at a
faster rate of 17% to SGD 603 rmullion, as a
result of productvity gains and stable credit
costs The pace of growth 1n both income and
earnings was higher than the previous year

The stronger performance was led by a 19%
increase in non-interest income to SGD 1 04
billion as contributions from investment and
bancassurance product sales grew 27%,

demonstrating the strength of our wealth
management franchise

Net interest income rose 5% to SGD

1 50 billion driven by loan and deposit
volume growth, parbally offset by
lower interest margin

In Singapore, loans grew 10% from

housing and other secured consumer loans
Drawdowns of housing loans approved

in previcus years contributed to 32% of

the growth in our Singapore housing loan
portfolio However, applications for new
Singapcre housing loans declined 20%
compared to 2012 following a series of
government measures to ool the market
On the other hand, housing loan yields have
been firmuing The proportion of applications
for fixed-rate loans increased as more
borrowers became amenable to paying a
premium to lock 1n rates for mostly up to
three years while interest rates are low

The proportion of apphcations for pubhc
housing leans also increased from 2012 as
we introduced a product to attract buyers
who would otherwise have borrowed directly
from the public housing authority

Deposits grew 6% mainly from SGD

current and savings accounts, in which we
maintained our leading market share SGD
deposits costs were stable during the year

We continued to manage operating costs
tightly while investing in technology to
enhance our digital capabilities Expenses
rose 9% to SGD 1 74 billion  Allowances
continued to be low as asset quality remained
stable in a benign credit environment  Around
90% of our Singapore housing loans, which
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account for the majonity of our housing
loan exposure, are to borrowers with only
one housing loan The average outstanding
Singapore housing loan in our portfolio is
only 56% of the property’s market value
We also adopted debt servicing standards
long before they became regulatory
requirements to ensure that borrowers

did not overstretch themselves

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

We achieved the franchise development
goals we set for ourselves in 2013 They were
to improve our online platforms, cement our
leading position in wealth management and
make further strides in customer service

Dugrtal inthatives

With consumer transactions rapidly shifting
online, we continue to enhance our Internet
and mobile platforms to make them
seamless extensions of our physical branch
footprint The revamp incorporates an
improved engine 1o pull together customer
and product information, a refreshed and
consistent look and feel for all our online
and mobile channels, and the introduction
of innovative applications Once the full
revamp 1s completed, our Internet and mobile
platforms will be simpler and more Intuitive
to use, offer a higher degree of customisation
to indwidual needs, and enable customers
to interact in real time with relationship
managers or branch staff Customers wili

be able to make everyday transactions such
as payments, receve assistance for making
investment decisions, ¢all up information

on Ifestyle acuwities such as dining and
shopping, and check on their bank accounts
- all at their convenience, 24 x 7

Among the specific enhancements we
introduced dunng the year was a mebile
app, DBS Home Connect, enabling Singapore
home buyers to find out the valuation of

a residential property as well as recent
transaction prices in the wicinity by pointing
their mobile device at the property In
addition, applicants for credit cards and
unsecured loans can download our Optical
Character Reader to reduce the time

for completing their online applications
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Introducing
a new

Cash

withdravzal
service at
7-Eleven

Partnered 7-Eleven to enable customers to withdraw cash from its 500 outlets i Singapore

Customers can also use our online platform to
remit funds, transfers to India and Indonesia
can be completed 1n a matter of minutes

We also partnered Alibaba‘s e-commerce
payments site Alipay to allow our Singapore,
Hong Kong and China customers to purchase
itemns on Tacbao, a popular online market
We tapped social media to enhance brand
awareness and launch products, including

a crowd-sourcing deposit-gathering
programme called uGorGo™ that was
launched in Hong Kong with great success
and subsequently replicated in other markets

We have been meticulous in our efforts

to build a secure foundation around our
electronic platforms During the year, we
completed the roll-out of additional security
features, including a new-generation fog-in
token for customers and a system to alert
customers when transaction sizes cross a
threshold or when they are not routine
These changes have contnbuted to a safer
and easier expenence As a result, channel
usage increased over 40%, driven primaniy
by mobile We now have more than

2 4 million online and 800,000 mobile
users across the region On an average day
there are more than 300,000 logins, with
mobile accounting for close to 40% of the
total To reduce paper usage and go green,
we have enabled our customers to receive
statements in electronic form In Singapore,
over 50% of our customers now do so

Wealth management

In Wealth management, we continued 1o
make changes to improve the effectiveness
of our client interaction We increased the
number of relationship managers across

the region by 13% and equipped them

with customised tools that make them

more effective In helping clients to make
tnvestment decisions We up-tiered qualifying
clients in order to serve them better In Hong
Kong, we completed the integration of

our middle and back offices to improve the
qualty of support for front-line staff

Our wealth management online platforms
were re-designed based cn clients’ feedback
They asked for products and services that
were relevant to their nvestment needs and
nsk appetite, information and execution that
are delivered at speed, and simple processes
The revamped platform empowers clients
with quick and inturtive access to services,
product information and research Insights
and analysis can be customised according

to clients’ preferences Equities and funds
trading have been incorporated into the
platform, enhancing the range of asset
classes that are avaiiabie online

These efforts, coming on top of those In
recent years, enabled us to continue achieving
strong growth in our wealth management
business Total earning assets rose 15% during
the year to SGD 134 illion, bringing growth
since 2010 to 47% Wealth management

income grew 18% during the year to SGD
924 million, since 2010, 1t has grown 83%
The number of wealth management clients
grew 5% durning the year

Customer experience

Making continuous improvements to deliver
a superior experience for all our customers
remained a key strategic objective In previous
years, we successfully cut queue times at
our branches, improved the speed at which
calls to our customer hotline were answered,
and increased the availability of our ATMs

In 2013, our distnibution channels were
expanded by a partnership with 7-Eleven,

a convenience store chain, to enable our
customers to withdraw cash from its 500
outlets across Singapore This built on the
partnership with SingPost that was launched
in 2012, which enabled our customers to
carry out basic banking transactions at 56
post offices in Stngapore

We used data analytics to strengthen our
ability to respond to and pre-empt customers’
needs A voice analytics programme has
improved the efficiency of our call centre
operations The technology has enabled us,
for example, to 1dentify calls requinng longer
handling times as well as the underlying
causes for repeat calls from a custorner
Propensity models were developed using
advanced staustical techniques to improve
customer targeting This has reduced
frnictional costs for the customer and improved
our operating efficiency We alse launched
real-time marketing and service offers

usiNg our new complex event processing
technology For example, when a customer
makes an airline purchase online, he will
receive persenalised complementary hotel
and travel insurance offers within seconds
This new capability has improved both
customer satisfaction and conversion rates

We also continued to improve customer
experience For example, the new on-
boarding process for upgraded DBS Treasures
customers In Singapore now takes one day
instead of seven days previously We are now
working on similar initiatives across

other markets to similarly differentiate

the customer journey




Our efforts are being noticed and appreciated
by our customers and the industry We
recewved the following accolades "Best Local
Private Bank tn Singapore” by Euromoney
magazine, “Best Wealth Manager in
Indonesia” by The Asset magazine, "Best
Consumer Bank (Foreign) in China” by Global
Finance and "Best Wealth Management in
Hong Kong” by Global Banking & Finance
We were also given numerous awards in
Singapore, tncluding “Best Use of Social
Media/Mobile” for the DBS Traveller Shield
campaign by Marketing Magazine Customer
engagement results for Singapore’s DBS
Private Bank and DBS Treasures Private Chent
registered significant progress wath both
segments achieving 75th percentile scores in
an industry survey carried out by Gallup,

INSTITUTIONAL BANKING GROUP

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

a management consultant DBS Treasures
customer engagement satisfaction scores
increased n all our markets, with Hong
Kong and Indonesia achieving significant
improvements DBS and POSB customer
engagement satisfaction scores also
increased significantly

OUTLOOK

We rematn optimistic about our operating
environment, barring any unforeseen shock
While recent regulations are ikely to affect
the short-term growth of housing and car
loans In some markets, we are fortunate

to be operating in a region with promising
demographics and a rapidly growing
middle class that will provide continued
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opportunities for growth We walt grow
sensibly while managing asset quality

We will continue to fundamentally reshape
the customer experience and our value
proposition by leveraging technology and
our wealth management capabilities

We will tocus on reinforcing our leadership
position In wealth management with
differentiated offerings, driving digital
Innovation with specific emphasis on
mobility, payments and e-wealth, using
big data analytics to provide customers
with timely offers, and enhancing the
customer experience across all segments
and touchpoints

HIGHLIGHTS

Total income (SGD m)

Non-loan income ratio (%)

Trade assets (SGD bn}

4,676

4,010 4152
i 3I5‘|3 I I I

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Cash management deposits
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NPL ratio (%)
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Focus areas

* Build out regional SME business

* Grow large corporate banking business regionally

Priorities in 2014

+ Scale up the western MNC and Institutional investor businesses
+ Grow SME franchise by customer acquisition and offering customised solutions
+ Scale up cash business by leveraging online platform and drive
trade business by offering/working capital solutions
* Mantain leadership in fixed Income, capital markets and syndications
* Leverage e-channels and innovation to extend reach and differentiate client experience

INTRODUCTION

Institutional Banking (IBG) provides financial
services and products to over 200,000
institutional clients, including bank and non-
bank financial iInstitutions, government-linked
companies, large corporates and small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) We offer the
complete range of credit facilities from short-
term working capital financing to specialised
lending We also provide transaction banking
services such as cash management and

trade finance, treasury and market products,
corporate finance, advisory banking and
capital market solutions Building leading
transaction banking and SME businesses are
two of the Group's strategic objectives

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

IBG posted another strong year Total income
grew 13% to 5GD 4 68 billion from strong
asset growth and non-loan actiities across
most markets, underpinned by robust
demand in Asia Improved non-loan activities
contributed to an 18% increase In non-interest
income to SGD 1 65 bithon as we continued
to deliver holistic sclutions to customers
Non-foan activities accounted for 50% of IBG's
total income Net tnterest income rose 10% to
SGD 3 02 billion Customer loans grew 20%
to SGD 179 billion from strong broad-based
demand across the region, but the impact was
partially offset by a lower net interest margin
We also grew deposits from both existing
chents as well as our growing customer base
of western multinatonal corporations and
institutional investors

While investing for the future, we remained
disciphned on costs and improved the cost-
income ratio to 28% from 31% n 2012
Profit before allowances grew 14% to SGD
3 30 billion Total allowances amounted

to SGD 544 mithon as general allowances
increased in line with loan growth and
specific allowances rose from exceptionally
low levels The non-performing loan ratio
remained low at 1 4% despite uncertainties
In some growth markets, such as India

We continued to be vigilant and actively
managed risks during the year

Net profit grew 5% to SGD 2 32 billion
STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

Global Transaction Services (GTS)

GTs achieved another strong year as

fee activities propelled total income to a
record SGD 1 48 billion, up 5% While
earnings were affected by industry-wide
margin pressure on trade finance loans, our
investment i higher-vatue working capital
solutions enabled us to continue making
gains in several product segments Since
2010, GTS has added over SGD 700 million
of annuity income streams with high return
on capital, contnbuting to improving the
Group’s profitability and earnings quality

Qver the past three years, we launched

high value-added products ranging from
sophisticated liquidity management solutions
and supply chain structures, to new payment
technologies that prowide ease of use and the

abilty to handle massive volumes We also
expanded our capabilittes to serve established
multinationals as well as SMEs building out
their Asia franchise We have become a key
relationship bank for large Asian companies
establishing regional treasury centres in
Singapore and Hong Kong

The sophistication of the products we offer
IS as good as any in the world Combined
with our strong balance sheet, it has
resulted in new mandates from the world’s
leading companies We offer solutions to
assist clients to generate free cash flow,

a cntical and highly valued activity in the
past 24 months, we have won 190 deals
In excess of SGD 1 million of income

The technology we invested in has allowed
us to acquire clients, provide state-of-the-art
customer service, and deepen wallet share
without a corresponding increase in staff cost

The combination of new products,
expanded chient servicing capabilities
and more efficient technology has led to
record levels of GTS assets and deposits
In 2013, deposits grew SGD 24 hillion to
SGD 119 bilion while trade assets grew
SGD 11 billion 1o SGD 63 billion Growth
in deposits cutpaced growth in assets
for the third straight year, strengthening
DBS' hquidity further

With interest rates at historical lows, margins
for both trade and cash products have been
compressed As such, we believe there 1s
significant intrinsic value embedded in

our recent deposit and asset growth

As the dniver of the global economy in the
next decade, Asia will continue to lead

the world in the rate of growth of both
manufactuning and domestic consumption
As companies invest in Asia to capitalise on
these opportunities, we are well-posttioned
with our extensive range of products and
services to support them

SME Banking
With the buillding of the SME regional
platform architecture completed in 2012,




our efforts in 2013 were focused on
acquinng new chents and on increasing
wallet share across the markets we operate
In Total Income rose 11% to SGD 1 37
billion, exceeding the target we set for

the year, from broad-based growth Loans
grew 14% to SGD 40 billion while deposits
increased 11% to SGD 35 billion Non-loan
income accounted for 63% of total income
from 60% 1n 2012, helped by strong treasury
product sales, particularly in Hong Kong,
and debt and equity issuances

The performance was the result of upgrades
we made to our operations We enhanced
our credit process by butlding local
programmes in each country to approve
mid-sized exposures with a clear set of

rules and parameters The programmes
have reduced the time taken tc assess and
approve credit applications across all our
markets We incorporated technology into
our efforts 1o improve customer experience
QOur online account opening was extensively
automated with a new engine that pulls
together customer data from public sources
This has reduced the time taken for clients to
open an account to 15 minutes, compared
to the industry average of one to two hours
We also revamped our website to give a
simplified and consistent look and feel for
easy navigation Qur relationship managers
now use IPads to receive updated chent

and product information, enabling them to
evaluate customer requirements and propose
solutions on the go

While Singapore and Hong Kong currently
account for a significant proportion of our
SME business, we are able to provide high-
value services In treasury, cash management,
trade facilities and advisory services to SMEs
in China, Tawan, India and Indonesia to
support their regional expansion

Treasury and capital market products in
particular led our non-loan activities with
SMEs dunng the year While large corporates
dominated debt raising in 2012, 1t was SMEs
that were active In embracing the debt capial
market In 2013 as an alternative source of
funding for expansion In Singapore, we

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

were the market leader in advising SMEs on
bend 1ssuance and had a market share of
45% 1n 2013 In a securitisation deal that
won two awards from Internattona! Financing
Review magazine, we helped TG Master,

a praperty developer, raise SGD 200 milhon
of unencumbered capital secured against
future payments from committed bookings
of a property project it had launched

The transaction improved its cash flow

by enabling 1t to finance other ongeing
projects We also supported Soilbuild
Business Space REIT in its imtal public
offering and provided advisory services

to Frencken Group for its acquisition of
Juken Technology

Our success has been reflected in the

awards we won during the year The Asset
magazine named us “Best Bank for Emerging
Corporates In Asia”, we were recognised as
“Best SME bank in Hong Kong” by Global
Banking & Finance Review, and we were
named “Best Small Business Lencing Bank”
at Global Finance’s Stars of China Awards

Customer expernience

During the year, we continued to strengthen
our operating systems and streamline our
processes, which are instrumental 1o our
ahiiity to introduce innovative customer
solutrons We launched a one-stop customer
service call centre called DBS Business Care
to provide a prompt response to customer
needs For a start, we rolled out Business
Care 1n Singapore and Hong Kong

We improved the customer on-boarding
expertence with a simplified documentation
process Qur account opening documents
were awarded the Crystal Mark for being
written in piain English We launched an
online appointment system so that warting
time can be reduced when customers visit a
branch to complete therr account opening

We improved chent engagement by using a
disaaplined approach to account planning
Chents have cited their appreciation for the
regular strategic dialogues we conducted
with them and noticed the increasingly
adwvisory approach we have been taking

to address therr business needs We also
organised Asian Insights industry forums for
industry participants to exchange insights,
outlook and trends, and the forums have
been well received The improvement in
customer satisfaction s evident from the
increased number of clients across all
countnes who cited DBS as their core bank
In the latest annual customer surveys

OUTLOOK

The Investments we made in recent years

to iImprove regional connectivity, product
expertise and custemer engagement are
reaping strong results We are winning new
mandates across multiple customer segments
and business lines

Our strategy remains unchanged

We will work with chents across the

region, leveraging on our regional network,
product capabilities and technological
innovation We wili develop our western
multinational and institutional investor client
base, grow our SME franchise regionally by
driving customer acquisition and offering
innavative holistic solutions, use our cash
and trade product capabihities to help
customers manage their working capital
needs, and maintain leadership in capital
markets and syndication
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HIGHLIGHTS

Total Treasury income (SGD milhon}
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1.920
1,713
Customer a64
income
Treasury
segment
income 1,249
% of total 2009 2010
Treasury INGome 27% 36%

1,974 1,987

2,071

2011 2012 2013
42% 41% 50%

The Treasury segment reflects only income related to market making, risk warehousmng and mvestrment
actiwties Income from treasury customer actiities 15 reflected i IBG and CBG since such income denves
from our refationship with the customers in those business segments Total Treasury income encompasses

Treasury segment income and custormner ncome

Focus areas

*  Grow treasury customer income

* Strengthen product and electronic distnbution capabiities across all asset classes

Priorrties 1n 2014

* Grow customer income further

* Deliver offshore RMB and cross-border solutions for customers

*  Continue efforts to bulld a leading Asian fixed income house

*  Build & customer-centric commodity business

* Build up institutional investor business with a focus on treasury products

*  Keep pace with evolving regulatory over-the-counter derivatives reforms globally

We are an Asian leader in treasury and
offer a broad range of products and services
to individuals, companies and financial
institutions We offer cash and derivative
products in foreign exchange, interest
rates, equities, commodtties and fixed
INcome securities We carry out activities
related to market-making, nisk warehousing
and investment activities We also help
customers raise funds through debt
Issuances Our nimbleness in structuring
products for customers Iin response to
changing market conditions sets us apart

from competitors Our sales and structuring
teams work with relationship managers and
other product specialists across the Group
to offer total sk management solutions

to customers

We are the acknowledged leader n
Singapore, with dorminance in SGD across
various asset classes We are the leading
market-maker for SGD foreign exchange
and cross-currency options With one of the
biggest foreign exchange and denvatives
teams i Singapore, we have been able to

offer supenor pricing capabilities to customers
In Hong Kong, we are a major market-maker
with an esimated market share of about 10%
for the RMB spot and forward markets We
offer a full suite of RMB and HKD dervative
products to customers We are committed to
extending our leadership m market-making,
structuring and distribution capabilities, and
strengthening our fixed income ongination
capabilities in Asian currencies

We are the leader in SGD rates As a dormmant
participant in the interbank swap market, we
are a significant prowder of iquichty in the
interbank SGOD swap market We are a primary
dealer of Singapore Government Secunties
and are one of the largest and most active
participants in the market

Our expertise enables us to offer structured
products to indwidual customers seeking
yeld or manage sizeable transactions for
corporates and institutions We provide
Innovative solutions on long-dated or large-
sized interest rate swaps and cross currency
denvative transactions, benefiting both
foreign and domestic customers seeking

to match labilities We can also develop
alternative funding solutions for corporate
customers to optimise their capital structure
and balance sheet

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Treasury segment income fell 8% to

SGD 1 03 billon The decline was due
maly to lower gains from interest rate
and credit activities Income from customer
activities rose 19% to SG0 1 04 bilhon
from higher sales to institutional and
individual customers This brought total
Treasury income to SGD 2 07 billion,

a 4% increase over 2012

Cver the past four years, iIncome from
custormner activities has grown while treasury
segment income has generally remained flat
As a result, the proportion of total Treasury
income from customer activities has doubled
from 27% n 2009 to0 50% In 2013 The
shift reflects our ability to respond to market
opportunities arising from our extensive
product expertise and understanding




of customer needs We also invested in
regional expansion, particularly in Greater
China where we built an extensive RMB
business spanning foreign exchange, bonds,
structured preducts and hedging solutions
Tawan, China and Hong Kong posted the
highest compounded annual income growth
dunng the penod

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

Commodities

During the year, we expanded our product
range with option pnaing capabilities for
aver-the-counter energy products Since
2011, when we started with copper, we have
expanded our product range to alumimum,
copper, lead, nickel, iron ore, crude ol and
refined o1l products, cotton, soybean and
bean ol Customer income from commodity
products has grown five-fold since 2011

Fixed income

Our fixed iIncome capability has been
expanded beyond SGD, our traditional
stronghold, to regional and G3 currencies

While SGD debt 1ssuances slowed during
the year, we maintained our long-standing
leadership with 55 transactions worth
SGD 6 1 billion

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

We also powered ahead with foreign-
currency bond transactions We completed
23 USD bond transactions as a book-runner,
a new benchmark for us, compared to 16

In 2012 Some of the biggest USD deals

we were Involved in were maugural issues
They included San Miguel Corp’s landmark
UsSE 800 million issue, which was the largest
carparate bond out of the Philippines, Butch-
based Trafigura Beheer BV's debut USD 500
milhion perpetual bond, for which we were
the only Asian book-runner, and a debut USD
450 million seven-year transaction for Mersin
International Port, a joint venture between
PSA, Singapore’s port operator, and Akfen, a
Turkish infrastructure company The deal was
the first Turkish bond arranged by a Singapore
bank We were also book-runner for the first
corperate USD high-yield bond from India, a
USD 200 milkon five-year bond for Rolta LLC
We will cantinue to grow our USD franchise to
serve the global funding needs of our clients

During the year, we were ranked fifth in
underwriting league tables for CNH bonds
(excluding financial institutions issues),

a marked improvement from 2012 We
executed our first CNH bond transaction for
a Tawanese issuer and successfully priced
our inaugural CNH bond of RMB 500 million
settled in Singapore

We enhanced our online offerings to improve the customer expenience
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Dugital intiatives

We enhanced our online infrastructure
as part of efforts to make continuous
Improvements to customer experence
and reach

DealOnline, our full-fledged online treasury
platform, offers auto price strearming and
auto-dealing in spot foreign exchange,
swap, forward and non-deliverable forward
contracts The platform offers corporate and
financial institution customers flexibility to
conduct a range of banking actvities and
services with a secure login In Singapore,
2,000 SMEs have also signed up

Corporate customers are able to enguire,
book therr foreign exchange and manage
thesr cash and trade transactions over a
highly customisable dashboard, receve
real-ime updates via email and SM5 on all
banking actmities and always stay informed
With the same platform, corporate customers
can utihise their foreign currencies for either
remitiance or trade financing purposes
DealOnline also offers indwidual customers
in Hong Kong a 24-hour foreign exchange
pricing enging

OUTLOOK

Regulatory developments could have an
impact on our business They include reforms
for the over-the-counter denvatives market,
which would involve regulations on central
counterparty clearing, trade repository
reporting, the US Dodd-Frank wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act,

and the European Market Infrastructure
Market Regulation

We will stay the course with our strategy
Our initiatives for 2014 include mantainmg
the mementum for customer activity with
institutional, corporate and individual chients,
and strengthening our electronic platform
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REVIEW BY GEOGRAPHIES

SINGAPORE

Financial

performance

(SGD m)

Income 5,415 4,966
Expenses 2,288 2,088
Profit before 3,127 2,878
allowances

Net profit 2,260 2,079

As Singapore I1s our home market, our
efforts are directed at entrenching our
industry leadership We seek to deepen
relationships with institutions and corporates
by providing comprehensive transactional
and advisory solutions and growing the SME
business With individuals, our aim 1S to use
our vast distribution network and product
expertise as differentiating factors in serving
the mass market We also have a leading
position in the affluent and high net worth
customer segments

Despite the continued low interest rate
environment, our Singapore franchise
significantly outperformed peers, reflecting
the success of our strategy Total income
rose 9% to SGD 5 42 billion from higher
loan volumes and broad-based non-interest
income growth Full-year net profit rose
9% to SGD 2 26 billon Excluding regional
trading income booked In Singapore, our
core Singapore franchise recorded double-
digit growth in 1ts top and bottom lines

We maintamed our domestic loan and
deposit market shares Our market share
in domestic loans held steady from 2012
as 5GD loans grew 12% Qur top position
In savings deposits was also maintained in
a competitive market

DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

We continued to implement the new branch
operating model which began two years
ago By differentiating branch formats,

we can |leverage low-cost channels (such
as self-service machines) and partnerships
(with SingPost, 7-Eleven and Buzz Pod)

for transactional activities and utilise
branches for customer sales In 2013,

we re-modelled a further eight branches
The effort has yrelded encouraging results
During the year, 27% of housing loan
applications were initiated at branches
compared to 20% 1n 2012, while sales of
insurance and investment income ingreased
17% Our partnership with 7-Eleven has
resulted in 190,000 customer transactions
since 1ts launch while the number of
transactions from our partnership with
SingPast rose 11% We also employed
customer data analytics in various customer
segments, enabling us to be more 1argeted
In our marketing

With institutiens and corporates, we
continued to lead In transaction banking,
capital markets (including equity, bonds and
REiTs), syndications and treasury market
activities We alse established new SME
relationships and deepened wallet share

We assisted SME chents wath seven bond
1ssues, further strengthemng our dominance
in mid-cap bond i1ssuances

Our use of technology and social medta

to drive Innovation has been recognised
Our marketing campaigns for travel
insurance and online banking were
recognised by Marketing Magazine for
“Best Use of Social/Mobile” and “Best Use
of Experiential/Live Marketing” Our focus
on innovation tn cross-border payments and
e-remittances bore fruit with strong volume
growth and market share gains Since 2010,
volumes have grown four-fold and over 80%
of transactions are now conducted online

SINGAPORE INCOME

9%

Excluding regional trading income booked in
Singapere, core domestic franchise income
rose by double-digit percentage terms

CAPITAL MARKETS LEADERSHIP

#1 1n equity fund raising
#1.n 5GD bonds
#1 mandated lead arranger

LEADERSHIP IN ONLINE BANKING

1Banking mBanking

2.1m 810,000

Expanded customer touchpotnts
through partnerships with Singapore
Post, 7-Eleven and Buzz Pod

Added over

600 touchpoints
in 3 years

MORTGAGE LOAN APPLICATIONS
INITIATED THROUGH BRANCHES

27% I I

2012

20%




HONG KONG
Financial 2013 2012
performance
{SGD m)
income 1,863 1,532
Expenses 77 678
Profit before 1,146 854
allowances
Net profit 851 716

As the anchor of our Greater China franchise,
Hong Kong plays an instrumental role in our
efforts to deepen relationships with leading
China enterprises, as well as bring customers
from elsewhere into China It is the base

for employing our expertise In transaction
banking, treasury and wealth management to
connect China with the rest of our network
Qur established domestic franchise also
serves the full range of corporate and SME
chents and affluent individuals 1n Hong Kong

Hong Keng achieved another record year as
total income, profit before allowances and net
profit all reached new highs Total income rose
22% to SGD 1 86 bilhon from loan growth,
improved net interest margin and broad-based
non-interest income growth Profit before
allowances surpassed SGD 1 billion for the
first time to SGD 1 15 billion, a 34% Increase
Net profit rose 19% to SGD 851 million,
contributing to 24% of the Group’s

total Our top and bottom line growth
outperformed competitors in the market

Hong Kong's record performance was
the result of strong growth across all
customer segments

Qur regional neiwork, product expertise and
reputation for consistent customer support
through business cycles contributed to a
deepening of our relationship with Chinese
enterprises with overseas operations during
the year Our relationship has progressively
extended beyond credit facihties to strategic
adwvisory as well as capital market and
treasury activities During the year, we were
the lead arranger for several transactions
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related to acquisition financing and debt
and equity 1ssuances of Chinese enterprises,
and we completed our inaugural Quanhat
cross-border bilateral RMB loan agreement
As such, we grew Income from Chinese
large corporates by 34%

We maintained our status as a leading bank
n offshore RMB transactions Offshore RMB
activity accounted for more than 20% of
total Hong Kong income as a result of strong
treasury, cash and trade activittes The growth
In treasury customer income dunng the year
was led by Hong Kong SMEs, which took
advantage of the favourable environment to
hedge therr RMB requirements

We devised a composite index called
DRIVE (for “DBS RMB Index for VVinning
Enterprises”), which uses company surveys
to measure the levet of adoption of the
RMB 1in Hong Kong for local and global
transactions The index is intended to assist
policy makers, businesses and investors to
track the usage and acceptance of RMB
among Hong Kong companies

We further expanded cur SME franchise

by focusing on customer acquisition and
offering holistic solutions We increased

the size of our sales team and added two
dedicated customer centres to serve this
segment The improved capabilities enabled
us to )mprove the breadth of our relationship
with products other than loans

We continue to be among the largest SME
banks in Hong Kong We were named the
“SME Bank of the Year” by Asian Banking and
Finance and the “Best SME's Pariner” by the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Smali and
Medium Businesses for the fifth year in a row

Our efforts to reposition consumer banking
continue to pay off as ncome from investment
and insurance products rose 18% We opened
our {irst DBS Treasures Private Client centre In
the aity to serve the high net worth segment

We actively used social media and product
differentiation to buikd brand presence and
deepen customer engagement We launched
an online crowd-sourcing campaign called
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uGoIGo™, which was entirely devised in-
house, to acquire DBS Treasures customers
The campaign used a group-buying concept
to offer a progressively higher tier of mterest
rate for time deposits once a specific group
size was achieved With an online marketing
and social media strategy, the target size was
achieved within two days of launch Overall,
the uGo1Go™ campaign garnered more than
64,000 page views It also increased the
number of DBS Treasures customers acquired
by online channels five-fold from 2012 The
campaign was awarded the “Best Idea in
Viral Marketing” at Marketing Magazine’s
MARKIes Award 2013, with DBS being the
only financial Institution to win the award

TAPPING ON CHINA'S
CONNECTIVITY

INCOME FROM CHINA LARGE
CORPORATES GREW 34%

STRONG OFFSHORE
RMB CAPABILITIES

i
]
N Eat

RMB-refated mcome exceeds 20%
of total income in Hong Kong

INDUSTRY-WIDE RECOGNITION

®

Best SME's Partner
SME Bank of the Year
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GROWTH MARKETS

Our operations in growth markets are
integral to our strategy of intermediating
trade and investment flows in the region In
these markets, our customers are principally
large and medium-sized corporates and
affluent individuals

REST OF GREATER CHINA

Financial

performance

(SGD m) i

Income 743 663
Expenses 548 498
Profit before 195 165
allowances

Net profit 92 110

Total iIncome in the Rest of Greater China
rose 12% to SGD 743 million as a decline in
net interest income from lower net interest
margin was more than offset by increased
fee income and treasury income from
customer activities Net profit fell 16%

to 5GD 92 million as expenses rose and
allowances doubled to SGD 76 million
mainly due to higher specific allowances

China

China’s economic growthn was maintammed at
7 7% With further interest rate hberalisation
during the year, net interest margin came
under pressure, especially in the first half

of the year Against this backdrop, we took
steps to improve the loan-deposit ratio

and our deposit mix These efforts helped
the financial performance of our China
operations In the second half

Our wealth proposition was enhanced with
an expanded product range and improved
serviaing capabilities We introduced the
Morning Star asset allocation tool to help
In clients’ asset allocation We were the
first foreign bank to offer financial needs
analysis and enable customers to make
purchases of structured investment
products online These improvements
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resulted in a 44% increase In consumer
banking income

We grew treasury customer income by
focusing on the foreign exchange and
commodity hedging needs of corporate
chents and the investment needs of affluent
customers We were the first to introduce
equity-linked notes talored to an indwadual
customer’s requirements Moreover, we are
able to structure and deliver the customised
product wathin a day of recewving the request

we fully leveraged our regional connectivity
strength to win loan syndication deals

We were the sole arranger for the largest
USD syndicated loan in Chongaing for the
Chongqing Grain Group, a leading China
agncultural corporate

Clients have positive feedback on our
enhanced producis and services, as well as
our stepped-up engagement with them

We are heartened by the results of externaliy-
conducted customer surveys In SME banking,
we realigned our sales team structure to
enable relationship managers to better focus
on clent servicing This effort helped us to be
named “Best Foreign Bank for Small Business
Lending in China” by Global Finance and
“Best Foreign Bank” by China Association

for Small and Medium Enterpnses (CASME)
In 2013

New licences granted to us dunng the year
provide us with new areas of growth We
were appointed by the State Administration
of Foreign Exchange as an official market-
maker in USD/CNY and SGD/RMB foreign
exchange spot and forward contracts

In June, we were among the first batch

of foreign banks to win approval to sell
domestic urit trusts, which enhanced our
wealth proposiion In the fourth quarter, we
were one of the first two foreign banks to
receve approval to open a sub-branch in the
Shanghai Free Trade Zone We believe that
this zone provides a test ground for interest
rate beralisatron, RMB internationalisation
and the opening up of capital markets

We intend to take full advantage of these
opportunities in the coming years

MAKING HEADWAY IN
RETAIL BANKING

“Best Consumer
Bank, Foreign® by
Global Finance

MAKING HEADWAY IN
SME BANKING

“Best Foreign
Bank for Small
Business Lending
in China* by
Global Finance

“Best Foreign

Bank” by CASME




Tarwan

Taiwan's economic growth slowed to 2 1%
from sluggish external demand and domestic
factors Despite reduced corporate loan
demand and increased credit quality concerns,
we managed to grow our Taiwan franchise
while renewing our focus on credit quality

In consumer banking, we enhanced our
foreign exchange product range With the
launch of an RMB business, our Treasures
customer base increased by one-quarter as
5,000 customers signed up, with deposits
In excess of RMB 1 bilhon

We cemented our position as a leading
banking partner to SMEs We became

the second-largest SME lender among
foreign banks wath a 37% share of loans by
foreign banks Our strong treasury and cash
management capabilities, together with our
extensive electronic and mobile channels for
customers, helped us achieve 25% income
growth in the SME segment We were named
“Best Qverall Domestic / Cross-border Cash
Management Services Provider in Tawan” for
small corporates by Astamoney magazine

Treasury sales had a strong performance

as more financial Institutions as well as
corporate and individual clients came to us
for structured and currency hedging products
With the Group's success In offshore RMB
products, we were able to capitahise on the
deregulation of the offshore RMB market in
Tawan, which enabled customers to make
RMB deposits and investments Income from
RMB derivatives grew more than three times
as derivative volumes increased five-fold

Our RMB one-year structured investrment
product garnered RMB 80 miilion within a
few months of its launch

Our success 1s predicated on the ability to
offer customers connectivity to other Asian
markets We serve more than 200 Taiwanese
companies with operations in China, Hong
Kong, Singapore, India and Indonesia In
addition to credit faolities, we provide
cross-border finanaial services such as capital
market issuance, foreign exchange hedging
and trade transactions to these clients
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STRONG CAPABILITIES TO SUPPORT
CORPORATES IN TAIWAN

“Best Qverall Domestic/
Cross-barder Cash Management
Services Provider in Taiwan” for
small corporates by Aslamoney

SOUTH AND SOUTHEAST ASIA

Financial

performance

{SGD m)

Income 600 591
Expenses 283 275
Profit before 317 316
allowances

Net profit 198 293

Total income grew 2% to SGD 600 million

as the underlying franchise remained

resilent despite a challenging macroeconomic
environment Net profit fell 32% as
allowances rose from SGD 38 milhon to

SGD 126 million mainly due to higher

specific allowances

India

India’s economy and currency were affected by
volatile financial markets duning the year, which
dented business confidence and consumer
demand The challenging environment
resulted in muted balance sheet growth and
an increase In non-performing loans n parts
of our mid-sized corporate portfolio We are
the fourth-largest foreign bank by assets and
strongly believe in India’s long-term growth
potential While slowing down dunng the year,
we took steps to strengthen our franchise to
prepare ourselves for the time when growth
opportunities return

We strengthened our credit processes,

from the ongination of new loans to the
monitoring of existing ones We also took
steps to Increase overall returns and improve
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wallet share by conducting In-depth account
planning for key corporate chents We set up
an India desk 1in Singapore to drive offshore
business opportunities ansing from Indian
corporates’ growing regional operations

Non-interest income was boosted by a range
of treasury, cash management and trade
actwvities We concluded seven debt capntal
market transactions, including a successful
USD 200 million five-year high-yield issue
for Rolta, a leading information technology
corporation, as well as a SGD 250 milbon
bond, followed by a retap of 150 million,

for Tata Communication

We launched a mobife banking platform

for corporate clients to perform transaction
banking services on the go We enhanced our
proposition for non-resident Indians with the
launch of a remittance service for Singapore-
based clients to transfer funds to any bank

in India Since the launch, almost SGD 200
million has been remitted through the onhine
platform, with an average daily transaction
count of 900 in December We launched

two foreign currency non-resident (FCNR)
products, garnering USD 500 million of FCNR
deposits that were subseguently swapped
with the Indian central bank during a mited
window, enabling chents to capitalise on

a short-term opportunity

We continued to grow our customer
franchises as we added close to 1,000
corporate and 5,000 indwidual customers

STRONG CAPABILITIES TO
SUPPORT CORPORATES IN INDIA

“Best FX solutions provider in
indra” by Global Finance

“Best Foreign Cash
Management Bank for medium
corporates” by Asiamoney

I~
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Indonesia

Indonesia’s economtic growth slowed to 5 8%
from accelerating inflation, falling export
prices and slower foreign investment In

the middle of the year, Indonesian financial
markets were also affected as capital
outflows led to IDR depreciation and volatility
in financial asset prices

Despite the challenging environment,

we recarded strong growth n corporate
banking and wealth management To drive
higher returns, we managed net interest
margin by ensunng price discipline and
focusing on target customer segments In
the large corporate segment, we utihised our
knowledge in sectors such as commodities
and our regional connectivity to support
chents’ cross-border financing needs
Among SMEs, our cash management,
trade and treasury capabilities helped us
to be recogrised as “Best Foretgn Cash
Management Bank for Small Corporate”
by Asiamoney magazine

Cur reputation as Asia’s safest bank as well
as our extensive product capabilities helped
us gain customers among affluent individuals
Widely recognised as one of the top three
wealth management banks in Indonesia
with competitive Investment product suites,
we also leveraged our treasury capabilities

1o structure products with higher returns

for customers

STRONG CAPABILITIES TO SUPPORT
CORPORATES IN INDONESIA

“Best Treasury and Working
Capital Bank for MNC/Large
Corporate” by Asiamoney

“Best Cash Management
Solution Bank” by Asiamoney

“Best FX Bank" by
Global Finance
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Customers

IMPROVING CUSTOMER
ACCESS

Our network spans key Asian markets,
enabling us to connect customers with
opportunities across the region Many of
our competitors either focus on a particular
sub-region, or do not have the Asian roots,
insights and connectvity that we do

Qur distribution and product capabilities
enable us to offer "one-bank” solutions

to serve both the personal and business
needs of customers

In Singapore, we have more than 2,300
distribution points — including branches,
ATMs and self-service banking machines

- that enable our individual customers to
perform a vanety of transactions such as
paying bills and buying movie tickets besides
making cash withdrawals The usage of
our ATM channel 1s among the highest In
the world Every hour, we also have 39,000
onhne and mobile transactions as well as
enquines, one of the highest in Singapore

Our branch network in Singapore Is in the
process of being transformed to make
customer transactions faster, easier and more
conventent Our state-of-the-art flagship
branch at Marina Bay Financial Centre offers
customners touch-pads to shorten the time
needed to complete forms These innovations
have reduced queue times, while sales
volumes and customer satisfaction have
improved On the back of this success, we
have been extending the new branch design
to other branches

Besides re-modelling, we have been increasing
the number of touchpoints over the years To
complement our network of full branches, we
added mini-branches at high traffic locations
and communuty centres [n Aprd 2013, we
began to progressively install ATMs at 83

Buzz Pod convenience stores located at bus
interchanges, MRT stations, shopping malls,
and residential estates These additional
outlets will complement our partnerships

with 7-Eteven and the post office

In India, our 12 branches, including our
headquarters in Mumban, are located in cities
that account for more than 75% of the total
trade transacted by companies in India While
our reach enables us to support corporate
clients, a larger distribution network will

let us serve affluent individuals better and
improve our positioning for garnering
additional cash management mandates

We have therefore applied for four more
branches and are studying the guidelines for
fareign bank subsichansation, which would
allow us to rapidly fast-track our growth In
the country

PROVIDING INNOVATIVE
SOLUTIONS

Innovation 15 a key item on our agenda,
because we believe companies that do not
embrace the digital age are likely to become
extinct Customers want banking services
but not necessarily banks They want to be
able to bank on the fly as they go about
therr danty activities One of our ams 15 to
maintain feadership 1n electronic payments
and mobile banking

During the year, we revamped our online
wealth platform to incorporate a number

of industry firsts Our mobile banking app
strategy was ranked #1 1n the world by Swiss
research firm MyPrivateBanking in 2013

For corporates and SMEs, we launched a
fully automated online account opening
service In Singapore

In 2014, we announced a partnership

with IBM to deploy rts Watson cognitive
computing innovation to our wealth
management business IBM Watson will
help DBS’ relationship managers analyse
large volumes of complex unstructured and
structured data, including research reports,
product information and custamer profiles,
and weigh vanous financial options available
to customers By harnessing big data, we
hope to deliver a better customer experience
by providing insights that are more precise,
customsed and actionable




In addition, we announced an agreement
with A*STAR's Institute for Infocomm
Research (I2R) in Singapore to set up a lab
leveraging the institute’s capabilities to
develop iInnovative products and services
A first of its kind between I2R and a bank,
the lab will seek new ways of empioying
technology to improve our customer
experience {t will conduct research in data
analytics, mobile technology, social platforms
and leading-edge innovations as well as
develop products for commercial use

QUR COMMITMENT TO SERVICE

Our commitment to Asian service standards
- of being respectful, easy to deal with and
dependable — encompasses all aspects of our
Interaction with customers

Our efforts in previous years were centred on
improving efficiency A total of 203 projects
were completed over the past four years,
which resulted in the elimination of more than
240 million hours of customer waiting time

Cur two areas of focus in 2013 were to
improve customer journeys and to increase
the efficiency of our technology

Customer journeys are about the customer’s
expenence with us from start to end We
partnered LUMA Institute, which speciahses
In Innovation, to Incorporate human-centred
design (HCD) thinking 1nto how we design
and manage customer journeys By puthing
ourselves in the shoes of customers in a
wide spectrum of situations, we compet
ourselves to have a detalled understanding
of therr needs, desires and context 50 that
we can then create better experiences

for the customer

The HCD approach was adopted for 18
projects in 2013, including one for our call
centre 1n Singapore We designed a system so
that customer service staff have a 360° view
of a customer and can better anticipate the
reason for a call The system enables service
staff to see, for example, that a customer
who 15 calling has just had his ATM card
retained The staff would then be in a better
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position to address the issue even without a
detailed description from the customer This
not only provides the customer with a better
expenence but also reduces the probabilty
that a subsequent call 1s needed to resolve
the 1ssue

We established a lab to fester HCD thinking
and innovation The lab is a faality where
different groups of staff can spend tme with
coaches to design and test concepts before a
process 15 rolled out

The second focus area was to improve the
efficiency of our technology To do this,
we adopted a Lean IT programme, which
was aimed at shortening the tme taken to
dewvise customer solutions, enhancing their
quality and therefore achieving a better
custormer expenence

We recerved an honourable mention for our
customer experience strategy at the Qutside-
in Awards by Forrester Research, a global
research and adwsory firm We were also
recogmsed at adwvisory firm IDC's Financial
Insights Innovation Awards for deploying
speech analytics at our call centre to help
staff antiapate customers' needs before
interacting with them

For a list of key awards and accolades won
by DBS in 2013, please refer to Page 198

FAIR DEALING

Fair dealing 1s integral to our cuiture and is

a KPl in the Group's balanced scorecard All
employees complete training modules on farr
dealing every year Sales staff also undergo
comprehensive training on the bank’s product
suite and compliance guidelines

In addrtion, our relationship managers are
compensated based on a balanced scorecard
approach, which takes into account sales and
non-sales performance indicators such as the
quality of the advisory and sales process,

the suntabihity of product recommendations
and customer satisfaction
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Employees

Recruiing indwiduals for therr talent 1s only
the first step Imbuing them with a sense of
purpese, providing training, and encouraqing
them to aim high are also key If we are to
bulld a high-performance organisation with
highly engaged employees To achieve this, we
provide differentiated employee experiences,
including learning and development, rewards
and recognition, and a work-life balance

ATTRACTING AND
RETAINING TALENT

We want to make DBS a place where people
can learn and grow while making a difference
at work By grooming and nurturing our
people, we can better engage and retain them

Growing our own timber begins with
attracting the very best talent from graduates
to senior leaders across the region By
creating a great place to work, our employees
will be motivated to recommend DBS as a
prospective employer In 2013, we were able
to attract hughly qualified individuals for over
40% of vacances through staff referrals

Engaging our people

There are several avenues for senior
management and employees to engage 0
open, two-way communication They include
regular townhalls at the Group and dwvision
level These forums enable employees to
understand the bigger picture and how their
role contributes to the organisation’s goals
In addition, we have an intranet forum for
employees to pose questions directly to the
CEQ or share their views with him Feedback
received from these forums has led to
changes in polictes and practices

The diversity of our people — In nationality,
culture and background - 15 a source of
strength Our employees come from the
region and beyond We also embrace gender
diversity, with women accounting for 58%
of our workforce and more than one-third
of our leadership positions Six of our

19 most serwor leaders are women
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More than one in three leaders at DBS are women

To support our employees in their various

Iife stages, we have flexible work inittiatives
in place In recognitton of our family-friendly
work environment, we were the only bank to
win the "Best Company for Mums” award
from the Singapore National Trades Union
Congress and the Tripartite Alllance for Fair
Employment Practices

We also seek to create a work environment
that 1s fun We organise year-round events
including sports and games, workshops and
talks, bazaars and performances to promote
Interaction and a sense of excitement In
Singapore, we have a tradition of holding

a DBS Famuly Day together wrth the DBS
Marina Regatta, Singapore’s biggest water
sports festival The annual Family Day in
Taiwan was integrated into a fair in support
of social enterprises

Qur efforts have been recognised In recent
years, we have steadity improved our
employee engagement scores in annual
surveys conducted by Gallup We now
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rank among the top 10% of all financal
nstituttons and ¢companies surveyed by
Gallup We were one of only three Asian
comparnies to be awarded the 2013 Gallup
Great Workplace Award We were also
recognised by The Asian Banker for our
employee engagement in Asia

Giving rewards and recognstion

We recognise employees who go the extra
mile for customers The annual Banking the
Asian Way Awards recognise teams and
individuals who exemplify cur unique brand
of banking through the following Asian
Relationships, Asian Insights, Asian Service,
Asian Innovation and Asian Connectimity

We enhanced our package of employee
benefits At the same time, employees can
determine for themselves which basket of
benefits suits them best

Supporting learming and development
Every year, we engage employees with three
performance conversations which also focus

on therr career aspirations and development
opportuniies Qur performance management
system not only measures the "what”

but also considers the “how" 1o ensure
sustainability in performance and alignment
to DBS values

Learning and development programmes are
carned out by the DBS Academy, an in-house
school with centres in Singapore, Hong

Kong and Shanghar The academy dewvises
programmes in collaboration with business
and support units to help our people deliver a
differentiated customer expenence

BUILDING THE NEXT GENERATION
OF LEADERS

We have a ngorous talent and leadership
management process to identsfy and develop
the next generation of leaders at all levels
The structured development programme
comprises training, experiential learning,
mentoring and internal mobility




Talent programmes

Cur sentor leaders are commutted to building
a strong leadership culture at DBS and take
an active rele in nurtuning talent and the
development of future leaders

We introduced four new programmes in
2013 to groom recent diploma and degree
holders who aspire to excel 1n retait banking,
SME banking and customer service

We identify the talent pool for more
senior employees by using an all-round
approach that includes the indwidual’s
performance, reviews by peers and
subordinates, and external talent
identification and management tools
For this pool, we designed and bult
new leadership programmes in 2013 to
supplement existing ones

internal mobiiity

As part of the process to nurture talent from
within, we have in place an internal mobility
programme since 2010 Staff are strongly
encouraged to leverage opportunities
provided by the programme to work across
departments, businesses and countries
Employees holding corporate ranks up to
Assistant Vice-President who have worked
twa years in therr current role can seek to
be placed in a new role with two months’
notice For more senior employees, the
corresponding periods are three years and
three months In 2013, more than one-
quarter of our positions were filled by
internal transfers

We have a programme in place for senior
employees with high potential to be rotated
to dhfferent parts of the organisation The
rotations include assignments to lead major
projects or stints with various businesses

or countnes In 2013, one-third of such
employees were given new job assignments
or expanded roles
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Regulators

Containing systemic risk in the financial
sector continues to be a significant concern
among regulators globally We are committed
to maintaining financial system stability

Our policies and processes aim to ensure
comphance with both letter and spint of
laws and regulations in the countries we
operate In We inculcate a strong compliance
culture, and our employees are required to
attend regular traiming sessions to refresh
and update their knowledge of compliance
requirements The principles of our
complhance framework are outlined in the
Corporate Governance report We believe
this approach supports our application for
licences in markets, and for products and
services During the year, we were among
the first two foreign banks to be given

a licence to set up a sub-branch in the
Shanghar Free Trade Zone We will continue
to adhere closely to vanous regulatory
requirements as they develop

We work closely with regulators and
Industry associations to ensure safety for our
customers and their personal data In 2013,
we embarked on a campaign t6 encourage
customers to upgrade therr magnetic stripe
credit cards to chip cards for enhanced
security and at the same time enjoy improved
custorner benefits The upgrade 1s an
example of how implementing improved
secunty measures can be combined with

an enhanced client expenence

We also work with regulators and the
industry to combat the growing threat of
cybercnme In 2013, we demonstrated our
monitortng capabilities to regulators and
government bodies as we worked with
them to address this threat

We aim to be consistent with the principles

and standards set out by the Financial Stability

Board {FSB) in relevant areas, mcluding our
remuneration policy and risk disclosures

We have adopted standards for our nsk
disclosures in this annual report to be in line
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with the recommendations of the Enhanced
Disclosure Task Force set up by the FSB

Members of senior management continue to
be active in regulatory and industry forums
We believe our insights from operating in the
region can contribute to the formulation of
finanaial standards and regulations, which
can often have a global impact

Society

POSB

POSB has served generations of
Singaporeans stnce 1877 and Is regarded
as the "People’s Bank” Over the years, the
bank has evolved its proeducts and services
to meet the changing needs and lifestyle of
customers At the same time, POSB remains
actively mvolved in grassroots activities, and
engages the young to the senicrs through
community inthiatives In 2013, POSB
supported more than 40 community

events led by grassroots organisations

POSB partners local community associations
to organise programmes that inculcate

the habit of regular savings among young
people In 2013, over 7,200 children from
lower-income families benefited from them
We also collaborated with the Women’s
Initiative for Ageing Successfully, a non-
profit group, to help semors adapt to
electronic banking as well as gain financial
knowledge relevant for an active lifestyle
in 2013, 26% of our senior customers
started using self-service banking machenes
and Internet banking, compared to 19%

n 2011

We also worked with speaial needs schools
to educate students on basic hfe skills such
as banking We supported the National
Library Board to promote a vibrant reading
environment at four of its branches

Since 2009, POSB has been strengthening
community bonds through the POSB PAssion
Run for Kids, which has raised more than
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SGD 3 miliion and benefited over 68,000
children in Singapore to date In 2013, more
than 8,500 people took part in the chanty run

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY -
DBS FOUNDATION

Underlining our commitment to be a force
for good 1n the communities we operate In,
we announced the establishment of a SGD
50 mullion foundation in February 2014 to
strengthen our corporate social responsibility
efforts across Asia

Since our inception as the Development Bank
of Singapore, we have progressed over more
than four decades alongside Singapore’s
development The foundation will channel
our efforts to contribute to the future
development of Singapore and play a

bigger role in the future of Asia

Through the foundation, we will scale up
our support for communities and social
enterprises in Asia, and make a greater
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| N
D8S employees creating a more conducive environment for heanng impasred students

impact n addressing the region’s evolving
social needs The foundation will also provide
relief and support to communities in times of
need, for example, during natural disasters
or cnses

Promoting social enterprises

Bestdes the DBS Foundation, we have
ongoing corporate social responsibility
efforts to champion social entrepreneurship
We seek to empower social enterprises to
become commercially viable while pursuing
thew social chyectives

Qur support for social enterprises 1s anchored
around a three pronged framework
promoting the development of the social
enterpnise sector, supporting selected
enterpnses through funding and mentorship,
and integrating social enterprises into our
culture and operations

We work closely with other organisations
to promote the development of social
enterprises We partnered the National
University of Singapore Enterprise to launch

the inaugural DBS-NUS Social Venture
Challenge Asia to identify and support
new soaal ventures across the region that
have the potential to make a sustamed
and meaningful social impact The response
was overwhelming as we received more
than 400 submissions from aspiring and
existing social entrepreneurs from 20
countries We alse launched a similar
programme in China in partnership with
YouChange Foundation

During the year, we supported more than S0
initiatives, including conterences, workshops
and training programmes involving close

to 20,000 participants from 200 social
enterprses across Asia For example, we
worked with HUB Singapore — a group
dedicated to bringing pecple, 1deas and
funding together to create a better future

— to organise a senes of boot camps for
aspining socal entrepreneurs Other partners
we worked with in Singapore and the region
included the Social Enterprise Association,
Enactus, Soaal Innovation Park and Shujog



We also leverage internal and external DBS
events to showcase soqial enterprises In
Taswan, we held the first Social Enterprises
Fair at the National Dr Sun Yat Sen Memornial
Hall to promote social enterprises 1o the
public, with DBS employees and their families
as volunteers In Singapore, we jointly
organised the first-ever Social Enterpnise
Carnival at Manna Bay with the Ministry of
Social and Family Development

We also support selected enterprnses with
funding Since 2012, we have provided
close to SGD 2 million In grants to 59 soaial
enterprises in Asia The funds have enabled
them to set up businesses or expand existing
ones to prowde employment opportunities
to the disadvantaged We also demonstrate
our commitment to social enterprises by
procunng their products and services

We offer dedicated banking packages to
social enterprises First launched in
Singapore in 2008, the DBS Social Enterprise
Package 1s now available in Hong Kong,
India, Indonesia, China and Taiwan DBS

15 the only bank in Asia to offer a banking
package for social enterprises that comes
with transactional services that are virtually
free In Singapore, we also offer — as part

of the DBS Social Enterprise Package —

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

unsecured business loans at a preferential
annual Iinterest rate that i1s half of
regular commercial rates

VOLUNTEERISM

DBS’ suppaort of social enterpnses 1s extended
to our employee volunteer programme

In Singapore, DBS staff and Thinkscape,

an education prowvider, took a group of
underprivileged children on hentage trails
to fearn about the rich and diverse culture
of Singapore In another initiative, Socal
Creatives, a wisual arts group, and DBS
staff created a more conduave learning
environment for hearing impaired students
through the painting of colourful murals at
the Canossian School

We partnered the Hong Kong House of Stories
to conduct a series of activities that introduce
the cultural heritage and history of Hong Kong
to underprvieged children In recognition of
their community service, 83 volunteers fram
DBS Hong Kong receved awards from the
aty's socal welfare department

OTHER COMMUNITY INITIATIVES

We are investing SGD 10 million over three
years to make Marina Bay a vibrant locale

DBS suppart of social enterprises extends to our employee volunteer programme
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and a ‘People’s Bay' that everyone can enjoy
DBS Marina Regatta, Singapore's biggest
water sports festival, brought 15,000 people
to the bay over two weekends in 2013

It was bigger and better than the year
before, and had a wide range of activities
that included dragon boat races, a drum
challenge, a cosplay festival and a music
concert More than 2,400 paddters from
close to 140 dragon boat teams participated,
a 50% increase over the prevtous year

In addition to DBS Marina Regatta,

we organise popular events at the bay,
including a monthly salling programme
and movie screenings

CRISIS RELIEF EFFORTS

In response to the earthquake that hit Ya'an
City, Sichuan in Aprit 2013, DBS donated
SGD 100,000 towards the relief effort
through the Shanghai Chanty Foundation
When typhoon Haiyan tore through

the Philippines in November 2013, DBS
responded swiftly and supported the crisis
relief efforts by the Singapore Red Cross
We made avallable our self-service banking
channels, including ATMs, Internet and
mobile banking, for donations by our
customers In addition, we also rallied
employees to support the wictims of typhoon
Haiyan by pledaing a dollar-for-dollar match
for ther donations Collectively, DBS, our
customers and employees raised more than
SGD 1 2 millon




48

ENVIRONMENT

As we move Into new premises across the
region, we are committed to adopting
environmentally-sustainable practices and
using eco-friendly materials in the planning,
design and construction of the new buildings
Our efforts are well recognised and validated
by the certifications awarded to us

In Singapore, our headquarters and flagship
branch at Manna Bay, and our premises in
Chang, have been awarded Greenmark
Gold certification by Singapaore’s Bullding
and Construction Authority Our newest
premises in Jurong also received Greenmark
certification in 2013

Under a scheme imitiated by Hong Kong’s
Environmental Protection Department to
minimise the creation of waste, our offices

at One Island East and Millennium City 6
were both awarded the Class of Excellence,
and our office at Miramar Tower the Class of
Good In Taiwan, our headquarters meets the
standards set by the Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design rating system

We implemented several measures to reduce
the consumption of electricity and water at
our premises They included introducing LED
light bulbs, which are more energy-efficient
than other lamps, motion-sensor lighting in
restrooms, as well as reduced water flow In
taps Recycling bins are provided on every
floor and social hub

Waste recycled (tonnes)

Paper 329
Aluminium 85
Plastics 4

fn a concerted drive to go paperless, we
have encouraged our customers to adopt
electronic statements

DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Gwen our sizable shareholder base, we
distnbute our annual reports on compact
discs and have developed an online version
that can be downloaded from our website
or QR codes Printed copies are availlable
an request

BUILDING A
SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS

As a provider of financial capital, DBS plays

a central role in creating long-term value in
the markets we operate in We recognise the
importance of engaging all stakeholders, and
being a force for good

As an organisation, we are commutted to
environmental, social and governmental
(ESG) standards Our efforts have been
recognised 1n an ESG index created by
Bloomberg that was based on data for
2,700 banks worldwide Qur representation
of women In our workforce puts us in the
83rd percentile of the index, while the
broad-based composition of our Board
places us in the 98th percentile for
independent directors and the 95th
percentile for women on the Board

In a complex marketplace, we seek to focus
on addressing sustainability 1ssues that are
matenal to us We completed a matenality
assessment of our ESG efforts in 2013

The assessment reviewed our practices and
processes against external benchmarks such
as the AA1000 Stakeholder Engagernent
Standard and the Global Reporting irutiative
framework The review is intended to help
us channel our ESG efforts and improve

the process

DISTRIBUTING THE VALUE WE
CREATED TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS

We define the value we create for
stakeholders as pre-tax profit before
discretionary bonuses In 2013, the value
we created amounted to SGD 5 37 billion
The chart shows how we distributed value
to our stakeholders in 2013

Value distnbution (SGD m)

m Employees — Vanable Compensation

L. Society — Income Tax Expense

®m Shareholders — Dividends

B Retained Earnings - reinvested in
DBS Group

Shareholders received 26% of the value
created directly in the form of dividends
Vanable compensation distributed to
employees accounted for 9% The 12%
attributable to society is based on the
income and indirect taxes we paid and does
not include other contributions such as the
DBS Foundation and other corporate social
responsibility efforts

The remairming 53% of the value we
generated was kept as retained earnings,
which will be used to generate value for
stakeholders in the future




49

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

OUR COMMITMENT TO GOVERNANCE

BBS Group Holdings Ltd (DBSH} Is fully commutted to effective governance to protect the interests of all our stakeholders and to promote
the long-term sustainability of the Group The Group’s efforts in improving corporate governance were recognised and it was named the
winner of the Singapore Corporate Governance Award 2013 in the Big Cap Category

For the financial year ended 2013 (“FY2013"), DBSH has complied with the Banking (Corporate Governance) Regulations 2005 (“Banking
Regulations”), and complied in all material aspects with the principles laid down by the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Banks,
Financial Holding Companies and Direct Insurers 1ssued on 3 April 2013, which compnises the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (2012
Code” or "Code") and supplementary guidelines and policies added by the Monetary Authanity of Singapore (MAS) (“Guidelines”) to cater
to the diverse and complex risks undertaken by financial institutions

This report Is arranged according to the principtes listed in the Code Principles 1 to 6 deal with Board matters, principles 7 to 9 with
remuneration, principles 10 to 13 with accountab:lity and audit and principles 14 to 16 with shareholder nghts and responsibilities

BOARD MATTERS

THE BOARD'S CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS
(PRINCIPLE 1)

Our Directors

The Board comprises nine directors, namely Mr Peter Seah Lim Huat {Chairman), Mr Piyush Gupta {Chief Executive Officer or “CEQ"),
Dr Bart Joseph Broadman, Ms Euleen Goh Yiu Kiang, Mr Ho Tian Yee, Mr Nihal Vijaya Devadas Kaviratne CBE, Mr Andre Sekulic,

Mr Danny Teoh Leong Kay and Mrs Cw Foong Pheng
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Please refer to pages 188 ta 192 of this Annual Report for key mformation of each director Biodata of each director can also be found @ www dbs com

Board Responsibility
The Board directs the Group in the conduct of its affairs and ensures that corporate responsibility and ethical standards underline the conduct
of the Group’s business It bears ultimate responsibility for the Group’s governance, strategy, risk management and financial performance

The Board believes that 1t 1s important to have a corporate culture imbued with the principles of corporate governance and to this end, seeks to
ensure that a robust corporate governance framework 1s In place to promote transparency, farness and accountability throughout the organisation
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Delegation by the Board
To enable the Board to discharge tts stewardship and fiduciary responsibilities effectively, it delegates authority to Board committees to oversee
specific responsibiiies based on clearly defined terms of reference

The terms of reference for each Board committee stpulate the responsibilities of the commuttee, quorum and votng requirements, as well as

quahfications for Board committee membership Each Board committee has direct access to management and the power to hire independent
adwvisers as 1t deems necessary Changes to the terms of reference for any Board commitiee require Board approval

BOARD OF DIRECTCRS

Compensation
Audit & Management Executive Nominating

Board Risk
Management

Committee .
Committee

Development Committee Committee
Committee

An integral part of the Group's corporate governance framework 1s the Group Approving Authonty (GAA) established by the Board
The GAA sets out the delegation of authority at vanous levels and 1s consistently applied throughout the Group Changes to the GAA
require Board approval

Material Transactions Requiring Board Approval

The matenal transactions that require Board approval under the GAA jnclude

s, Group$ strategic and business plans

,Group’s annual budget .

Capital expenditures and expenses exceeding certain matenial imits
Strategic investments and divestments

* Capital-related matters including capital adequacy objectives, capital structure, capital 1ssuance and redemption

+ Dmvidend policy

Risk strategy and risk appetite N .

1 oo s s ’ .

. e
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The Board committees have been constituted in comphance with the Banking Regufations A bnef description of the composition and
responsibilities delegated to each Board commuttee is set out in the table below

Board Committee

Executive
Committee (Exco)

Main Areas Of Oversight

Review and prowvide recommendations
on matters that would require

Beard approval

Approve non-strategic investments
and divestments

Composition

Comprises 3 members, of
which 2 members (including
the Exco chairman) are
independent directors

Further Information

See page 54 of this report for
further information on the
composition, responsibilities
and actwities of the Exco
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Nominating
Committee (NC)

Membership and performance of
Board and Board committees
Independence of directors

Fit and proper quahfication of directors
Training of directors

Review key staff appointments
(inctuding CEQ, chief financial officer
(CFO) and chief nisk officer (CRO})

Comprises 5 members, of which

4 members (including the NC
chairman) are independent
directors All members are
non-executive directors

See page 55 of this report for
further information on the
composition, responsibilities
and activities of the NC

Audit Commuttee (AC)

Financial reporting
Internal controls
Internal audit function
External audit

Comprises 5 members, of which

4 members (including the AC
chairman} are independent
directors All members are
non-executive directors

See pages 70 to 71 of

this report for further
information on the
composition, responsibilities
and activities of the AC

Board Risk Management
Committee (BRMC})

Risk appetite

Risk governance

Risk frameworks

Risk management practices
and polices

Compnses 6 members, all of
whom are independent and
non-executive directors

See page 68 of this report for
further information on the
composition, responsibilities
and activities of the BRMC

Compensation

and Management
Development
Commuttee {CMDC)

Compensaton pohcres

Remuneratron framework of directors
and employees

Management development and
succession planning

Comprises 4 members, all of
whom are independent and
non-executive directors

See page 58 of this report for

| further information on the

composition, responsibalities
and actvities of the CMDC

Board Meetings and Attendance
The Board meets on a regular basis, and ad-hoc meetings are held where warranted During the scheduled Board meetings, the Board
1s updated by management on the Group's business activities and performance to enable the Board to have a deeper insight into the

Group’s businesses The Chairman of each Board committee will also update the Board on the matters discussed during the respective

Board commutiee meetings

When exigencies prevent a director from attending a Board meeting in persan, he or she can participate by telephone or video-conference

Board approvals for routine matters in the ordinary course of business can also be obtained through written resclutions approved by arculation

as permitied under the Articles of Association of DBSH
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The table below sets forth the number of meetings held and attended by Board members during the financial year

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

{1 JANUARY 2013 TO 31 DECEMBER 2013)
Board EXCO AC BRMC NC CMDC
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
No of Meetings No of Meetings Ne of Meetings No of Meetings No of Meetings No of Meetings
Held @ Attendance Held @ Attendance Held @ Attendance Held @ Attendance Held @ Attendance Held @ Attendance
Peter Seah Lim Huat 7 7 " 11 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Piyush Gupta' 7 7 11 11 - - - - - - - _
Bart Jaseph Broadman 7 7 - - - - 4 4 - - 4 3
Christopher Cheng
Wai Chee? 2 2 - - 2 2 - - - - 2 2
Euleen Geh Yiu Kiang 7 7 1 11 - - 4 4 4 4 4 4
Ho Tian Yee 7 7 - - — — 4 4 4 4 - —
Nihal Vijaya Devadas
Kaviratne CBE 7 7 - - 4 4 4 4 - - - -
Andre Sekulic 7 7 - - 4 4 - - - - 4 4
Danny Teoh Leong Kay 7 7 - - 4 4 4 4 4 4 - —
Woo Foong Pheng
(Mrs Ow) 7 6 - - 4 3 - - 4 4 - -

@ the number of meetings held during the period of appointment

1
2

Mr Pryush Gupta attended all AC BRMC and CMDC meetings held during the financial year by mwtation of the relevant commuttee
Stepped down on 29 April 2013 as (i} Director of DBSH and DBS Bank, (i) Member of AC and {in} Member of CMDC
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Board Induction and Traimng

A comprehensive and tallored induction 1s arranged as part of the on-boarding programme for every new director to familiarise him or her
with the discharge of his or her duties and to introduce the Group's business and governance practice and arrangements, amongst others
The Group also encourages and make arrangements for first-trme directors to attend the Singapore Institute of Directors” ‘Listed Companies
Directorships’ programme

Please refer to page 56 of this report for details on the selection cnterta and nomination process as well as the induction programme for
new directors

A continuous development programme was introduced in 2010 to enhance Board effectiveness The objective of this programme 15 to
provide directors with training by external professionals and management to keep them abreast of legal, regulatory, corporate governance
and economic developments which are relevant to the business and operations of the Group To ensure that the topics covered under this
programme are relevant and appropnate, the NC regularly reviews the schedule and proposes topics that would meet the objective of the
programme In 2013, the programme covered topics such as key developments in China, US and the region, overview of the Singapore
Personal Data Protection Act, update on European banking developments, and update on directors” duties under recent legislative and
corporate governance inraatives

BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE
(PRINCIPLE 2)

Independence of Judgement

There s a strong ndependent element on the Board, with the independent directors making up more than two-thirds of the Board
The number of independent directors exceeds the requirements set out In the Code, Guidelines and Banking Regulations This ensures
that the Board 15 able to exercise objective jJudgment on corporate affairs independently

Annual Review of Director’s Independence

The NC conducts a review and determines annually whether each director 1s independent In making its determination, the NC considers
whether a director 15 (1) independent of management and business relationships {for example, an independent director should not be a
former employee or significant customer or supplier of the Group, a close relative of an executive director, or related to any of the Group’s
external auditors, lawyers, consultants or service providers), (1) independent from substantial shareholders, and (i) independent based on
{ength of service Independence 1s assessed 1n compliance with the stringent standards required of financial institutions prescribed under
the Banking Regulations

The seven directors considerad independent by the NC are Dr Bart Broadman, Ms Euleen Goh, Mr Ho Tian Yee, Mr Nihal Kaviratne,
Mr Peter Seah, Mr Andre Sekulic and Mr Danny Teoh The independent directors provide the Board wath objectivity and a balance of
perspectives They also ensure that the performance of management s objectively measured against the key performance indicators
established annually to measure and guide management performance

Ms Euleen Goh, Mr Ho Tian Yee, Mr Nihal Kaviratne, Mr Peter Seah and Mr Danny Teoh are on the boards of companies that have a banking
relationshup with DBS, and are also directors of companies inked to Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (*Temasek-linked Comparies™), DBSH's
substantial shareholder However, the NC considers the above-named directors (1} independent of business relationships as the revenues ansing
from such retationships are not matenal, and (1) Independent of the substantial shareholder as therr appointments on the boards of Temasek-
linked Companies are non-executive in nature and they are not involved In the day-to-day conduct of these companies’ businesses

Mrs Ow Foong Pheng, who is a Permanent Secretary for the Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore, Is considered nat independent of
the substantial shareholder as the Singapore government 1s the ultimate owner of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited However, Mrs Ow
Foong Pheng I1s considered independent of management and business relationships with DBSH

Robust procedures have been instituted to manage potential conflicts of interest between a director and the Group Such conflicts could anse,
for instance, when the Group extends credit facihities or provides products or services to a director's company An appropriate account tagging
mechanism has been put in place to monitor and control the occurrences of conflicts, which are then escalated for aggregation purposes under
the SGX-ST Listing Manual {"$GX Listing Rules”} Exposures of DBS Bank Ltd (“DBS Bank” or the “Bank") to the individual directors and their
respective related concerns are tabled at the quarterly Board meetings
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Board Composrtion

The Board 1s of the view that the size of the Board 15 appropriate, given the current size and geographic footprint of the Group’s operations
The NC reviews the size and composition of the Board at least annually, taking into account the requirements of the business and the
resourcing level required at Board committees The Board members collectively bring range and depth of expenence and industry expertise
to the table, representing diversity of gender, nationality, skills and knowledge

Executive Committee
The Exco 1s chaired by Mr Peter Seah and comprises Ms Euleen Goh and Mr Piyush Gupta In accordance wath the requirements of the
Code, Guidelines and Banking Regulations, the majority of Exco members (including the Chairman) are independent directors

Key responsibilities of the Exco
Review and provide recommendations on matters that would require Board approval, including

+ strategic matters such as country and business strategies

» business plans, annual budget, capital struciure and dividend policy
« strategic investments or divestments

* delegation of authonity stipulated by the GAA

»  weak credit cases

The Board has also delegated to the Exco the authority to approve certain matters such as ngn-strategic | investments and dlvestmenis
credit transactions, investments, capital expendnure and expenses that exceed the limits that can be authonsed by the CEO

Activities of the Exco in 2013 vt - Lo ;
There*were 11 Exco meetings held in 2013 In the course of 2013, the Exco reviewed-the potential impact on the Group’s operations
ansing from changes n globat market conditions to ensure that the Group's strategy femains £elevant and responsive to changes in
business conditions, proposed divestments and investments (such asthe proposed sale of the urderlying businesses of Mwang-DBS
Malaysia Bhd and the proposed sale of DBS’ remaining stake in the Bank of the Philippine Islands), corporate actions-{such as the
Group's existing and future debt 1ssuance programmes) and capital expenditure Weak credit cases were reviewed on a quarterly basis

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(PRINCIPLE 3)

Separation of the Role of Chairman and the CEQ
The Group’s leadership model espouses a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEQ, which ensures an appropriate
balance of power, increased accountability and enhanced independence in decision-making The Chairman and the CEO are not related

The Chairman provides clear and distinct leadership to the Board with respect to the Group's strategic growth The Chairman maintains open
lines of communication with senior management, and acts as a sounding beard an strategic and operational matters

The CEO heads the Group Executive Commuittee and the Group Management Cornmittee, which are the highest management bodies
He oversees the execution of the Group's strategy and 1s responsible for managing its day-to-day operations

The Board is of the view that 1t 15 not necessary to appoint a lead independent director, given that the present Chairman 1s independent,
non-executive and unrelated to the CEQ



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Role of the Chairman

The Chairman 1s responsible for leading the Board to enable the Board to discharge its duties effectively, and for maintaining and enhancing
the Group's standards of corporate governance He oversees the setting of the agenda of Board meetings in consultation with the CEO to
ensure that there 1s sufficent information and time to address all agenda items, and promotes open and frank debates by all directors at
Board meetings As the Chairman also sits on all the Board commuttees, he plays an important role in managing the business of the Board
and supervising the activities of each Board committee

The Chairman oversees, guides and advises the CEC and senior management He also encourages constructive relations within the Board,
and between the Board and senior management Directors and members of the Group Management Committee have the opportunity to
interact through regular dinners which are held around the tme of each scheduled Board meeting, and at the annual Board strategy offsite

Finally, the Chairman encourages and facilitates constructive dialogue between shareholders, Board members and management at
shareholders meetings

BOARD MEMBERSHIP
{PRINCIPLE 4)

Nominating Commuttee

The NC 1s chared by Mr Peter $eah and comprises Ms Euleen Goh, Mr Ho Tian Yee, Mrs Ow Foong Pheng and My Danny Tech, all of whom
are non-executive directors In accordance with the requirements of the Code, Guidelines and Banking Regulations, a majonty (four out of
five members of the NC), including the NC Charrman, are independent directors Mrs Ow Foong Pheng, who 1s a non-independent director,
s considered independent from business relationships and management

NC members are subject to an annual assessment of their independence as prescribed by the Code, the Guidelines and the Banking
Regulations Thts independence assessment takes into account the NC members’ business relationships with the Group, relationships
with members of management, relationships with the substantial shareholder of DBSH as well as length of service
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* Revibving F3nd recommenamg to the’Boardthe r@-?appom;ment of any non-exécutive dlrector having rég?ard to therr performance,
commitment and ability t& contrbuite to the Board as well as his or her skillset

. Conductlng on an annual basis an evaltiation of the perfofmance of the Board, the Board commlttees and the directors

» Making an annual assessment of whetger each darector has suffuaent tlme to discharge hns or her resporiaibilities, taking into
conSideration multiple board representauons and other pnnqpal commutments . .

«  Exercising oversight of the training of Board members ) '

*  Reviewing key staff appointments (mcludlpg Ceo, CFO and CRO)

a)
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Selection Criteria, Nonunation Process and Induction Training for New Directors
The NC leads and has put in place a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of directors to the Board

The NC recognizes the importance of an appropriate balance and diversity of industry knowledge, skills, backgrounds, expenence, professional
qualifications, gender and nationalities in building an effective Board To achieve this, the NC reviews the Board's collective skills matrix regularly

to ensure that the Board has the appropriate dversity to perform effectively The matrix takes into account whether a director has the specific
knowledge, skills or experience in various areas such as banking/financial services, financial management, economics, specialised audit/
accounting, Financial Stabwlity Board principles, remuneration practices, technical sophistication in nsk disciplines, strategic planning, country
expertise In other markets and strong business network

As pant of the formal process for the appointment of new directors, the NC reviews the composition of the Board and Board committees and
identihies the skillsets which will enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the relevant Board committees Thereafter, suitable candidates are
identified from various sources and, in compliance with the Banking Regulations, the NC conducts an initial assessment to

(i review a candidate’s qualifications, attnbutes, capabilities, skills, age, past expenence and such other relevant factors as may be determined
by the NC to determine whether the candidate 1s a fit and proper person for the office in accordance with the MAS’ fit and praper
guidelines {which require the candidate to be competent, honest, to have integrity and be of sound finanaial standing}, and

{n} ascertain whether the candidate is independent from any substantial shargholder of the Group and/or from management and bustness
relationships with the Group

The NC then proceeds to interview short-listed candidates to determine if he or she possesses the qualifications and skills required and makes
Its recommendations to the Board accordingly

Upon appointment, a new director recerves his or her letter of appointment, and 1s issued with a Directors’ Handbook setting out a director's
duties, responsibilities and disclosure obligations as a director of a finanaal institution He or she 15 also bnefed on key disclosure duties and
statutory obligations The new director also gains an understanding of the Group’s management, business and governance practices through
a sertes of detalled induction briefings by members of serior management on the Group’s vanous businesses and support functions

Terms of Appointment
The Group has a standing policy that a non-executive director may serve up to a maximum of 3 three-year terms The Group considers this

tenure to be appropnate for members to gain an understanding of the Group and to make an effective contribution None of the incumbent
directors have served more than 6 years

Prior 1o the end of each three-year term, there 1s a formal process in place for the NC to consider whether to extend the tenure of the
non-executive director If a non-executive director is a member of the NC, he or she will recuse himself or herself from deliberations on
his or her own re-appointment

Rotation and Re-election of Directors
One-third of directors who are longest-serving are required to retire from office every year at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) Based on
such a rotation process, each director 15 required to submit himself or herself for re-election by shareholders at least once every three years

Where an existing director 1s required to retire from office, the NC reviews the composttion of the Board and takes into account factors such

as that existing director's attendance, participation, contribution and competing time commitments when deciding whether to recommend
that director for re-election
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Dr Bart Broadman, Mr Piyush Gupta and Mr Ho Tian Yee shall be retinng by rotation at the AGM to be held on 28 Apnil 2014 (2014 AGM*)
At the recommendation of the NC, they will be seeking re-election at the 2014 AGM

In addition, as Mr Nihal Kaviratne will be turning 70 years of age before the 2014 AGM, he 1s required under Section 153 of the Companies
Act to step down at the 2014 AGM At the recommendation of the NC, Mr Nihal Kaviratne will be seeking shareholders’ approval for
re-appointment as a director at the 2014 AGM

Directors’ Time Commitment

As a director’s ability to commit time to the Group's affairs 1s essential for performance, the NC has formulated guidelines to assess each
director's ability to make such a commitment The guidelines consider the number of other board and committee memberships a director holds,
as well as size and complexity of the compantes in which he or she 1s a board member All directors are aware of his or her time commitment
obhigations and have met the requirements under the guidefines In addition, each director completed a self-assessment of his or her ime
commitment obligations in 2013 The NC conducts a review of the time commitment of each director on an ongoing basis The Board believes
that each director has to personally determine the demands of his or her competing directorships and obligations and assess how much time

Is available to serve on the Board effectively Accordingly, the Board has not made a determination of the maximum number of listed company
board representations a director may hold

BOARD PERFORMANCE
(PRINCIPLE 5)

The NC makes an assessment at least once a year to determine whether the Board and Board commuttees are performing effectively and
identifies steps for improvement The evaluation covers a range of 1ssues including Board camposition as well as the timeliness and quakity
of informaton provided to the Board As part of the Board effectiveness evaluation for 2013, each director completed a Board evaluation
questionnaire and returned 1t to the Charrman The evaluation results were discussed with the NC and the Board, and key action steps were
mapped with the goal of enhancing the effectiveness of the Board and the Board committees

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
(PRINCIPLE 6)

Prior to each Board and Board committee meeting, directors are provided with complete and relevant information concerning agenda items
in a timely manner All such mformation 1s uploaded onto a board portal which can be readily accessed on tablet devices provided to the
directors by DBSH

Directors have direct access 1o senior management and may request from management such additional informaton as needed in order to
make informed and timely decisions Directors have the discretion to engage external advisers at the expense of the Group

Directors have separate and independent access {o the Group Secretary at all imes The Group Secretary attends all Board meetings and
ensures that applicable rules and regulations are complied with The Group Secretary facilitates communication between the Board, its
commuttees and management, and the induction of new directors, and generally assists directors In the discharge of their duties The
appointment and removal of the Group Secretary require the approval of the Board
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REMUNERATION MATTERS

PROCEDURES FOR DEVELOPING REMUNERATION POLICIES (PRINCIPLE 7)
LEVEL AND MIX OF REMUNERATION (PRINCIPLE 8)

Remuneration Strategy

The quality and commitment of our human capital 1s fundamental to our success The overall objective of the Group’s remuneration policy s to
establish a framework for attracting, retaining and motivating employees, and creating incentives for defivering long-term performance within
established nisk limits The policy reinforces a culture that rewards for performance The Group’s remuneration policy aims {o be consistent with
the principles and standards set out by the Financial Stability Board (FSB) and the relevant local regutators where 1t operates

Our reward strategy aims to drive pay for performance culture and 1s ahgned to our nsk framework It also balances the need for us to win the
war for talent in the banking industry while protecting the long-term interests of our shareholders Performance 1s judged, not only on what 15
achieved, but also on how 1t 1s achieved as well as alignment to the Group’s values

Governance
The governance of the Group's remuneration policy {including design, implementation and ongoing review,) falls under the remit of the CMDC
The CMDC ensures that the balance between shareholder returns and remuneration 1s appropriate

Compensation and Management Development Committee

The CMDC is chaired by Mr Peter Seah and comprises Dr Bart Broadman, Ms Euleen Goh and Mr Andre Sekulic, all of whom are
non-executive and independent directors The number of independent directors exceeds the requirements of the Code, Guidelines
and Banking Regulations

Key responsibilities of the CMDC

«  Qverseeing the Group's principles and framework of compensation to ensure their alignment with prudent risk-tdking to build
a sustamnable business in the long term

. Overseemg the remuneration of senor executlves mcludmg reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executive director

. Apprt)wng employee ncentive schemes and | rewewmg thewr effectlveness n emp[oyee retention and the creation of Iong term
value for the Group

* Qverseeing management development and succession planning to ensure that management bench strength 1s robust and able to
cope with at‘g|t|on and the GrOupg expansion plans

In fulfilling 1ts respensibilities, the CMDC ensures that the Group complies with the corporate governance practices as stipulated under the
Code, Guidelines and the Banking Regu'ations Details are outlined under Principles 7, 8 and 9 of this report

The CMDC reviews and approves the Group'’s remuneration policy and the annual vanable pay pool which are also endorsed at the Board
level it provides oversight of the remuneration of executive directors, senior executives and control functions in ine with FSB guidelines
The CMDC also reviews cases where 1otal remuneration exceeds a pre-defined threshold, or where a deferral mechanism 15 implemented
as a nisk control process

The CMDC has direct access to senior management and works closely with the BRMC and the AC when performing its role In addition,
Dr Bart Broadman, Ms Euleen Goh and Mr Peter Seah are also members of the BRMC while Mr Peter Seah and Mr Andre Sekuli are
members of the AC Their membership in other Board commuttees enable thern to make remuneration decisions in a more informed,
holistic and independent manner
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In 2013, an external management consulting firm, Oliver Wyman, was engaged 10 provide an independent review of the Group’s compensation
system and processes to ensure comphance with the FSB Principles for Sound Compensation Practices Oliver Wyman and its consultants are
independent and not related to DBSH or any of its directors

As part of the Group's Talent Management process, an annual review of people plans for the Group's business and support units was undertaken
by DBS Bank and endorsed by CMDC The review focused on (1} succession and the depth of the talent pipeline, {1} people development
intbiatives and readiness of the people plans to support business operations and growth plans, and () quality of the Group talent development
programs In each business and support units /countnies as well as the state of talent development activities within the Group

Remuneration approach
The 2 main thrusts of the Group’s remuneration approach are designed to

+ Focus on total compensation
DBS manages remuneration from a total compensation perspective An employee’s total compensation 1s determined by the Group,
business and individual performances

DBS participates in remuneration surveys to ensure that its total compensation i1s competitive against banks of similar size and standing
which we compete with for talent

« Alignment with appropriate rnisk taking behaviour
The Group aims to differentiate the ratio between vanable and fixed pay according to performance, rank and function The proportion of
vanable pay increases significantly with increase in responsibility and rank This is 1n line with the FSB principle to ensure that employee
incentives remamn focused on prudent risk taking and effective control, depending on the employee’s role

The payout structure 1s designed to incentivise employees whaose decisions can have a matenal impact on the Group to adopt appropriate
risk behaviour These employees include senior management, key personnel at business units and senior control staff The Group defines this
group of staff based on therr roles as well as the quantum of their vanable remuneration and the ratio of therr variable to fixed pay, where
such employees may have an impact on the risk profile of the Group

Elements of Total Compensation
An employee’s total compensation 1s made up of the following elements

Fixed Pay Vanable Pay Vanable Pay

1) Fixed Pay - Salary

Purpose & Link to Strategy Operation Measures

« To ensure fixed pay is competitive wath + (Cash
other comparable institutions to attract * Paid monthly
and retain talent * Typically reviewed annually

+ Rate set at an appropnate level \
taking 1nto account market dynamics,
the skills, expenence, responsibilities

\
|
1
| and competences of the employee ‘
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(2) Vanable Pay - Bonus {Cash) and Long Term Incentive (Shares}

Purpose & Link to Strategy

* To provide a portion of
total compensation that is
performance rated

» To focus employees on the
achievement of objectives which
are aligned to value creation for
our shareholders

QOperation

Awards are delivered in cash and resiricted shares
(deferred remuneration)

Awards in excess of a certain threshold are

subject to a tiered deferral rate that ranges from
20% - 60% All deferred remuneration 1s paid In
restricted shares and comprises two elements the
main award and the retention award The shares
gwven in the retention award consutute 20% of
the shares given In the main award The retention
award Is designed to retain talent and compensate
the staff for the time value of deferral

Deferred awards vest over 4 years

Deferred share awards that are unvested are
subject to clawback The dawback will be
triggered by events such as a material violation
of nsk imits, matenal losses due to neghgent
risk taking or inappropniate individual behaviour,
a material restatement of the Group’s finanaals
due to inaccurate performance measures, and
misconduct or fraud

Measures

Annua! performance awards are based
on the overall Group performance, the
business umit or support unit (“Units”)
in which the employee works for and
the individual performance

All Units are measured against a

balanced scorecard which s agreed at
the start of the year This scorecard is
cascaded to all employees in the Unit

Our performance management
system not only measures the "what",
It also considers the "how” to ensure
sustainability in performance and
alignment to DBS values

Sizing and allocation of variable pay pool
The final vaniable pay pool therefore takes into consideration the need to remain competitive In the markets that the Group operates in while

being consistent with our risk appetite

The Group uses a comprehensive performance management methodology based on the Group Batanced Scorecard (the “Group Scorecard”)
approach to determine the size and allocation of the vanable pay pool The Group Scorecard can be found on page 23 of this Annual Report

Inputs to the Group Scorecard need to be agreed with the Board at the beginning of each year The Group Scorecard comprises financial and
non-financial metrics encompassing employees, customers, shareholders, risks and compliance objectives The Group Scorecard 15 cascaded
throughout the Group to drive synergies across all Units and strengthen the aignment between pay and performance




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 61

A summary of the Performance Management Process 1s as follows

Objective Setting Interim Review Performance Review

* Indmdual objectives agreed +  Mid-year discussions against objectives, « Self appraisal followed by performance
with manager providing opportunities for feedback and discussion wath manager

* Objectives cover both guantitative to ensure alignment between manager « Feedback from control function
and gualitative measures and employee {(Audit, Risk and Finance) taken into

consideration where appropriate
before final rating 1ssued

The vanable pay pool is derved from a combination of bottoms-up and top-down approach This process of establishing the vanable pay pool
15 as follows

Establish Vanable Pay Pool based on quality of execution of Group Balanced Scorecard

This 15 a function of net profit before tax for the year and approprate
market benchmarks which are approved by the CMDC

v
Risk Adjustments
Further adjusted for nisks through review of Returns on Risk-Adjusted Capital {RORAC)
v
Further Adjustments
Review against other prisms (eg distnbution of earnings between employees and shareholders)
v

Allocation of Vanable Pay Pool

vaniable pay pool allocated to each Unit driven by the evaluation of each
Unit's achievement against the Balanced Scorecard and moderated by inputs
from the control functions
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Long-term share incentives
Long-term share incentives are designed to foster a culture that aligns employees’ interests with shareholders and to enable employees to share
in the Group's success The Group has put in place 2 plans covering all employees as follows

Plan Eligibility

DBSH Share Plan {“Share Plan™) Vice President & above

DBSH Employee Share Plan (ESP) Assistant Vice President & below

Long-term share incentives under the Share Plan and the ESP are delivered in the form of restricted share awards ("Share Awards”) which
comprise two elements

Main Award

+

= Long Term Incentive
Additional Retention Award

{20% of main award, will vest 4 years
after grant of main award)

Share Awards granted under both the Share Plan and the ESP form part of employees” annual deferred remuneration The main award vests
over 4 years n the manner set out below, while the additional retention award vests 4 years after the grant date

« 33% of shares in the main award vest 2 years after the grant date,
» another 33% vest 3 years after the grant date, and
+ the remaining 34% vest 4 years after the grant date, when retention award also vest

In addition, as part of talent retention, Share Awards which only comprise one element {1 e the main award) may be granted to employees
holding the rank of Vice President and below

Prior to 2009, a DBSH Share Option Plan (SOP) was also part of the long-term share incentives that had been put in place The SOP expired on
19 June 2009 and 1t was not extended or replaced The termination does not affect the rights of holders of outstanding existing options

Details of the Share Plan and SOP appear on pages 182 to 183 of the Directors’ Report
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Determiming Individual Total Compensation

Individual awards are linked to the achievement of quantitative as well as qualitative objectives set out in the individual’s key performance
indicators {(KPIs) In addition, in determining the vanable pay of serior management and the respective Units’ bonus pools, inputs from control
functions such as Audit, Comphiance and Risk are sought (as a check for adherence to established operational risks, concentration risk, tenure
nsk and country nisk frameworks) An individual award s not formula driven but considered holistically taking into account both the “what”
and "how" the KPIs are achieved to ensure sustainable performance as well as alignment to DBS values

Sales employees are incentivised to promote development of mutually beneficial long-term relationships with therr customers, rather than

focus on short term gains Non-financial metnics such as customer satisfaction and compliance wath fair dealing principles are incorporated
into their KPIs

Control functions {Risk, Finance, Legal, Compliance and Audit) are measured independently from the business units they support to prevent
any conflicts in interests The remuneration of the CRO and Group Head of Audit are endorsed by the Board Risk Management Committee and
the Audit Committee respectively

Other Provisions

The Group does not allow accelerated payment of deferred remuneration except in cases such as death in service There are no prowisions for
+ specal executive retirement plans,

* golden parachutes or special executive severance packages, and/or

* guaranteed bonuses beyond one year

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration for non-executive directors, including the Chairman, has been benchmarked to reflect trends in global, regional and local
banking markets Non-executive directors will receive 70% of their fees in cash and the remaining 30% in share awards The share awards are
not subject to a vesting penod, but are subject to a selling moratorium whereby each non-executive director 1s required 10 hold the equivalent
of one year’s basic retainer for his or her tenure as a director and for one year after the date he or she steps down The fair value of share
grants to the non-executive directors shall be based on the volume-weighted average pnce of DBSH ordinary shares over the 10 trading

days immediately following the AGM The actual number of DBSH ordinary shares to be awarded will be rounded down to the nearest share,

and any residual balance will be paid in cash Shareholders are entitfed to vote on non-executive directors’ remuneration at the forthcoming
2014 AGM

Remuneration of Executive Director
Mr Piyush Gupta has led the Group since November 2009 During his tenure, the Group has made significant progress against its objective
of being the Bank of Choice in Asia The Group's performance aganst the Group Scorecard was especially strong 1n the areas of

« Executing our strategic tnitiatives resulting in record full-year net profit of SGD 3 50 billion for 2013 in an environment of significant
market volatihty

» Strengthening our regional capabilities across our key markets of Greater China, Southeast Asia and South Asia

* Leveraging an our solid capital base, strong iquidity and high credit ratings to position the Group for long-term sustainable growth

The CMDC deqdes on the remuneration for the executive director based on the Group's achievernent against the Group Scorecard
and market rates for this role in the marketplace The CMDC's recommendation for the executive director’s remuneration is endorsed
by the Board
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DISCLOSURE ON REMUNERATION
(PRINCIPLE 9)

Annual fee structure for Board
The proposed annual fee structure for the Board for 2013 is set out below This fee structure I1s subject to shareholders’ approval at the

forthcoming 2014 AGM

Fees for 2012 Fees for 2013
SGD SGD

Basic Annual Retainer Fees

Additional Chairman fees for:

Board 500,000 1,350,000
Audit Committee 75,000 75,000
Board Risk Management Committee 75,000 75,000
Compensation and Management Development Commitiee 65,000 65,000
Executive Committee 75,000 75,000
Nominating Commuittee 35,000 35,000
Audit Committee 45,000 45,000
Board Risk Management Committee 45,000 45,000
Compensation and Management Development Committee 35,000 35,000
Executive Committee 45,000 45,000
Nominating Commuttee 20,000 20,000

As part of the annual review of non-executive directors’ fees, the CMDC and the Board (other than Mr Peter Seah who recused himself

from all CMDC and Board discussions relating to the Board Chairman’s annual retainer fee) considered whether the Board Charrman’s annual
retainer fee should be revised, taking into account the role and coniribution of the Board Chairman and the performance of the Group under
his leadership In view of ()} the amount of time the Board Chairman spends on DBS matters, (1) the significant and strategic value of his input
and guidance to management, and (i) the strong performance of the Group under his leadership in the last three years, and considering

the board chairman’s fee of comparable financial institutions, the CMDC and the Board recommend increasing the Board Chairman’s annual
retainer fee to SGD 1,350,000 for 2013

Apart from the proposed increase in the Board Chairman's annual retainer fee, no other changes are proposed to be made to the annual
fee structure for the Board for 2013
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Breakdown of Directors’ Remuneration
The following table shows the composition of directors’ remuneration for 2013 Directors who were appointed or who resigned or retired
during the year are included in the table
BREAKDOWN OF DBS DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION FOR PERFORMANCE YEAR 2013
{1 JANUARY 2013 - 31 DECEMBER 2013)
Salary Cash Share Directors’ Share-based

Rermuneration Bonus' Plan Fees* Remuneration® Others! Total
Name of Director SGD SGD SGD 5GD 5GD 56D sGD
Peter Seah Lim Huat - - - 1,261,050 540,450 41,168 1,842,668
Piyush Gupta 1,200,000 3,425,000 4,525,000% - - 54,974 9,204,9745
Bart Joseph Broadman - - - 150,150 64,350 - 214,500
Chnistopher Cheng Wai Chee? - - - 73.564 - - 73,564
Euleen Goh Yiu Kiang - - - 240,800 103,200 - 344,000
Ho Tian Yee - - - 144,700 60,300 - 201,000
Nihal Vijjaya Devadas
Kaviratne CBE - - - 177,800 76,200 - 254,000
Andre Sekulic - - - 187,250 80,250 - 267,500
Danny Teoh Leong Kay - - - 201,250 86,250 - 287,500
Woo Foong Pheng (Mrs Ow)? - ~ - 202,500 - - 202,500

1 The amount has been accrued in 2013 financial statements
2 Fees payable in cash i 2014, for being a director i 2013 This 1s subject to shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM

3 Thisss to be granted in the form of DBSH ordinary shares, for being a director in 2013 The actual number of DBSH ordinary shares te be awarded will be rounded down
to the nearest share, and any residual balance wilf be pawd in cash This 1s subject to sharehoider approval at the 2014 AGM
4 Represents non~cash component and comprises club, car and driver
5 For better comparability with other Iisted companies, these figures exclude the estimated value of retention shares amounting to $GD 805 000 which wall only vest in the
4th year if the tncumbent s sufl in the employment of the Group
Refers to 2013 performance remuneration — includes fixed pay in 2813 cash bonus received in 2014 and DBSH ordinary shares granted in 2014

6
7 Dr Cheng, who stepped down on 29 April 2013 wvall recerve all of his director’s remuneration n cash
8

Director's remuneration payable to Mrs Ow Foong Pheng will be paid fully in cash to a government agency, the Directorsfup & Consulftancy Appomntments Council

Notes

+  Directors are also paid attendance fees for Board and Board Commuttee meetings as well as for attending the AGM and the annual Board offsite
*  Fees have been pro-rated according to the date of appointment or resignation There were 365 days in calerdar year 2013
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In 2013, none of the Group’s employees were iImmediate family members of a director

Sentor Management and Material Risk Takers’ Remuneration
The following tables show the breakdown of remuneration and long-term rermuneration awards for semor management and key risk takers
Senior management (SM) 1s defined as the executve director and members of the Group Management Committee, who have authority and

responsibility for planning the activities and the overall direction of the Group
Matenal nsk takers {MRTs) are defined as indmdual employees whose duties require them to take on material nsk on behalf of the Group
In the course of therr work These could be either indwdual employees or a group of employees who may not pose a risk te the financial

soundness of an institution on an individua! basis, but may present a matenal risk on a collective basis

Table 1 Guaranteed Bonuses, Sign-on Bonuses and Severance Payments ‘

Category SM MRTs

Number of guaranteed bonuses o - o ‘

Number of sign-on bonuses 0 7 \
iNGmber of severance payments 0 0 |
ﬁTotaI amounts_of above payments made 0 2,108 ) I

during the Financial Year (SGD '000)

Table 2 Breakdown of Remuneration Awarded in Current Financial Year

Category

Unrestricted Deferred Unrestricted Deferred
%

! Fixed remuneration Cash-based 20 - ‘ 38 -

Shares and share- - - - _
linked instruments

Other forms of - - -
remuneration

! Vanable Cash-based 36 - a1 -
' remuneration

Shares and share- - 44 - 21
linked instruments

Other forms of - - - -
remuneration |

Total 100 100
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Table 3 Breakdown of Long-term Remuneration Awards

Category
Change in deferred remuneration awarded 1n current financial year’ g (8)y 13 (8
Change in amount of outstanding deferred remuneration from 493 (49) 423 (41

previous financial year?

Outstanding deferred remuneration (breakdown)

Cash 0 0
Shares & share-linked instruments 100 100
Other forms of remuneration G 0
Total 100 100

Outstanding deferred remuneration (performance adjustments)
Of which exposed to ex-post adjustments 100 100
Reductions in current year due to ex-post adjustments (explhct) - -
Reductions in current year due to ex-post adjustments (mplicit)? ~ -

Qutstanding retained remuneration (performance adjustments)
Of which exposed to ex-post adjustments - -
Reductions in current year due 1o ex-post adjustments (explicit) - -
Reductions in current year due-to ex-post adjustments (implictt) - -

Headcount 20 252

T Value of DBSH ordinary shares (including retention shares) granted in respect of performance year 2013 vs value of DBSH ordinary shares (including retention shares)
granted in respect of performance year 2012 Share price taken at date of grant

[No of unvested DBSH ordinary shares as at 31 Dec 13 x share price as at 31 Dec 13}/ [No of unvested DBSH ordinary shares as at 31 Dec 12 x share price as at 31 Dec 12]
The increase is due to the difference n share price between 31 Dec 2012 and 31 Dec 2013 as well as the larger number of DBSH ordinary shares granted n 2013

The figure in the parenthesis showed the change n deferred remuneratton awarded if the same population of staff that fulfils the definition of SM and MRTs for both
performance year 2612 and 2013 1s used

B

Examples of explicit ex-post adjustments include malus, clawbacks or similar reversal or downward revaluations of awards
Examples of implicit ex-post adjustments include fluctuations in the value of DBSH ordinary shares or performance units

Key executives’ remuneration

Although the Code and the Guidelines recommend that at least the top five key executives’ remuneration be disclosed within bands
of SGD 250,000 and in aggregate, the Board beleves that such disclosure would be disadvantageous to the Group's business interests,
given the highly competitive condittons in the banking industry where poaching of executives 1s commonplace

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

ACCOUNTABILITY
(PRINCIPLE 10)

The Board 1s regularly updated on the performance, position and prospects of the Group Management provides the Board with detarled
financial performance reports on a monthly basis Prior to each quarterly Board meeting, management provides Board members with detailed
reports on the Group's financial performance and related matters and witl present such reports at the Board meeting As members of the
Group Executive Comnuttee are present at all Board meetings, Board members have the opportunity to discuss with senior management

on the business and operations of the Group during each Board meeting

The CEC and CFO provide the AC and the external auditors with a fetter of representation attesting to the integnty of the financial statements
each quarter
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The Board provides shareholders with quarterly and annual financial reports [In presenting these statements, the Board aims to give
shareholders a balanced assessment of the Group’s financial performance and positton The Board also ensures tmely and full disclosure
of matenat corporate developments to shareholders

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(PRINCIPLE 11}

Board Risk Management Committee

The BRMC 1s chaired by Ms Euleen Goh and compnses Dr Bart Broadman, Mr Ho Tian Yee, Mr Nihal Kaviratne, Mr Peter Seah and Mr Danny
Tech, all of whom are non-executive independent directors The BRMC members are appropnately quahfied to discharge their responsibilities,
and five out of six BRMC members have the relevani technical financial sophistication in nsk disciplines

¥ . Wt

Key responsibilities of the BRMC - u T

+ Setting &f risk appetite for the vanous types of risk and cascadmg ,thls into risk appeit}te 1|m,1ts agd tt;e momtonn% &xRe “_surq;rg ingt
these risk appetite limits-

* Monitoring all other types of targe risk exposures against risk limits and nisk strategy jn accordance wrtﬁ' aﬁprove‘&“ Qu’ﬂ"éhnes "ﬁ-

« Monitoring of large risk events and subsequent remedial action plans ' S

* Monitoring market developments’ such as macro-economic, credit, industry, country and cornmod|ty nsks and stress tests related to
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internal Controis

The Group has instituted an internal controls framework covening financial, operational, compliance and technology controls, as well as
nsk management policies and systems DBS' risk governance structure includes three lines of defence with clear roles and responsibilities
The business management, in partnership with support functions, 1s the first line of defence and 15 primanly responsible for identification,
assessment and management of nisk within approved risk appetite and policies They are required to develop and mamntain appropnate
nsk management controls including self-assurance processes As the second line of defence, corporate oversight functions (such as Risk
Management Group and Group Legal & Compliance) are responsible for establishment and maintenance of risk management frameworks
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as well as monitoning and reporting of key nisk issues Group Audit, as the third fine of defence, prowides assurance on the reliability, adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's system of internal controls, nsk management procedures, governance framework and processes, and the quality
of performance tn carrying out assigned responsibilities

Please refer to the section on ‘Risk Management’ in this Annual Report which sets out the overall nisk governance and vanous nsk management
frameworks covering credit, market, iquidity and operational risks

The Group has in place a nsk management process that requires all units to perform a half-yearly Control Self Assessment (CSA) to assess the
effectiveness of their internal controls In addition, all units of the Group are required to submit quarterly attestations on their cantrols relating
to the financial reporting process, and annual attestations on their compliance with the overall internal controls framework Leveraging on the
results of the CSA and the quarterly and annual attestations, the CEO and CFO would in turn provide an annual attestation to the AC relating
to adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems Group Audit performs regular independent reviews
to provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's nsk management, control and governance processes The AC and BRMC
review the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls framework
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DBS Code of Conduct

The DBS Code of Conduct (*Code of Conduct”) sets out the principles and standards of behaviour that are expected of all employees of the
Group (including part-time and temporary employges) when dealing with customers, business assoaates, regulators and colleagues The principles
covered in the Code of Conduct include professional integrity, confidentiality, conflicts of interests, fair dealings with customers and whistle

blowing All employees are required to read and acknowledge the Code of Conduct on an annual basis Members of the public may access the
Code of Conduct on the Group’s website, as well as write 1n wvia the portal availlable

Significant Inadent Protocol and Code of Conduct

The Group has 1n place a significant inadent protocol that highlights processes and procedures for incidents according to the level of seventy
In this way, appropnate levels of management are made aware of these inadents and can take action accordingly In addition, there are
procedures on the escalation, investigation and follow up of any reparted wrong-doing by a DBS employee, customer, vendor or third party
The procedure for escalation is In various Group policies but most predominantly in the Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct define processes for DBS staff to report incidents and provides protection for those staff for these disclosures The Code
of Conduct also encourages employees to report their concerns to the Group’'s dedicated, independent investigation team within Group Legal,
Compliance and Secretanat which handles whistle-blowing cases according 1o a well defined protocol Alternatively, in case of actual or potential
conflict of interest or fear of retribution, employees may write in confidence to Human Resources, Group Audit, or even the CEQ or Chairman
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Related Party Transactions

The Group has embedded procedures to comply with all reguiations governing related party transactions, including those n the Banking Act,
Chapter 19 (“Banking Act”), MAS directives and the SGX Listing Rules The Banking Act and MAS directives impose limits on credit exposures
by the Group to certain related entities and persons, while the SGX Listing Rules cover interested party transactions in general

All new directors are briefed on all relevant provisions that affect them If necessary, existing credit facilities to related parties are adjusted
prior to a director's appointment, and all credit facilities to related parties are continually monitored Checks are conducted before the Group
enters into credit or other transactions with related parties to ensure comphance with regulations

As required under the $GX Listing Rules, the following are detalls of interested person transactions in 2013

Aggregate value of all Interested Person Transactions during 2013

Name of Interested Person {excluding transactions less than SGD 100,000)
CapitaLland Limited Group 6,865,374
Certis CISCO Secunity Pte Ltd Group 14,676,979
Mapletree Investments Pte Ltd Group 464,400
MediaCorp Pte Ltd Group 2,963,551
Singapore Airlines Limited Group 390,000
Singapore Telecommunications Limited Group 37,745,810
SMRT Corporation Ltd Group 6,969,864
StarHub Ltd Group 5,054,284
Temasek Capital (Private} Limited Group 177,792
Total Interested Person Transactions (SGD) 75,308,054

Material Contracts

Since the end of the previous financial year, no matena! contracts involving the interest of any director or cantrolling shareholder of the
Group has been entered into by the Group or any of its subsidiary companies, and no such contract subsisted as at 31 December 2013,
save as disclosed wia SGXNET

Dealings in securities

In conformance with the “black-out” policies prescribed under SGX Listing Rules, DBSH directors and employees are prohibited from trading
in DBSH securities one month before the release of the full-year results and two weeks before the release of the first, second and third
quarter results In addition, business units and subsidiaries engaging in proprietary trading are restricted from trading in DBSH securities
during the black-out period Prior to the commencement of each black-out penod, Group Secretaniat will send an email to all directors and
employees to inform thern of the duration of such period

Direciors and officers are prohibited at all times from trading in DBSH securities if they are in possession of matenial non-public infarmation
The Group has put in place a personal nvestment policy which prohibits employees with access to price-sensitive information in the course
of their duties from trading in secunties in which they possess such price-sensitive information Such employees are also required to seek
pre-clearance before making any personal trades in securities, and may only trade through the Group's stock broking subsidiaries for
securities isted in Singapore and Hong Kong The personal investment policy discourages employees from engaging in short-term
speculative trading, and states that investment decisions should be geared towards long-term investment

AUDIT COMMITTEE
(PRINCIPLE 12)

The AC 1s chaired by Mr Danny Teoh and comprises Mr Nihal Kawviratne, Mr Peter Seah, Mrs Ow Foong Pheng and Mr Andre Sekulic,

all of whom are non-executive directors Mr Danny Teoh possesses an accounting qualfication and was the managing partner of
KPMG, Singapore All members of the AC have recent and relevant accounting or related financial management expertise or experience
In accordance with the requirements of the Code, Guidelines and Banking Regulations, a majority (four out of five members of the AC)
including the AC Chairman are independent directors Mrs Ow Foong Pheng, who Is a non-independent director, 1s considered
independent from business relationships and management




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 71

Key rasponsibilities of the AC

» Monitoring the finantial repdrting process and ensuring the integnity of the Group's financial statements
» Reviewing the adequacy and effeciiveness of internal comtrols, such as financial, operational, compliance and information technology
controls, as well as accoynting policies and systems
* Reviewing all matenal refated party transactions ..
« Reviewing the policy and arrangements by which staff of the Group may, in confidence, raise ¢dncrns about possible improprieties
——-—A-matters-of-financial-repditing-or.othermatters.and lo-ensure_that arrangements are alsoa place for such concemns to be raised
" anhd independently Investigated and for approprate follow-up action to be taken
» Revigwing the internal auditor’s plans, the scope and results of audits; and effectiveness of the internat audit funcyon
= Approving the hiring, removal, resignation, evaluation and compensation of Mead of Group Audit -
+ Reviewing the scope and results of the external audit and the independence and abjectmty of the external auditors, and ensuring
*~ thatthe external auditors prompt[y informs the ACif there are any weaknesses In the Group ‘santernal controls and ensuring that
such weaknegses are prompﬂy rectlfied
* Making recommendatlons 10 the Board on the proposals to shareholders oa the appomtment, se-appointment and renewal of the
external auditors and-approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
* Overseeng the implementation of the Group Disclosure Policy by the Group Disclosure Commuttee and approve proposed changes
ofa substahtma Bf:!tuLe

s . R -
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The AC has full discretion to invite any director and executive to attend its meetings Separate sessions with the external auditors are held
without the presence of management at each AC meeting to discuss matters that night have to be raised privately In addition, there 1s at
least one scheduled private session annually for the head of Group Audit to meet with the AC The AC Chairman meets the internal auditors
regularly to discuss the internal audit plan, current work, key findings and other significant matters The AC has exphait authority to investigate
any matter within its terms of reference, and has full access to and cooperation by management

The AC has reviewed the Group's audited financial statements with management and the external auditors and is of the view that the Group’s
financial statements for 2013 are fairly presented 1n conformity with retevant Singapore Financial Reporting Standards in ail material aspects

During the financial year, the AC carried out an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Group Audrt function The review showed
that Group Audit continues to perform to a very high standard, adopts effective communication to stakeholders, places high importance
to its people, continuously Investing to enhance its bench-strength, stays relevant and competent to changes In the Bank’s nisk and
requlatory environment

Activities of the AC in 2013 ’ '

During the course of 2013, the AC’ activives included.

+ Performing quarterly reviews of finandial statements (audited and unaudited), and making recommendations to the Board for approval

+ Performing quarierly rewiews of reports from Group Audit and Group Legal and Comphance

+ Reviewing the'Group’s progress on the implementation of the Falr Deahng Qutcomes across the Group, I} 1|ne with the
principles 1ssued by MAS

» Reviewing the annual audit plan and the legal and comphance plans, approviig any changes as necessary

* Reviewing the annual re-appointment of the external auditors and determining their remuneration, and makmg a
recommendation'for Board approval

= Reviewing the observations from the iIndependent externat assessor appointed to conduct an assessment of Group Audit's
conformance with the Institute of Internal Auditors {IlA) International Standards for the Professionat Practice of lnternalAudntmg

AL

HE O}

AC meribers are regularly kept updated on ¢hanges to accounting standards and Issues related to financial repomng thrOugh quarterly
meetings with Group Audit, and via mtemafaudnt butletins, among others
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External Audrtors

The AC makes recommendations to the Board for the appointment, re-appointment and dismissal of the external auditors including the
remuneration and terms of engagement The Group has complied with Rule 712 and Rule 715 of the SGX bisting Rules in relation to its
external auditors

The total fees paid to our external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw(), for the financial year ended 31 December 2013,
and the breakdown of the fees paid for audit and non-audit services respectively are set out below

Fees pawd to PwC for FY 2013 5GD '000
For Audit and Audit-Related Services 6,740
For Non-Audit Services 1,868
Tota! Fees paid 8,608
INTERNAL AUDIT

{PRINCIPLE 13)

Group Audit 15 & function that 1s independent of the activities 1t audits The objective, scope of authority and responsibilities of Group Audit
are defined in the Group Audit charter, which 1s approved by the AC In DBSH, Group Audit reports functionally to the Chairman of the AC
and administratively 1o the CEQ

Group Audit’s responsibilities include

{1} Evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal contral systems, including whether
there 1s prompt and accurate recording of transactions and proper safeguarding of assets,

{n) Providing an independent assessment of the Group’s credit management processes, portfolio strategies and portfolio quality,

()} Reviewing whether the Group complies with laws and regulations and adheres to established policies, and

(v) Reviewing whether management 15 taking appropriate steps to address control deficiencies

Group Audit adopts a risk-based approach in its auditing activities An annual audit plan is developed using a structured risk and control
assessment framework, where Group Audit assesses the inherent nisk and control effectiveness of each auditable entity in the Group The
assessment also covers nisks ansing from new lines of bustness or product Audit projects are planned based on the results of the assessment,
with priority given to auditing higher nisk areas Consideration 15 also given to conducting audit projects required by regulators Appropriate
resources are deployed to complete the plan, which 1s reviewed and approved by the AC

Group Audit has unfettered access to the AC, the Board and senior management, as well as the right to seek information and explanation
Group Audit staif 1s required to adhere to the Code of Conduct as well as the Code of Ethics established by the IIA, fram which the principles of
objectivity, competence, confidentiality and integrity are based

Audit reports containing identified issugs and corrective action plans are reparted to the AC and senior management The progress of the
corrective action plans is monitored through a centralised issue management system Information on outstanding 1ssues 15 included in regular
reports to the AC, the Chairman, senvor management and business and support unit heads

Group Audit appnses the regulators and external auditors of all relevant audit matters It works closely with the external auditors to coordinate
audit efforts

In line with leading practices, Group Audit has established a quality assurance and improvement programme that covers all aspects of its audit
activity and conforms to the international Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing The programme inciudes penodic internal
quality assurance reviews, self-assessments based on standards established by the HA and internal audit methodologies, stakeholder surveys and
Industry benchmarking surveys External quality assessments are also carned out at least once every five years by qualified professionals from an
external organisation The most recent assessrment was conducted in 2013 by KPMG
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Based on KPMG?’s Strategic Performance Review of Internal Audit {"K’SPRint”} methodology, the following assessment was made,
which include areas considered as leading practices

= Management buy-in and adoption of Group Audit's annually refreshed Top 10 Key Audit Focus Areas (based on its annual risk and control
assessment results, perspectives of senior managernent and business plans) reflects strong recogrition of Group Audit's contnibution n
helping to shape the control culture and awareness within the organisation,

* Strong positive feedback from management on stakehalder engagement,

= Organisational structure within Group Audst ensures proper functional and geographical engagement and coverage,

= Having an internal bulletin, complimented by members of the Group Management Committee as a useful communication tool, alerts
stakeholders to control weaknesses In respective areas,

= Asuccessful Guest Auditor Programme, which inwites internal applicants from other departments to participate in audit reviews

alongside experienced auditors, brings value to both Group Audit {leverage on product knowledge) and stakeholders (understanding
of audit requirements), and

» Comprehensive Annual Audit Planning Process
KPMG concluded that Group Audit conforms to the International Standards for the Professional Practice of internal Auditing

Group Audnt achieved another significant milestone during its partictpation in the 2013 Securities Investors Association of Singapore (SIAS)
Investors’ Choice Awards, jointly organised by the SIAS, IlA Singapore and Singapore Management University Group Audit emerged as the
runner-up for the Internal Audit Excellence Award, and top among banks for the third year running These wins are significant for the Group
as the SIAS Investors’ Choice Awards 1s one of only few awards in the market that recognises public-listed companies for their exemplary
corporate governance and transparency practices

Group Audit continues to improve on 1ts approach towards the internal audit function One of its Inttiatives I1s the extensive use of computer-
assisted audit techniques (CAATS) as well as more complex data analytics, for greater efficiency and effectiveness, as well as to enhance
productivity Technolegy will continue to play a central role i driving innovation and process automation to iImprove quahity and efficency

in performing audits and managing internal department processes The future of audit lies in the ability to identify emerging risks As such,
Group Audit 1s continuously looking into ways to connect the dots by shanng insights on 1ssues, and how one issue 15 connected to another,
with all stakeholders This boundary-spanning sharing also crosses business segments and geographical locations

Last but not least, Group Audit continues to Invest In its people, ensuring that it is adequately staffed to meet the demands of internal audit

Proper training roadmaps and up-skilling programmes are instituted to constantly enhance the knowledge, skills and competencies of its
internal auditors

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
(PRINCIPLE 14)

The Group's robust corporate governance culture and awareness promote farr and equitable treatment of all shareholders All shareholders
enjoy specific nghts under the Singapore Companies’ Act and Articles of Association All shareholders are treated farrly and equitably

These nghts include, amongst others, the nght to participate in profit distributions and the nght to attend and vote at general meetings
Ordinary shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM by person or proxy A shareholder may appoint up to the maximum of
two proxies, who need not be shareholders of DBSH Notwithstanding the two-proxy rule, investors who hold DBSH ardinary shares through
CPF or custodian banks, but have not been appointed as proxies, are also allowed to attend the AGM as observers

The Group respects the equal information nghts of all shareholders and 1s committed to the practice of farr, transparent and timely disclosure
All price-sensitive information ts publicly released prior to any sessions with indwidual investors or analysts
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(PRINCIPLE 15)

The Group's investor relations actvities promote regular, effective and far communication with shareholders Briefing sessions for the media
and analysts are conducted when Guarterly results are released All press statements and quarterly financial statements are published on the
DBSH and 5GX websites A dedicated investor relations team supports the CEO and the CFO in maintaining a close and active dialogue with
institutional investors The Group's website provides contact detalls for investors to submit their feedback and raise any guestions

During the year, management met with more than 370 investors at more than 280 investor meetings It participated in nine local and foreign
investor conferences and non-deal road shows These meetings provide a forum for management to explain the Group’s strategy and financial
performance Management also uses meetings with investors and analysts to solicit their perceptions of the Group

At the IR Magazine Awards and Conference South East Asia 2013, the Group was named the Best Investor Relations in the banks and
financial services secior The Group was also conferred the Best Investor Relations (bronze) award in the category for companies with a market
capitalisation of SGD 1 billion and above at the Singapore Corporate Awards 2013

The Group has a formal disclosure policy to ensure that all disclosures of matenial infarmation are timely, complete and accurate The policy also
spells out how material information should be managed to prevent selective disclosure In 2012, the Group Disclosure Commuttee (GDC) was
formed to assist the CEO and CFO 1n implementing the Group's disclasure policy The GDC comprises the CFO, members of the Group Executive
Committee as well as vanous department heads The GDC's objectives are to perodically review the Group's disclosure policy and update 1t

as needed, ensure that all material disclosures are appropriate, complete and accurate, and ensure the avoidance of selective or inadvertent
disclosure of material information

The Group's efforts to improve disclosure were recognised at the 14th Investors’ Choice Awards organised by the SIAS, where 11 won the
Most Transparent Company Award In the finance category

CONDUCT OF SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS
{PRINCIPLE 16}

The AGM provides shareholders with the apportunity to share their views and to meet the Board of Directors, including the chairpersons
of the Board committees and certain members of senior management The Group’s external auditor is available to answer shareholders’
queries At the AGM, the Group’s financial performance for the preceding year 1s presented to shareholders

At general meetings, the Chairman plays a pivotal role (n fostering constructive dialogue between shareholders and the Board members
The Group encourages and values shareholder participation at its general meetings To enhance shareholder participation, the Group
puts all resolutions at general meetings to vote by electroric poll and announces the results by showing the number of votes cast for
and against each resolution and the respective percentage

In accordance with the recommendations contained in the Code and the Guidelines, resolutions requiring shareholder approval are tabled
separately for adoption at the DBSH's general meetings unless they are closely related and are more appropriately tabled together
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The table below gives an overview of the locations of our nsk disclosures

In 2013, we have implemented the majonity of the Enhanced Disclosure Task Force (EDTF) recommendations for improved bank nisk disclosures'
For an overview of the recommendations and where we have incorporated the relevant disclosures, please refer to Appendix on page 101

Section Page

1 Risk Taking and our Business Model 76
v 5 x T N~ A '
2 Risk Overview . - - 76
a & 3 el il At p \
3 DBS Risk Appetite 78
31  Risk-lmriting Threshaolds 79
32  Stress Testing 80
33  Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process 80
34  Useof Economic Capital for Concentration Risk Management 80
4 Risk Governance 81
- - - 41 Riskand Control - 81
.-~ .| 42 GovernanceStaucture . . | 82
5 Credit Risk 83
51 Credit Risk in DBS 83
52  Credit Risk Management at DBS 84
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55 Internal Credit Risk Models 89
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71 Liquidity Risk in DBS 95
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73  Liguidity Risk 1n 2013 97
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1 See Enhancing the Risk Disclosure of Banks published by the Financial Stabidity Board m October 2012
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THE SECTIONS MARKED BY A GREY UINE IN THE LEFT MARGIN FORM PART OF THE GROUP'S AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 RISK TAKING AND OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DBS' focus on Asia has enabled us to grow our franchise successfully by allowing us to leverage on our key strengths n a region we know

best This Asian connectivity naturally exposes us to some degree of concentration risk to the region However, through spreading our franchise
across the expansive Asian region, our nisk 1s diversified across many markets with diffening macroeconomic fundamentals and growth drivers
Our strategic spread across many different industries and portfolios, as well as individual name concentration management, enables us to
mitigate nisk and withstand situations of economic stress Whilst this diversification strategy has worked well over the years, it 1s really our
specialist knowledge of the regional markets, clients and a keen understanding of therr businesses that enable us to manage our risk

We believe that focusing on the markets and customer segments we know well enables us to achieve a superior return by taking on sound
credit nsk A strong focus on our private and corporate customers and on corporate lending — especially to small and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs) and in trade finance - in selected markets where we have built expertise has served us well

2 RISK OVERVIEW

In carrying out our strategy and our nine strategic prionties we are faced with economic, finanaial and cther types of nsk These risks
are interdependent and require a holistic approach to sk management Very broadly these nisks can be aligned around the following
risk categories

Busi d . . Lo .
usiness an Reputational Credit W ETE Liquidity Operational
Strategic
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Reputational Rlsk is the current or prospectlve r|sk to our shareholder value (|nclud|ng earnings and capltal) ansing from adverse

perception of DBS’ image on the part of its stakeholders 1t affects the Group’s ability to establish new relationships or services, or continue

serviang existing relatilonships, and have continued access to sources of funding Reputational risk 1s typically an outcome of faillure to
manage the other risk types

Cred|t< Rlsk"*gs the fisk of lo;;s ;e$ult|ng f'rorq‘th’e“faﬂu@of*borﬁoﬁersﬂé%‘coﬁﬁt‘érgmamg‘s to me“é’tfhe?r debt of Eont’factgaj obhﬁat:iér‘\s

Market Risk aﬁ‘ects the economic value of financial instruments held by the Group, ansing from changes 1n interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, equity prices, commaodity prices, credit spreads and also changes in the correlations and volatilities of these r|sk factors
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Operational Risk is the nisk of loss resulting from madequate or faled (nternal processes, people or systems, or from external events,
including legal nsk, but does not include strategic or reputational nsk

TOP AND EMERGING RISKS

Amongst those risks discussed above, some are more salient and ¢ritical to our strategy whilst others are emerging as more cntical risk due to
changes in regulation, stakeholders’ concerns or the nature of our businesses We consider the following areas of uncertainties and risks as top
and emerging in achieving our strategic prionties going forward, and have in place the appropnate risk mitigating initiatives to manage these
All these nisks have the potential of impacting the Group'’s image negatively and hence have reputational risk implications




RISK MANAGEMENT 77

CREDIT

Credit Risk and Concentration

Credrt nisk rematns the Group's most matenal risk and usage of capital Depending on seventy, a prolonged weak economic environment,
brought about by factors such as economic uncertainty in Asia and normalization of manetary policy in the United States, may impact our
credit portfolios We continue to monitor our risk appetite position closely Risk acceptance critena and pohcies are modified as necessary to
pro-actively mitigate potential portfolio threats

Country Risk

DBS has a stated strategy to be a regional bank i Asia Consequently, the Group has large concentrations in a hmited number of countries
and the risks in those countries are correlated as well Instability in and across our target markets, such as economic uncertainty in China and
pelitical-economic flux in India and Indonesia, may give rise 1o country nsk events This risk 1s miigated by setting imits for the maximum
exposure in each country In addition the potential loss given transfer event is monitored on the basis of how the exposure 1s dvided among
short term and long term, trade and non-trade as well as wrong way risk in our derivatives portfolio Based on the macro economic outlook,
the country nisk imits and exposures will be adjusted 1n order to stay within the Group’s Risk Appetite

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity Risk

From time to time, the Group may need to supplement 1ts holdings of fungible currencies through the use of swaps {please refer to Section 7 2
on page 95 for details on our liguidity management and funding strategy) Consequently, the Group actively participates in the swap markets
to convert its surplus SGD funds to USD for on-lending across ocations As the swaps are typically shorter in contractual matunty than the USD
loans, the Group 1s exposed to potential cashilow mismatches ansing from the risk that counterparties may not roll over maturing swaps with
the Group to support the continual funding of USD loans

This sk, 1 e the cashflow mismatch ansing from the potential mability to roll over matunng swaps with counterparties, 1s mitigated by the
setting of a tngger on the amount of SGD USD swaps transacted with the market and conservative assumptions on the cashflow treatment
of swaps under the behavioural profiling of the Group’s cashflow matunty gap analysis In addition, the Group continues to make inroads

in grow:ng, deepening and diversifying its USD deposit base across locations, through the expansion of its product suites and investments
made n cash management capabilittes, amongst other initiatives The Group also maintains access to vanous wholesale funding instrumenits
as supplementary funding sources (e g 1ssuance of Euro Commercial Papers and Medium Term Notes)

OPERATIONAL

Regulatory Developments

The global regulatory Jandscape 15 evolving continuously We continue to observe various regulatory bodies, both globally and regionally,
1ssuing guidance with addittonal requirements related to a wide variety of topics These range from risk appetite, internal models
approaches as well as hquidity and capital requirements The volume and depth of increasingly demanding regulatory requirements
have the effect of pro-longing implementation ttmelines and increasing costs especially where regulatory approval 1s more uncertain

As discussed in the ‘Requlators’ section of our Management Discussion on page 45, the Group remains vigilant in tracking international

and domestic regulatory developments to ensure that it stays on top of changes applicable to its businesses New requirements are promptly
analysed and disseminated to the respective action parties and, where applicable, embedded into the Group's processes and systems Standards
of compliance bebaviour expected of alf staff are reinforced through training sessions, briefings and other means of communication and
dissermination In additton, indmvduals who perform certain activities may be required to fulfill specific traning and examnation standards

The Group alse recognises the importance of proactive engagement with regulators and we continue to steer industry and regulatory
forums where poscible Towards this end, the Group strives to build and mamtain positwe relationships with regulators that have oversight
responsibilities in the locations where we operate
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Financial Crime and Information Security

Fraud continues to be a nsk for financial institutions particularly as criminals embrace the use of technology The Group takes this threat
senously and has implemented a broad range of controls to identify and mitigate nsk to customers and businesses Tradiional fraud such as
card skimming and onhne fraud continue to present a nisk for finanaal institutions globally These risks are being mimigated maindy through the
implementation of Europay, MasterCard and Visa (EMV) technology for card payments and mutts factor authentication for online payments
along with increased level of transaction monitoning Physical security enhancements at point-of-sale terminals and self-service banking facilities
are also acting as a deterrent to sximming attacks

Regulators globally continue to focus on anti-money laundering and counter-terronsm finanang to safeguard the financial system Singapore
recently designated tax evasion as a predicate offence to money laundering placing greater onus on financial institutions to understand the
source of customer monies

The Group takes the 1ssue of financial system integrity most sencusly and has robust policies and procedures in place to ensure use of the
Group’s infrastructure only for legitimate purposes Systemns are in place to detect suspicious transactions and report such transactions to the
appropriate authorities

3 DBS RISK APPETITE

As mentioned above, the pursuit of the Group’s strategic prionties and business opportunities inherently carries nsk The Board has established
an overall Risk Appetite which 1s supervised by the Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) Our nsk strategy 1s to link our Risk Appetite
with the Group's strategic and operational needs across material nsk types The embedding of Risk Appetite in DBS starts with a formally
defined Risk Appetite Statement set by the Group Board

To this end, we have established the Risk Appetite Framework which covers the risk management measures put in place to ensure adherence
with the Risk Appetite Statement The Framework brings together various risk processes across Risk Management Group (RMG) and Finance
onto a structured platform for effective enterpnse risk management The Framework serves to reinfarce the nsk culture, defined by the

"tone from the top’, by providing a coherent understanding of risk across the Group In addition, to embed Risk Appetite into our culture,

the Group's remuneration policy (please refer to Corporate Governance section on page 58) 1s structured to align compensation to appropriate
risk taking behawiour

Underlying nsk management frameworks are in turn developed for each risk type to ensure adherence with Risk Appetite

Group Credit Credit Stress Testing

Risk Management
Framework*

Risk Appetite Group Market Risk Market Stress Testing
Framewaork . Management Framework

Group Liquidity Risk Liquidity Stress Testing
Management Framework

Group Operational
Risk Management
Framework

Group Reputational Risk
Management Framework

Business Continuity
Management

* includes Country Risk
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The key instruments that the Group uses to ensure proper risk 1dentification and quantification inciude

* A strategic planning process and continuous monitoring process against approved nsk targets
« Regular sk reporting to management and the use of the risk reports for capital management purposes
= An Economic Capital (EC) and stress testing framework

31 RISK-LIMITING THRESHOLDS

The Risk Appetite considers the various risk types and is operationalised via imits, policies, processes and centrols The inclusion of threshold
structures into the nisk framewaorks 1s integral in driving Risk Appetite into our businesses Effective thresholds are essential in managing
aggregate risks within acceptable levels Portfolio nisk hmits for the quantifiable risk types are cascaded from Risk Appetite through a top down
approach and operationalised through forma! frameworks Other significant risk aspects are guided by qualitative expression of prinaples

Risk Appetite

Regulatory Capital
Capital Attribution Constraint

Operational Risk Liquidity Risk

|  Internal capital demand Internal capital demand Internal capital demand
i (Economic Capital basis) (Economic Capital basis) (Regulatory Capital basis)

Country (Transfer &
Convertibility )

Banking Book
(Business segment)

Concentration Risk Value-at-Risk Appetite Limit Manage through frameworks, Maintain Counterbalancing
Management policies and standards Capacity to meet the
Liquidity Risk Exposure

\
_~Banks . at Risk Limit

Industry EC Tnigger
- Finanoial Institutions |
‘ ~ Non-Finanaal Institutions

Obhgor Economic ' Total Tail Value at
Capital Tnigger | Risk Limit |
| - Corporate [ Trading book Taill Value =
1

, Country (Transfer &
Convertibility) Limit
— Strateqic
— Non-strategic
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Speafic nsk-imiting thresholds for the respective risk types are as follows

» Credit Risk — EC triggers and country Transfer and Convertibility (T&C) hmits are used to manage credit risk Sector concentration triggers
and Target Market Risk Acceptance Critena are used to manage sector concentration risk Obligor concentration triggers and Relationship
Caps are used to imit concentrated borrower exposures T&C limits are used to manage geographic exposures

» Market Risk - Value-at-Risk (VaR) limits and EC hmits are used to manage downside rnisk Management stress tnggers are used to manage
combined exposures ansing from combined posittons in bath trading and banking books

» Liquidity Risk — Cashflow matunty mismatch analysis is the primary measure This 1s complemented by other nisk contral measures
such as iquidity-related ratios and balance sheet analysis

+ Operational and Reputational Risks — Operaticnal and reputational nisks are managed through frameworks, policies and standards
32 STRESS TESTING

Stress testing 15 an integral part of the Group's nsk management process It alerts senior management 1o the Group’s potential vulnerability
to exceptional but plausible adverse events It enables the Group to assess capital adequacy, Wdentify potential nisky portfolio segments,
inherent systematic nsks and provides an opportunity to define mitigating actions before the onset of an adverse event

We have a ngorous stress testing regime which 15 conducted throughout the year, including the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP), industry-wide stress test and Pillar 1 credit stress test In addition, we also perform various sensitivity analyses under
stress scenartos

Appropriate stress testing Is conducted at least annually or at suitable intervals given the reading of micro and macro economic conditions
All stress tests are documented, including contingency plans, exit strategies and mitigating actions appropriate to different scenarios
The results of the stress tests are also used to calibrate the thresholds and boundaries of the Risk Appetite

33 INTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS

Through ICAAP, the capital planning process takes into account the demand for capital under a range of stress scenanos and compares them
against the available supply of capital Capital demand is in turn a function of growth plans and the target credit rating speafied in the Risk

Appetite Statement Based on the assessment of capital needs, the corresponding risk capital for credit nisk and market risk are defined The
planning process under ICAAP therefore ensures that the Group’s overall sk and rewards are aligned with Risk Appetite

34 USE OF ECONOMIC CAPITAL FOR CONCENTRATION RISK MANAGEMENT

While the Group firmly complies to regulatory capital requirements at all times, we recognise the need to have more robust methodologies to
measure capital usage Effective concentration management requires a robust metric that can accurately capture the portfolio nisk characteristics
including granular portfolio segment profile, nsk concentrations and correlation of nisks in the pertfolio The metnic has to be sensitive to
changes made to adjust the portfolio shape and direction of growth

We have therefore adopted the EC metric as our prtmary concentration nisk management 100l and have integrated it into our risk processes
EC 1s deployed as a core component in our ICAAP and 1t also serves as a key metric in ¢ascading Risk Appetite and limits setung
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4 RISK GOVERNANCE

41 RISK AND CONTROL

The Group has three lines of defence when 1t comes to nsk taking where each line of defence has a clear responsibility

BOARD
CEO

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Provides oversight of the 3 Lines of Dafence

FIRST LINE OF DEFENCE SECOND LINE OF DEFENCE THIRD LINE OF DEFENCE

Strategy, Performance and
Risk Management Policy and Monitoring Independent Assurance

Businessi¥nitsAEotntcies)

Identification and Management Framework, Risk Oversight Independent Challenge and Review

fA d Effect
of Risk in the businesses and Reporting ° d::'ouc:cs)sreasnan d ceon't\:::l:ss of

Working closely with the support functions, the first line of defence 1s the front office that has a clear responsibility for nisk i terms
of identifymg nisks and reporting on any changes in the risk profile of the clients or positions

As a second hne of defence, RMG and other control functions such as Group Compliance have their own responsibilities for developing,
overseeing and reporting on risk framewaorks In addition, RMG s responsible for identifying individual and portfolio nsk, approve transactions

and trades and ensure that they are within approved Imits and monitor and report on the portfohio, taking into account current and future
potential developments through stress testing

Finally, Group Audit forms the third line of defence as a completely independent check to ensure adherence to approved policies
and procedures
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42 GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

As discussed 1n Section 3 1, under the Group’s nisk management framewarks, the Board of Directors, through the BRMC, sets risk appetite,
oversees the establishment of robust enterprise-wide nsk management policies and processes, and sets nisk imits to guide risk-taking within

the Group

DBS 3 Levels of Risk & Control Governance Structure

Location Board

GROUP BOARD Group Management & Management

1
Location Board/
Board Committee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS Commuttee Committee

|
Risk Executive

— Group Executive Group Management

Location Management

|
N e T I

BOARD EXECUTIVE [ Committee Committee )
COMMITTEE I .
— Group Credit Risk Location Risk Committee
Committee )
I
BOARD AUDIT Group Market Business Control
COMMITTEE (BAC) — & Liquidity Risk - Committee y
Committee
Group Operational ]

BOARD RISK " Risk Committee

MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE (BRMC) L Product Approval
Committee

The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) has been appointed to oversee the nisk management function The CRO 1s a member of the Group Executive
Committee and has a dual reporting line to the CEO and 1o the Board which 1s also responsible for the appointment, remuneration, resignation
or dismissal of the CRO The CRO 15 independent of business lines and s actively involved in key decision making processes

The CRO also engages the Group's regulator(s) on a regular basis to discuss risk matters
Working closely with the established nisk and business committees, the CRO 1s responsible for the following

* Management of the risks in the Group including developing and maintaining systems and processes to tdenufy, approve, measure,
monitar, control and report risks

= Engagement of senior management on material matters relating to the various types of risks and development of risk controls
and mrtigation processes

+ Ensurning the effectiveness of risk management and adherence to the Risk Appetite established by the Board
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To facilizate BRMC's risk oversight, risk management committees have been established as follows

Risk Management Committees

Risk Executive Committee {Risk ExCo) The Risk ExCo provides comprehensive group-wide oversight and direction relating to the
management of all nsk types and (s the overall executive body mandated by the BRMC on
risk matters

Product Approval Commuttee (PAC) The PAC provides comprehensive group-wide oversight and direction relating to the new
product approval - an important risk mitigation element within the Group

Group Credit Risk Commuittee Each of these commuttees reporting to the Risk ExCo are broadly mandated — within the
specific nisk areas - 1o serve as an executive forum for discussion and decisions on all

Group Market and Liquidity Risk Commuttee aspects of risk and 11s management

Group Operational Risk Commuttee This includes

+  Assessing risk taking

*» Maintaining oversight on effectiveness of the Group's nsk management infrastructure,
including framewaork, decision criteria, authorities, policies, people, processes,
information, systems and methodologies

= Approving nsk model governance standards as well as stress testing scenaros

* Assessing the rnisk-return trade-offs across the Group

» Identifying specific concentrations of risk

The members In these committees comprise representatives from RMG as well as key
busimess and support units

The above committees are supported in all major focations by local nsk committees The local sk committees provide oversight over local risk
pasitions across all businesses and suppart units and ensure compliance with imits set by the group nsk committees They alsc approve country
specific nsk policies and ensure comphance with local regulatory risk mits and requirements

5 CREDIT RISK
51 CREDIT RISK IN DBS

Credit nsk anses out of our daily activities in various areas of business — lending to retail, corporate and institutional customers, trading activities
such as foreign exchange, dervatives and debt securities, and settlement of transactions Credit nisk 1s one of the most significant measurable
rsks faced by the Group

Lending exposures are typically represented by the netional value or principal amount of on-balance sheet financial instruments Financial
guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent undertakings that the Group will make payments in the event that a customer
cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans even though they are contingent 1n nature Pre-settlement Credit
Exposures (PCE) for trading and secunties transaciions s measured taking into account collateral and netting arrangements Settlernent risk 1s
the risk of loss due to the counterparty’s failure to perform its obligation after the Group has performed its obligation under an exchange of
cash or securities

Please refer to Note 41 1 to the Finanaial Statements on page 162 for details on the Group’s maximum exposure to credit nsk
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52 CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT AT DBS

The Group's approach to credit nsk management 1s formulated on the following building blocks

- . . Processes, Systems
Framework Policies Risk Methodologies y
and Reports

FRAMEWORK

The Credit Risk Management Framework, approved by the BRMC, defines credit risk and the scope of its application, establishes the dimenstons
of credit nsk, and provides a consistent Group-wide framework for managing credit risk across the Group

POLICIES

Senior management sets the overall direction and policy for managing credit risk at the enterprise level A Core Credit Risk Poiicy sets forth the
principles by which the Group conducts 1ts credit nsk management activities This policy, supported by a number of operational policies, ensure
consistency tn credit risk underwriting across the Group and provide guidance in the formulation of business-specific and/or location-specific
credit policies The Core Credit Risk Policy 1s considered and approved by the Risk ExCo based on recommendations from the Group Credit
Policy Committee The bustness-specific andfor location-specific credit policies are established to provide greater details on the implementation
of the credit principles within the Core Credit Risk Policy and are adapted to reflect different credit environments and porifolio nsk profiles

RISK METHODOLOGIES

Managing credit nisk 1s performed through our deep understanding of our customers, the businesses they are in and the economies in which
they operate This is facihitated through the use of credit ratings and lending imits  The Group uses an array of rating models in both the
corporate and retait space Most are built internally using the Group’s own loss data Limits and “rules for the business” are driven from the
Group's Risk Appetite Statement and Target Market Risk Acceptance Criteria respectively

Retail exposures are typically managed on a portfolio basis and assessed based on credit scoring models, credit bureau record, internal and
available external customers’ behaviour records and supplemented by risk acceptance criteria

Wholesale expasures are assessed using approved credit models, reviewed and analysed by experienced credit nisk managers taking into
consideration the relevant credit nsk factors Credit extensions are proposed by the business unit and are approved by the credit nsk function
based on independent credit assessment, while also taking into account the business strategies determined by senior management

Please refer 10 section 5 5 on page 89 for further discussion on our internal credit nisk models
Counterparty risk that may arise from traded products and securities 1s measured on a loan equivalent basis and included under the Group's

overall credit limits to counterparties Issuer Default Risk that may anse from traded products and securities are generally measured based on
Jjump-to-default computations
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The Group actively monitors and manages its exposure to counterparties in over-the-counter {OTC) derivative trades to protect its balance
sheet in the event of a counterparty default Counterparty nisk exposures which may be matenally and adversely affected by market risk events
are identrfied, reviewed and acted upon by management and highlighted to the appropniate risk committees In addition, the Group's risk
measurement methodology takes into account the higher risks associated with transactions that exhibit a strong relationship between the
credstworthiness of a counterparty and the expected future replacement value of a relevant transaction (so called wrong-way nsk) as wdentified
duning the trade booking precess The current exposure methad 1s used for calculating the Group's net credit exposure and regulatory capital
for counterparty exposures, using the mark-to-market exposures with an appropnate add-on factor for potential future exposures

Concentration Risk Management

The Group’s nisk management processes aim to ensure that an acceptable level of nsk diversification 1s maintained across the Group on an
ongoing basis Limits are established and regularly monitered in respect of country exposures and major iIndustry groups, as well as for singte
counterparty exposures Control structures exist to ensure that appropnate imits are in place, exposures are monitored against these limits,
and appropriate actions are taken if irits are breached

Country Risk

Country nsk 15 the nisk of loss which is specifically attnibuted to events in a specific country (or a group of countnies) It includes pohitical
risk, exchange rate risk, economic nsk, sovereign risk and transfer & converubility (T&C) nsk In DBS, Country Risk 1s managed as part of
concentration risk management under the Risk Appetite Framework

T&C sk 1s the nsk that capital and foreign exchange controls may be imposed by government authorities that would prevent or matenally
impede the conversion of local currency inte foreign currency andfor transfer funds to non-residents A T&C nisk event could therefare lead to

a default of an otherwise solvent borrower The principles and approach in the management of transfer nsk are set out in the Group’s Country
Risk Management Framework The framework includes an internal T&C risk and sovereign risk rating system where the assessments are made
independent of business decisions T&C risk limits are set in accordance to the Group’s Risk Appetite Framework Limits for non-strategic
countnies are set using a model-based approach Limits for strategic countries are set based on country-specaific strategic business considerations
and the extent of potential loss versus the Risk Appetite There are active discussions amongst the senior management and credit management
in right-sizing transfer nsk exposures to take into account not only nisks and rewards, but also whether such exposures are in ine with the
strategic Intent of the Group All country limits are subject to Board approval

Stress Testing

The Group performs vanous types of credit stress tests which are directed by the regulators or driven by interna! requirements and
management Credit stress tests are performed at a portfolio or sub-portfolio level and are generally meant to assess the impact of changing
economc conditions on asset guality, earnings performance, and capital adequacy and liquidity

A credit stress test working group 1s responsible for developing and maintaining a robust stress testing program to include the execution of the
stress testing process and effective analysis of program results Stress test results are reported and discussed in Group Credit Risk Commuttee,
Risk ExCo and the BRMC

The stress testing program i1s comprehensive In nature spanning all major functions and areas of business It brings together an expert view of
the macro-economics, market, and portfolio Information with the specific purpose of driving model and expert onented stress testing results

The Group generally performs the following types of credit stress testing at a mintmum and others as necessary
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Pillar 1 Credit Stress Testing DBS conducts Pillar 1 credit stress test regularly as required by regulators Under the Pillar 1 credit
stress test, DBS assesses the impact of a mild stress scenario {at least 2 consecutive quarters of zero
GDP growth) on internal rating based (IRB) estimates {1 e Probability of Default, Loss Given Default
and Exposure at Default) and the impact on regulatory capital The purpose of the Pillar 1 credit
stress test Is to assess the robustness of internal credit nsk modeis and the cushion above mirimum
regulatory capitat

Pilar 2 Credit Stress Testing DBS conducts Pillar 2 credit stress test once a year as part of the ICAAP Under the Pillar 2 credit stress
test, DBS assesses the impact of stress scenarios, with different severity, on asset quality, earnings
performance, internal and regulatory capital The results of the credit stress tests will also form the
Input to the capital planning process under ICAAP The purpose of the Pillar 2 credit stress testing

Is to examine, In a ngorous and forward-looking manner, the possible events or changes In market
conditions that coutd adversely impact the Group

Industry-Wide Stress Testing DBS participates in the industry-wide stress test (IWST) undertaken annually This 1s a supervisory
driven stress test conducted as part of the supervisory process and ongoing assessment of financia!
stability by regulator Under the IWST, the Group is to assess the impact of adverse scenarios,
provided by the regulator, on asset quality, earnings performance, and capital adequacy

Cther Stress Testing DBS also conducts multiple independent credit stress tests and sensitivity analyses on Its portfolio
or a sub-portfolio to evaluate the impact of the economic environment or specific nisk factors to
identify vulnerabylities for the purpose of develeping and executing mitigating actions

PROCESSES, SYSTEMS AND REPORTS

The Group continues to invest in systems to support risk monitoring and reporting for both the wholesale and consumer businesses
The end-to-end credit process 1s constantly subject to review and improvement through various front-to-back initiatives involving the
Business, Risk Management, Operations and other key stakeholders

Day-to-day monitoring of credit exposures, portfolic performance and the external environment that may have an impact on credit risk
profiles 15 key to the Group’s philosophy of effective credit nsk management Risk reporting on credit trends, which may include industry
analysis, early warning alerts and key weak credits, 1s provided to the vanous credit committees, and key strategies and action plans are
formuiated and tracked

Credit control functions ensure that credit risks are being taken and mantained in compliance with Group-wide credit policies and guidelines
These functions ensure proper activation of approved limits, ensure appropriate endorsement of excesses and policy exceptions, and monitor
compliance with credit standards and credit covenants established by management and regulators

An independent credit risk review team conducts regular reviews of credit exposures and judgmental credit risk management processes

It also conducts independent validation of internal credit nisk rating processes on an annual basis These reviews provide senior management
with objective and timely assessments of the effectiveness of credit nsk management practices and ensure Group-wide policies, internal
rating madels and guidelines are being adopted consistently across different business units including relevant subsidiaries

Non-Performing Assets

The Group classifies 1ts credit facilities as ‘Performing Assets’ or ‘Non-Performing Assets’ (NPA) In accordance with the MAS’ Notice to Banks
No 612 “Credit Files, Grading and Provisioning” (Notice 612) These guidelines require the Group to categonse its credit portfolios according
to 1ts assessment of a borrower’s ability to repay a credit facility from the borrower’s normal sources of income There are five categones of
assets as follows
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Classification Description

Performing Assets

Pass grade Indicates that the timely repayment of the outstanding credit faciities 15 not in doubt

Special mentton grade Indicates that the credit faciliies exhubit potential weaknesses that, if not corrected in a timely manner,
may adversely affect future repayments and warrant close attention by the Group

Classified or NPA

Substandard grade Indicates that the credit faciities exhibit definable weaknesses either in respect of business, cash fiow or
financial position of the borrower that may jecopardise repayment on existing terms

Doubtfu! grade Indicates that the credit facilities exhibit severe weaknesses such that the prospect of full recovery of
the outstanding credit facilities 1s questionable and the prospect of a loss is high, but the exact amount
remains undeterminable

Loss grade indicates the amount of recovery 1s assessed to be insigruficant

The linkage between the above MAS categones and the Group's internal ratings i1s shown in Section 5 5

Credit facilities are classified as restructured assets when the Group grants concessions to a borrower because of deterioration 1n the financial
position of the borrower or the tnability of the borrower to meet the onginal repayment schedule A restructured credit faality (s dassified into
the appropnate non-performing grade depending on the assessment of the financial condition of the borrower and the ability of the borrower
to repay based on the restructured terms Such credit facilities are not returned to the performing status until there are reasonable grounds

to canctude that the borrower will be able to service all future princtpal and interest payments on the credit facility in accordance with the
restructured terms

Please refer to Note 2 11 to the Financial Statements on page 119 for the Group’'s accounting policies on the assessment of specific and
general allowances for credit losses In general, specific allowances are recognised for defaulting credit exposures rated sub-standard and
below The breakdown of NPA for the Group according to Notice 612 requirements by loan grading and industry and the related amounts
of specific allowances recogrised can be found m Note 41 2 to the Financial Statements on page 165 A breakdown of Group’s past due
loans can also be found in the same note

When required, the Group will take possession of collateral it holds as securities and will dispose of them as soon as practicable, with

the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding ndebtedness A breakdown of collateral held for NPA 1s shown in Note 41 2 to the Financial
Statements on page 166 Repossessed collateral 1s classified in the balance sheet as other assets The amounts of such other assets for 2013
and 2012 were not materal

5.3 CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

Collateral

Where possible, the Group takes collateral as a secondary recourse to the borrower Collateral includes cash, marketable securies, properties,
trade recevables, inventory and equipment and ather physical and financial collateral The Group may also take fixed and floating charges on
the assets of borrowers It has put in place policies to determine the ehgibility of collateral for credit nsk mitigation, which include requinng
specific collaterals to meet minsmum operational requirements in order to be considered as effective sk mitigants

When a collateral arrangement is in place for financial market counterpartues covered under market standard documentation (such as Master
Repurchase Agreements and International Swaps and Derivatives Association {ISDA) agreements), collateral received 1s marked to market on a
frequency mutually agreed with the counterparties

The Group 15 reguired to post additional collateral in the event of a raung downgrade As at 31 December 2013, for a one notch downgrade of
its Standard & Poors Ratings Services and Moody's Investors Serwices ratings, the Group would have to post addrtional collateral amounting to
SGD 363 million and SGD 63 million respectively
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Collateral taken for commercial banking is revalued penodically, depending on the type of collateral While real estate properties constitute the
largest percentage of collateral assets, the Group generally considers the collateral assets to be diversified

Helping our customers to restructure repayment liabilities, In times of difficulty, 1s our preferred approach However, should the need arise,
expeditious disposal and recovery processes are in place for disposal of collaterals held by the Group The Group also maintains a panel of
agents and sohcitors for the expeditious disposal of non-hquid assets and specialized equipment

Other Risk Mitigants

The Group manages its credit exposure from denvatives, repo and other repo-style transactions by entering into netting and collateral
arrangements with counterparties where it 15 appropnate and feasible to do so The credit risk associated with outstanding contracts with
positive mark to market 1s reduced by master netting arrangements to the extent that if an event of default accurs, all amounts with a single
counterparty in a netting-eligible junisdiction are settled on a net basis

The Group may also enter into agreements which govern the posting of collateral with dervative counterparties for credit nsk mitigation (e g
Credit Support Annexes under ISDA master agreements) These are governed by internal guidelines with respect to the eligibility of collateral
types and the frequency of collateral calls

In addition, the Group also uses guarantees as credit risk mitigants While the Group may accept guarantees from any counterparty, It sets
internal thresholds for considenng guarantors to be eligible for credit nisk migation

54 CREDIT RISK IN 2013

Concentration Risk

Geographically, our exposure remains predorninantly in our home market of Singapore accounting for 41% of the portfolio Qur exposure to
customers in Greater China ex-Hong Kong has grown steadily over the years as we continue to rebalance the geographic mix of our business
and accounts for 20% of the overall portfolio by the end of 2013 We continue to look for opportunities to diversify out of the home market
Qur overall exposure 15 well distributed across various industries with General Commerce and Financial Institutions as the largest contributors

In the wholesale portfolio

Industry Concentration Geographical Concentration

'

A

7% -©

B Manufacturing

* Bulding and construction
M Housing loans

M General commerce

B Transportation storage
& communications

B Finanaal Instituirans, Investment
and holding comparues

M Government

B Professionals and private indviduals
(excluding housing loans)

B Others

n Singapore

M Hong Kong

B Rest of Greater China

B south and South-East Asia
Rest of the world

Please refer to Note 41 4 to the Financial Statements on page 167 for the Group’s breakdown of concentration of credit nisk
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Non-Performing Assets

NPA (SGD miliion) NPL Ratio (%)
so000[ Ts
4219
3750
2 500
1250
0

2009 2010 201 2012 2013

The Group's NPA have generally been on a declining trend since 2009 This reflects the generat improvement in the regional and global
economic situation However, NPA crept up in 2013, largely due to stress on the Group's portfolio in India driven by the adverse macro-
economic environment in the country which had caused some of our customers to encounter hiquidity stress, leading to more downgrades
To some extent, the increase in the NPA In 2013 was also due to the early recognition and classification of some potential problem assets
as non-defaulting NPA

Corresponding improvements in the Group’s Non-Performing Loan (NPL} Ratio have also been noted, improving from 2 9% in 2009 1o 1 2%
n 2012 In 2013, despite the increase in NPA, NPL Ratio remained relatively stable at 1 1%, cushioned by healthy growth in the loan portfolio

55 INTERNAL CREDIT RISK MODELS

The Group adopts rating systems for the different asset classes under Internal Ratings Based Approach {(IRBA)} There 15 a robust governance
process for the development, independent validation and approval of a credit risk model The models are placed through a ngorous review
process prior to endorsement by the Group Credit Risk Committee and the Risk £xCo and have to be approved by the BRMC before use

The key nisk measures generated by the internal credit risk rating models to quantify regulatory capital include probability of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD} For portfolios under the Foundation IRBA, the supervisory LGD estimates are applied For its
Advanced IRBA portfolios, the Group uses internal estimates  In addition, the ratings from the credit models are used as the basts to support
the underwniting of credit, monitor the performance of the portfalios and determine business strategies

To ensure the adequacy and robustness of these rating systems on an engaing basis, performance monitonng 1s run regularly with results
reported to the Group Credit Risk Committee, the Risk ExCO and the BRMC on a periodic basis The monitoring program serves ta highlight
matenal detenoration in the credit nsk systerms for management attention In addition, an independent nsk urut conducts formal validations
annually for the respective rating systems The valdation processes are also subject to an independent review by Group Audit
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551 Retaill Exposure Models

Retail portfolios are categorised into asset classes under the Advanced IRBA, namely residential mortgages, qualifying revolving retail exposures
and other retail exposures, including vehicle loans extended to indimduals

Within each asset dass, exposures are managed on a portfolio basis Each account 1s assigned to a nisk pool, taking into consideration factors
such as borrower charactenistics and collateral type Loss estimates are based on histoncal default and realised losses withuin a defined period
The definition of default 1s apphed at the level of a partrcutar facility, rather than at the level of the obligor

Business-speaific credit nsk policies and procedures including underwriting critena, sconing models, approving authorrties, frequency of asset
quality and business strategy reviews, as well as systems, processes and technigues to monitor portfolio performance aganst benchmarks are
in place Credst nsk models for secured and unsecured portfolios are used to update the risk level of each loan on a monthly basis, reflecting
the broad usage of risk models in portiolio quality reviews

552 Wholesale Exposure Models

Wholesale exposures are assessed under the Foundation IRBA The nsk ratings for the wholesale exposures {other than securitisation exposures)
have been mapped to Iikely corresponding external rating equivalents A description of the rating grades 1s provided in the table to give a
qualitative explanation of the nsk benchmarks

Soverelgn exposures are risk rated using internal nisk rating models and guidelines in line with IRBA portfolios Country-specific macroeconomi¢
risk factors, political risk factors, social nisk factors and Lgquidity nsk factors are reviewed cbjectively in the sovereign rating models to assess the
sovereign credit nisk 1in a disciplined and systematic approach

Bank exposures are assessed using a bank rating model covering various credit nsk factors such as capital levels and liquidity, asset quality,
earnings, management and market sensitvity The nisk ratings derived are benchmarked against external credit nisk ratings to ensure that the
internal rating systems are well aligned and appropnately calibrated

Large corporate credits are assessed using approved models and reviewed by designated credit approvers Credit factors considered in the nisk
assessment process include the counterparty’s financial standing and specific non-quantitative factors such as industry risk, access to funding,
market standing and management strength

The counterparty risk rating assigned to smaller business borrowers 1s primarily based on the counterparty’s financal position and strength

Credit ratings under the IRBA portfalios are, at a mimimum, reviewed on an annual basis unless credit conditions require more frequent

assessment The counterparty risk rating process s reinforced by the facility nisk rating system, which considers other exposure nsk miigants,

such as collateral and third party guarantees

A default 15 considered to have occurred with regard to a particular obligor when either or both of the two followtng events have taken place

»  Subjective default Obligor 1s unlikely to pay its credit obligations in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security
(f held)

+ Technical default Obligor 15 past due more than 90 days on any credit obligation to the Group

This 15 consistent with the guidance provided under the MAS' Notice to Banks No 637 “Notice on Risk Based Capital Adequacy Requirements
for Banks incorporated in Singapore” (Notice 637)
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A description of the internal ratings used and corresponding external ratings and MAS classification for the vartous portfolios 1s as follows

Grade (ACRR)

Description of Rating Grade

Classification

Equivalent
External

MAS Classification

| PD Grade 1
|

Taking Into account the impact of relevant
economic, social or geopolitical conditions, capacity
to meet its financial commitment 1s exceptional

Exceptional

Rating

Passed

PD Grade 2

Taking into account the impact of the relevant
economic, social or geopolitical conditions, capacity
to meet 1ts financial commitment 1s excellent

Excellent

Al AA, Al-

Passed

PD Grade 3

More susceptible to adverse ecanomig, social,
geopolitical condiions and other circumstances
Capacity to meet its financtal commitment I1s strong

Strong

A+, A, A-

Passed

PD Grade
AA/4B

Adeguate protection agamnst adverse economic,
social or geopalitical cenditions or changing
crcumstances More likely to lead to a weakened
capaaty of the obhgor to meet 1ts financial
commitment

Good

BBB+/BBB

Passed

PD Grade 5

Relatively worse off than an obligor rated “4B*
but exhibits adequate protection parameters

Sauisfactory

BBB-

Passed

' PD Grade
BA/BB

Satisfactory capacity to meet its financial
commitment but capacity may become nadequate
due to adverse business, financial, economic,
soctal or geopolitical conditions and changing
circumstances

Acceptable

BB+/BB

Passed

PD Grade
TA/7B

Marginal capacity to meet its financal commitment
but capacity may become inadequate or uncertain
due to adverse business, financial, economic,

socal or geopolitical conditions and changing
arcumstances

Marginal

BB-

Passed

' PD Grade 8A

Sub-margwnal capacity to meet its financial
commitment Adverse business, finanaal, or
economic conditions will likely impair the obligor’s
capacity or wilhngness ta meet its financial
commutment

Sub-Marginal

B+

Passed

| PD Grade
88/8C

Low capacity to meet its financial commitment
Adverse business, financial, or econemic conditions
will likely imparr the obligor's capacity or willingness
to meet 1ts financral commitment

Special Caution

B/B-

Speaal
Mention

Performing
Assets

‘ PD Grade 9

Vulnerable to non-payment and 1s dependent
upon favourable business, financial, and economic
condions for the obligor to meet s financial
commitment bikely to have littte capacity to meet
its financial commitment under adverse conditions

Sub-
Performing

CCe-C

Sub-Standard
{Non-
Defaulting)

| PD Grade 10

and Above
|
L

An obhgor rated '10 and above 15 in default
(as defined under Notice 637)

Default

Sub-Standard
and Below
(Defaulting)

Classified
or NPA
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553 Specalised Lending Exposures

Specialised lending IRBA portfolios, consisting of income-producing real estate, project finance, object finance, hotel finance and commodities
finance, adopt the supervisory slotting cnteria specified under Annex 7v of Notice 637 The supervisory slotting criteria guidelines under the
supervisory rating categories are used to determine the nsk weights to calculate the credit nsk-weighted exposures

554 Securitisation Exposures

The Group I1s not active in secuntisation activities that are motivated by credit risk transfer or other strategic considerations As a result, the
Group does not securitise its own assets, nor does It acquire assets with a view to securitising them

The Group arranges secuntisations for chents and earns fees for arranging such transactions and placing the secunties issued into the market
These transactions do not involve special purpose entities that are controlled by the Group For transactions that are not underwritten, no
securitisation exposures are assumed as a direct consequence of arranging the transactions Any decision to invest in any such arranged
transaction 1s subject to independent nsk assessment Where the Group provides an underwriting commitment, any securitisation exposure
ansing will be held in the trading book to be traded or sold down 1n accordance with internal policy and nisk imits In addition, the Group does
not provide implicit support for any transactions 1t structures or (in which it has invested

The Group has processes in place to monitor the credit nsk of the Group's secunitisation exposures

«  Exposures to chent asset-backed securitisations
The Group invests in clients’ secuntisation transactions from time to time, and this may include secuntisation transactions arranged by either
the Group or by other parties The Group may also act as iquidity facility provider, working capital faciity provider or swap counterparty
Such exposures require the approval of the independent risk function prior to being assumed and are subject to regular risk review
thereafter, taking into account the underlying risk characteristics of the assets

» Investment in collateralised debt obiigations and asset-backed securitisations
The Group continues to hald certaen investmenits in collateralised debt abligations (CDQs) and asset-backed securitisations that were
made before 2008 Allowances for credit fosses have been made for the total exposures arsing from investments in CDOs The remaining
exposures are reviewed regularly by the independent nisk function Qther than these legacy exposures, the Group has invested in asset-
backed securitisations (n order to meet policy lending requirements in a certain junsdiction They require the approval of the independent
nsk function prior to being assumed and are subject to regular risk review thereafter, taking into account the underlying nisk charactenstics
of the assets

555 Credit Exposures Falling Outside of Internal Credit Risk Models

The Group applies the Standardised Approach (SA) for portfolios which are ndividually immatenal in terms of both size and nisk profile and for
transitioning portfolios These portfolios include

* IRBA-transitioning retail and wholesale exposures
* |RBA-exempt retall exposures
* [RBA-exempt wholesale exposures

The transitioning retail and wholesale exposures are expected to transit to the Advanced IRBA and Foundation IRBA respectively over the next
few years, subject to certification by MAS In the meantime, the SA has been applied

The portfolios under the SA are subject to the Group’s overall governance framework and credit risk management practices Under this
framework, the Group continues to monitor the size and risk profile of these portfolios and will lock to enhance nisk measurement processes
should these risk exposures become matenal

The Group uses external ratings for credit exposures under the SA, where relevant, and the Group only accepts ratings from Standard & Poors,
Moody's and Fitch in such cases The Group follows the process prescribed in Notice 637 1o map the ratings to the relevant sk weights
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6 MARKET RISK

61 MARKET RISK IN DBS

The Group's exposure to market risk 1s categorised into

* Trading portfolios Arnsing from positions taken for (1) market-making, (1) client-facilitation and (1) benefiting from market opportunities

= Non-trading portfolios Arnsing from () posiitons taken to manage the interest rate nsk of the Group’s retall and commercial banking
assets and liabilities, (1) equity mvestments cornprising of investments held for yield andfor long-term capital gains, (i) strategic stakes in
entities and (v} structural foreign exchange nisk arising mainly from the Group's strategic investments which are denominated in currencies
other than the Singapore dollar

62 MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT AT DBS

The Group's approach to market nsk management 1s formulated on the following building blocks

Framework Policies Risk Methodologies Processes, Systems
and Reports

FRAMEWORK

The Market Risk Framewaork, approved by the BRMC, sets out the Group's overall approach towards market nsk management

POLICIES

The Core Market Risk Policy {CMRP) establishes the base standards for market nisk management within the Group The Policy Implementation
Guidance and Reguirements (PIGR) complements the CMRP and sets out guidance and reguirements with mare details for specific subject
matiers Both CMRP and PIGR facilitate the \dentification, measurement, control, monitoring and reporting of market risk In a consistent

manner within the Group

RISK METHODOLOGIES

The Group’s market risk appetite framework links market nisk EC by & multiplier to Tail Value-at-Risk (TVaR) metric as a tocl to monitor and hmit
market risk exposures TVaR, or more commonly referenced as Expected Shortfall, 1s calculated using the historical simuiation VaR approach and
averaging the losses beyond the 95% confidence interval, over a cne-day holding period TVaR 1s supplemented by risk control metrics such as
sensitivities to nisk factors and loss tnggers for management action

The Group conducts backtesting o verify the predictiveness of the VaR model Backtesting compares VaR calculated for positions at the close
of each business day with the revenues which actually arise on those posiiions on the following business day The backtesting revenues exclude
fees and commussions, and revenues from intra-day trading For backtesting, VaR at the 99% confidence interval and over a one-day holding
period I1s derived from the same TvaR paotential toss distribution

VaR models such as histoncal simulation VaR permit the estimation of the aggregate portfolio market nsk potential loss due to a range of
market rnisk factors and instruments VaR models have limitations which include but are not imited to (1) past changes in market nisk {factors may
not provide accurate predictions of the future market movements and (i) may understate the nsk ansing from severe market risk related events

To monitor the Group’s vulnerability to unexpected but plausible extrerne market risk related events, the Group has implemented an extensive
stress testing policy for market risk where regular and multiple stress tests were run covering trading and non-trading pertfolios through a
combination of historical and hypothetical scenanios deprcting nsk factors movement
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TVaR is the key nsk metric used to manage the Group's assets and labilities” except for credit spread nisk under Loans and Recervables where it
is under the credit framework The Group manages banking baok interest rate risk ansing from mismatches in the interest rate profile of assets,
liabilities and capital nstruments (and associated hedges), including basis risk ansing from different interest rate benchmarks, interest rate re-
pricing nisk, yield curve risks and embedded optionality Behavioural assumptions are applied in managing the interest rate risk of banking book
deposits with indeterminate maturties

Credit denivatives are used In the trading book with single name or index underlyings to support business strategy in bullding a regional Fixed
Income franchise The Group actively momitors its counterparty credit nsk in credit dervative contracts More than 90% of the gross notional
value of the Group’s credtt derivative positions as at 31 December 2013 1s to 13 large, established names with which the Group mantains
collateral agreements

PROCESSES, SYSTEMS AND REPORTS

Robust internal control processes and sysiems are designed and implemented to support the Group’s appreach for market risk management
Additionally, regular reviews of these contral processes and systems are conducted These reviews provide senior management with objective
and timely assessments of the control processes and systems’ appropnateness and effectiveness

The day-to-day market risk monitoring, control and analysis 1s managed by the RMG Market and Liguidity Risk unit — an independent market
rnisk management function that reports to the CRO This group compnises nsk control, nsk analytics, production and reporting teams

63 MARKET RISK IN 2013
The Group leve! TVaR considers both trading and non-trading portfolios The Group level TVaR is tabulated below, showing the perod-end,

average, high and low TVaR

1Jan 2013 to 31 Dec 2013
In SGD mullion As at 31 Dec 2013 Average High Low

Total 87 66 89 31

1Jan 2012 to 21 Dec 2012
In SGD million As at 31 Dec 2012 Average High Low

Total 40 52 62 38

The Group level TvaR as at 31 December 2013 was significantly higher than at 31 December 2012, due to (1) exceptional volatility of June-
August 2013 coming Into the one-year time senes data used in the TVaR calculation and (1) growth in the Group’s commercial loan book

The following table shows for Treasury's trading pontfolios, the perniad-end, average, high and low diversified TvaR and TVaR by nisk class

1Jan 2013 to 31 Dec 2013

In SGD million As at 31 Dec 2013 Average High Low
Dwversified 1 10 14 8
Interest Rates 9 9 " 7
Foreign Exchange 4 6 9 3
Equity 1 1 1 0
Credst Spread 4 4 5 3
Commodity 1 1 1 0
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1Jan 2012 to 31 Dec 2012

In SGD milhon As at 31 Dec 2012 Average High Low
Diverstfied 8 15 24 8
Interest Rates 6 10 15 6
Foreign Exchange 3 4 5 3
Equity 1 2 3 1
Credit Spread 5 11 19 5
Commodity 0 1 2 Y

With effect from fourth quarter 2013, the table excludes structural foreign exchange positions The deftnitions in this table have been realigned
1o follow the demarcation of the banking and trading books based on intent and in-use risk management measures based on TvaR The
structural foreign exchange positions are captured in non-trading book TVaR If the structural foreign exchange positions were to be included in
the above two tables, the diversified TVaR as of 31 Dec 2013 would be SGD 24 milhon (2012 SGD 14 million) The average, highest and lowest
TvaR would be SGD 20 million, SGD 26 miliion, SGD 13 million respectively (2012 SGD 20 mullion, SGD 30 million and SGD 13 million)

In the Group, the main nisk factors driving Treasury's trading portfolios in 2013 were interest rates, foreign exchange and credit spreads
Treasury's trading portfohos' average TVaR decreased by SGD 5 mullion (33%), contributed largely by credit spreads falling by SGD 6 million
(60%) Increased G7 exposures by the foreign exchange trading desk led to an increase in foreign exchange average TVaR by SGD 2 million
(50%) The diversification effect observed for 2013 (average of SGD 11 million} 1s similar to that observed for 2012 {average of SGD 13 million)

Treasury’s trading portfolio expenenced five back-testing exceptions 1n 2013 compared with none 1n 2012 The exceptions occurred in June
and July, when there was pronounced market volatihity

The key market nsk drivers of the Group's non-trading portfohios are SGD and USD interest rate positions The economic value impact of
changes in interest rates 1s simulated under vanous assumptions for the non-trading risk portfolio The simulated economic value changes

are negative SGD 288 muflion and SGD 532 muillion (2012 negative SGD 449 million and SGD 848 million) based on parallel shocks to all yield
curves of 100 basis points and 200 basis points respectively The reported figures are based on the worst case of an upward and downward
parallel shuft in the yield curves

LIQUIDITY RISK
71 LIQUIDITY RISK IN DBS

The Group's liguidity nsk anses from its obligations to honour withdrawals of deposits, repayments of borrowed funds at maturity, and
commitments to extend credit and support working capital needs

The Group seeks to manage its lguidity in a manner that ensures that its hquidity obhgations would continue to be honoured under normal
as well as adverse circumstances

72 LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT AT DBS

Liquidity Management and Funding Strategy

The Group strives to develop a diversified funding base with access to funding sources across retail and wholesale channels In particular, the
Group has continuously made inroads in growng, deepening and diversifying its deposit base, spanning retail, wealth management, corporate
and institutional customers across markets that 1t operates in Supplementing the deposit base, the Group continues 10 maintain access to
wholesale channels, to support the growth of its investor base, as well as to increase flexibility and reduce funding cost In capitalising on
business opportunities
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In deploying the funds, the Group aims to predominantly fund its lending activities via customer deposits and wholesale borrowings In the
event where market conditions lead to insufficient or profubitively expensive customer funding, flexibility 1s maintained to fund lending growth
with duration matched wholesale funding With increasing diversification of funding sources, optimising the mismatch in fund deployments
against sources with respect to pricing, size, currency and tenor remains challenging To this end, where practicable and transferable wrthout
loss, the Group actively makes use of the swap markets in the conversion of funds across currencies to deploy surplus funds across locations

n value

The Group Assets and Liabilities Committee regularly reviews the growth in loans and deposits, momentum in business actwities, market
competition, economic outlocks, market conditions and other factors that may affect hiquidity in the continual refinement of the Group's
funding strategy

Approach to Liquidity Risk Management
The Group’s approach to hquidity nsk management is formulated on the following buillding blocks

P
Framework Risk Methodologies rocesses, Systems
and Reports

FRAMEWORK

The Liquidity Risk Framework, approved by the BRMC, sets out the Group's overall approach towards hquidity nisk management The Framework
describes the range of strategies employed by the Group to manage 1ts iquidity These include mamtaining an adeguate counterbalancing
capacity {compnsing liquid assets, the capacity to borrow from the money markets as well as forms of managenal interventions that imprave
iquidity) to address potential cashflow shortfalls and maintaining diversified sources of iquidity In the event of a potential or actual cnsis, the
Group has n place a set of iquidity contingency and recovery plans to ensure that decisive actions are taken to ensure the Group maintains
adequate hquidity

POLICIES
The Core Liquidity Risk Policy establishes the baseline standards for hquidity nsk management within the Group Policies and guidance
documents communicate the base standards and detaled requirements throughout the Group and enhance the ability of the Group to

manage 1ts hquidity nsk

RISK METHODOLOGIES

The pnmary measure used to manage liquidity within the tolerance defined by the Board s the cashflow maturity mismatch analysis The
analysis 1s performed on a regular basis under normal and adverse scenarios, and assesses the adequacy of the counterbalancing capacity to
fund or mitigate any cashfiow shortfalls that may occur as forecasted in the cashflow movements across successive time bands To ensure that
hquidity 1s managed in line with the nisk appetite, core parameters underpinning the performance of the analysis, such as the types of scenarios,
the survival period and the minimum level of hquid assets, are pre-specified for monitoring and control at the Group Any occurrences of
forecasted shortfalls that cannot be covered by the counterbalancing capaaity would be escalated to the relevant committees for deliberation
and actions

Stress testing 1s performed mainly under the cashflow matunty mismatch analysis, and covers adverse scenarios involving shocks that are
general market and/or Group-specific In nature to assess the Group's vulnerability when run-offs in liabilities increase, rollovers of assets and/or
hquidity assets buffer reduce In addition, ad-hoc stress tests are performed as part of the Group's recovery ptan and ICAAP

Liguidity nisk control measures, such as hquidity-related ratios and balance sheet analysis, are complementary tools to the cashflow matunty
mismatch analysis and are performed regularly to obtain deeper insights and finer control over the quidity profile across the Group
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PROCESSES, SYSTEMS AND REPORTS

Robust internal control processes and systems underlie the overall approach to dentifying, measuring, aggregating, controlling and
monitoring hiquidity nisk across the Group

The day-to-day liguidity risk monitoning, control reporting and analysis are managed by the RMG Market and Liguidity Risk unit — an
independent liquidity risk managerment function that reports to the CRO This group comprises risk control, risk analytics, production
and reporting teams

73 LIQUIDITY RISK IN 2013

For the purpose of nsk management, the Group actively monitors and manages its liquidity profile based on the cashflow matunty
mismatch analysis

tn forecasting the cashflows under the analysis, behavioural profiling 15 necessary in cases where a product has indeterminate maturity or the
contractual matunty does not realistically reflect the expected cashflows An example would be matunty-indeterminate savings and current

account deposits which are generally viewed as a source of stable funding for commercial banks and consistently exhibited stability even under
historical pertods of stress

A conservative view 15 therefore adopted in the Group's behawvioural profiing of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments that have

extubited cashflow patterns that differ significantly from the contractual matunty profile shown under Note 42 1 of our Financial Statements on
page 169

The table below shows the Group’s behavioural net and cumulative matunty mismatch between assets and habilities over a 1-year penod under
a normal scenarto without incorporating growth projections

In 5GD mulhon® Less than 7 days 1 week to 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 to 6 months 6 months to 1 year
2013

Net hquidity mismatch 18,638 (2,642) 7,052 10,539 11,800
Cumulative mismatch 18,638 15,995 23,048 33,587 45,387
2012®

Net hquidity mismatch 18,180 {6,941) 2,199 8,134 2,321
Cumulative mismatch 18,190 11,249 13,448 21,582 23,903

{a) Positive indicates a position of hquidity surplus Negative indicates a iiquidity shortfall that has to be funded

{b) As the behavioural assumptions used to determine the matunity mismatch between assets and habities are updated from time to time, the hquidity mismatches may not
be directly comparable across past balance sheet dates

Net iguidity of the Group 1s abserved to have improved from end 2012, which is consistent with the Group's efforts in increasing its stable
sources of funds from deposit gathering and medium term notes issuances to support overall growth 1n customer loans

74 LIQUID ASSETS

In DBS, hquid assets are assets that are readily available and can be easily monetised to meet hquidity shortfalls under times of stress Such
assets are internally defined under the governance of the relevant oversight committees, taking into account asset class, issuer type and credit

rating, amongst other criteria, before they are reflected as available funds under the cashflow matunty mismatch analysis used to manage
hiquidity nsk within the risk tolerance

tn addition to the characteristics of the liquid assets, the treasury function within the Group should be able to operationally monetise the pool
of hquid assets to meet iquidity shortfalls under times of stress A key operational requirement 15 that the Group should only view as available
funds the liquid assets that are unencumbered *“Unencumbered” means free of legal, regulatory, contractual or other restrictions that may
impede the Group's ability to monetise the asset under times of stress
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In practice, iquid assets are maimntained in key locations and 1o different significant currency levels to ensure that operating entities in such
locations possess a degree of self-sufficiency to support business needs as weli as protect against contingencies The main portion of the
Group's liquid assets 15 centrally mamtained under DBS Bank to support hquichty needs in smaller overseas subsidiaries and branches Internally,
the Group sets on itself a requirement to maintain its pool of hquid assets above a minimum level as a source of contingent funds, taking into
account projected stress shortfalls under its cashflow maturity mismatch analysis and other factors

The table below shows the Group’s encumbered and unencumbered liquid assets by instrument and counterparty against other assets in the
same category under the balance sheet Figures are based on the carrying value as at the balance sheet daie

Liguid assets Others® Total
In SGD milhon Encumbered Unencumbered
2013
Cash and balances with central banks® 7,777 5,878 5,071 18,726
Placements with and loans to banks®™ - 8,576 31,24 39,817
Financial Investments'< 2,076 42,810 16,157 61,043
Total 9,853 57.264 52,469 119,586

(a) Unencumbered balances with central barks comprise holdings that are unrestricted and avaable overruight The encumbered portion represents the mandatory balances
hefd with central banks

(b) Liquid assets comprise nostro accounts and eligible certificates of deposits

(¢} Financial investments comprise government secuntties and treasury bills and bank and corporate secunties Liquid assets comprise securnties issued or guaranteed by
sovereigns and central banks and other corporate secunities that are internally assessed to be higquid under times of stress

{d) ‘Others’ refer to assets that are not recogrsed as part of the available pool of hiquid assets for hquidity management under stress

In addition to the above table, collateral receved in reverse repo transactions amounting to SGD 3,055 mullion are recognised for iquidity
management under stress

As can be observed from the table, the Group’s funding strategy in the normal course of 1ts business does not rely on collatensed wholesale
funding Instead, iquid assets are mantained as a source of contingent funds to meet potential shortfalls that may arise under times of stress,
as assessed under regulatory standards and the Group’s internal measures

75 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on its internal assessment and participatton in the Quantitative Impact Studies by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, the
Group 15 well-positioned to meet the minimum standards of the Basel Il iquidity-related requirements

8 OPERATIONAL RISK
81 OPERATIONAL RISK IN DBS

Operational nsk include processing errors, fraudulent acts, inappropnate behaviour of staff, vendors’ misperformance, system failure and
natural disasters Operational risk 15 inherent in most of the Group’'s businesses and activities

Our objective 15 to keep operational risk at appropriate levels, taking into account the markets the Group operates in, the characteristics of the
businesses as well as the competitive and regulatory environment the Group s subject to
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82 OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT AT DBS

The Group's approach to operational nisk management 1s formulated on the following bullding blocks

. . Processes, S_ s'te-rhs N
Framework Risk Methodologies y
and Reports

FRAMEWORK

The Operational Risk Management Framewaork (the “Framework ™), approved by the BRMC, has been developed with the objective to ensure
that operational risks within the Group are identified, monitored, managed and reported in a structured, systematic and consistent manner

POLICIES

A key component of the Framework 1s a set of Core Operational Risk Standards which provides guidance on the baseline controls to ensure a
controlled and sound operating environment Each new product or service introduced or outsourcing initiative 1s subject to a nsk review and
sign-off process where relevant risks are identified and assessed by departments independent of the nsk-taking unit proposing the product or
service Varnations of existing products or services and outsourcing initiatives are also subject to a similar process

Information Technology (IT) sk 1s managed in accordance to a Technology Risk Management Framework (which covers risk governance,
communication, monitoring, assessment, mitigation and acceptance), supported by a set of IT policies and standards, control processes and nsk
mitigation programs

Comphance risk 1s the risk of iImpairment to the Group's ability to successfully conduct its business as a result of any failure to comply with
applicable regulatary requirement, industry code or standard of professional conduct The Group Compliance Policy is a key tool to help
management, employees and stakeholders understand the Group's approach to complance risk, which includes the responsibility, guiding
principles and processes involved in managing compliance risk To address compliance nisk, the Group strongly believes in the need to inculcate
a strong comphance culture in its employees, mindset and DNA, and in 1ts processes and systems The Group seeks to establish a strong
compliance culture through the leaderstup of its Board and seruor management and aims to comply with the letter and spinit of the laws and
reguiatory standards in the environment in which 1t operates

The Group has a Fraud Management Policy which establishes minimum standards for its businesses and functional units to prevent, detect,
investigate and remediate against fraud and related events This Policy also establishes the components, key roles and the framework of the
Fraud Management Programme through which the standards are 1o be implemented on a unit and geographical level These standards aim to
provide end-to-end management of fraud and related issues for the Group

The Group Anti Money Laundering, Countenng the Financing of Terrarism and Sanctions Policy establishes minimum standards for the business
and functional units to mitigate and manage actual and/or potential exposure of the Group to money laundening, terronst financing, sanctions,
corruption, or other iflat finanaal activity The Pohicy also establishes accountabilities for the protection of the assets and reputation of the
Group and the interests of customers and shareholders
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RISK METHODOLOGIES

To manage and control operational nsk, the Framework encompasses vanous tools including control self-assessment, operational risk event
management and key nsk indicators monitoring Control self-assessment 15 used by each business or support unit to identify key operational
risk and assess the degree of effectweness of the internal contrals For those control 1ssues identified, the units are responsible to develop action
plans and track the timely resolution of these issues Operational nsk events are classified in accordance with Basel standards Such events,
including any significant incidents that may impact the Group's reputation, are required to be reported based on certain established thresholds
Key nsk indicators with pre-defined escalation triggers are employed to facilitate nsk monntoring in a forward looking manner

Major operational nsk mitigation programmes include Business Continuity Management and Global Insurance Programme A robust crisis
management and business continuity management program is in place within the Group to oversee the continuity of essential business services
during unforeseen events Types of incidents being managed include technology inaidents having enterprise-wide impact on essential banking
services, natural disasters with wide geographical area impact, safety-at-nsk incidents e g terronsm and other events leading to significant
business disruption Sensor management provides an attestation to the BRMC on an annual basis including the state of business continuity
readiness, extent of alignment to regulatory guidelines and disclosure of residual risks

To mitigate losses from specific unexpected and significant event nsks, the Group purchases group-wide insurance policies, under the Global
Insurance Programme, from third-party insurers These policies cover fraud and cvil hiability, property damage and general hability and directors’

and officers’ habiity

PROCESSES, SYSTEMS AND REPORTS

The Group has implemented a web-based system that supports multiple operational risk management processes and tools including operational
risk event reporting, control self-assessment, key risk indicators, tracking of issues or action plans and operational risk reparting

Units are responsible for the day-to-day management of operational risk in their products, processes, systems and activities in accordance with
the Framework and policies RMG Operational Risk prowides oversight and monitors the effectiveness of operational risk management, assesses
key operational risk 1ssues with units to determine the impact across the Group, and reports and/or escalates key operational risks to relevant
senior management and Board-level committees with recommendations on appropnate rnsk mitigation strategies

83 OPERATIONAL RISK IN 2013

Loss resulting from Operational Risk may result in reduced revenue or in settlement claims and or fines Claims and fines are recorded as
“Other Expenses” For the Financial Year 2013 we have not recorded any such losses that in themselves were material to the Group
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APPENDIX

General recommendations

11

Where have we disclosed this?

(in Risk Section unless otherwise stated)

1 Present all related nsk mformation together in any particular report Please refer to the table on page 75
2 Define the bank’s nsk terminology and nsk measures and present key parameter Sections 2,52,62,72,82
values used
3 Describe and discuss top and emerging risks, incorporating relevant information 1n Section 2
the bank’s external reports on a timely basis
4 Once the applicable rules are finalized, outline plans to meet each new key Not applicable
regulatory ratio, e g the net stable funding ratio, hquidity coverage ratio and The rules are not yet adopted in Singapore
leverage ratio and, once the applicable rules are in force, provide such key ratios

Risk governance and risk management strategies/business model

5 Summarise prominently the bank’s risk management organisation, processes and Section 4
key functions
& Provide a description of the bank's nsk culture, and how procedures and strategies Sectron 3
are applied to support the culture
7 Describe the key risks that anse from the bank’s business models and activities, Sections 1, 2 and 3
the bank’s risk appetite in the context of its business models and how the bank
manages such nisks
8 Describe the use of stress testing within the bank's risk governance and capital Sections32,52,62,72

frameworks Stress testing disclosures should provide a narrative overview of the
bank’s internal stress testing process and governance

Capital adequacy and risk-weighted assets

9 Provide minimum Pdlar 1 capital requirements, including capital surcharges for Refer to Pillar 3 disclosures published
G-SIBs and the application of counter-cyclical and capital conservation buffers or on DBS website
the mimimum internal ratio established by management
i
10 Summarise information contained In the composition of capital templates adopted Refer to Pillar 2 disclosures published

by the Basel Commitiee to provide an overview of the main components of capital,
including capital instruments and regulatory adjustments A reconaliation of the
accounting balance sheet to the regulatory balance sheet should be disclosed

on DBS website

11

Present a flow statement of movements since the prior reporting date 1n regulatory
capttal, including changes in common equsty tier 1, tier 1 and tier 2 capital

Refer to Pil'ar 3 disclosures published |
on DBS website \
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General recommendations Where have we disclosed this?

{(in Risk Section unless otherwise stated)

12 Qualitatively and quantitatively discuss capital planning within a more general Refer to Capital Management
1 discussron of management’s strategic planning, including a description of and Planning section

i management’s view of the required or targeted level of capital and how this

| will be established

R - — -
’ 13 Provide granular information to explain how nsk-weighted assets (RWAs) relate Not Implemented
to business activities and related risks
),.,
14 Present a table showing the capital requirements for each method used for Refer to Pillar 3 disclosures published

calculating RWAs for credit sk, including counterparty credrit nisk, for each Basel on DBS website
asset class as well as for major portfolios within those classes For market nsk and
operational nsk, present a table showing the capital requirements for each method
used for catculating them

15 Tabulate credit nsk in the banking book showing average probability of default (PD) | Refer to Pillar 3 disclosures published
and LGD as well as exposure at default (EAD), total RWAs and RWA density for on DBS website

Basel asset classes and major portfolios within the Basel asset classes at a suitable
level of granulanty based on internal ratings grades

16 . Present a flow staternent that reconciles movements In RWAs for the period for ' Not rmplemented
each RWA nisk type

17 Provide a narrative putting Basel Pillar 3 back-testing requirements into context, ‘ Refer to Pitlar 3 disclosures published
including how the bank has assessed model performance and validated 1ts models on DBS website

' against default and loss

i8 Describe how the bank manages its potential iquidity needs and provide a Sections 7 2,7 4
quantitative analysis of the components of the iquidity reserve held to meet these
needs, deally by providing averages as well as penod-end balances

19 Summarise encumbered and unencumbered assets in a tabular format by balance Section 7 4
| sheet categories, including collateral received that can be rehypothecated or

' otherwise redeployed This Is to facilitate an understanding of available and i

unrestricted assets to support potential funding and collateral needs

|

| .
120 Tabulate consolidated total assets, labilities and off-balance sheet commitments Section 7 4

I by remaining contractual maturrty at the balance sheet date Present separately ! Financial Statements Note 42 1
{1} senor unsecured borrowing (1) senior secured borrowing (separately for

! covered bonds and repos} and () subordinated borrowing Banks should provide
a narrative discussion of management's approach to determining the behavioural

charactenistics of financial assets and liabilities
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General recommendations

Where have we disclosed this?
(in Risk Section unless otherwise stated)

103

21

22

Discuss the bank's funding strategy, ncluding key sources and any funding
I concentrations, to enable effective insight into available funding sources, reliance
on wholesale funding, any geographical or currency risks and changes in thase

sources over time
'

Provide Information that facilitates users’ understanding of the linkages between
line items in the balance sheet and the iIncome statement with posittons included
in the traded market nisk disclosures {(using the bank’s primary nsk management
measures such as Value at Risk (VaR)) and non-traded market rnisk disclosures
such as nsk factor sensitivities, economic value and earnings scenarios

and/or sensitivities

Section 7 2

Section 6 2

23

Prowide further qualitative and quantitative breakdowns of significant trading and
non-trading market nisk factors that may be relevant to the bank’s portfolios beyond
interest rates, foreign exchange, commodity and equity measures

Sections 6 2,6 3

24

Provide qualitative and quantitative disclosures that describe significant market

risk measurement model limitations, assumptions, validation procedures, use of
proxies, changes In nisk measures and models through time and descriptions of the
reasons for hack-testing exceptions, and how these results are used to enhance the
parameters of the model

Sections 62, 6 3

25

Provide a description of the primary risk management techniques employed by

the bank to measure and assess the nisk of loss beyond reporied risk measures

and parameters, such as VaR, earnings or economic value scenario resuits, through
methods such as stress tests, expected shortfall, economic capital, scenario analysis,
stressed VaR or other alternative approaches The disclosure should discuss how
market iquidity honzons are considered and applied within such measures

Sections6 2,6 3

26 } Provide Information that facilitates users’ understanding of the bank’s credit risk Section 5 4
\ ' profile, including any significant credit nisk concentrations Financial Statements Note 41 4
|| |
27 ' Describe the policies for identifying impaired or non-performing loans, including ' Section 5 2
l | how the bank defines impaired or non-performing, restructured and returned-to-
' performing {cured) loans as well as explanations of loan forbearance policies | l
I
o
' 28 Sections 5 2,5 4

impatred loans in the penod and the allowance for loan losses Disclosures should
1 include an explanation of the effects of loan acquisitions on ratio trends, and
qualitative and quantitative information about restructured loans

Provide a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of non-performing or 1
|

Financial Statements Note 41 2

1
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General recommendations Where have we disclosed this?

{in Risk Section unless otherwise stated)

29 Provide a quantitative and qualitative analysis of the bank's counterparty credit risk Section 5 2
that anses from its denvatives transactions Financial Statements Note 37

30 Provide qualitative information on credit nsk mitigation, including collateral held for | Section 5 3
all sources of credit nsk and quantitative information where meaningful

3N Describe ‘other risk’ types based on management's dassifications and drscuss how Section 2
each one 1s identified, governed, measured and managed In addition to risks such
as operational nsk, reputational nsk, fraud nisk and legal risk, 1t may be relevant to
include topical nsks such as business continuity, regulatory complhance, technology,
and outsourcing

32 Discuss publicly known nsk events related to other nsks, including operational, Not applcable
regulatory compliance and legai risks, where matenal or potentially material loss
events have occurred Such disclosures should concentrate on the effect on the
business, the lessons learned and the resulting changes to risk processes already
implemented or In progress
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND PLANNING

OBJECTIVE

The capital management and planning process Is overseen by the Capital Committee which 1s chaired by the Chief Financiat Officer
Quarterly updates on the Group’s capital position are provided to the Board of Directors which s responsible for the Group's capital
management objective and capiial structure The Group’s capital management abjective 1s to maintan a strong capital position consistent
with regulatory requirements under the MAS” Notice to Banks No 637 “Notice on Risk Based Capital Adequacy Requirements for Banks
Incorporated in Singapore” (Notice 637) and the expectations of various stakeholders, 1 e , customers, investors and rating agencies This
objective 1s pursued while delivening returns to shareholders and ensuring that adequate capital resources are avallable for business growth
and investment opporturnities as well as adverse situations The Group seeks to pay sustainable dividends over tirme, in ine with its capital
management objective and fong-term growth prospects For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board has recommended a final
dwidend of SGD @ 30 per ordinary share, to which the Scrip Dividend Scheme 1s being applied, bringing the tetal ordinary dividend for

the year to SGD 0 58

PROCESS

The Group’s capital management abjective 15 articulated concretely as capital targets that are consistent with the need to support arganic

and norganic business growth 1n line with its strategic plans and risk appetite A key tool for capital planning 1s the annual Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Pracess (ICAAP) Through the ICAAP, the Group assesses its forecast capital supply and demand relative to its regulatary
and internal capital targets, under various scenanos, including stress scenarios of differing scope and sevenity, over a three-year horizon

The Group allocates caprtal capacity on two dimensions by business line and by entity Capital allocations by business line are set as part
of the budget process and monitared duning the year Return on regulatory capital i1s one of several metrics used to measure business
performance Capital allocations by entity seek to optimise the distribution of capital resources across the Group’s vanous entities, taking
into account the capital adequacy requirements imposed on each subsidiary in its respective junsdiction Capital 1s allocated to ensure that
each subsidiary 1s able to comply with regulatory requirements as It executes its business strategies in line with the Group strategy During
the course of the year, these subsidiaries did not experience any impediments to the distribution of dividends

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group manages Its capital structure within regulatory norms in order to optimise the cost and flexibility offered by various capital resources
In order to achieve this, the Group assesses the need and the opportunity to raise capital from the financia! markets

During the year, approximately six milion ordinary shares were 1ssued pursuant to the Scrip Dividend Scheme This added SGD 103 million to
share capital Refer to Note 32 to the Financial Statements for details on the movement of the Group's share capital and treasury shares during
the year ended 31 December 2013

The Group enhanced its capital position threugh an issue of perpetual capital securities in December 2013 These were 1ssued as consideration
to holders of non-Basel ll-compliant preference shares 1ssued in October 2010 by DBS Bank who successfully tendered therr preference

shares Through this capital management initiative, the Group has effectively retired, on a consolidated basis, SGD 805 million of capital
instruments ineligible under Basel Il rules Refer to Notes 31, 33 and 35 to the Financial Statements as well as the Pillar 3 Maimn Features

of Caprtal Instruments disclosure (http /A dbs cominvestor/preferenceshares/default aspx) for the terms of the capital instruments that
are nciuded In Eligible Total Capital
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The table below analyses the movement in Common Equity Tier 1, Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital during the pertod

In SGD milhon

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital
Opening amount"

Dividends paid

Issue of shares pursuant to Scrip Dividend Scheme

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options

Purchase of treasury shares

Cost of share-based payments

pProfit for the year (attnbutable to shareholders)

Movements In other comprehensive income, including available-for-sale revaluation reserves
Other, including regulatory adjustments and transitional arrangements

Closing amount

Common Equity Tier 1

Additional Tier 1 (AT1) Capital
Opening amount"

Issuance of perpetual capital securities
Movement in AT1 caprtal instruments 1ssued by fully-consclidated subsidianies that meet critenia for inclusion

Other, including regulatory adjustments and transiional arrangements

Closing amount

Teer 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capital
Opening amount"

Other, including regulatory adjustments and transitional arrangermnents

Closing amount

Total Capital

30,588

(1,376)
103
18
(28)
76
3,672

(772)
357

32,648
32,648

803
(405}
(398)

32,648

6,151
20

6,171
38,819

1/ Pro forma as at 31 Decemnber 2012, applyng MAS Notice 637 effective 1 January 2013
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
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The Group’s Comman Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratic (CAR), Tier 1 CAR and Total CAR as at 31 December 2013 were well above the
MAS minimum reguirements of 4 5%, 6 0% and 10 0% respectively The table below sets out the capital resources and capital adequacy ratios
of the Group as at 31 December 2013 The Group's Tier 1 and Total capital adequacy ratios declined year-on-year due to the reduced eligibility
of the Group’s preference shares and subordinated term debts, higher nsk-weights under Base! Il rules for exposures to finanaal institutions
and exposures to central counterparties, as well as new capital charges for over-the-counter derwatives Refer to ‘Five-Year Summary’ for the
historical trend of Tier 1 and Total CAR Refer to hitp /mww dbs comAnvestor/quarterlyresults/default aspx for the Group’s Pillar 3 Quantitative

Disclosures which set out details on the Group's nsk weighted assets (RWA)

in 5GD milhon 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012"
Share capital 9,607
Disclosed reserves and others 23,917
Regulatory adjustments due to insufficient Additonal Tier 1 capital (876)
Commoen Equity Tier 1 32,648
Additional Tier 1 capital instruments 4,144
Total requlatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital (4,144)
Tier 1 capital 32,648 30,196
Provisions elgible as Tier 2 capital 1,217
Tier 2 capital instruments 4,955
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital 1)
Total capital 38,819 36,831
Credrt RWA 188,124 173,969
Market RWA 35,092 27,827
Operational RWA 14,865 13,795
Total RWA 238,081 215,591

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) (%)

Common Equity Tier 1 137 13 5%
Ter 1 137 140
Total 163 171
Pro forma Common Equity Tier 1 under final rules effective 1 Jan 2018 119 118%
Mimimum CAR (%)

Common Equity Trer 1 45 NA
Tier 1 60 60
Total 100 00
Note

1/ With effect from 1 January 2013, Basel llf capital adequacy requirements came into effect in Singapore Changes due to Basel Hll affected both eligibie capital
and nsk-weighted assets Unless otherwse stated capital adeguacy disclosures refating to dates prior to 1 January 2013 are calculated in accordance with
the then prevaiing capital adequacy regulations and are thus not directly comparable to those pertaiing to dates from 1 january 2013

2/ Defmitron of Common Equety Tier 1 as at 1 January 2013 Risk-weighted assets mnclude Basel ift changes mitroduced 1 January 2013

3/ Risk-weighted assets include Basel il changes introduced 1 January 2013

NA Not Apphcable
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REGULATORY CHANGE

The Group has been required to comply with the Basel Committee for Banking Supervision’s Basel lil capital adequacy framework since
1 January 2013, as implemented by MAS under Notice 637

Notice 637 sets out a minimum Commaon Equity Tier 1 (CET1) CAR of 4 5% and a minimum Tier 1 CAR of 6 0% waith effect from 1 January 2013
These will Increase progressively to 6 5% and 8 0% respectively by 1 January 2015 The requirement for Total CAR remains unchanged at 10 0%
By 2015, the minimum capital requirements under Notice 637 are two percentage points higher than the Basel lll minima specified by the Basel
Commuttee of 4 5%, 6 0% and 8 0% for CET1, Twer 1 and Total CAR respectively

In ling with Basel ll, Notice 637 also includes a capital conservation buffer (CCB) and a countercyclical buffer The capital conservation buffer of
2 5% will be phased in from 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2019 The countercyclical buffer will be phased in from 1 January 2016 to 1 January
2019 The countercyclical buffer 1s not an ongoing requirement but only appled as and when specified by the relevant banking supervisors
These two buffers are to be mamntained in the form of CET1 capital

The table below summarises the minimum capital requirements under Notice 637

From 1 January 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Mimimum CAR %

CET1 (8) 45 55 65 65 65 65 65
CCB (b) - - - 0625 125 1875 25
CET1 including CCB (a) + (b) 45 55 65 7125 775 8 375 90
Tier 1 60 70 80 8625 925 9875 105
Total 100 100 100 10 625 1125 11875 125
Countercychcal Buffer - - - 0625 125 1875 25

in addition to changes in mimimum capital requirements, Basel lll also mandates various adjustments in the calculation of capital resources
These adjustments are being phased in from 1 January 2013 and are for items such as goodwill and investments exceeding certain thresholds
Basel Ill has also revised the cntena for the eligibility of caprtal instruments The Group’s existing preference shares and subordinated

term debts are ineligible in the first instance as capital instruments under Basel I rules as they lack provisions for conversion to ordinary
shares or write-down at the point of non-viability as determined by the MAS, but are accorded partial recognition under the Basel Il
transitional arrangements

The Group's CET1 CAR as at 31 Decernber 2013 was 13 7% On a pro forma "look-through” basss, t e, after all adjustments that will
eventually be taken against CET1 by 1 January 2018, the Group’s CET1 CAR was 11 9% This comfortably exceeded the eventual minimum
CET1 CAR reguirement under Notice 637 of 9 0% effective on 1 January 2019 The Group 1s also well-positioned to comply with forthcoming
leverage ratio requirements As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s leverage ratio stood at 7 2%, based on the Basel Committee’s final rules
1ssued In January 2014 This was well above the mimmum 3% level being tested during the Basel Commuttee’s 2013-2017 leverage ratio
parallel run

The Basel Committee has developed an ndicator-based methodology for identifying global systemically important banks (G-SIBs) on which
hugher loss absorbency requirements wall be imposed While the Group 1s not a G-SIB, 1t ts required to disclose the 12 indicators which are
published en the Group website (hitp //www dbs com/investor/quarterlyresults/default aspx)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

DBS Group Holdings Ltd and #ts Subsidiaries

for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2013

In $ millions Note 2013 2012
Income
Interest iIncome 7.986 7,621
Interest expense 2,417 2,336
Net interest income S 5,569 5,285
Net fee and commission income 6 1,885 1,579
Net trading income 7 1,095 689
Net income from investment securities 8 276 419
Cther income 9 273 542
Total income 9,098 8,514
Expenses
Employee benefits 10 2,065 1,888
Other expenses 11 1,853 1,726
Allowances for credit and other losses 12 770 47
Total expenses 4,688 4,031
Share of profits of associates 79 124
Profit before tax 4,489 4,607
Income tax expense 13 615 588
Net profit 3.874 4,019
Attnibutable to
Shareholders 3,672 3,809
Non-controlling interests 202 210
3,874 4,019
Basic earnings per ordinary share ($) 14 150 157
Diluted earnings per ordinary share (%) 14 148 156

(The notes on pages 115 to 175 as well as the Risk Management section on pages 75 to 104 form part of these financial statements)
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DBS Group Holdings Ltd and its Subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2013
In $ millions 2013 2012
Net profit 3,874 4,019
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations (87) (110
Share of other comprehensive Income of associates {4) (3)
Avallable-for-sale financial assets and others
Net valuation taken to equity (542) 622
Transferred 1o iIncome statement (176) (337)
Tax on items taken directly to or transferred from equity 11 (44)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (768) 128
Total comprehensive income 3,106 4,147
Attributable to
Shareholders 2,900 3,948
Non-controlling interests 206 199
3,106 4,147

(The notes on pages 115 to 175 as well as the Risk Management section on pages 75 to 104 form part of these financial statements)
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DBS Group Holdings Ltd and 1ts Subsidiaries
at 31 December 2013
Group Company

In $ millions Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
Assets

Cash and balances with central banks 16 18,726 17,772

Government securities and treasury bilis 17 27,497 36,426

Due from banks 39,817 29,406

Dernwvatives 37 17,426 17,280

Bank and corporate securities 18 33,546 25,448

Loans and advances to customers 19 248,654 210,519

Other assets 21 8,925 8,702

Associates 25 1,166 1,236

Subsidianes 23 - - 12,547 11,159
Properues and other fixed assets 26 1,449 1,442

Goodwill 27 4,802 4,802

Total assets 402,008 353,033 12,547 11,159
Liabilities

Due to banks 13,572 15,351

Deposits and balances from customers 28 292,365 253,464

Derwatives 37 18,132 17,532

Other habilities 29 11,594 11,429 1 8
Other debt securities 30 23,115 13,754

Subordinated term debts 3 5,544 5,505

Total habilities 364,322 317,035 1 8
Net assets 37,686 35,998 12,536 11,151
Eguity

Share capital 32 9,676 §.542 9,704 9,574
Other equity instruments 33 803 - 803 -
Other reserves 34 6,492 7.229 136 101
Revenue reserves 34 17,262 14,966 1.893 1,476
Shareholders’ funds 34,233 31,737 12,536 11,151
Non-contreiling interests 35 3,453 4,261

Total equity 37,686 35,998 12,536 11,151

(The notes or pages 115 to 175 as well as the Risk Management section on pages 75 to 104 form part of these financial statements)
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DBS Group Holdings Ltd and its Subsidiaries
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

far the year ended 37 December 2013

Other

MNon-
Share equity Other Revenue cantmll?ng Total

In $ millions capital nstruments reserves reserves Total interests equity
2013

Balance at 1 fanuary 9,542 - 7.229 14,966 31,737 4,261 35,998
issue of shares upon exercise of share options 138 18 18
Cost of share-based payments 76 76 76
Reclassification of reseives upon exercise of share options 4 {4) - -
Draw down of reserves upon vesting of performance shares 37 37 - -
Issue of shares pursuant to Scrip Dvidend Scheme 103 103 103
Purchase of treasury shares (28) (28) {28)
Issue of perpetual capital securities 803 803 803
Purchase of preference shares of a subsidiary - (805) (805)
Final dividends paid for previous year (684) {634) (684)
Interim dwidends paid for current year (692) {692) (692)
Dwrdends paid to non-controlling interests - (209) (209)
Total comprehenswe income (772) 3,672 2,900 206 3,106
Balance at 31 December 9,676 803 6,492 17,262 34,233 3,453 37,686
2012

Balance at 1 January 9,196 - 7,075 12,523 28,754 4,275 33,069
Issue of shares upon exerase of share options 25 25 25
Cost of share-based payments 68 68 68
Reclassification of reserves upon exercise of share options 2 (2) - -
Draw down of reserves upon vesting of performance shares 51 (51) - -
Issue of shares pursuani to Scnp Dividend Scheme 268 268 268
Final dwidends paid for previous year 677) 677) 677)
Interim diwvidends paid for current year (689) {689) {689)
Dwidends paid to non-controlling interests - (213) (213)
Total comprehensive income 139 3,809 3,948 199 4,147
Balance at 31 December 9,542 - 7,229 14,966 31,737 4,261 35,998

(The notes on pages 115 to 175 as well as the Risk Management section on pages 75 to 104 form part of these financial statements)
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DBS Group Holdings Ltd and its Subsidiartes

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2013

in $ milhons 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit 3,874 4,019

Adjustments for non-cash items

Aflowances for credit and other losses 770 417

Depreciation of properties and other fixed assets 214 179

Share of profits of asscciates (79) (124)
Net gain on disposal (net of write-off) of properties and other fixed assets (44} (42}
Net income from investment secunties {276) (419)
Net gain on disposal of asscclate {221) (450)
Income tax expense 615 588

Profit before changes in operating assets and liabihties 4,853 4,168

Increase/(Decrease) 1n

Due 1o banks {1,779) (2,907
Deposits and balances from customers 38,901 18,288

Gther habilities 716 (6,614)
Other debt securities and borrowings 9,323 160

{Increase}/Decrease in

Restricted balances with central banks (998) (366)
Government secunties and treasury bills 8,540 (5,720)
Due from banks (10,427} (2,237}
Loans and advances to customers (38,845) {16,208)
Bank and corporate securities (8,117) (253)
Other assets (312) 5,368

Tax pald (562) (587)
Net cash generated from/{used m) operating actwmes (1 1,293 (6,508)
Cash flows from investing activities

Dmdends from associates 52 82

Purchase of properties and other fixed assets (227) (338)
Proceeds fram disposal of propertes and other fixed assets 63 90

Acguisition of nterest In associates (65) {566)
Proceeds from disposal of interest in associate 425 757

Net cash generated from investing actlvmes (2) 248 25

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in share capital 121 295

Payment upon matunty of subordinated term debts - (2,575
issue of subordinated term debts - 2,943

Purchase of treasury shares (28) -
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company {1.376) (1,366)
Dwidends paid to non-controlling interests (209) (213}
Issue of perpetual capital secunities 803 ~
Purchase of preference shares of a subsidiary {805) ~
Net cash used in financing actlwtles (3) {1,494) 916)
Exchange translation adjustments (4) (91) (99)
Net change In cash and cash equivalents (1)+(2)+(3)+(4) {44) (7,898)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 10,993 18,891

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (Note 16) 10,949 10,993

(The notes on pages 115 to 175 as well as the Risk Management section on pages 75 to 104 form part of these financial statements)
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DBS Group Holdings Ltd and its Subsidianes

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2013

These Notes are integral to the financal statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 were authonsed for issue by the directors
on 13 February 2014

1 DOMICILE AND ACTIVITIES

The Company, DBS Group Holdings Ltd, 1s incorporated and
domiciled 1n the Republic of Singapore and has its registered office
at 12 Marina Boulevard, Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower Three,
Singapore 018982

The Company 1s listed on the Singapore Exchange

The Company 15 principally an investment holding company

Its main wholly-owned subsidiary 1s DBS Bank Ltd {the Bank),
which 1s engaged 1n a range of commercial banking and financial
services, principally in Asia

The financial statements relate 1o the Company and its subsidiaries
{the Group) and the Group's interests in associates and joint ventures

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Compliance with Singapore Financial Reporting

Standards (FRS)

The financial statements of the Company and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance

with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) and related
Interpretations promulgated by the Accounting Standards Council
{ASC} In accordance with Section 201{19) of the Companies Act (the
Act), the requirements of FRS 39 Financial Instruments Recogmition
and Measurement in respect of loan loss provisioning are modified by
the requirements of Notice to Banks No 612 “Credit Files, Grading
and Provisioning” 1ssued by the Monetary Authonty of Singapare

As permitted by Section 201(4B} of the Act, the Company’s income
statement has not been included in these financial statements

The financral statements are presented in Singapore dollars and
rounded to the nearest milhon, unless otherwise stated

Differences between International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and FRS

Beyond the above modification to FRS related to Notice to Banks No
612, there are no sigmificant differences between IFRS and FRS In
terms of their application to the Group for pertods covered by these
financial statements and consequently there would otherwise be no
sigmificant differences had the financial statements been prepared in
accordance with IFRS The consolidated financial statements together
with the notes thereon as set out on pages 115 to 175 as well as the
Risk Management section on pages 75 to 104 include the aggregate
of all disclosures necessary to satisfy IFRS and FRS

22 SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires management to
exercise Judgement, use estimates and make assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
habilities, iIncome and expenses Although these estimates are based
on management's best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results may differ from these estimates Critical accounting
estimates and assumptions used that are significant to the financial
statements, and areas involving a higher degree of jJudgement and
complexity, are disclosed in Note 3

23 CHANGE IN BALANCE SHEET PRESENTATION

The presentation of the Group's balance sheet has been
streamlined to focus on the most matenal assets and habilities
“Loans and advances to customers™ and “Deposits and balances
from customers” on the balance sheet are now consistent with the
amounts shown as "Customer loans” and “ Customer deposits”

in the Group’s investor communications The current presentation
also reflects the guidance under IFRS to arrange balance sheet items
broadly by their nature and quidity

In addition, “Due to Banks” now differentiates interbank money
market activities from cash deposits related to fund management
activivies of institutional investors The latter are now classified as
“Deposits and balances from customers” to better reflect the nature
of such deposits Prior period comparatives have been aligned to
the current presentation

24 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

On 1 January 2013, the Group adopted the fallowing new or revised
FRS that are issued by the ASC and relevant for the Group

* FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement

« Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

* Amendments to FRS 1 — Presentation of Other
Comprehensive Income

* Improvernents to FRS {issued in August 2012)

FRS 113 unifies the defiition for farr value and establishes a single
framework for measuning far value It replaces and expands the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements in other FRSs,
including FRS 107 Please refer to Note 40 for additional disclosures
in this regard

Amendments to FRS 107 introduce more extensive disclosures
that focus on quantitative information on recognised financial
mnstruments that are offset on the balance sheet as well as
those that are subject 1o master netting or similar arrangements
irrespective of whether they are offset on the balance sheet
Please refer to Note 15 for additional disclosures
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Except for the above additional disclosures, there 1s no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements from the adoption of
the new or revised FRS

New or revised FRS to be adopted in future reporting periods are
outhned in Note 4

A summary of the most significant group accounting palices is
described further below starting with those relating to the entire
financial statements followed by those relating to the income
statement, the balance sheet and other specific topics This does
not reftect the relative iImportance of these policies to the Group

A) General Accounting Policies
25 GROUP ACCOUNTING

Subsidhanies
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits
from ther activities

The acquisition method 1s used to account for business combinations
Subsidianes are consolidated from the date control 1s transferred to
the Group to the date control ceases Refer to Note 2 13 for

the Group’s accounting policy on goodwill

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation

Special purpose entities

In the course of business, the Group 15 involved in a number of
entities with imited and predetermined activities (special purpose
entiies or SPEs) in different capacittes such as structuning securities
1ssuances for clients wia SPEs, entening into derivative transactions
with SPEs, or investing in certain assets I1ssued by SPEs While the
Group may hold little or no equity in the SPEs, 1t may consolidate
such entities In certain crcumstances where there 1s evidence to
suggest 1t has control over them

The main SPEs that the Group controls and consolidates are outlined
in Note 23 These entities are used for issuance of structured
products on behalf of the Group

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities that are jointly controlled by the Group
together with one or more parties through contractual arrangements
The Group recognises Its Interests in joint ventures using the
proportionate consolidation method

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence, but no control, and generally holds a shareholding of
between and including 20% and 50% of the voting nghts The
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Group recognises Its investments in associates using the equity
method of accounting

26 FOREIGN CURRENCY TREATMENT

Functronal and presentation currency

Items in the financial statements are measured using the functional
currency of each entity in the Group, being the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates The
Group’s financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars,
which is 1ts functional currency of the Campany

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Transactions In foreign currencies are measured using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity undertaking the
transaction at the exchange rate as at the balance sheet date Foreign
exchange differences ansing from this translation are recognised in
the income statement

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost In a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction

Non-monetary assets and habiliies measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair values are determined, which 1s generally the balance sheet date

Unrealised foreign exchange differences arising from non-monetary
financial assets and habilities classified as fair value through profit or
loss are recognised In the income statement as trading income For
non-monetary financial assets such as equity investments classified
as availlable-for-sale, unrealised foreign exchange differences are
recorded in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
until the assets are disposed of or become imparred, in which case
they are reclassified to the iIncome statement

Subsidiaries and branches

The results and financial position of subsidiaries and branches whose
functional currency 15 nat Singapore dollars ("{oreign operations™)
are translated into Singapore dollars in the following manner

= Assets and liabilities are transiated at the exchange rates as at the
balance sheet date,

* Income and expenses In the income statement are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at each month-end, approximating the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, and

»  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income
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For acquisitons prior to t January 2005, the foreign exchange rates
at the respective dates of acquisition were used Please refer to Note
27 for an overview of goodwill recorded Goodwill and farr value
adjustments anising on the acquisitton of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and labilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate

On consolidation, fareign exchange differences anising from the
translation of net investments in foreign entities, as well as any
borrowangs and instruments designated as foreign currency hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive Income
and accumulated under capital reserves in equity When a foreign
operation 1s disposed of, such currency translation differences are
recognised In the income statement as part of the gain or loss

on disposal

27 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to management responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments
Please refer to Note 44 for further details on business and
geographical segment reporting

B) Income Statement
28 INCOME RECOGNITION

Interest income and interest expense

Interest iIncome and interest expense as presented in Note 5 represent
the income on all assets and habihties regardless of the classification
and measurement of the assets and liabilities on amortised cost or at
far value, with the exception of the Group’s structured investment
deposits which are carned at far value through profit or loss Interest
expense on such structured investment deposits are presented
together with other fair value changes in trading income

Interest income and interest expense are recognised on a time-
proportionate basis using the effectwe interest method as prescribed
by FRS The calculation includes significant fees and transaction costs
that are integral to the effective interest rate, as well as premiums

or discounts

Fee and commuisston income
The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range
of products and senvices provided to its customers

Fee and cornmission income 1s generally recognised on the
completion of a transaction Such fees include underwniting fees,
brokerage fees and fees related to completion of corporate finance
transactions For a service that 1s provided over a penod of time, fee
and commussion income 1s recognised over the penod dunng which
the related service is provided or credit nisk 15 undertaken Such fees
include the income from issuance of financial guarantees

Fee and commussion income s recorded net of expenses that are
required for, directly related to and incremental to generating it
These expenses typically include brokerage fees paid, card-related
expenses and sales commissions, but do not include expenses for
services delivered over a period (such as service contracts) and other
expenses that are not specifically related to fee and commission
Income transactions

Dividend income

Dwidend income 15 recogrised when the night to receve payment

15 established This 1s generally the ex-dividend date for listed equity
securities, and usually the date when shareholders approve the
dmdend for unhsted equity secunties Dividend income arising

from held-for-trading financial assets is recognised in “Net trading
income”, and dividend ansing from available-for-sale financial assets
15 recognised 1n “Net income from investment securities”

Allowances for credst and other losses
Please refer to Note 2 11 for the accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets

Q) Balance Sheet
29 FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognrtion

Purchases and sales of all financial assets, even if their classification
and measurement are subsequently changed, are recognised on the
date that the Group enters into the contractual arrangements with
counterparties When the Group acts as trustee or in a fiduciary
capacity wathout controlling directly or benefiting directly from the
assets, these assets and the corresponding income belonging to a
customer are excluded from the financial statements

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which is generally
the transaction price

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies and measures financial assets based on therr
nature and the purpose for which they are acquired This generally
corresponds to the business models 1n which they are apphed and
hew management monitors performance, as follows

* Financial assets (other than derivatives) that are managed
mainly for longer-term holding and collection of payments
are classified as loans and receivables These assets have
fixed or determinable payments, are not quoted in an active
market and are mainly in the segments “Consumer Banking/
Wealth Management” and “Institutional Banking” Loans and
receivables are carrted at amortised cost using the effectrve
interest method

* Financial assets that are managed on a fair value basis, which
are mainly In the “Treasury” segment, are classified as financial
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assets at fair value through profit or loss Such assets include
instruments held for the purpose of short term selling and market
making (“Held for trading”), or designated under the fair value
option 1f doing so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement
or recognition inconsistencies that would otherwise arse, or if
the financial asset contains an embedded derivative that would
otherwise need to be separately recorded (" Designated at fair
value through profit or loss™)

Realised or unrealised gains or lpsses on such financial assets,
except interest income, are taken to "Net trading income” In
the income statement in the penod they anse

Dervatives (including derivatives embedded sn other contracts
but separated for accounting purposes) are also categorised

as “held for trading” unless they are designated as hedges in
accordance with Note 2 19 Derivatives are classified as assets
when the fair value 1s positve and as liabilities when the faur
value 15 negative Changes n the far value of dervatives
other than those designated as hedges are included in

"Net trading income”

= Financial assets that the Group intends to hold to maturity
are classified as “held to matunity” These are Singapore
Government securities that the Group holds for satisfying
regulatory hquidity requiremnents and are held within the
“Qthers” segment

« The Group also holds other financial assets for the purpose
of investment or satisfying regulatory liquidity requirements
Such assets are held for an indefinite period and may be sold in
response to needs for iquidity or changes (n interest rates, credit
spreads, exchange rates or equity prices Financial assets in this
category are held in all business segments as well as the iquidity
management unit In the “Others” segment These assets are
classified as available-for-sale and initially and subsequently
measured at fair value

Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
available-for-sale revaluation reserves When sold or impaired,
the accumulated farr value adjustments in the available-for-sale
revaluation reserves are reclassified to the income statement
Unquoted equity investments classified as available-for-sale for
which fair values cannot be relably determined are carned at
cost, less impairment

Where the classification and measurement of financial assets

do not reflect the management of the financial assets {or financial
habihties), the Group may apply hedge accounting where permissible
and relevant to better reflect the management of the financiai
assets Please refer to Note 2 19 for details on hedging and

hedge accounting

Please refer to Note 15 for further details on the types of financial
assets classified and measured as above

Reclasstfication of financial assets

When the purpose for holding a financial asset changes, or when FRS
otherwise requires it, non-denvative financial assets are reclassified
accardingly Financial assets may be classified out of the fair value
through profit or loss or avallable-for-sale categories only i particular
circumstances as prescribed by FRS 39 1n 2008 and 2009, the

Group reclassified certain financial assets between categories as a
result of a change in its holding intention  The reclassifications have
had no matenal impact an the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the current peniod

Determination of fair value

The farr value of financial assets 1s the price that would be receved
if the asset 1s sold in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date Fair value 15 generally
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at

the current market interest rate that 1s available 1o the Group for
similar finanaial instruments Where applicable, a valuation reserve
of pricing adjustment is applied 1o arnve at the fair value The
determination of far value 1s considered a significant accounting
policy for the Group and further details are disclosed in Note 40
on farr value measurements

Offsetting

Financial assets and habilities are presented net when there 15 3
legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts and there
1S an Intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the lability simultaneously

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to recewve cash
fiows from the financial assets have expired or when they have
been transferred together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership

The Group enters into certan transactions where 1t transfers
financial assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains either
all or a portion of the nisks and rewards of the transferred financial
assets In such cases, the transferred financial assets are not
derecognised from the balance sheet Such transactions include
repurchase transactions described in Note 2 12 They also include
transactions where contral over the financial asset 1s retained, for
example, by a simultaneous transaction (such as options} with
the same counterparty to which the asset 1s transferred These
are mainly transacted in the “Treasury” segment In such cases
the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing Involvement and by the extent to which 1t 1s exposed
to changes in the value of the transferred asset

Please refer to Note 20 for disclosures on transferred financial assets
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210 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and non-restricted balances
with central banks which are readily convertible mto cash

211 IMPAIRMENT COF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
15 evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
15 1mpaired

{a) Financial assets classified as loans and recewvables and
held to matunity
The Group carries out regular and systematic reviews of all
credit facilities extended to customers

The critena that the Group uses to determine whether there 15
evidence of an impairment loss include

»  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obhgor,
including breach of covenants and/or financial conditions

* A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or pnincipal payments

* Granting of a concession to the borrower, for economic or
fegal reasons refating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
that the Group would not otherwise consider

= High probability of bankruptcy or other financial
reorgamsation of the borrower

Specific allowances for credit losses

A specfic allowance for credit losses 15 established 1f there 1s evidence
that the Group will be unable to collect all amounts due under a
claim according to the onginat contractual terms or the equivalent
value A "claim” means a loan, debt secunty or a commitment such
as financial guarantees and letters of credit

A specific allowance for credit losses i1s recorded as a reduction in the
carrying value of a claim on the balance sheet For an off-balance
sheet tem such as a commitment, a specific allowance for credit loss
i1s recorded as " prowvision for loss m respect of off-balance sheet credit
exposures” within “Other hatilities”

Specific allowances for credit losses are evaluated erther individually
or collectively for a portfolio

Specific allowance for an individual credst exposure 1s made when
existing facts, conditions or valuations indicate that the Group 1s

not likely to colfect the principal and interest due contractually on
the clasim  An allowance i1s reversed only when there has been an
identifiable event that has led to an impravement in the collectability
of the claim The amount of speaific allowance also takes into
account the collateral value, which may be discounted to reflect

the impact of a forced sale or untimely hguidation
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Overdue unsecured consumer loans which are homogenous in
nature, such as credit card receivables, are pooled accarding to their
delinguency behaviour and evaluated for impairment collectively as a
group, taking into account the historical loss expenience of such loans

When a loan 1s uncollectible, 1t 1s written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment  Such loans are written off after all
the recovery procedures have been exhausted and the amount of the
loss has been determined Recoveries in full ar in part of amounts
previously written off are credited to the income statement in

" Allowances for credit and other losses”

General allowances for credit losses

Apart from speofic allowances, the Group also recogrises general
allowances for credit losses The Group maintains a level of
allowances that 1s deemed sufficient to absorb the estimated
credit losses inherent 1n its loan portfolio (including off-balance
sheet credit exposures) The Group maintams general allowances
of at least 1% of credit exposures arising from both on and off-
balance sheet items {against which specific allowances have not
been made}, adjusted for collateral held This is in accordance with
the transitional arrangements under Notice to Banks No 612
“Credit Files, Grading and Provisioning” issued by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore

(b) Finanaal assets classified as available-for-sale
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 15
evidence that an avallable-for-sale financial asset 15 impaired

In the case of an equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the secunty below 1ts cost Is a factor
in determiming whether the asset 1s impaired

When there 15 evidence of an impairment of an available-for-sale
financial asset, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current farr value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised

in the iIncome statement — 1s reclassified from the revaluation
reserve within equity to the ncome statement

For equity investments, impairment losses are not reversed
uniil they are disposed of For impaired debt instruments
that subsequently recover in value, the impairment losses are
reversed through the income statement if there has been an
identifiable event that led to the recovery

212 REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Repurchase agreements (Repos) are treated as collateralised
borrowings The amount borrowed 15 reflected as a liability either as
“Due to banks" or “Deposits and balances from customers” The
secunties sold under repos are treated as pledged assets and remain
on the balance sheet at amortised cost or fair value depending on
thewr classification
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Reverse repurchase agreements (Reverse repos) are treated
as collateralised lending The amount lent is reflected as an asset
as "Cash and balances with central banks”, “Due from banks” or
“Loans and advances to customers”

Amounts paid and received in excess of the amounts borrowed and
tent on the repos and reverse repos are amaortised as interest expense
and interest income respectively using the effective interest method

213 GOODWILL

Goodwill arising from business combinations generally represents
the excess of the acquisition cost over the far value of identifiable
assets acquired and lhabiities and contingent liabilities assumed on
the acquisition date Goodwill 1s stated at cost less impairment
losses and Is tested at least annually for impairment

At the acquisition date, any goodwall acquired 1s allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (CGU) or group of CGUs expected to
benefit from the combination’s synergies

An impairment loss 15 recognised when the carrying amount of

a CGU, or a group of CGUs, including the goodwill, exceeds the
applicable recoverable amount The recoverable amount of a CGU
or CGU group s the higher of the CGU's or CGU group's fair value
less cost to sell and its value-in-use  An impairment loss on goodwaill
is recognised in the income statement and cannot be reversed In
subsequent periods

214 PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

Properties (including investment properties) and other fixed assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Depreciation s calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful Iives of the assets Generally, the useful lives are
as follows

50 years or over the remaining lease
period, whichever 1s sharter

Bulldings

100 years or over the remaining
lease period, whichever is shorter
Leasehold land where the unexpired
lease period 15 more than 100 years
15 not depreciated

Leasehold land

Intangible/Computer software 3 - 5 years

Office equipment, 5 - 10 years

furniture and fittings

Please refer to Note 26 for the details of properties and other fixed
assets and their movements durning the year
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215 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Intqial recognition, classification and subsequent measurement
Financial habilities are inttially recognised at fair value The Group
generally classifies and measures its financial liabilities 10 accordance
with the purpose for which the finanaal habilities are incurred and
managed Accordingly

* Financial liabilities are classified as financal habilities at fair
value through profit or loss If they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term (“held for trading”),
and this usually pertains to short positions in securities for
the purpose of ongoing market-making, hedging or trading
Financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss can
also be designated by management on initial recognition
(designated under the fair value option) Financial habilities in
this classification are usualty within the “Treasury” segment

In addition, some financial habilities used to fund speafic
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
are designated under the fair value option when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies that would othenwise arise

Realised or unrealised gains or losses on financial habilities held
for trading and financial habilities designated under the farr

value option, except interest expense, are taken 1o “Net trading
iIncome” 1n the Income statement in the period they anse Interest
expense on structured investment deposits at fair value through
profit or loss are also presented together with other farr value
changes in “Net trading income”

+  Dernvative liabilities are treated consistently with derivative assets
Please refer to Note 2 9 for the accounting policy on dervatives

* Other financial habilities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method These comprise predominantly
the Group’s deposit portfolio under ”Deposits and balances
from customers” and "Due to banks”, and those under
“Other liabilities”

Please refer to Note 15 for further details on the types of financial
habilities classified and measured as above

Determination of fair value

The fair value of financial habilities 1s the price that would be paid
1o transfer the hability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date

Please refer also to Note 40 for further far value measurement
disclosures
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Derecognition
A finanoial hability 1s derecognised from the balance sheet when

the obligation speafied in the contract 1s discharged, cancelled
or expired

216 LOAN COMMITMENTS, LETTERS OF CREDIT AND
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

Loan commitments

Loan commitments are typically not financial instruments and are

not recognised on balance sheet but are disclosed off-batance sheet
In accordance with FRS 37 They form part of the disclosures in Note
36 Upon aloan draw down, the amount of the loan is accounted for
under “loans and recewvables™ as descnbed in Note 2 9

Letters of credit

Letters of credit are recorded off-balance sheet as contingent
habilities upon 1ssuance, and the corresponding payables to the
beneficiaries and receivables from the applicants are recogmised on-
balance sheet upon acceptance of the underlying documents

Financral guarantees

A finanaal guarantee 1s inttially recognised in the financral statements
at farr value on the date the guarantee 15 given This 15 generally

the amount (fee) paid by the counterparty Subsequently, the fee 1s
recognised over time as income In accordance with the principles in
Note 2 8

Off-balance sheet credit exposures are managed for credit nsk in the
same manner as financial assets Please refer to Note 2 11 on the
Group’s accounting policies on specific allowances for credit losses

217 PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Provisions for other habilities of uncertain tming and amounts are
recogrised when

+ the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events,

* 1t ss probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and

* areliable esumate of the amount of the obligation can be made

The amount recognised as a prowision is the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obhigation at the balance
sheet date

218 SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS CLASSIFIED
AS EQUITY

Ordmary shares, preference shares and other instruments which do
not result 1n the Group having a contractual obligation to deliver cash
or ancther financial asset, or to exchange financial assets or financial
llablities with the holder under conditions that are potentially

unfavourable to the Group, are classified as equity Distnbutions
ansing from such instruments are recognised In equity as there 1s

no contractual obligation to pay distnbutions on these mstruments
Incremental external costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssuance of such
instruments are accounted for as a deduction from equity

When any entity within the Group purchases the Company’s ordinary
shares (“treasury shares”), the consideration pad including any
directly attributable incremental cost is presented as a compenent
within equity, until they are cancelled, sold or reissued

When treasury shares are subsequently cancelled, the cost of the
treasury shares 1s deducted against either the share capital account
or retained earnings When treasury shares are subsequently sold

or rerssued, any realised gain or loss on sale or resssue, net of any
directly attnbutable incremental transaction costs and related income
1ax, 1s reccgnised in capntal reserves

For ordinary and preference shares, interim didends are recorded
during the financial year in which they are declared payable

Final dividends are recorded during the financial year in which

the didends are approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting

D) Other Specafic Topics
219 HEDGING AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group uses defivative contracts mainly as part of its risk
management strategies for hedging interest rate risk arising from
matunty mismatches or for hedging currency risk ansing from
currency mismatches and cash flows in foresgn currencies

In some cases, where the strict criteria in FRS 39 are met, hedge
accounting 15 applied as set out n subsequent paragraphs At the
inception of each hedging relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged rtem,
the nsk management objective for undertaking the hedge
transaction, and the methods used to assess the effectiveness of
the hedge At inception and on an on-going basis, the Group also
documents its assessment of whether the hedging tnstrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows
of the hedged item

Fair value hedge

The Group's fair value hedges consist principally of interest rate
swaps used for managing the interest rate gaps that naturally arise
from 1ts purchases or issues of debt securities, and where a mismatch
In the measurement between the hedging derivative (measured at
fair value through profit or loss} and the hedged item (measured at
amortised cost) exists Such hedges are mainly used in the “Treasury”
and "Others” segments
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For a qualifying fair value hedge, the changes in the farr value of the
hedging dervatives are recorded n the Income statement, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item attrbutable to
the hedged nisk

I the hedge no longer meets the critenia for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item 1s amortised to
the income statement over Its remasning maturnty, using the effective
nterest method

Cash flow hedge

For transactions with highly probable cash flows, dervatives are
used to hedge against cash flow variability due to exchange rate
movements 1N certain situations Cash flow hedge accounting 1s
principally applied 1n such cases

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of a derivative
designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedge 15 recogrised in
other comprehensive ncome and accumulated under the cash flow
hedge reserve in equity This amount is reclassified to the income
statement in the periods when the hedged forecast cash flows
affect the iIncome statement The ineffective portion of the gain

or loss 1s recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading tncome”

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge

no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in the cash flow hedge reserve remains unti! the
forecast transaction i1s recognised in the income statement When a
forecast transaction 15 no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss in the cash flow hedge reserve (s reclassiied from equity
to the income statement

Net investment hedge

Net investrment hedging ts applied to hedge investments which
compnise certain subsidiaries, branches, associates and joint ventures
with a functional currency different from that of the Company
Under the Group's hedging strategy, the carrying amount of these
investments could be fully hedged, partially hedged or not hedged
at all

Hedges of net investments n the Group’s foreign operations are
accounted for in a manner similar to cash flow hedges On disposal
of the foreign operations, the cumulative ga:n or loss in the capital
reserves 1s reclassified to the income statement as part of the gain
or loss on disposal

Economic hedges which do not qualify for hedge accounting
Some derivatives may be transacted as economic hedges as part

of the Group’s nsk management but do not qualify for hedge
accounting under FRS 39 These include swaps and other denvatives
(e g futures and options} that the Group transacts to manage
Interest rate, foreign exchange or other risks Such dervatives are
treated in the same way as denvatives held for trading purposes,

1 e realised and unrealised gains and losses are recognised in
“Net trading income” In some cases, the hedged expasures are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, thereby achieving
some measure of offset In the income statement

Please refer to Note 37 2 for disclosures on hedging derivatives
220 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits, which include base pay, cash bonuses, share-
based compensation, contnbution to defined contrtbution plans such
as the Central Provident Fund and other staff-related allowances,

are recognised In the income statement when incurred For defined
contribution plans, contributions are made to publicly or privately
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis
Once the contrbutions have been paid, the Group has no further
payment obligations

Employee entitlement to annual leave 1s recognised when they accrue
to employees A provision 1s made for the estmated hability for
annual untaken !eave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date

221 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Employee benefits also include share-based compensation, namely
the DBSH Share Gwnership Scheme (the Scheme), the DBSH Share
Option Plan, the DBSH Share Plan and the DBSH Employee Share
Plan (the Plans) The details of the Scheme and Plans are described
in Note 38

Equity nstruments granted and ultimately vested under the Plans are
recognised 1 the income statement based on the fair value of the
equity Instrument at the date of grant The expense 1s amortised over
the vesting period of each award, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option/plan reserves Monthly contributions to the
Scheme are expensed off when incurred

For the DBSH Share Plan and the DBSH Employee Share Plan, a
trust has been set up for each share plan The employee trust
funds are consohdated and the DBSH shares held by the trust funds
are accounted for as “treasury shares”, which i1s presented as a
deduction within equity

222 CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

Current income tax for current and prior peniods (s recognised

as the amount expected to be paid or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date The Group
considers uncertain tax positions generaily at the level of the total
tax hability to each tax authonty for each period The hability 15
determined based on the total amount of current tax expected to
be paid, taking into account all tax uncertainties, using either an
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expected value approach or a single best esimate of the most
hkely outcome

Tax assets and labilities of the same type {current or deferred) are
offset when a legal nght of offset exist and settlement in this fashion
15 intended This applies generally when they anse from the same tax
reporting group and relate to the same tax authonty

Deferred income tax 15 prowided on temporary differences anising
between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying
amounts 1n the financal statements The amount of deferred

tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilities, using tax
rates enacted or substaniely enacted by the balance sheet date

The amount of deferred tax assets recognised takes into account the
likelithood the amount that can be used to offset payable taxes for
future profits

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of avallable-for-
sale investments, which are recogmised outside profit or loss, s also
recognised outstde profit or loss, 1 e in other comprehensive iIncome
and accumulated in the avallable-for-sale revaluation reserves

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Group's accounting policies and use of estimates are integral
to the reported results Certain accounting estimates require
management’s judgement in determining the appropriate
methodology for valuation of assets and liabilities Procedures are
in place to ensure that methodologies are reviewed and revised as
appropriate The Group believes its estimates for determining the
valuation of its assets and hiabilittes are appropnate

The following 1s a brief description of the Group’s ¢ritical accounting
estimates that involve management’s valuation judgement

31 IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

It I1s the Group's policy to establish, through charges against profit,
specific and general allowances in respect of estimated and inherent
credit losses in ats portfolio as described 1n Note 2 11

In estimating specific allowances, the Group assesses the gap
between borrowers’ obhgations to the Group and therr repayment
ability The assessment takes into account vanous factors, including
the economic or business outlook, the future profitability of the
borrowers and the iquidation value of collateral Such assessment
requires considerable judgement

Another area requiring Judgement is the calculation of general
allowances, which are established after taking into account historical
data and management’s assessment of the current economic and
credit environment, country and portfolio nsks, as well as industry

practices Please refer to the Risk Management section for a further
description of the Group’s credit nsk management

32 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The majority of the Group's financial instruments reported at fair
value are based on quoted and observable market pnces or on
internally developed models that are based on independently
sourced market parameters

The fair value of financial instruments without an observable market
price in a iquid market may be determined using valuation models
The choice of model requires significant judgement for complex
products especially those in the “Treasury” segment

Policies and procedures have been established to facilitate the
exerase of judgement in determining the nsk characteristics of
various finanoal instruments, discount rates, estimates of future
cash flows and other factors used tn the valuation process

Please refer to Note 40 for detalls on farr valuation and fair
value hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments measured at
fair value

33 GOODWILL

The Group performs an impairment review to ensure that the
carrying amount of a CGU to which goodwill is allocated does
not exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU Note 27 provides
details of goodwill as of the reporting date

The recoverable amount represents the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to anse from continuing
operations Therefore, in arrving at the recoverable amount,
management exercises judgement in estimating the future cash
flows, growth rate and discount rate

34 INCOME TAXES

The Group has exposure to Income taxes in numerous Jurisdictions
Significant judgement 1s involved in determining the Group-wide
provision for income taxes The Group recognises habitities for
expected tax 1ssues based on reasonable estimates of whether
addittonal taxes will be due Where uncertainty exists around the
Group's tax position including resolution of any related appeals or
litigation processes, appropriate provisions are provided based on
technical menits of the positions with the same tax authority Note
22 provides details of the Group’s deferred tax assetshabiliies In
general, determination of the value of assetsMiabilities relating to
carry forward tax losses requires judgement
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4 EFFECTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON ADOPTION

OF NEW OR REVISED FRS

The Group has not applied the following FRS that have been issued
and are most relevant to the Group but are not yet effective These
new/revised standards will be adopied by the Group for annual
periods commencing on their effective date of 1 January 2014,
and are not expected to have significant impact to the Group’s

financial statements

* FRS 110 Consoiidated Financial Statements

¢ FRS 111 Joint Arrangements

« FRS 112 Discdosure of Interests in Other Entities

+ Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

6 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

The Group
In § rmllions 2013 2012
Stockbroking 214 179
Investment banking 191 148
Trade and transaction services®™ 531 473
Loan-refated 367 333
Cards© 337 299
Wealth management 412 300
Others 69 43
Fee and commission income 2,121 1,775
Less fee and commission expense 236 196
Net fee and commussion income® 1,885 1,579

> NET INTEREST INCOME (a) Includes net fee and commission income of $28 millon (2012 $29 mifhon)
which 1s derived from the provision of trust and other fiducwary services durtng
The Group the year Net fee and commussion ncome earmed from financial assets or
In $ mullions 2013 2012 habiitres not at fair value through proftt or loss s 3671 milhion {2012 $603
rmifhon) during the year
Cash and balances with central banks (b Includes trade & renuttances guarantees and deposit-refated fees
and Due from banks 460 496 {c) Cards fees are net of mterchange fees pard
Customer non-trade loans 4,710 4,341
Trade assets 1,458 1,303 7 NET TRADING INCOME
Debt securities 1,358 1,481
R The Group
Total interest iIncome 7.986 7,621 In $ millions 2013 2012
Deposits and balances from customers 1,926 1,782 Net trading income
Other borrowings 491 554 — Foreign exchange 981 705
- — Interest rates, , ities and others® 138 32
Total interest expense 2,417 2,336 credit, equities and othe
Net loss frem financial assets
Net interest income 5,569 5,285 designated at farr value (24) (3)
Comprising Net loss from financial habilities
fair value 45
Interest income for financial assets at fair designated at fair valu . # “s)
value through profit or loss 329 353 Total 1,095 689
Interest income for financial assets not at farr
value through profit or loss 7.657 7,268 #  Amount under $500 000
Interest expense for financial labilites at farr (@) Includes dnadend income of $14 mithon (2012 $11 mifion)
value through profii or loss (107) (92)
Interest expense for financial habitities
not at fair value through profit or loss (2,310) (2,244)

Total

5,569

5,285
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8 NET INCOME FROM INVESTMENT SECURITIES 1 OTHER EXPENSES
The Group The Group
In $ milhons 2013 2012 In $ millions 2013 2012
Debt securities Computerisation expenses® 678 622
- Avallable-for-sale 89 294 Occupancy expenses® 365 330
- Loans and recevables 5 7 Revenue-related expenses 231 222
Equity securities® 182 118 Others® 579 552
Total® 276 419 Total 1,853 1,726
Comprising net gains transferred fram
|pr fg |g I 197 (a) includes hire and maintenance of computer hardware and software
Avallable-tor-sale revaluation reserves 9 345 ()} includes rental expenses of office and branch premuses of $216 milhon
(2012 $178 mdhon) and amounts incurred in the maintenance and
(a) Includes dradend income of $69 milion {2012 $38 miflion) service of buildings
(b} includes fair value impact of hedges for the investment securities {c) includes office administration expenses (e g printing stauonery
telfecommunications, etc), and legal and professional fees
9 OTHER INCOME
The Group
In $ millions 2013 2012
The Group
tn $ milhons 2013 2012 Depreciation expenses 214 179
Hire and maintenance of fixed assets,
Rental income 29 23
including bullding-related expenses 355 319
Net gain on disposal of properties
Expenses on investment properiies 7 7
and other fixed assets 44 49
Audit fees payable to external auditors®
Others® 200 470
- - Auditors of the Company 3 3
Total 273 542 - Associated firms of Auditors of the Company 4 3
Non audit fees payable to external auditors®
(a} 2013 includes an amount of $171 million comprising 3 gan of $221 milfion - Auditors of the Company 1 #
{2012 3450 milkon) for the partial divestment of a stake in the Bank of the — Associated firms of Auditors of the Company 1 1
Philippine isiands less a sum of $50 million set aside to establish the DBS
Foundation to further the Group's commutment to socal and community
development Refer to Note 25 #  Amount under $500 000
(3) PricewaterhouseCoopers network firms
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
12 ALLOWANCES FOR CREDIT AND OTHER LOSSES
The Group
In $ millions 2013 2012 The Group
In § millions 2013 2012
Salaries and bonus 1,689 1,544
Contributions to defined Loans and advances to customers (Note 19} 726 379
contribution plans 98 g5 Investment securities
Share-based expenses 76 68 ~ Available-for-sale 8 16
Others 202 181 — Loans and recevables 8 1
- - - - - Properties and other fixed assets {1) 1
Total 2,065 1,888 Ofi-balance sheet credit exposures 23 5
Others (bank loans and sundry debtors) 6 15

Total

770 a17
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The table below shows the movements in specfic and general allowances during the year for the Group
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The Group
Charge/ Net
{(wnite-back) write-off Exchange
Batance at to Income dunng and other  Balance at 31

In $ millions 1 January statement the year mov 5 Decemb
2013

Specific allowances

Loans and advances to customers (Note 19) 1,217 416 (552) 48 1,129
Investment securnties 7 7 {11) 2 69
Properties and other fixed assets 50 {1} M - 48
Off-balance sheet credit exposures 2 1 - (2) 1
Others (bank loans and sundry debtors) 39 7 (2) 9 53
Total specific allowances 1,379 430 (566) 57 1,300
Total general allowances for credit exposures 2,51 340 - 14 2,865
Total allowances 3,890 770 (566) 71 4,165
2012

Specific allowances

Loans and advances to customers (Note 19) 1,188 198 (149) (20} 1,217
Investment securities 66 17 (10) (2) Fa!
Properties and other fixed assets 62 i 12) n 50
Off-balance sheet credit exposures 40 (8 - (30) 2
Others (bank loans and sundry debtors} 45 (2) 3) (1) 39
Total specific allowances 1,401 206 (174) (54) 1,379
Total general allowances for credit exposures 2,339 211 - (39) 2,51
Total allowances 3,740 417 (174) (93) 3,890
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense in respect of profit for the financial year 15
analysed as follows

The Group
In § millions 2013 2012
Current tax expense
— Current year 704 637
— Prior years’ provision (28) {63)
Deferred tax expense
- Prior years’ provision (3) 2)
- Ongination of temporary differences (58} 16
Total 615 588

The deferred charge/(credit) in the income statement comprises the
following temporary differences

The Group
In $ mullions 2013 2012
Accelerated tax depreciation 3 7
Allowances for loan losses (51) 6
Other temporary differences (13) 1
Deferred tax (credity/charge to
income statement (61) 14

The tax on the Group's profit (before share of profits of associates)
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
Singapore basic tax rate as follows

The Group

In $ millions 2013 2012
Profit 4,410 4,483
Pnma face tax calculated at a tax rate

of 17% (2012 17%) 750 762
Effect of different tax rates in other countries 23 88
Net income not subject to tax (97} (96)
Net income taxed at concessionary rate {74) {69)
Others 13 (97}
Income tax expense charged to

ncome statement 615 588

Refer to Note 22 for further information on deferred tax assets/
liabilities

127
14 EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
The Group

Number of shares (millions) 2013 2012
Waeighted average number of

ordinary shares in 15sue a) 2,441 2,413
Dilutive effect of share options # 1
Full conversion of non-voting

redeemable CPS 30 30
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares In 1ssue (diluted) (aa) 2,472 2,444
# Amount under $500,000

The Group

In $ millions 2013 2012
Net profit attnbutable to

shareholders (Net profit less

dividends on other equity

Instruments) b 3,669 3,809
Net profit (less preference dividends

and dwvidends on other

equity Instruments) (o] 3,660 3,800
Earnings per ordinary share ($)
Basic (/@) 150 157
Diluted {(b)/aa) 148 156

For the purpase of calculating the diluted earnings per ordinary share,
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted
to take into account the effect of a full conversion of non-voting
redeemable convertible preference shares and the exercise of all
outstanding share options granted to employees when such shares
would be 1ssued at a price lower than the average share price during
the financiat year
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15 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group
2013
Designated
at fawr value  Loans and
through receivables/
Held profit amortised  Available- Held to Hedging

In § mulions for trading or loss cost for-sale matunity  derivatives Total
Assets

Cash and balances with central banks - - 14,789 3,937 - - 18,726
Government secunities and treasury bills 6,220 - 39 20,689 549 - 27,497
Due from banks 2,375 - 35,745 1,697 - - 39,817
Derivatives 17,174 - - - - 252 17,426
Bank and corporate securities 8,713 75 11,907 12,851 - - 33,546
Loans and advances to customers - 883 247,71 - - — 248,654
Other financial assets - - 8,720 - - - 8,720
Total financial assets 34,482 958 318,971 39,174 549 252 394,386
Non-financial assets® 7,622
Total assets 402,008
Liabilities

Due to banks 82 - 13,490 - - - 13,572
Deposits and balances from customers 569 1,374 290,422 - - - 292,365
Dernvatives 17,914 - - - - 218 18,132
Other financial iabilities 1,353 - 9,012 - - - 10,365
Other debt securities 2.651 965 19,499 - - - 23,115
Subordinated term debts - - 5,544 - - - 5,544
Total financial habilities 22,569 2,339 337,967 - - 218 363,093

Non-financial iabilities®

Total habilities

1,229
364,322

(a) Includes associates, goodwill properties and other fixed assets and deferred tax assets

(b} Includes current tax habmties deferred tax habilties and provision for loss in respect of off-balance sheet credit exposures
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The Group
2012
Designated
at fair value  Loans and
through recervables/
Held profit amortised  Available- Held to Hedging

In $ millions for trading or loss cost for-sale maturity  denvatives Total
Assets

Cash and balances with central banks - - 14,841 2,931 - - 17,772
Government securities and treasury hills 8,845 - 25 27,556 - - 36,426
Due from banks 598 - 27,514 1,294 - - 28,406
Derwatives 17,044 - - - - 236 17,280
Bank and corporate securities 4,844 65 9,581 10,958 - - 25,448
Loans and advances to customers - 1,124 209,395 - - - 210,519
Other financial assets - - 8611 - - - 8611
Total financiat assets 31,331 1,189 269,967 42,739 - 236 345,462
Non-financal assets® 7,571
Total assets 353,033
Liabilities

Due to banks 746 - 14,605 - - - 15,351
Deposits and balances from customers 792 950 251,722 - - - 253,464
Dervatives 17,243 - - - - 289 17,532
Other financial habilities 1,843 - 8,506 - - - 10,349
Other debt securities 2,373 1,145 10,236 - - - 13,754
Subordinated term debts - - 5.505 - - - 5,505
Total financial habilities 22,997 2,095 290,574 - - 289 315,955
Non-financtal habilities® 1,080
Tota! habilities 317,035

(a} Indudes associates, goodwill properties and other fixed assets and deferred tax assets
(b} Includes current tax habilities, deferred tax frabiities and prowision for loss in respect of off-balance sheet credit exposures
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Financial assets and liabilrties are presented net when there s a
legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts, and there
s intention to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liabilty simultanecusly

Finanaal assets and habilities offset on the balance sheet

As at 31 December 2013, “Loans and advances to customers” of
$2.452 mullion (2012 $3,710 milion) were set off against " Deposits
and balances from customers” of $2,600 million (2012 $3,734
million) because contractually the Group has a legally enforceable
nght to set off these amounts, and intends to settle the loans and
the deposits smultaneously at matunity or termination dates This
resulted in a net amount of $148 mallion being reported under
"Deposits and balances from customers” as at 31 Decemnber 2013
(2012 $24 million)

Financial assets and habilrties subject to netting agreement
but not offset on the balance sheet

The Group enters Into master netting arrangements with
counterparties where 1t 1s appropnate and feasible to do so to
mitigate counterparty nsk The credit nsk associated with favourable
contracts 1s reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent

that if an event of default occurs, all amounts wath the counterparty
are settled on a net basis Master netung arrangements do not result
in an offset of financial assets and hiabilities on the balance sheet, as
the legal right to set off the transactions 1s conditional upon default

These agreements include derivative master agreements (including

the International Swaps and Dernvalives Association (ISDA) Master
Agreement), global master repurchase agreements and global
securities lending agreements The collateral receved and posted
under these agreements are generally conducted under terms

that are in accordance with normal market practice In these
agreemenits, the counterparty is typicatly allowed to sell or re-pledge
those non-cash collateral (1 e secunties) lent or transferred, but has an
obligation to return the securities at matunty i the secunties decrease
in value, the Group may, In certain circumstances, be required to pay
additional cash collateral, and typically the counterparty has recourse
only to the securrties

In addition, the Group receives cash and other collateral such as
marketable securities to reduce its credit exposure The Group also
engages i a vanety of counterparty credit mitigation strategies in
addition to netiing and collateral arrangements

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain io financial assets and Liabilities that are not offset in the Group’s balance sheet but are
subject to enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar financial nstruments The disclosures enable the
understanding of both the gross and net amounts (for IFRS and US GAAP readers respectively), as well as provide additional information on how

such credit nisk is mitigated

Related amounts not
set off on balance sheet

Finanaal
instruments Gross recognised

Carrying not in scope of financial
In § millions amounts on offsetting tnstruments Ftnancial Cash collateral Net amounts
Types of financial balance sheet disclosures In scope instruments recesved/pledged in scope
assets/hiabilities (A} (B) {A-B=C+D+E) [(a] (D) {E)
2013
Financral Assets
Derivatives 17426 7,205® 10,221 9,802% 309 110
Reverse repurchase agreements 4,780% 597 4,183 4,171 - 12
Secunities borrowings 354 - 35 34 - 1
Total 22,241 7.802 14,439 14,007 309 123
Financial Liabifities
Derivatives 18,132 6,028" 12,104 9,845 1,637 622
Repurchase agreements 2,010 39 1,971 1,970 - 1
Secunities lendings =0 - - - - -
Total 20,142 6,067 14,075 11,815 1,637 623
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Related amounts not
set off on balance sheet
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Financial
instruments Gross recognised

Carrying not In scope of financal
In $ millions amounts on offsetting Instruments Financial Cash collateral Net amounts
Types of finanaal balance sheet disclosures In scope Instruments received/pledged tn scope
assets/habilities (A} (B) (A-B=C+D+E) © (D) (E)
2012
Financial Assets
Denvatives 17,280@ 7,1390 10,141 9,624® 447 70
Reverse repurchase agreements 2,429@ - 2,429 2,429 - -
Securities borrowings 7eM - 76 71 - 5
Total 19,785 7,139 12,646 12,124 447 75
Finanaal Liabilities
Derivatives 17,532 5,521% 12,011 9,662% 1,936 413
Repurchase agreements 3,335@ 420 2,915 2,914 - 1
Secunties lendings 16 - 1 - - 1
Total 20,868 5,941 14,927 12,576 1,936 415

@) Dervatives are measured at fair value through profit or foss
Related amounts under “Financial instruments™ are prepared on the same basis as natting arrangements recogmised for computation of Capital Adequacy Ratro (CAR) as

)

set out under MAS Notice 637 (unaudited), which incorporates a conservative stance on enforceable netting Accordingly the amounts shown under *Financia! assets/
habilitres not in scope of offsetting disclosures” are those where erther no netting agreement exists or where the netiing agreement has not been recogrised for

computation of CAR

{c) Reverse repurchase agreements shown above are the aggregate of transactions recorded 1n separate hne items on the balance sheet, namely “Cash and balances with
central banks”, “Due from banks*, and "Loans and advances to customers” These transactions are measured at erther farr value through profit or foss or amortised cost
(d) Cash coffateral placed under securities borrowings are presented under “Other assets” on the balance sheet, and are measured at amartised cost
(e) Repurchase agreements shown above is the aggregate of transactions recorded in separate line rterns on the balance sheet, namely "Due to banks”, and "Deposits and
balances from customers™ These transactions are measured at erther fair value through profit or loss or amortised cost
(f) Cash collateral placed under securities lendings are presented under "Other hiabiities™ on the balance sheet, and are measured at amortised cost

16 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

The Group
In $ milhons 2013 2012
Cash on hand 1,803 1,656
Non-restricted balances with central banks 9,146 9,337
Cash and cash equwvalents 10,9459 10,993
Restricted balances with central banks® 7.7717 6,779
Total 18,726 17,772

(@) Mandatory balances with central banks
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17 GOVERNMENT SECURITIES AND TREASURY BILLS

The Group
Held for Available- Loans and Held to
In $ millions trading for-sale receivablest maturity'? Total
2013
Singapore Government securities and treasury bilis® 2,013 7,332 - 549 9,894
Other gavernment secunties and treasury bills™ 4,207 13,357 39 - 17,603
Total 6,220 20,689 39 549 27,497
2012
Singapore Government securiies and treasury bills® 2,639 10,294 - - 12,933
Other government securities and treasury bills® 6,206 17,262 25 - 23,493
Total 8,845 27,556 25 - 36,426
(a} Includes financial assets transferred of $564 milon {2012 $841 muflion) (See Note 20)
(b) Includes financial assets transferred of $1 450 muthon (2012 $2,207 million) (See Note 20)
{c) The farr value of secunities classified as loans and recervables amoun ted to $39 mufon (2012 $25 mullion)
(d) The fair value of secunities classified as held to maturity amounted to $537 mithon (2012 Ni)
18 BANK AND CORPORATE SECURITIES
The Group
Designated
at fair value
through
Held for profit Available- Loans and

In $ milions trading or toss forsale recervables™ Total
2013
Bank and corporate debt securities® 8,129 75 11,551 12,036 31,791
Less Impairment allowances - - - (129) (129)
Equity securrties 584 - 1,300 - 1,884
Total 8.713 75 12,851 11,907 33,546
2012
Bank and corporate debt securities®™ 4,609 65 9,859 9,702 24,235
Less Imparment allowances - - - (1zn (121)
Equity securities 235 - 1,099 - 1,334
Total 4,844 65 10,958 9,581 25,448

(3) The fair vaiue of securities classified as loans and recewables amounted 10 $71,992 mifion (2012 $9,862 miflion)
(B) Includes financial assets transferred of $902 mifhon (2012 $1 349 mithon) {See Note 20)
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19 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
The Group
In § milhons 2013 2012
Gross 252,181 213,828
Less  Spearfic allowances 1,129 1,217
General allowances 2,398 2,092
248,654 210,519
Analysed by product
Long-term loans 100,950 62,917
Short-term faciities 51,896 36,048
Housing loans 49,147 45,570
Trade loans 50.188 39,293
Gross total 252,181 213,828
Analysed by currency
Singapare dollar 101,456 90,503
Hong Kong dollar 29,463 25,443
US dollar 84,998 67,156
Others 36,264 26,726
Gross total 252,181 213,828

Refer to Note 41 4 for breakdown of loans and advances to customers by country of incorperation of borrower and industry
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The table below shows the movements in speaihc and general allowances for loans and advances to customers during the year for the Group

Charge/
(Wnite-back)  Net wnte-off Exchange
Balance at to income duning and other  Balance at 31

In § millions 1 January statement the year movements December
2013

Specific allowances®

Manufacturing 222 108 (100) 10 240
Buiding and construction 34 30 (23) 1 42
Housing loans 10 {2) - 9
General commerce 149 139 {154) 142
Transportation, storage and communications 501 (54) (3) 21 465
Financial institutions, 1nvestment and holding companies 232 13 (105) 6 146
Professionals and private individuals (excluding housing loans) 45 166 (166) 3 48
Others 24 16 (1 (3] 37
Total speciic allowances 1,217 416 (552) 48 1,129
Total general allowances 2,092 310 - (4) 2,398
Total allowances 3,309 726 (552) 44 3,527
2012

Speafic allowances®

Manufactunng 223 26 (19) (8) 222
Building and construction 37 (3 ] (1 34
Housing loans 1 4)] - - 10
General commerce 125 46 an (5) 149
Transporiation, storage and communications 282 227 (9) 1 501
Emancial mstitutians, nvestment and holding companies 392 (152} {5) (3) 232
Professionals and private individuals (excluding housing loans) 63 76 (90) 4 45
Others 55 2n (10 - 24
Total specific allowances 1,188 198 (149) (20) 1,217
Total general allowances 1,819 181 - (8} 2,092
Total allowances 3,107 379 {149) (28) 3,309

{a) Certan loans to investment holding companies have been reclassified to better reffect the underlying pricipal actnaty of the compantes owned by the holding
company The amounts for pror perad have also been reclassified to conform to the current presentation
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Included m loans and advances to customers are loans designated at fair value, as follows
The Group

in $ millions 2013 2012
Fair value designated loans and advances and related credit derivatives/enhancements
Maximum credit exposure 883 1,124
Credit derivatives/enhancements — protection bought (883) (1,124)
Cumulative change in fair value anising from changes in credit nisk (138) (61)
Cumulative change in fair value of related credit derivatives/enhancements 138 61

Changes in farr value ansing from changes in credit nsk are determined as the amount of change in therr fair value that is not attnbutable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market nsk Changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk include changes in a

benchmark interest rate, foreign exchange rate or index of prices or rates

During the year, the amount of change in the fair value of the loans and advances attributable to credit nsk was a loss of $77 million (2012 gain
of $16 milion} During the year, the amount of change in the fair value of the related credit derivativesfenhancements was a gan of $77 million

{2012 loss of $16 million)

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS TRANSFERRED

The Group transfers financial assets to third parties or special
purpose entities in the course of business, for example when 1t
pledges secunties as collateral for repurchase agreements or when it
undertakes secunties lending arrangements

Transferred assets are derecognised in the Group’s financial statements
when substantially all of therr risks and rewards are also transferred
Among them is pledged collateral (mainly cash) for dervative
transactions under credit support annexes agreements Derecognised
assets that were subject to the Group's partial continuing involvernent
were not matenial in 2013 and 2012

Where the Group retains substantiafly all the risks and rewards of
the transferred assets, they continue to be recognised in the Group’s
financial statements These assets are described below

Securities

Secunities transferred under repurchase agreements and secunties
lending arrangements are generally conducted under terms in line
with normal market practice The counterparty Is typically allowed to
sell or re-pledge the secunties but has an obligation to return them at
maturity If the secunities decrease in value, the Group may, in certain
crcumstances, be required to pay addiional cash collateral The
counterparty typically has no further recourse to the Group's other
assets beyond the transferred securities

For repurchase agreements, the securities transferred are esther
classified as “fair value through profit or loss™ or "available-for-
sale” The Group receives cash in exchange and records a finanaal

liability for the cash received The farr value of the associated habilities
approximates the carrying amount of $2,010 million (2012 $3,335
mulhon), which are recorded under "Due to banks” and "Deposits and
balances from customers” on the balance sheet

For securities lending transactions, the secunties lent are classified as
“available-for-sale” or “loans and receivables” on the balance sheet,
and the carrying amount approximates the fair value As the Group
mainly recewves other financial assets in exchange, the associated
habilites recorded are not matenal

The Group

In $ millions 2013 2012

Secunties pledged and transferred
Singapore Government secunties

and treasury bills 564 841
Other government secunties

and treasury bills 1,450 2,207
Bank and corporate debt secunties 902 1,349
Total secunties pledged and transferred 2,916 4,397

Loans

The Group also enters into structured funding transactions where 1t
retans the contractual nghts to receve cash flows of loans extended
to third parties, but assumes a contractual cbligation to pay these
cash flows under the 1ssued notes The carrying amounts and farr
values of these financal assets and habilities both amount to $883
million (2012 $1,124 milion)
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21 OTHER ASSETS
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The Group

In § milltons 2013 2012
Accrued interest recevable 911 844
Deposits and prepayments 290 297
Clients’ monies recevable from secunties business 633 778
Sundry debtors and others 6,856 6,692
Deferred tax assets {Note 22} 205 91

B,925 8,702

Total

22 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable night to set off current tax assets against current tax habilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax authority The deferred tax assets and habilities are to be recovered and settled
after one year and the following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in “Other assets” {Note 21} and "Other liabilities”

(Note 29) respectively

The Group
In $ millions 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets 205 9N
Deferred tax habilities (42) (30)
Total 163 61
The movement in deferred tax {prior to offsetting of balances wathin the same tax junsdiction) 15 as follows
The Group
In $ milions 2013
Other
Aflowances for temporary
Deferred income tax assets losses differences Total
Balance at 1 January 136 73 209
Credit to income statement 5 12 63
Balance at 31 December 187 85 272
Available-
for-sale
finanaial Other
Accelerated tax assets temporary
Deferred income tax habilities depreciation and others differences Total
Balance at 1 January (89) (47) {12) (148)
(Charge)Credit to income statement (3) - 1 2
Credit to equity - 41 - a1
Balance at 31 December (92) (6) (11 (109}
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The Group
In $ millions 2012
Other
Allowances for temporary
Deferred income tax assets losses differences Total
Balance at 1 January 142 84 226
Charge to income statement (6) (1) (17)
Balance at 31 December 136 73 209
Available-
for-sale
finanaal Other
Accelerated tax assets temporary
Deferred income tax habilities depreciation and others differences Total
Balance at 1 January (82) {3} (22) (107)
Credit/(Charge) to income statement (7 - 10 3
Charge to equity - (44) - 44
Balance at 31 December (89) (47} 12) (148)
23 SUBSIDIARIES AND OTHER CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The Company
In $ milhons 2013 2012
Unguoted equity shares, at cost 10,326 10,326
Preference shares, at cost (Note 35) 805 -
Due from subsidiaries 1,416 833
12,547 11,159
231  MAIN OPERATING SUBSIDIARIES
The main operating subsidianes of the Group are hsted below
Effective shareholding %
Name of subsidiary Country of incorporation 2013 2012
Commeraal Banking
DBS Bank Ltd Singapore 100 100
DBS Bank (China) Limited” China 100 100
PT Bank DBS Indonesia Indonesia 99 99
DB8S Bank (Taiwan) Lirmited” Tawan 100 100
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limtted” Hong Kong 100 100
Merchant Banking
The Islarmic Bank of Asia Limited Singapore 50 50
Stockbroking
DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100

*

Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers network firms outside Singapore
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232 SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES

The main special purpose entities controlled and consolidated by the Group are listed below

Name of entity

Purpose of speaal purpose entity

Country of incorporation

Zenesis SPC
Constellation Investment Ltd

Issuance of structured notes
Issuance of structured notes

Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands

24 JOINT VENTURES

The Group’s share of iIncome and expenses, and assets and habiltties of jont venture at 31 December are as follows

The Group
In §$ milhons 2013 2012
fncome statement
Share of income 25 25
Share of expenses {19) (19)
Balance sheet
Share of total assets 232 205
Share of total liabilities 173 153
The main joint venture of the Group Is listed below

Effective shareholding %

Name of joint venture Country of incorporation 2013 2012
Hutchtnson DBS Card Limited” British Virgin Islands 50 50
*  Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers network firms outside Singapore
25 ASSOCIATES

The Group
In $ millions 2013 2012
Unquoted
Cost 783 718
Share of post acquisition reserves 134 130
Sub-total 917 848
Quoted
Cost 153 246
Net exchange translation adjustments () {14}
Share of post acquisition reserves 101 156
Sub-total® 249 388
Total 1,166 1,236

(a) The market value of quoted associates amounted to $525 milion (2012 $1,063 milion)
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The Group’s share of income and expenses, assets and habilittes and off-balance sheet items of associates at 31 December are as follows

The Group
In $ midlions 2013 2012
Income statement
Share of iIncome 342 472
Share of expenses (263) (348)
Balance sheet
Share of total assets 3,705 4,779
Share of total habilities 2,539 3,543
Off-balance sheet
Share of contingent liabilities and commitments 46 57

251 MAIN ASSOCIATES

The main associates of the Group are listed below

Effective shareholding %
Name of assocate

Country of incorporation 2013 2012
Quoted
Bank of the Philippine Islands® " The Philippines 50 99
Hwang - DBS (Malaysia) Bhd®™" Malaysia 277 277
Unguoted
Network for Electronic Transfers (Singapore) Pte Ltd  Singapore 333 333
Changsheng Fund Management Company"* China 330 330
Central Boulevard Development Pte Ltd Singapore 333 300

»

Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers network firms outside Singapore
~* Audited by other auditors

{a) The Group's effective interest in Bank of the Philippine Islands (BFY) is held wia Ayala DBS Holdings inc (ADHI) 8P 5 an associate of ADH]
) Shareholding includes 4 15% held through the Bank
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252 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
ASSOQCIATES

Acquisttion of 33% equity stake in Central Boulevard
Development Pte Ltd (CBDPL)

On 31 December 2012, the Group acquired a 30% stake in Marina
Bay Financial Centre Tower 3 by buying a 30% nterest in CBDPL The
purchase was done via Heedum Pte Ltd (Heedum), a wholly-owned
subsidiary, from Choicewide Group Limited (CGL), a joint venture of
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Ltd and Hutchison Whampoa Limited The
acquisiion was structured as a purchase from CGL of the 30% equity
interest 1t holds in, and 1ts associated shareholder’s loan it had advanced
to, CBDPL for an aggregate purchase consideration of $1 04 billion

Both parties also entered into a conditional put option agreement
for the Group to take up CGLs remaimng 3 33% equity stake in
CBDPL and its associated loan, for an estimated aggregate price of
$115 million (Put Option) Following the exercise of the Put Option
by CGL on 15 July 2013, the Group owns a one-third equity stake
in CBDPL

The Group does not eguity account for the results of Marina Bay
Suites Pte Ltd {MBSPL), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBDPL as the
acquisihon of the 33% interest in CBDPL Is structured to effectively
exclude any significant interest in MBSPL The Group, through
Heedum, has entered into a deed of undertaking with CGL whereby
the Group agrees not 10 participate in the financial and operating
policy deasions in MBSPL and that the Group would exercise all
voting rights and other nights and powers that it directly or indirectly
has or controls it CBDPL and MBSPL in accordance with the written
instructions of CGL on all matters ansing from, relating to, or
otherwise connected with MBSPL and/or CGL's ownership of MBSPL

Divestment of Bank of the Philippine islands (8PI)

On 11 October 2012, the Group divested 10 4% of its total effective
interest of 20 3% of its investment in BPI to Ayala Corporation

for a total cash consideration of $757 million (PHP 25 & biltion)

A $450 milhon gain was recognised from the transaction (Mote 9)
After the divestment, the Group held an effective interest of 9 9%
through a joint venture company, Ayala DBS Holdings Inc (ADHI},

1n which the Group owned 34 1%

On 11 November 2013, the Group entered into an agreement

to divest 1ts shares in ADHI for a total consideration of $850 milion
(PHP 29 6 billon} The transaction was to be completed in two
equal tranches, the first by the end of 2013 and the second In
January 2014 The first tranche was completed at end-November
2013 and a gain of 3171 million was recorded (Note 9) $171 million
comprised a gain of $221 million for the partial divestment of a
stake in the BPt less a sum of $50 million set aside to establish the
DBS Foundation to further the Group’s commitment to social and
community development

As at end December 2013, the Group retained significant influence
over ADHI and had representation on the ADHI board The Group
continued to equity account for its effective remaining shareholding
of 5 0% in BPI until the completion of the second tranche on

8 January 2014

Divestment of HwangDBS Investment Bank

On 22 January 2014, Hwang-DBS (Malaysta) Berhad (HDBS), m which
the Group owned an effective shareholding of 27 7%, entered into
a conditional share sale and purchase agreement with Affin Holdings
Berhad {Affin) to sell to Affin 100% equity interest in HwangDBS
Investment Bank Berhad, 100% equity interest in HDM Futures Sdn
Bhd, 53% equity interest in Hwang Investment Management Berhad
and 49% equity interest in Astan Islamic Investment Management
Sdn Bhd

As at 31 December 2013, HDBS was accounted for as investment in
an associated company

26 PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases
The leases typically run for an initial penoed of one to five years, and
may contain an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms will be renegotated

The minimum lease recevables as at the balance sheet date are
as follows

The Group

In $ miilions 2013 2012
Minimum lease receivable
Not later than 1 year 30 22
Later than 1 year but

not later than 5 years 66 64
Later than 5 years - 3
Total 96 89
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The Group
Non-investment properties
Owner- Subtotal of
Investment occupted Other non-investment
In $ millons properties properties fixed assets™ properties Total
(1 2) (3) W) =(2+3) (5)=01+4)

2013
Cost
Balance at 1 January 654 514 1,234 1,748 2,402
Additions - 10 217 227 227
Disposals - (18) {77) {95) (95)
Transfers 7 (N - (7} -
Exchange differences 2 14 8 22 24
Balance at 31 December 663 513 1,382 1,895 2,558
Less Accumulated deprecation
Balance at 1 January 157 89 664 753 910
Depreciation charge 8 13 193 206 214
Disposals - (9} (67) (76) (76)
Transfers 3 (3 - (3) -
Exchange differences 1 6 6 12 13
Balance at 31 December 169 96 796 892 1,061
Less Allowances for impairment - 48 - 48 48
Net book value at 31 December 494 369 586 955 1,449
Market value at 31 December 793 756
2012
Cost
Balance at 1 January 491 760 1,027 1,787 2,278
Additions® 2 3 333 336 338
Disposals (1) (71) (78) (149) {150}
Transfers 172 {155) an (172) -
Exchange differences (10) {23) (31) (54) (64)
Balance at 31 December 654 514 1,234 1,748 2,402
Less Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 19 124 625 149 868
Depreciation charge 8 16 155 171 179
Disposals - (19} (77) {96) (96)
Transfers n 17 {(14) 31 -
Exchange differences (1} (15) (25) (40 (41)
Balance at 31 December 157 89 664 753 910
Less Allowances for impairment - 50 - 50 50
Net book value at 31 December 497 375 570 945 1,442
Market value at 31 December 772 704

(@) Refers to computer hardware, software, office equipment, furniture and fittings and other fixed assets

(%) 2012 includes additions relating to the Group’s move to Marna Bay Financial Centre
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261 PWC Building s held as an investment property following the Group’s move to Marina Bay Financial Centre in 2012 Its net book
value was $398 million as at 31 December 2013 {2012 $404 million), and its fair value was independently appraised at $599 million (2012

$583 million)

262 The market values of investment properties are determined using investment method, or using a combination of comparable sales
and investment methods The properties are classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and the significant unobservable input used for
valuation 1s market yields As of 31 Decemnber 2013, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3

27 GOODWILL

The carrying value of the Group’s goodwill ansing from acquisition of subsidianes 1s allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) or
groups of CGUs as follows

The Group
in $ milhons 2013 2012
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited 4,631 4,631
DBS Vickers Securities Holdings Pte Ltd 154 154
Primefield Company Pte Ltd 17 17
Total 4,802 4,802
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited DBS Vickers Securities
Holdings Pte Ltd

2013 2012 2013 2012

Growth rate 45% 4 5% 4 0% 40%
90% 95% 9 0% 90%

Discount rate

The carrying values of the CGUs are reviewed at least once a year to determine If the goodwill associated with them should be impaired If a
CGU's carrying value exceeds 1ts recoverable value, a goodwill impairment charge 15 recognised in the income statement

The recoverable value 1s determined based on a value-in-use calculation The CGU's five-year projected cash flows, taking into account projected

requlatory capital requirements, are discounted by its cost of capital to derve their present value To derve the value beyond the fifth year, a
tong-term growth rate 1 imputed to the fifth-year cash flow and then discounted by the cost of capntal to derwe the terminal value The long-
term growth rate used does not exceed the historical long-term growth rate of the market the CGU operates in The recoverable value is the
sum of the present value of the five-year cash flows and the terminal value

The process of evaluating goodwill impairment invalves management judgement and prudent estimates of various factors including future cash

flows as well as the cost of capital and long-term growth rates The results can be highly sensitive to the assumptions used Management
believes that any reasonably posstble change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of the operating unit to exceed
Its recoverable amount at 31 December 2013 However, if conditions In Hong Keng and the banking industry deteriorate and turn out to be
significantly worse than anticipated in the Group's performance forecast, the goadwill may be further impaired in future penods
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28 DEPOSITS AND BALANCES FROM CUSTOMERSW
The Group
In'$ milltons 2013 2012
Analysed by currency
Singapore dollar 134,758 131,000
US dollar 75,023 52,607
Hong Kong dollar 29,840 27,339
Others 52,744 42,518
Total 292,365 253,464
Analysed by product
Savings accounts 112,429 103,512
Current accounts 48,809 42,841
Fixed deposits 122,500 102,516
Other deposits 8,627 4,595
Total 292,365 253,464
(a) Refer to Note 2 3 on change in balance sheet presentation
29 OTHER LIABILITIES
The Group

In $ millions 2013 2012
Cash coltateral received in respect of derivative portfolios 695 745
Accrued interest payable 623 624
Provision for loss in respect of off-balance sheet credit exposures 249 226
Clents” montes payable In respect of securities business 564 679
Sundry creditors and others 6,864 6,142
Bills payable 266 316
Current tax habilities 938 824
Payable m respect of short sale of securities 1.353 1,843
Deferred tax liabilities {Note 22) 42 30

Total

11,594 11,429
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The Group
In $ mullions 2013 2012
Negotiable certificates of deposit {(Note 30 1} 1,235 1,149
Senior medium term notes (Note 30 2) 5,635 3,168
Commercial papers {Note 30 3) 12,142 5,820
Other debt secunties (Note 30 4) 4,103 3,617
Total 23,115 13,754
Due wathin 1 year 17,108 8,498
Due after 1 year 6,007 5,256
Total 23,115 13,754
301 Detalls of negotiable certificates of deposit issued and outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as follows
tn $ millions The Group
Currency Interest rate and repayment terms 2013 2012
Issued by other subsidianes
CNH 1 6% to 2 99%, payable semi-annually - 48
CNH 2 8%, payable yearly - 88
HKD 2 25% 1o 4 22%, payable quarteriy 452 462
HKD 3M HIBOR + 0 9%, payable quarterly 220 244
HKD 1 2% to 4 2%, payable yearly 313 307
HKD 0% to 0 9%, payable on maturity 250 -
Total 1,235 1,149

The negotiable certificates of deposit were 1ssued by DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited under its HKD 28 billon Certificate of Deposit Programme
The outstanding negotiable certificates of deposit as at 31 December 2013 were 1ssued between 22 August 2008 and 31 December 2013 (2012
21 August 2008 and 31 January 2012) and mature between 9 January 2014 and 16 March 2021 (2012 16 January 2013 and 16 March 2021)




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 145

302 Details of senior medium term notes 1ssued and outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as follows

In $ millions The Group
Currency Interest rate and repayment terms 2013 2012
Issued by the Bank

usD 2 375%, payable half yearty 1,298 1,281
usb 2 35%, payable half yearly 1,265 1.221
usp Floating rate note, payable quarterly 569 37
GBP Floating rate note, payable quarterly 2,398 494
HKD 2 24%, payable quarterly 82 79
IDR 7 25%, payable yearly 23 28
IDR 6 89%, payable yearly - 28
Total 5,635 3,168

The senior medium term notes were 1ssued by the Bank under s USD 10 bilhon Euro Medium Term Note Programme which was first established
in June 2010 and updated to a USD 15 billion Global Medium Term Nate Programme in Cctober 2011 The outstanding senior medium term
notes as at 31 December 2013 were 15sued between 14 Septembier 2010 and 16 October 2013 (2012 8 September 2010 and 12 September
2012) and mature between 4 March 2014 and 30 March 2017 (2012 4 Apnl 2013 and 30 March 2017)

303 The zero-coupon commerctal papers which are payable on maturity were issued by the Bank under its USD 5 billon Eure Commercial
Paper Programme established in August 2011 and US Commeraial Paper Programme onginally established in December 2011 with a programme
size of USD 5 billion The US Commercial Paper Programme was upsized from USD 5 billion to USD 15 billion in June 2012 The outstanding
notes as at 31 December 2013 were issued between 21 March 2013 and 6 December 2013 {2012 31 January 2012 and 31 December 2012)
and mature between 3 January 2014 and 11 December 2014 (2012 3 January 2013 and 18 September 2013)

304 Detalls of other debt secunties 1ssued and outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as follows

In § sulhons The Group

Type 2013 2012
Issued by the Bank and other subsidiaries

Equity inked notes 708 459
Credit inked notes 1,525 1,696
Interest linked notes 800 766
Foretgn exchange linked notes 585 597
Fixed rate bonds 485 a9
Total 4,103 3,617

The outstanding securities as at 31 December 2013 were 1ssued between 31 March 2006 and 30 Decemnber 2013 (2012 31 March 2006 and
31 December 2012) and mature between 2 January 2014 and 6 November 2043 (2012 2 January 2013 and 31 October 2042}
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31 SUBORDINATED TERM DEBTS

Subordinated term debts issued by a subsidiary of the Group are classified as liabilities in accordance with FRS 32 These are long term debt
instruments that have a junior or lower priority cdaim on the 1ssuing entity's assets in the event of a default or liquidation These instruments are
In the first Instance ineligible as capital instruments under Basel lil rules as they lack provisions for conversion to ordinary shares or write-down
at the point of non-viability as determined by the Menetary Authority of Singapore, but are accorded partial eligibiity as Trer 2 capital for
calculating capital adequacy ratios under the Basel Il transitional arrangements for capital instruments issued prior to 1 January 2013

The Group

Matunty Interest

In $ million
Issue date date payment 2013 2012

Instrument Note

Issued by the Bank

US$750m 5 00% Subordinated Notes Callable
with Step-up in 2014

interest rate resets to 6-month LIBOR plus 1 61%

If not called 311 1 QOct 2004 15 Nov 2019 May/Nov 966 951

US$900m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes Callable
with Step-up In 2016
Interest rate equal to 3-month LIBOR plus 0 61% untd call date

Interest rate resets to 3-month LIBOR plus 1 61%
thereafter if not called 16 Jun 2006 15Jul 2021  Jan/Apr/lul/Oct 1,139 1,100

S$500m 4 47% Subardimated Notes Callable
with Step-up 1n 2016

Interest rate resets to 6-month Singapore Dollar Swap
Offer Rate plus 1 58% f not called 11 Jul 2006 15 Jul 2021 Jan/ul 500 500

$$1,000m 3 30% Subordinated Notes Callable in 2017

interest rate resets to 5-year Singapore Dollar Swap
Offer Rate plus 2 147% if not called 312 21 Feb 2012 21 Feb 2022 Feb/Aug 1,004 1,013

Us$750m 3 625% Subordinated Notes Cailable in 2017

Interest rate resets to 5-year US Dollar Swap
Offer Rate plus 2 229% if not called 313 21 Mar2012 21 Sep 2022 Mar/Sep 953 939

$$1,000m 3 10% Subordinated Notes Callable in 2018
Interest rate resets to 5-year Singapore Dolfar Swap
Offer Rate plus 2 085% if not called 314 14 Aug 2012 14 Feb 2023 Feb/Aug 982 1,002

Total 5,544 5,505

Due within 1 year
5.544 5,505

Due after 1 year
5,544 5,505

Total
311 Part of the fixed rate funding has been canverted to floating rate at three-month LIBOR + 0 61% wia interest rate swaps
312 The fixed rate funding has been converted to floating 7ate at six-month Singapore Dollar Swap Offer Rate + 2 22% wia interest rate swaps

313 The fixed rate funding has been converted to floating rate at three-month LIBOR + 2 21% wia interest rate swaps
314 The fixed rate funding has been converted 1o floating rate at six-month Singapore Dollar Swap Offer Rate + 2 16% via interest rate swaps

For more information on each instrument, please refer 1o "Capital Instruments” section at the Group's website (http Mwww dbs com/investor/
preferenceshares/default aspx) (unaudited)
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During the financial year, pursuant to the DBSH Share Option Plan, the Company 1ssued 1,699,266 (2012 2,104,176) ordinary shares, fully
paid in cash upon the exercise of the options granted The Company also 1ssued 5,996,350 (2012 19,579,969} ordinary shares to eligible
shareholders who elected to participate in the scrip dividend scheme

On 28 February 2012, the Company issued 70,026,649 ordinary shares upon the conversion of 180,915 non-voting convertible preference shares
(CPs) and 69,845,734 non-voting redeemable CPS The newly issued shares rank pan passu in all respects with the previously 1ssued shares

The nen-voting CPS and non-voting redeemable CPS enjoy the same dividend rate paid on ordinary shares except that the dwvidend payable 1s
subject to maximum of $0 30 per annum (nen-cumulative) All non-voting CPS have been converted to ordinary shares on 28 February 2012
The CPS do not carry voting nghts, except in certain instances e g where any relevant dividend due 1s not paid up in full or where a resolution
15 proposed varying the nghts of the preference shares Subject to the terms set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, each CPS may
be converted into one fully paid ordinary share at the option of the holder The Company may also redeem the non-voting redeemable CPS 1n
accordance with the Articles of Association

As at 31 December 2013, the number of treasury shares held by the Group 15 6,727,074 (2012 7,648,152), which 1s 0 27% (2012 0 319%) of
the total number of 1ssued shares excluding treasury shares

Movements in the number and carrying amount of share capital are as follows

The Group The Company
Shares ('000) In $ millions Shares ('000) in $ nullions
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Ordinary shares
Balance at 1 January 2,442,028 2,350,317 0,482 9,101 2,442,028 2,350,317 9,482 9,101
Issue of shares pursuant to

Scrip Dividend Scheme 5,997 19,580 103 268 5,997 19,580 103 268
Issue of shares upon exercise

of share options 1,699 2,104 18 25 1,699 2,104 18 25
Reclassification of reserves upon

exercise of share options - - 4 2 - - 4 2
Conversion of non-voting CPS

& non-voting redeemable

CPS to ordinary shares - 70,027 - 86 - 70,027 - 86
Balance at 31 December 2,449,724 2,442,028 9,607 9,482 2,449,724 2,442,028 9,607 9,482
Treasury shares
Balance at 1 January 7,648 11,321 (103} {154} 5,344 8,644 (71) (115)
Purchase of treasury shares 1,800 - (28) - 1,800 - (28) -
Draw down of reserves upon

vesting of performance shares (2.721) (3,673) 37 51 - - - -
Transfer of treasury shares - - - - (2,500) (3.300) 33 44
Balance at 31 December 6,727 7,648 (94) (103) 4,644 5,344 (66) 71
Convertible preference shares
Balance at 1 January 30,011 100,038 163 249 30,011 100,038 163 249
Conversion of non-voting CPS

& non-voting redeemable

CPS to ordinary shares - {70,027} - (86} - (70,027) - (86}
Balance at 31 December 30,011 30,011 163 163 30,011 30,011 163 163
Issued share capital,

as at 31 December 9,676 9,542 9,704 9,574




148 DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

The Group The Company
In % millions 2013 2012 2013 2012
$$805m 4 70% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible
Perpetual Capital Securities First Callable in 2019 803 - 803 -
Total 803 - 803 -

On 7 November 2013, the Company Invited holders of the outstandimg $$1 7 bitlion 4 70% Non-Cumulative Non-Convert:ble Non-Voting Class
N Preference Shares Callable In 2020 1ssued by the Bank (the Existing Preference Shares) to tender their Existing Preference Shares for purchase by
the Company for consideration comprising Perpetuat Capital Securities ssued by DBSH (Caprtal Securities) and accrued dwidends on the Existing

Preference Shares

The Company purchased existing Preference Shares representing an aggregate liquidation preference of $$805 million and issued $$805 million
Capital Securities on 3 December 2013 at 4 70%

The Capital Secunties are non-cumulative non-convertible perpetual capital secunties and qualify as Additional Ter 1 Capital under the Monetary
Authority of Singapore (MAS) Notice on Risk Based Capital Adequacy Requirements for Banks Incorporated in Singapore (MAS Notice 637) on the
basis that the Company 15 subject to the application of MAS Notice 637

The Capital Secunities are subardinated to all habilities of the Company and senior only to sharehalders of the Company They do not have any
voung nghts They are first callable at the option of the Company on 3 June 2019, subject to regulatory approval Their terms include a write-
down feature that 1s triggered if and when MAS notifies the Company that without the write-off of the principal, partially or in full, or a public
sector Injection of capital (or equivalent support), it considers that the Company or the Group would become non-viable In addition to the first
call in June 2019, the terms permit redemption for a change 1n qualification event and for taxation reasons

The Capital Securtties yield 4 70% per annum up to the first call date, 3 June 2019 If not called, the distribution rate resets every 5 years to the
then applicable five-year Swap Offer Rate plus 3 061% per annum Distributions are paid semi-annually in June and December

The non-cumulative distributions may only be paid out of distributable reserves and may be cancelled at the option of the Company As long as
any distnbution on the Capital Securities has not been made, certain restrictions are placed on the distnibutions and redemptions that may be

made by the Group on parity obligations and junior obligations as defined in the terms governing the Capital Securiiies

For more information on the instrument, please refer to “Capital Instruments” section at the Group's website (http /v dbs com/investor/
preferenceshares/default aspx) (unaudited)

34 OTHER RESERVES AND REVENUE RESERVES

341 OTHER RESERVES

The Group The Company
In $ millions 2013 2012 2013 2012
Avallable-for-sale revaluation reserves (30) 634 - -
Cash flow hedge reserves (14) m - -
General reserves 2,453 2,453 - -
Captal reserves (324) {229 - -
Share option and share plan reserves 136 101 136 101
Others 4,271 4,271 - -

Total 6,492 7,229 136 101
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Movements in other reserves dunng the year are as follows

The Group
Available- Share
for-sale  Cash flow option and
revaluation hedge General Capital  share plan Other
In §$ millions reserves reserves reserves* reserves®™ reserves reserves' Total
2013
Balance at 1 January 634 (1) 2,453 (229) 101 4,271 7.229
Net exchange translation adjustments - - - (81) - - (91)
Share of associates’ reserves - - - {4) - - (4)
Cost of share-based payments - - - - 76 - 76
Reclassification of reserves upon exercise of share options - - - - 4) - 4)
Draw down of reserves upon vesting of performance shares - - - - 37 - (37)
Avallable-for-sale financial assets and others
- net valuatron taken to equity (507) (35) - - - - (542)
—transferred to income statement (197) 21 - - - - {176)
~tax on rtems taken directly to or transferred from equity 40 1 - - - - 41
Balance at 31 December (30) (14) 2,453 (324) 136 4,271 6,492
2012
Balance at 1 January 411 (16) 2,453 (130) 86 4,271 7,075
Net exchange translation adjustments - - - (99) - - (99)
Share of associates’ reserves (3) - - - - - (3)
Cost of share-based payments - - - - 68 - 68
Reclassification of reserves upon exeraise of share options - - - - (2) - (2)
Draw down of reserves upon vesting of performance shares - - - - (51) - {51)
Avallable-for-safe financial assets and others
— net valuation taken to equrty 613 9 - - - - 622
- transferred to Income statement {345) 8 - - - - (337)
- tax on rtems taken directly to or transferred from eguity (42) (2) - - - - (44)
Balance at 31 December 634 {1 2,453 {229) 101 4271 7.229

(3} General reserves are maintained i accordance with the provisions of apphcabile laws and regulations These reserves are non distributable unless otherwise approved by
the relevant authorities Under the Banking (Reserve Fund) (Transitional Provision) regulations 2007, which came into effect on 17 June 2007, the Bank may distribute or
utihise its statutory reserves provided that the amount distributed or utihsed for each financial year does not exceed 20% of the reserves as at 30 March 2007

(b) Caprtal reserves include net exchange translation adiustrnents arising from translation differences on net investments i foraign subsidiaries, jomt venlures associates and
branches and the related foremgn currency financial instruments designated as a hedge

(c) Other reserves relate to the share premum of the Bank prior to the restructuring of the Bank under a financial services holding company DBSH, pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement under Section 210 of the Singapore Companies Act on 26 June 1999

The Company

Share option and share
plan reserves

In $ millions 2013 2012
Balance at 1 January 101 86
Cost of share-based payments 76 68
Reclassification of reserves upon exercise of share options (4) (2}
Craw down of reserves upon vesting of performance shares (37) (51}

Balance at 31 December 136 101
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342 REVENUE RESERVES

In $ millions

DBS ANNUAL REFORT 2013

Balance at 1 January
Net profit attributable to shareholders

Amount avallable for distribution

Less  Final dvidend on ordinary shares of $0 28 (one-tier tax-exempt) paid for

the previous financial year (2012 $0 28 one-tier tax-exempt)

Final dvidends on non-voting CPS and non-voting redeemable CPS of $0 02
{one-tier tax-exempt) paid for the previous financial year {2012 $0 02 one-tier tax-exempt)
Interim dividends on ordinary shares of $0 28 (one-tier tax-exempt) paid for

the current financial year {2012 $0 28 one-tier tax-exermpt)
Interim dividends on non-voting redeemable CPS of $0 28 (one-tier tax-exempt}

paid for the current financial year (2012 $0 28 one-tier tax-exempt)

Balance at 31 December

The Group
2013 2012
14,966 12,523
3,672 3,809
18,638 16,332
684 677
# #
684 681
8 8
17,262 14,966

#  Amount under $500 000

343 PROPOSED DIVIDEND

Proposed final one-tier tax-exempt dividends on ordinary shares of $0 30 per share and DBSH nen-voting redeemable CPS of $0 02 per share
has not been accounted for in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 They are to be approved at the Annual General

Meeting on 28 April 2014

35 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following preference shares i1ssued by subsidiaries of the Group are classified as non-controlling interests These instruments have a deeply
subordinated claim on the issuing entity's assets in the event of a default or iguidation These instrumenits are in the first instance ineligible as
capital instruments under Basel Hlk rules as they lack prowisions for conversion to ordinary shares or wnite-down at the point of non-wiability a3

determined by the Monetary Authority of Singapore, but are accorded partial eligibility as Tier 1 capital for calculating capstal adequacy ratios
under the Basel Ill transitional arrangements for capital instruments 1ssued prior to 1 lanuary 2013

The Group

In $ millions {ssuance Liqguidation Dividend
Instrument Note date preference payment 2013 2012
Issued by the Bank
$%$1,700m 4 70% Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible,

Non-Voting Preference Shares Caliable in 2020 351 22 Oct 2010 $250,000 Apr/QOct 895 1,700
$$800m 4 70% Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible,

Non-Voting Preference Shares Callable in 2020 352 22 Nov 2010 $100 May/Nov 800 800
Issued by DBS Capital Funding Il Corporation
$$1,500m 5 75% Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible,

Non-Voting, Guaranteed Preference Shares Callable

with Step-up in 2018 353 27 May 2008 $250,000 Jun/Dec 1,500 1,500
Non-controlling interests in subsidianies 258 261

3,453 4,261

Total

351 Dividends are payable If declared by the Board of Directors of the Bank DBSH purchased $3$805 million of the Bank's preference shares

tendered at 4 70% on 3 December 2013 (refer to Note 33)

352 Dividends are payable If declared by the Board of Directors of the Bank
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353 Dividends are payable if declared by the Board of Directors
of DBS Caprtal Funding 1| Corporation They are payable semi-annually
on 15 June, and 15 December at a fixed rate of 5 75% per annum

up to 15 June 2018 If these are not redeemed at the tenth year,
dividends witl be payable quarterly tn arrears on 15 March, 15 June,
15 September and 15 December at a floating rate of the three-
month Singapore Dallar Swap Offer Rate plus a stepped-up spread

of 3 415% per annum

For more information on each instrument, please refer to “Capital
Instruments” section at the Group's website (http /mwww dbs com/
investor/preferenceshares/default aspx) (unaudited)

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Group I1ssues guarantees, performance bonds and indemnities
In the ordinary course of business The majority of these facilities are
offset by corresponding obligations of third parties

Guarantees and performance bonds are generally written by the
Group to support the performance of a customer to third parties As
the Group will only be required to meet these cbligations in the event
of the customer’s default, the cash requirements of these instruments
are expected to be considerably below therr norminal amount

Endorsements are residual habilities of the Group in respect of bills of
exchange, which have been paid and subsequently rediscounted

The Group

In $ millions 2013 2012
Guarantees on account of customers 14,921 12,578
Endorsements and other obligations

on account of customers 5,998 8,481
Undrawn loan commitments® 158,027 135,513
Undisbursed commitments in secunties 22 291
Sub-total 178,968 156,863
QOperating fease commitments (Note 36 2) 772 875
Capital commitments 18 19
Total 179,758 157,757
Analysed by industry (excduding
operating lease and capital commitments})
Manufacturing 28,994 25,680
Burlding and construction 12,940 10,973
Housing loans 11,547 9,783
General commerce 38,337 29,185
Transportation, storage and commurnications 10,018 10,767

Government 1 319
Financial institutions, investment

and holding companies 15,965 16,317
Professtonals and private indivwiduals

(excluding housing loans) 43,020 39,069
Others 18,146 14,770
Total 178,968 156,863

The Group

In $ milhons 2013 2012
Analysed by geography (excluding

operating lease and capital commitments)®

Singapore 79,779 71,403
Hong Kong 37.644 32,231
Rest of Greater China 10,834 11,354
South and Southeast Asia 18,366 14,849
Rest of the World 32,345 27,026
Total 178,968 156,863

{a) Undrawn loan commitments are recogrused at actwation stage and include
commutments which are unconditionally cancellable by the Group (2013
$124,031 mulfion, 2012 $103 666 milhon)

b} Based on the country of incorporation of the counterparty or borrower

361 The Group has existing ouiscurcing agreements for the
provision of information technology and related support to the
Group's operations There are various termination clauses in the
agreements that could require the Group to pay terrmination fees on
early terrmination of the contract or part thereof The termination
fees are stipulated in the agreements and are determined based on
the year when the agreements or part thereof are terminated

362 The Group has existing significant operating lease
commitments including the leasing of office premises in Changi
Business Park and Marina Bay Financiat Centre in Singapore, and
One Island East in Hong Kong These include lease commitments for
which the payments will be determined in the future based on the
prevailing market rates in accordance with the lease agreements, of
which the related amounts have not been included The leases have
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights

37 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Financial denvatives are hinancial instruments whose charactenistics
are denved from the underlying assets, or from interest and exchange
rates or indices These include forwards, swaps, futures and options
The following sections outhine the nature and terms of the most
common types of denvatives used by the Group

Interest rate derivatives

Forward rate agreements give the buyer the ability to determine
the underlying rate of interest {or a specified period commencing on
a specified future date (the setilement date) There Is no exchange
of principal and settlement 1s effected on the settlement date The
settlement amount 1s the difference between the contracted rate
and the market rate prevalling on the settlement date

interest rate swaps involve the exchange of interest obligations
with a counterparty for a specified period without exchanging the
underlying (or notional) principal




152 DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

[nterest rate futures are exchange-traded agreements to buy or
sell a standard amount of a specified fixed incorme secunty or tme
deposit at an agreed interest rate on a standard future date

Interest rate options give the buyer on payment of a prefmium
the night, but not the obligation, to fix the rate of interest on a
future deposit or toan, for a specified period and commenaing
on a specified future date

Interest rate caps and floors gwe the buyer the ahility to fix the
maximum or minimum rate of interest There 15 no facility to depostt
or draw down funds, instead the writer pays to the buyer the
amount by which the market rate exceeds or 15 less than the cap rate
or the floor rate respectively This category includes combinations of
interest rate caps and floors, which are known as interest rate collars

Foreign exchange derivatives

Forward foreign exchange contracts are agreements to buy or
sell fixed amounts of currency at agreed rates of exchange on a
specified future date

Cross currency swaps are agreements to exchange, and

on termination of the swap, re-exchange principal amounts
denominated in different currencies Cross currency swaps may
involve the exchange of interest payments in ane specified
currency for interest payments in another specified currency for
a specified penod

Currency options give the buyer, on payment of a premium, the
right but not the obligation, to buy or sell specified amounts of
currency at agreed rates of exchange on or before a specified
future date

Equity derivatives

Equity options provide the buyer, on payment of a premium, the
right but not the obligation, either to purchase or sell a specified
stock or stock index at a specified price or level on or before a
specified date

Equity swaps involve the exchange of a set of payments whereby
one of these payments is based on an equity-linked return while the
other 1s typically based on an interest reference rate

Credit dervatives

Credit default swaps involve the transfer of credit nisk of a
reference asset from the protection buyer to the protection seller
The protection buyer makes one or more payments to the seller in
exchange for an undertaking by the seller to make a payment to the
buyer upon the occurrence of a predefined credit event

Commodity derivatives

Commodrty contracts are agreements between two parties to
exchange cash flows which are dependent on the price of the
underiying physical assets

Commodity futures are exchange-traded agreements to buy or sell
a standard amount of a commodity at an agreed price on a standard
future date

Commodity options give the buyer the nght, but not the obhgation,
1o buy or sell a speaific amount of commadity at an agreed contract
price on or before a speaified date

371 TRADING DERIVATIVES

Most of the Group's dervatives relate to sales and trading activities
Sales activities include the structuning and marketing of derivatives to
customers to enable them to take, transfer, modify or reduce current
or expected risks Trading actvities are entered into principaliy for

dealer’s margin or for the purpose of generating a profit from short-
term fluctuations in price

Trading includes mainly market making and warehousing to faolitate
customer orders Market making involves quoting bid and offer
prices ta other market participants with the intention of generating
revenues based on spread and volume Warehousing involves holding
on to positions In order to fiquidate In an orderly fashion with timing
of unwinding determined by market conditions and traders’ views of
markets as they evolve

37 2 HEDGING DERIVATIVES

The accounting treatment of the hedge denvative transactions varies
according to the nature of the hedge and whether the hedge meets
the speaified criteria to qualify for hedge accounting Dervatives
transacted as economic hedges but do not qualify for hedge
accounting are treated in the same way as derwative instruments
used for trading purposes

Fair value hedges

The Group’s far value hedges consist principally of interest rate
swaps used for managing interest rate gaps For the year ended

31 Decembier 2013, the gain on hedgmg nstruments was $59 million
{2012 $144 million) The total loss on hedged items attributable to
the hedged risk amounted to $59 million (2012 $143 mllion)

Cash flow hedges

The Group’s cash flow hedges consist principally of currency
forwards and currency swaps transacted to hedge highly probable
forecast transactions expected to accur at vanous future dates
against variability in exchange rates The currency forwards and
currency swaps have maturity dates that coinaide within the
expected occurrence of these transactions The hedged cash flows
are expected to occur over next 3 years following the balance sheet
date, and are expected to affect profit or loss in the same perod
these cash flows occur The ineffectiveness ansing from these
hedges was insignificant
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The Group hedges part of the currency translation risk of investments through finanoa! derivatives and borrowings The ineffectiveness ansing
from hedging of investments was insignificant The Group regularly reviews 1ts hedging strategy and rebalance based on long term outlook of the

currency fundamentals

Financial

Net instruments Remaining

Investments which hedge unhedged

n foreign the net currency

tn $ millions operations®  investments® exposures
2013

Hong Kong dollar 6,236 6,156 80

Us dollar 885 880 5

Others 5,414 1,639 3,775

Total 12,535 8,675 3,860
2012

Hong Kong dollar 5417 5,394 23

Us dollar 801 797 4

Others 4,957 1,997 2,960

Total 11,175 8,188 2,987

(a) Refer to net tangible assets of subsidiares, joint ventures and associates and capital fundsiretained earnings of overseas operations
(% Includes forwards non-dehverable forwards and borrowings used to hedge the investments

The table on the following page summarises the contractual or underlying principal amounts of derivative financial instruments held or ssued
for trading and hedging purposes The notional or contractual amounts of these instruments reflect the volume of transactions outstanding at

balance sheet date, and do not represent amounts at risk

In the financial statements, trading derivative financial instruments are revalued on a gross position basis and the unrealised gains or losses
are reflected as derivative assets or derivative liabiliies Dernvative assets and liabibities arising from different transactions are only offset if the
transactions are done with the same counterparty, a legat nght of offset exists, and the parties intend to settle the cash flows on a net basis

There was no offset of dervative assets and liabilties in 2013 and 2012
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2013 2012
Underlying Underlying

In $ millions notional Assets Liablities notional Assets Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading
Interest rate denvatives
Interest rate swaps 604,785 6,445 6,626 545,166 8,013 7,987
Finanaial futures 8,057 7 3 4,801 1 1
Interest rate options 7,621 74 98 7,788 87 110
Interest rate caps/floors 22,544 309 448 23,249 356 534
Sub-total 643,007 6,835 7.175 581,004 8,457 8,632
Foreign exchange (FX) derivatives
FX contracts 555,055 5,341 5,925 511,736 3,784 3,779
Currency swaps 134,668 3,319 3,151 107,227 3,452 3,511
Currency options 146,913 1,048 986 146,528 610 490
Sub-total 836,636 9,708 10.062 765,491 7,856 7,780
Equity derivatives
Equity options 1,861 42 56 1,933 207 245
Equity swaps 286 4 6 409 & 8
Sub-total 2,147 46 62 2,342 213 253
Credit denivatives
Credit default swaps and others 53,890 481 520 60,665 457 520
Sub-total 53,890 481 520 60,665 457 520
Commodity derivatives
Commodity contracts 2,376 41 45 1,255 3 36
Commodity futures 3,081 438 39 2,006 28 17
Commodity options 1,178 15 11 500 2 5
Sub-total 6,635 104 95 3,761 61 58
Total dervatives held for trading 1,542,315 17,174 17,914 1,413,263 17,044 17,243
Dernvatives held for hedging
Interest rate swaps held for fair value hedge 8,824 129 163 8,554 228 231
FX contracts held for fair value hedge - - - 20 - #
FX contracts held for cash flow hedge 853 - 8 586 # 1
FX contracts held for hedge of net investment 1,578 6 4 1,930 8 26
Currency swaps held for fair value hedge 1,322 - 43 61 - 2
Currency swaps held for cash flow hedge 2,690 116 - 160 - 2
Currency swaps held for hedge of net investment 1,075 1 - 1,635 - 27
Total denvatives held for hedging 16,342 252 218 12,946 236 289
Total derivatives 1,558,657 17.426 18,132 1,426,209 17,280 17,532
Impact of netting arrangements recognised for

computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) (unaudited) (9,746) (9.746) (9,616} {9,616)

7,680 8,386 7.664 7.916

#  Amounts less than $500 000
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The contractual or underlying principal amounts of denvative financial instruments of bank and non-bank counterparties amounted to $1,122
billion (2012 $1,025 bilhon) and $437 bilon (2012 $401 billion) respectively These positions were mainly booked in Singapore For purpose
of managing its credit exposures, the Group maintains collateral agreements and enters into master netung agreements with most of these
counterparties For those arrangements that comply with the regulatory requirements as set out in MAS Notice 637, the Group recognises the
netting arrangements in the computation of 1ts Capital Adequacy Ratios

As at 31 December 2012, the conditional put option agreement for the Bank through Heedum Pte Ltd to take up Choicewide Group Limited’s
remaining 3 33% equity stake in Central Boulevard Development Pte Ltd and its associated loan for an aggregate of $115 million was carried at
cost {Refer to Note 25 2) The fair value cannot be reliably estimated because of the lack of comparable market data points and the associated
uncertain parameters i the opuion valuation model The put option was exercised on 15 July 2013 at $115 million

38 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

As part of the Group's remuneration policy, the Group provides various share-based compensation plans to reward good performers, support
retention of key employees and enable employees to share in the success of the Group

Main Scheme/Plan

Note

DBSH Share Plan (Share Plan) 381
« Share Plan 1s granted to Group executives as determined by the Committee apponted to

admunister the Share Plan from time to time
» Participants are awarded shares of the Company, their equivalent cash value or a combination
* Awards consist of main award and retention award (20% of main awards}
+ The vesting of matn award I1s staggered between 2 — 4 years after grant 1 e 33% will vest 2 years

after grant Another 33% will vest on the third year and the remainder 34% plus the retention

award will vest 4 years after grant
+ The fair value of the shares awarded is computed based on the market price of the ordinary shares

at the tme of the award
DBSH Employee Share Plan (ESP) 381
*+ ESP caters to employees not eligible to participate in the above listed Share Plan Eligible employees

are awarded ordinary shares of the Company, their equivalent cash value or a combination of both

(at the discretion of the Committee)}, when time-based conditions are met
= The awards structure and vesting conditions are similar to Share Plan
« There are no additional retention awards for shares granted to top performers and key employees
« However, in speafic cases where the award forms part of an employee’s annual performance

remuneration, the retention award which constitutes 20% of the shares given in the main award

will be granted The shares in the retention award will vest 4 years after the date of grant
DBSH Share Ownership Scheme 382
« All Singapore based employees with at least one year of senvice who hold the rank of Assistant

Vice President and below are eligible
« Participants contribute up to 10% of monthly salary and the Group will match up to 5% of

monthly base salary to buy units of the Company’s ordinary shares
DBSH Share Option Plan {Option Plan) 383

» The Option Plan expired on 19 june 2009 Its termination does not affect the nghts of holders of
outstanding existing options

Option Plan 1s granted to eligible Group executives who hold the rank of Vice President {or
equivalent) and above and selected employees below the rank of Vice President (or equivalent)
The exercise price 1s equal to the average of the last dealt prices for the Company’s share as
determined by reference to the daily officaal list published by the Singapore Exchange Secunties
Trading Ltd, for the three consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant

s The options vest over a penod 1n accordance to vesting schedule and are exercisable after the first
anniversary of the date of the grant up to the date of expiration of the options

The farir value of aptions granted 15 determined using the Binornial model




156 DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

381 DBSH SHARE PLAN AND DBSH EMPLOYEE SHARE PLAN

The following table sets out the outstanding awards at the end of each reporting penocd and the movement during the year

2043 2012
Number of shares Share Plan ESP Share Plan ESP
Balance at 1 January 13,642,125 1,232,926 11,595,571 846,050
Granted 5,741,878 707,960 6,002,356 639,213
Vested {2,482,772) (238,788) (3,500,581} (171,934)
Forfeited (892,704) (167,657) (455,221) (80,403}

Balance at 31 December 16,008,527 1,534,441 13,642,125 1,232,926

Weighted average fair value of the shares granted durning the year $15 11 $15 07 $14 09 $14 10

Since the inception of the Share Plan and ESP, no awards have been cash-settled
382 DBSH SHARE OWNERSHIP SCHEME

The outstanding shares held under DBSH Share Ownership Scheme are as follows

Ordinary shares
Market value

Number {In $ millions)
2013 2012 2013 2012
Balance at 1 January 6,509,414 5,933,584 97 68
Balance at 31 December 6,658,006 6,509,414 114 97

383 DBSH SHARE OPTION PLAN

The following table sets out the fair value of the outstanding time-based awards and the movement during the year

2013 2012
Unissued number Weighted Unissued number Weighted
of ordinary shares average  of ordinary shares average
under outstanding exerase  under outstanding axercise
options price ($) options price ($)
Balance at 1 January 3,245,412 1132 5,769,925 1156
Movements during the year
— Exercised (1,699,266) 1034 (2,104,176) 1169
— Forferted/Expired {111,271) 935 (420,337) 1255
Balance at 31 December 1,434,875 12 64 3,245,412 1132
Additional information
Weighted average remaining contractua! life of
options outstanding at 31 December 0 55 years 1 04 years
Range of exercise price of options outstanding
at 31 December $1253t0%$12 81 $8 84 to $12 8t

In 2013, 1,699,266 optians (2012 2,104,176) were exercised at their contractual exercise prices During the year, the corresponding weighted
average market price of the Company’s shares was $15 44 (2012 $14 08)




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 157

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

391 Transactions between the Company and 1ts subsidiaries,
including consolidated special purpose entities, which are refated
parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed In this Note

392 During the financial year, the Group had banking
transactions with related parties, consisting of associates, joint
ventures and key management personnel of the Group These
included the taking of deposits and extension of credit card and other
loan faciities These transactions were made in the ordinary course

of business and carned out at arms-length commercia! terms, and
were not material In addition, key management personnel recewed
remuneration for services rendered dunng the financial year Non-cash
benefits incdluding performance shares were also granted

393 Total compensation and fees to key management
personnel® are as follows
The Group

In % milhons 2013 2012
Short-term benefits® 42 a1
Share-based payments® 20 16
Total 62 57
Of which Company Directors'’

remuneration and fees 12 10

(3} Includes Company Directors and members of the Management Commuttee who
have authonty and responsibility 1n planning the activities and direction of the
Group The composition and number of Directors and Management Committee
members may differ from year to year
Includes cash bonus based on amount accrued duning the year, to be pad in
the follawing year
(c) Share-based payments are expensed cver the vesting period in accordance

with FRS102

,

=

40 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
401 VALUATION PROCESS

The valuation pracesses used by the Group are governed by the
Valuation, the Rates and the Reserves frameworks These frameworks
apply to financial assets and liabilities where mark-to-market or model
valuation is required

The Rates framework governs the daily revaluation of all financial
assets and liabilities that are fair value measured, covening both
market prices as well as model inputs Financial assets and liabiliies
are marked directly using reliable and independent market prices or by
using rehiable and independent market parameters {as model inputs)
1 conjunction with a valuaton model Products with a lquid market
or those traded via an exchange will fall under the former white most
over-the-counter {OTC) exotic products will form the latter Market
parameters include interest rate yield curves, credit spreads, exchange
prices, dividend yields, option volatilties and foreign exchange rates

Valuation models go through an assurance process carried out by
the Risk Management Group (RMG), independent of the madel
developers This assurance process would review the underlying
methodelogy including its logic and conceptual soundness together
with the model inputs and outputs Model assurances are conducted
prior to iImplementation and subject 1o regular review or when there
are significant changes arising from market or portiolio changes
Where necessary, the Group also imposes model reserves and other
adjustments in determining far value Models are approved by the
Group Market and Liguidity Risk Commutiee

The majonty of OTC denvatives are traded 1n active markets
Valuations are determined using generally accepted models
(discounted cash flows, Black-Scholes model, interpolation techniques)
based on quoted market prices for simifar instruments or underlyings

A process of independent price verification {(IPV} 15 1n place to establish
the accuracy of the market parameters used when the marking 1s
performed by the Front Office The IPV process entails independent
checks to compare traders’ marks to independent sources such as
broker/dealer sources or market consensus providers The results

of the IPV are reviewed by independent control functions on a
monthly basis

For lliguid complex financial instruments where mark-to-market 1s
not possible, the Group will value these products using an approved
valuation model Prices and parameters used as inputs o the model
or to any intermediate technique Involving a transfermation process
must be derived from approved market reliable sources Where
possible, the inputs must be checked aganst multiple sources

for rebability and accuracy Rehance will be placed on the model
assurance framework established by RMG for assurance of valyation
madels as fit for purpose

The Group uses various market accepted benchmark interest rates
such as LIBOR and Swap Offer Rates to determine the fair value of
the finangial mstruments

Where unobservable inputs are used in these models resulting in
Level 3 classification, valuation adjustments or reserves will be taken
for the purpose of adjusting for uncertainty in valuations Valuation
adjustment or reserve methodologies are used to substantiate the
unobservable Inputs and attempt to quantify the level of uncertainty
in valuations Such methodologtes are governed by the Reserve
Framework and require approval by the Group Market and Liquidity
Risk Commuttee

The main valuation adjustments and reserves are described below

Model and parameter uncertainty adjustments

Valuation uncertainties may occur during fair value measurement
either due to uncertainties in the required input parameters or
uncertainties in the modelling methods used in valuation process
In such situations, adjustments may be necessary to take these
factors into account
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For example, where market data such as prices or rates for an
nstrument are no longer observable after an extended periad of
time, these inputs used to value the financial instruments may
no longer be relevant in the current market conditions In such
situations, adjustments may be necessary to address the priaing
uncertainty ansing from the use of stale market data inputs

Credit risk adjustment

Credit nsk adjustment 1s sncorporated nto dervative valuations to
reflect the impact on farr value of counterparty credit nsk Credit sk
adjustment 1s based upon the creditworthiness of the counterparties,
magnitude of the current or potential exposure on the underlying
transactions, netting arrangements, coflateral arrangements, and the
matunty of the underlying transactions

Day 1 profit or loss (P&L) reserve

In situations where the market for an instrument is not active and Its
fair value s established using a valuation model based on significant
unobservable market parameters, Day 1 P&L reserve Is utihsed to defer
the P&L ansing from the difference between the transaction price and
the model value A market parameter 1s defined as being significant
when its tmpact on the Day t P&L is greater than an internally
determined threshold The Day 1 PRL reserve 15 released to income
statement as the parameters become observable or the transaction
closed out or amortised over the duration of the transaction At year
end, the unamortised Day 1 P&L was not matenal

Bid offer adjustment

The Group often holds, at varying points in time, both long or short
posittons in financal instruments which are valued using rmid market
levels Bid offer adjustments are then made to adjust net open
position valuations to the respective bid or offer levels as appropriate

402 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The fair value hierarchy accords the highest level to observable inputs
such as unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities and the lowest level to unobservable inputs The
fair value measurement of each financial nstrument 1s categonsed in
accordance to the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the input
with the lowest level that i1s significant to the entire measurement

If unobservable nputs are deemed as significant, the financal
instrument will be categorised as Level 3

DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Financial instruments that are valued using quoted prices in active
markets are classified as Level 1 within the fawr value hierarchy These
would include government and sovereign securities, listed equities
and corporate debt securities which are actively traded Dervatives
contracts which are traded in an active exchange market are also
classified as Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy

Where fair value 1s determined using quoted market prices in less
active markets or quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities, such
instruments are generally classified as Level 2 in cases where quoted
prices are generally not available, the Group will determine the fair
value based on valuation technigues that use market parameters

as Inputs including but not imited to yield curves, volatihties and
foreign exchange rates The mayoriy of valuation technigues employ
only observable market data and so reliability of the fair value
measurement is high These would include corporate debt securities,
repurchase, reverse repurchase agreements and most of the Group’s
over-the-counter derivatives

The Group classifies financial instrurments as Level 3 when there 15
rellance on unobservable inputs to the valuation model attributing
to a significant contribution to the mstrument value These would
include all input parameters which are derived from histoncal

data such as correlation or volatilities as well as unguoted equity
securities The fair value of unguoted equity secunties 1s measured
in comparison with recent transactions in the equity of the
company n question or comparable companes n simrar industries
Level 3 inputs also include all quoted secunty prices that have not
been updated for more than 3 months, quoted proxies In active
markets for non-similar asset classes {e g bonds marked over credit
default swap spreads), as well as pricestvaluations that are obtained
from counterparties Valuation reserves or priong adjustments
where applicable will be used to converge to farr value
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The following table presents assets and habilities measured at fair value, classified by level within the far value hierarchy
The Group

In $ milhons Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2013
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Singapore Government securities and treasury bills 2,013 - - 2,013
— Other government securities and treasury bills 4,207 - - 4,207
— Bank and corporate debt secunties 6,808 857 539 8,204
— Equity securities 437 147 - 584
- Other financial assets - 3,258 - 3,258
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
- Singapore Government securities and treasury bifls 7.332 - - 7,332
— Other government secunties and treasury bills 13,297 60 - 13,357
—Bank and corporate debt securtties 8,982 2,543 26 11,551
- Equity securities® 889 2 131 1,022
- Other financial assets 253 5,381 - 5,634
Derwvatives 50 17,355 21 17,426
Liabilities
Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Other debt securities - 3,595 21 3,616
- Other financial iabilities 1,353 2,025 - 3,378
Derivatives 40 18.041 51 18,132
2012
Assets
Financal assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Singapore Government securities and treasury bills 2,639 - - 2,639
- Other government securibies and treasury bills 6,206 - - 6,206
- Bank and corporate debt securities 3,470 1,107 97 4,674
— Equity securities 235 - - 235
— Other finanaal assets - 1,722 - 1,722
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
~ Singapore Government securittes and treasury bills 10,284 - - 10,294
— Other government securities and treasury bulls 17.262 - - 17,262
- Bank and corporate debt securities 7.204 2,619 36 9,859
- Equity securities® 702 43 126 871
— Other financial assets - 4,225 - 4,225
Derivatives 29 17,229 22 17,280
Liabilities
Financtal liabihyes at fair value through profit or loss
- Other debt secunties - 3,493 25 3,518
~ Other financial habilities 1,861 2,469 1 4,331
Derivatives 19 17,502 1 17,532

(3) Excludes unguoted equities stated at cost of $278 midhon (2012 3228 miflion)
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The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the financial year ended

Balance at
1 January

Farr value gains or losses

Purchases

Issues

Transfers  Transfers
out 31 December

Settlements n

Balance at

tn $ mifions

Other
comprehensive
Income

2013

Assets

Financial assets at far
value through
profit or lass

— Bank and corporate
debt securties

Avallable-for-sale
financial assets

- Bank and corporate
debt secunties

- Equity securities

Derivatives

Liabihities
Financial liabitities at fair
vaiue through
profit or loss
- Other debt securities
— Other financial iabilities
Derwvatives

2012

Assets

Financial assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

— Bank and corporate
debt securities

Available-for-sale
financial assets

— Bank and corporate
debt securities

— Equity securities

Derivatives

Liabilities
Financial lrabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss
— Other debt secunities
— Other financial habilities
Dervatives

97

36
126
22

25

"

210

286
278
18

28

18

(23) -

o0
-
(=]

4 -

(38) -

477

51

18

(12) -

(11) -

(22) -

@ -

(97)e 25

(216) -
(27 -
{S) 34

(9}

(1
0]

539

26
131
21

21

51

97

36
126
22

"

(@) Principally reflects settlement of Level 3 debt securities which were calfed backimatured during the year
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Economic hedges entered into for Level 2 exposures may be classified within a different category (1 e Level 1) and similarly. hedges entered for
Level 3 exposures may also be classified within a different category (1e Level 1 and/or Level 2) The effects are presented gross in the table

Duning the year, the Group transferred financial assets and liabilities consisting pnmartly corporate bonds of $264 milion (2012 $112 mullion)
from Level 1 to Level 2 due to reduced market activity for these financial instruments

Gains and losses on Level 3 financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Category reported in the Income Statement

in 5 millions Met income from
2013 Net trading Income nvestment securnties Total
Total gain/(loss) for the period Included in iIncome statement {(17) 8 (9)
Of which

Change in unrealised gam/(ioss) for the period included in

income statement for assets held at the end of the reporting period (17) - {17)

Fair value gains or losses taken to Other Comprehensive Income are reported i the Statement of Comprehensive Income as “Net valuation taken
to equity”

Effect of changes in significant unobservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible alternatives
As at 31 December 2013, financial mstruments measured with valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3) ncluded unquoted
equity investments, bank and corporate debt securities, interest rate and credit derivatives and financial liabilitres from structured product issuances

There are Iimited inter-relationships between unobservable inputs as the financial instruments are usually categonsed into Level 3 because of a
single unobservable nput

In estimating sigrificance, the Group performed sensitivity analysis based on methodologies applied for farr value adjustments These
adjustments reflect the values which the Group estimates to be appropriate to reflect uncertainties in the inputs used {e g based on stress
testing methodolegies on the uncbservable input) The methodologies used can be statistical or based on other relevant approved technigues

The movement in farr value ansing from reasonably possible changes to the signrficant unobservable inputs 1s assessed as not sigruficant

In $ millions

2013 Fair Value Classification Valuation technique Unobservable Input

Assets

Bank and corporate debt securities 539 FvpL@ Discounted Cash Flows Credit spreads

Bank and corporate debt secunties 26 AFSB Discounted Cash Flows Credit spreads

Equity securities {Ungquoted) 131 AFSH Net Asset Value Net asset value of securities

Dervatives 21 FvpLe CDS models/Option & Credit spreads/
interest rate pncang model Correlations/Basis Volatility

Total 717

Liabihities

Other debt securities 21 FvpL® Discounted Cash Flows Credit spreads

Derivatives 51 FvPL® DS models/Option & Credit spreads/Correlations
Interest rate pricing model

Total 72

{a) FVPL denotes financial instruments classified as farr value through profit or loss
{b) AFS denotes financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
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403 FINANCIAL ASSETS & LIABILITIES NOT CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE

For financial assets and habilities not carried at fair value on the financial statements, the Group has ascertained that therr fair values were not
materially different from their carrying amounts at year-end

For cash and balances with central banks, due from banks, loans and advances to customers, as well as due to banks and deposits and
balances from customers, the basis of arriving at farr values 1s by discounting cash flows using the relevant market interest rates for the

respective currency

For investment debt securities and subordinated term debts 1ssued, fair values are determined based on independent market quotes, where
avallable Where market prices are not avallable, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow method

For unquoted equities not carried at fair value, fair values have been estimated by reference to the net tangible asset backing of the investee
Unquoted equities of $278 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012 $228 million) were stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses
because the fair value cannot be reliably estimated using valuation techmques supported by observable market data The Group intends to
dispose of such instruments through pubtic listing or trade sale

The fair value of vanable interest-bearing as well as short term financial instruments accounted for at amortised cost is assumed to be
approximated by their carrying amounts

11 CREDIT RISK
411 MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK

The following table shows the exposure to credit nisk of an-balance sheet and off-balance sheet financial instruments, before taking into
account any collateral held, other credit enhancements and netting arrangements For on-balance sheet financial assets, the maximum
credit exposure is the carrying amounts For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit nsk is the amount the Group would
have to pay if the instrument 1s called upen For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit nsk i1s the full amount of the undrawn
credit facilities granted to customers

The Group
In $ millions 2013 2012
Cash and balances with central banks {excluding cash on hand) 16,923 16,116
Government securities and treasury bills 27,497 36,426
Due from banks 39,817 29,406
Dervatives 17.426 17,280
Bank and corporate debt secunities 31,662 24,114
Loans and advances to customers 248,654 210,519
Other assets (excluding deferred tax assets) 8,720 8,611
Credit exposure 390,699 342,472
Contingent liabiities and commitments (excluding operating lease and capital commitments) 178,968 156,863
Total credit exposure 569,667 499,335

The Group's exposures to credit nisk, measured using the expected gross credit exposures that will anse upon a default of the end obligor are
as shown in the Group's Basel Il Pillar 3 Disclosures These exposures, which include both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet financial
instruments, are shown without taking into account any collateral held or netting arrangements

Analysis of collateral

Whilst the Group’s maximum exposure to credit nisk 15 the carrying value of the assets or, in the case of off-balance sheet instruments, the amount
guaranteed, committed, accepted or endorsed, the likely exposure may be lower due to offsetting collateral, credit guarantees and other actions
taken to mitigate the Group’s exposure
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The description of collateral for each class of financial asset 1s set out below

Balances with central banks, government securities and treasury bills, due from banks and bank and corporate debt securities
Collateral i1s generally not scught for these assets

Dervatives

The Group maintains collateral agreements and enters Into master netting agreements with most of the counterparties for denivative transactions
Please refer to Note 37 for the impact of netting arrangements recognised for the computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio {CAR)

Loans and advances to customers, contingent habilities and commitments
Certain loans and advances to cusiomers, contingent labilities and commitments are typically collateralised to a substantial extent In particular,

residential mortgage exposures are generally fully secured by residential properties Income-producing real estate, which 1s a sub-set of the
Specialised Lending exposure, are fully secured by the underlying assets financed

The extent to which credit exposures are covered by Basel Il-eligible collateral, besides real estate, after the application of the requisite requlatory
hair-cuts, 1s shown in the Group’s Basel Il Pillar 3 Disclosures The amounts are a sub-set of the actual collateral arrangements entered by the
Group as Basel Il imposes stnct legal and operational standards before collateral can be admitted as credit risk mitigants As a result, certain
collateral arrangements which do not meet its criteria will not be included Certain collateral types which are not permitted as credit nisk mitigants
for credit exposures under the Standardised Approach are also excluded

412 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows

The Group

In $ mithons 2013 2012
Leans and advances 1o customers

Performing Loans

— Neither past due nor impaired (1} 247,811 210,541

- Past due but not impaired (i) 1,488 745

Non-Performing Loans

- imparred (1} 2,882 2,542
Total gross loans (Note 19} 252,181 213,828
n Loans and advances neither past due nor imparred, analysed by loan grading and industry

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the loan gradings
in MAS Notice to Banks No 612, “Credit Files, Grading and Provisioning” are as follows

The Group

In § millions Pass Special mention Total
2013

Manufactuning 28,664 771 29,435
Building and construction 42,206 3 42,547
Housing loans 48,611 - 48,611
General commerce 50,304 1,023 51,327
Transportation, storage and communications 19,744 350 20,094
Finanaial institutions, investments and holding companies 10,585 90 10,675
Professionals and private individuals {excluding housing loans) 18,544 22 18,566
Cthers 26,205 351 26,556

Total 244,863 2,948 247,811
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The Group
In $ millhions Pass Special mention Total
2012
Manufacturing 25,785 804 26,589
Building and construction 35,829 183 36,012
Housing loans 45,119 150 45,269
General commerce 36,711 1,105 37,816
Transportation, storage and communications 16,100 447 16,547
Financial institutions, investments and holding companies 10,745 50 10,795
Prafessionals and private individuals (excluding housing loans) 14,684 23 14,707
Others 22,365 a4 22,806
Total 207,338 3,203 210,541
{D)] Loans and advances past due but not impaired, analysed by past due pericd and industry
The Group
Less than 20 30-59 days 60-90 days
In $ millions days past due past due past due Total
2013
Manufacturing 79 29 3 M
Buillding and construction 133 87 23 243
Housing loans 354 43 27 424
General commerce 65 10 4 79
Transportation, storage and communications 20 4 2 26
Financial institutions, investment and heolding companies 73 - - 73
Professionals and private individuals {excluding housing loans) 373 71 15 459
Others 63 7 3 73
Total 1,160 251 77 1,488
2012
Manufacturing 93 17 4 114
Building and construction 82 1 6 89
Housing loans 180 14 3 187
General commerce 122 18 3 143
Transportation, storage and communications 5 - 5
Financia! institutions, investment and holding companies - - - -
Professionals and private indwiduals (excluding housing loans) a8 10 2 100
Others 84 12 1 97
Tota! 654 72 19 745
(m)  Non-performing assets (NPAs}
The table below shows the movements in non-performing assets during the year for the Group
The Group
In $ millions 2013 2012
Balance at 1 January 2,726 2,904
New NPAs 1,085 364
Upgrades, recoveries and translations {123) (364)
V\{rlte-offs (692) (178)
Balance at 31 December 2,996 2,726
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Non-performing assets by loan grading and industry
The Group
NPAs Specific allowances
Sub- Sub-

In $ millions standard Doubtful Loss Total standard Doubtful Loss Total
2013
Customer loans
Manufactunng 295 139 54 488 56 130 54 240
Building and construction 184 41 1 226 11 30 1 42
Housing loans 100 3 9 112 - - 9 9
General commerce 250 98 49 397 21 72 49 142
Transportation, storage

and communicanons 832 295 18 1,145 164 283 18 465
Finanaial nstitutions, investment

and holding companies 48 143 74 265 - 72 74 146
Professional and private individuals

(excluding housing loans) 130 14 11 155 24 13 11 48
Others 76 3 15 94 19 3 15 37
Total customer loans 1,915 736 231 2,882 295 603 231 1,129
Debt securities 5 1 3 9 - - 3 3
Contingent items and others 61 16 28 105 11 11 28 50
Total 1,981 753 262 2,996 306 614 262 1.182
Of which restructured loans 878 343 56 1,277 168 326 56 550

The Group
NPAs® Speafic allowances®
Sub- Sub-

In $ millions standard Doubtful Loss Total standard Doubtful Loss Total
2012
Customer loans®
Manufacturning 108 152 92 352 9 139 92 240
Building and construction 47 32 4 83 8 26 4 38
Housing loans 92 4 10 106 1 1 10 12
General commerce 140 63 74 277 23 58 74 155
Transportation, storage

and communications 708 207 286 1,201 152 82 286 520
Financial institutions, investment

and holding companies 105 258 41 404 43 181 41 265
Profassional and private individuals

(excluding housing loans} 138 12 12 162 23 1 12 46
Others 18 7 17 42 4 5 17 26
Total customer loans 1,356 735 536 2,627 263 503 536 1,302
Debt secunties 7 2 4 13 - - 4 4
Contingent items and others 42 15 29 86 5 15 29 49
Total 1,405 752 569 2,726 268 518 569 1,355
Of which restructured loans 888 223 276 1,387 200 114 276 590

(a) Certain loans to investment holding companies have been reclassified to better reflect the underlying prncipal actnaty of the comparies owned by the holding
company The amounts for prior penod have afso been redlassified to conform to the current presentation
th} 2012 NPAs and specific allowances for custorer foans each mncludes $85 mitlion iy interest receivables
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Non-performing assets by region®
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The Group

Speafic General
In $ millions NPAs  allowances allowances
2013
Singapore 440 113 1,066
Hong Kong 235 117 461
Rest of Greater China 284 146 602
South and Southeast Asia 638 227 342
Rest of the World 1,399 579 394
Total 2,996 1,182 2,865
2012
Singapore a1 133 1,056
Hong Kong 245 127 431
Rest of Greater China 237 132 354
South and Southeast Asia 257 159 330
Rest of the World 1,576 804 340
Total 2,726 1,355 2,511
(a) Based on the country of incorporation of the borrower
Non-performing assets by past due penod

The Group
In § milltons 2013 2012
Not overdue 1,281 1,245
< 90 days past due 275 297
91-180 days past due 272 193
> 180 days past due 1,168 991
Total past due assets 1,715 1,481
Total 2,996 2,726
Collateral value for non-perferming assets
The Group

In $ millions 2013 2012
Properties 351 268
Shares and debentures 323 58
Fixed deposits 33 32
Others 303 252
Total 1,010 611

Past due non-performing assets by industry

The Group

In S millions 2013 2012
Manufacturing 468 34
Building and construction 123 73
Housing loans 923 105
General commerce 368 231
Transportation, storage

and communications 189 193
Financial instituticns, investment

and holding companies 197 312
Professional and private

indwviduals (excluding housing loans) 111 118
QOthers 83 39
Sub-total 1,632 1,412
Debt securities, contingent items and others 83 69
Total 1,715 1,481
Past due non-perforning assets by region®®

The Group

In $ milhons 2013 2012
Singapore 409 346
Hong Kong 19 198
Rest of Greater China 261 215
South and Southeast Asia 471 194
Rest of the World 300 459
Sub-total 1,632 1.412
Debt secunties, contingent items and others 83 69
Total 1,715 1,481

{a) Based on the country of incorporation of the borrower
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413 CREDIT QUALITY OF GOVERNMENT SECURITIES AND TREASURY BILLS AND BANK AND CORPORATE DEBT SECURITIES

The table below presents an analysis of Government secunties and treasury bills and Bank and corporate debt secunties for the Group by rating

agency designation as at 31 December

Singapore Other Bank and
Government government torporate
In $ millons secunities and  secunties and debt
External rating treasury bills treasury bills securnties
2013
ABA 9,894 560 8,108
AA-to AA+ - 13,376 2,064
A-10 A+ - 430 6,419
Lower than A- - 3,237 3,589
Unrated - - 11,482
Total 9,894 17,603 31,662
2012
AAA 12,933 1,642 3,271
AA- to AA+ - 16,174 1,733
A-to A+ - 861 5,675
Lower than A- - 4,816 2,753
Unrated - - 10,682
Total 12,933 23,493 24114
414 CREDIT RISK BY GEOGRAPHY AND INDUSTRY
The exposures are determined based on the country of incorporation of borrower, 1ssuer or counterparty
Bankand Loans and
Government corporate advances to
in $ millions secunities and Due from debt customers
Analysed by geography treasury bills banks Derivatives secunties {Gross) Total
2013
Singapore 9,894 856 2,095 14,214 119,463 146,522
Hong Kong 2,452 3,027 1,565 1,122 41,418 49,584
Rest of Greater Chma 2,594 20,337 1,248 1,971 47,910 74,060
South and Southeast Asia 2,780 4,217 1,136 3,008 23,004 34,145
Rest of the World 9,777 11,380 11,382 11,347 20,386 64,272
Total 27,497 39,817 17,426 31,662 252,181 368,583
2012
Singapore 12,933 625 2,609 9,273 101,485 126,925
Hong Kong 2,693 1,004 1,358 1,137 38,119 44,311
Rest of Greater China 2,466 15,912 927 1,524 30,678 51,507
South and Southeast Asia 4,314 4,017 661 2,115 23,045 34,152
Rest of the World 14,020 7,848 11,725 10,065 20,501 64,159
Total 36,426 29,406 17,280 24,114 213,828 321,054
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Bank and  Loans and

Government corporate advances to
In $ mithions securnties and Due from debt customers
Analysed by industry® treasury bills banks Dernvatives securnties (Gross) Total
2013
Manufacturing - - 454 1,770 30,034 32,258
Building and construction - - 137 2,641 43,016 45,794
Housing loans - - - - 49,147 49,147
General commerce - - 568 1,115 51,803 53,486
Transportation, storage and commumcations - - 545 2,524 21,265 24,334
Finanaal nstitutions, investment and holding companies - 39,817 14,699 13,542 11,013 79,071
Government 27,497 - - - - 27,497
Professionals and private indwiduals {excluding housing loans) - - 145 - 19,180 19,325
Others - - 878 10,070 26,723 37,671
Total 27,497 39,817 17,426 31,662 252,181 368,583
2012
Manufacturing - - 319 1,065 27,037 28,421
Buillding and construction - - 238 1,590 36,179 38,007
Housing loans - - - - 45,570 45,570
General commerce - - 289 1,012 38,230 39,531
Transportation, storage and communications - - 498 2,359 17,745 20,602
Finangial instrtutions, investment and holding companies - 29,406 14,700 10,997 11,155 66,258
Government 36,426 - - - - 36,426
Professionals and private individuals (excluding housing loans) - - 68 - 14,969 15,037
Others - - 1168 7.091 22,943 31,202
Total 36,426 29,406 17,280 24,114 213,828 321,054

{2} Certain loans to mvestment holding companses have been reclassified to better reflect the underlying panaipal actmity of the compantes owned by the holding
company The amounts for prior perod have also been reclassified to conform to the current presentation
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The table below analyses assets and habilities of the Group as at 31 December based on the remaining period as at balance sheet date to the

contractual maturity date

Less than 1 week to 1t03 3to12 1to3 More than No specific

In $ millions 7 days 1 month months months years 3 years maturity Total
2013
Cash and balances with

central banks 15,240 586 671 2,007 222 - - 18,726
Government securities

and treasury bills 24 1,803 4,284 9,739 4,453 7.124 - 27,497
Due from banks 14,134 5,124 9,143 11,013 403 - - 39,817
Derwvatives® 17,426 - - - - - - 17,426
Bank and corporate secunties 83 1,548 4,267 3,800 6,956 15,008 1,884 33,546
Loans and advances tc customers 16,115 29,755 27,852 47,190 48,153 79,589 - 248,654
Other assets 1,898 468 583 2,807 390 2,168 611 8,925
Associates - - - - - - 1,166 1,166
Properties and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1,449 1,449
Goodwill - - - - - - 4,802 4,802
Total assets 64,990 39,284 46,800 76,556 60,577 103,889 9,912 402,008
Due to banks 6,414 2,268 2,566 1,285 1,039 - - 13,572
Deposits and balances

from customers 187,914 40,730 34,087 26,196 2,992 446 - 292,365
Dervatves® 18,132 - - - - - - 18,132
Other liabilities 2,215 1,083 141 3,711 555 2,558 1,331 11,594
Other debt securities 682 2,512 5,939 7,975 2,779 3,228 - 23,115
Subordinated term debts - - - - - 5,544 - 5,544
Total habilities 215,357 46,593 42,733 39,167 7,365 11,776 1,331 364,322
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - 3.453 3,453
Shareholders’ funds - - - - - - 34,233 34,233
Total equity - - - - - - 37,686 37,686

(a) Derwvatives financial assets and hiabilities are included in the “Less than 7 days” bucket as they are manly held for trading Refer to the table in Note 42 2 on cash fiows

associated with these dervatives
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Less than 1 week to 1to3 3to 12 1t03 More than No speafic

In $ miflions 7 days 1 month months months years 3 years maturity Total
2012
Cash and balances with

central banks 10,257 1,974 4,160 1,381 - - - 17,772
Government secunties

and treasury bills 172 1,616 5,166 10,747 11,486 7,239 - 36,426
Due from banks 7,588 4,307 5,664 10,509 1,245 a3 - 29,406
Derwatives® 17,280 - - - - - - 17,280
Bank and corporate securities 17 758 855 3,921 7,731 10,832 1,334 25,448
Loans and advances to customers 14,566 23,445 21,014 34,295 44,614 72,585 - 210,519
Other assets 3,313 159 505 1,454 2,947 233 91 8,702
Associates - - - - - - 1,236 1,236
Properties and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1,442 1,442
Goodwill - - - - - - 4,802 4,802
Total assets 53,193 32,259 37.364 62,307 68,023 90,982 8,905 353,033
Due to banks 9,619 2,221 1,827 126 1,192 366 - 15,351
Deposits and balances

from customers 159,738 34,136 28,735 26,609 3,575 671 - 253,464
Derivatives™® 17,532 - - - - - - 17,532
Other iabilities 6,434 1,169 381 2,152 587 676 30 11,429
Other debt securities 1,222 2,729 2,488 2,059 2,124 3,132 - 13,754
Subordinated term debts - - - - - 5,505 - 5,505
Total habilites 194,545 40,255 33,431 30,846 7,478 10,350 30 317,035
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - 4,261 4,261
Shareholders’ funds - - - - - - 31,737 31,737
Total equity - - - - - - 35,998 35,998

(a) Denvates financial assets and habiltties are mcluded in the “Less than 7 days” bucket as they are mamnly held for trading Refer to the table in Note 42 2 on cash flows

assoclated with these denvatives

The above table includes disclosure of the contractual matunty of financial iabilities, which approximates the same analysis on an undiscounted
basis as total future interest payments are not material relative to the principal amounts Assets and habilities (iIncluding non-maturing savings/
current deposits) are represented on a contractual basis or in a period when it can legally be withdrawn On a behavioural basis for hquidity nsk

analysis, the assets and habilites cash flows may differ from contractual basis
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422 DERIVATIVES
The table below shows the contractual undiscounted cash flows for denvatives settled on net and gross settlement basis

Lessthan 1 weekto 1to3 3to12 More than

In $ milhions 7 days 1 month months months 1 year Total
2013
Derwvatives settled on a net basis? {407) (7 44 7 (379) {742)
Derivatives settled on a gross basis
- outflow 33,741 58,422 92,906 182,712 102,481 470,262
- inflow 34,051 58,514 93,062 182,626 102,036 470,289
2012
Dernvatives settled on a net basis® {469) 8 (10} 53 151 (283)
Derwvatives settled on a gross basis
- outflow 30,018 63,640 111,228 136,208 77,202 418,296
—inflow 30,017 63,741 111,257 136,421 76,786 418,222

(3} Positive indicates inflow and negative indicates outflow of funds

423 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The table below shows the Group's contingent habilities and commitments For commitments, 1t refers to the penod where they expire based on
the remaining penod to contractual maturity date as at the balance sheet date

Less than Tto3 35 Over

In $ mihions 1 year years years 5 years Total
2013

Guarantees, endorsements and other contingent items 20,919 - - - 20,919
Undrawn loan commitments® and other facibities 139,109 8,261 8,037 2,642 158,049
Operating lease commitments 184 277 244 67 772
Capital commitments 18 - - - 18
Total 160,230 8,538 8,281 2,709 179,758
2012

Guarantees, endorsements and other contingent items 21,059 - - - 21,059
Undrawn loan commitments® and other facihues 126,127 3,656 3,744 2,277 135,804
Cperating lease commitments 211 30 255 108 875
Capital commitments 17 2 - - 19
Total 147,414 3,859 3,999 2,385 157,757

(3) Undrawn foan commitments are recogmsed at actvation stage and include commitments which are unconditionally cancellable by the Group

The Group expects that not all of the contingent habilties and undrawn loan commitments will be drawn before expiry
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43 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to diversify Its sources of capital, 1o allocate capital efficently, guided by the need to maintain
a prudent relationship between available capital and the nisks of its underlying businesses, and to meet the expectations of key constituencies,
including investors, regulators and rating agencies The Group has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements (whether prescribed
by regulation or by contract) throughout the financial year

The capitat management process, which is under the oversight of the Capital Committee, includes periodic reviews of both the demand for and
supply of capital across the Group Overseas subsidiaries and non-banking subsidiaries of the Group may be required to comply with country-
specific and industry-specific capital requirements depending on the yurisdiction and industry in which they operate, and are allocated capital
accordingly 1o ensure regulatory comphance Quarterly updates on the Group's capital position are provided to the Board of Directors

The Group 15 subject to the capital adequacy requirements set out in the Monetary Authonty of Singapore’s Notice to Banks No 637 (Notice on
Risk Based Capital Adequacy Requirements far Banks incorporated in Singapore), which effects the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision’s
capital adequacy framework 1n Singapore

44 SEGMENT REPORTING
441 BUSINESS SEGMENT REPORTING

The business segrment results are prepared based on the Group’s internal management reporting which reflects the organisation management
structure As the activities of the Group are highly integrated, internal allocation has been made in preparing the segment information Amounts
for each business segment are shawn after the allocation of certain centrabised costs, funding income and the apphication of transfer pricing,
where appropriate Transactions between segments are recorded within the segment as If they are third party transactions and are eliminated
on consolidation

The vanous business segments are described below

Consumer Banking/Wealth Management

Consumer Banking/Wealth Management provides indwidual customers with a diverse range of banking and related financial services The
products and services avallable to customers include current and savings accounts, fixed deposits, loans and home finance, cards, payments,
investment and insurance products

Institutional Banking

Institutional Banking provides financial services and products to institutional clients including bank and non-bank financial institutions,
government-tinked companies, large corporates and small and medium-sized businesses The business focuses on broadening and deepening
customer relationships Products and services comprise the full range of credit faciities from short term working capital financing to specialised
lending It also provides global transactional services such as cash management, trade finance and securities and fiduciary services, treasury and
markets products, corparate finance and adwvisory banking as well as capital markets solutions In addition, Institutional Banking also includes
islamic Bank of Asia From 1 January 2013, DBS Vickers Securities, which provides equities and derivatives brokerage services, has been classified
under the "Others” segment Histonical figures have been reclassified accordingly

Treasury

Treasury provides treasury services o corporations, mstitutional and private investors, financial institutions and other market participants It s
primarily involved in sales, structuning, market making and trading across a broad range of financial products including foreign exchange, interest
rate, debt, credit, equity and other structured dervatives Income from these financial products and services offered to the customer of other
business segments, such as Consumer Banking/MWealth Management and Insututional Banking, 15 reflected in the respective segments Treasury is
also responsible for managing surplus funds

Others
Others encompasses a range of activittes from corporate decisions and income and expenses nat attnbuted to the business segments, including
capital and balance sheet management, funding and iquidity DBS Vickers Secunities has also been included in this segment

During the year, no one group of related customers as defined under banking regulations accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s revenues
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The following table analyses the results, total assets and total habilities of the Group by business segments
Consumer

Banlking/Weazlth Institutionatl
In $ millions Management Banking Treasury Others Total
2013
Net interest income 1,500 3,024 694 351 5,569
Non-interest income 1,038 1,652 340 499 3,529
Total income 2,538 4,676 1,034 850 9,098
Expenses 1,740 1,377 478 323 3,918
Allowances for credit and other losses 88 544 (3) 141 770
Share of profits of associates - - - 79 79
Profit before tax 710 2,755 559 465 4,489
Income tax expense 615
Net profit attnbutable to shareholders 3,672
Tota! assets before goodwall 72,887 207,264 83,049 34,006 397,206
Goodwill 4,802
Total assets 402,008
Total hiabihties 143,325 132,206 75,349 13,442 364,322
Capital expenditure 63 30 15 119 227
Depreciation® 32 9 8 165 214
2012
Net interest income 1,427 2,747 692 419 5,285
Non-interest income 873 1,405 427 524 3,229
Total income 2,300 4,152 1,119 943 8514
Expenses 1,602 1,269 462 281 3,614
Allowances for credit and other losses 93 215 (3) 112 417
Share of profits of associates - - - 124 124
Profit before tax 605 2,668 660 674 4,607
Income tax expense 588
Net profit attnbutable to shareholders 3,809
Total assets before goodwall 63,232 175,329 75,434 34,236 348,231
Goodwill 4,802
Total assets 353,033
Total habilities 136,639 101,700 75,697 2,999 317,035
Caprtal expenditure 57 12 13 256 338
Depreciation@ 32 13 7 127 179

(a) Amounts for each business segment are shown before allocation of centralised cost
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Income and net profit attributable to shareholders (Net profit) are based on the country in which the transactions are booked Total assets are
shown by geographical area in which the assets are booked It would not be matenally different if total assets shown are based on the country in
which the counterparty or assets are located The total assets, income and net profit are stated after elimination of inter-group assets and revenues

The Group
Restof  South and

Greater  Southeast Rest of

tn $ rullions Singapore Hong Kong Chinat® Asia®  the World® Total
2013

Net interest income 3,487 1,016 456 405 205 5,569
Non-interest income 2,099 847 287 195 101 3,529
Total income 5,586 1,863 743 600 306 9,098
Expenses 2,288 17 548 283 82 3,918
Allowances for credit and other losses 335 142 76 126 91 770
Share of profits of associates 13 - 8 58 - 79
Profit before tax 2,976 1,004 127 249 133 4,489
Income tax expense 344 153 35 50 33 615
Net profit attnbutable to shareholders 2,431 851 92 198 100 31,672
Total assets before goodwill 258,580 65,783 43,132 16,466 13,245 397.206
Goodwill 4,802 - - - - 4,802
Total assets 263,382 65,783 43,132 16,466 13,245 402,008
Non-current assets® 2,124 355 103 31 2 2,615
2012

Net interest Income 3,209 886 510 451 229 5,285
Non-interest income 2,207 646 153 140 83 3,229
Total income 5,416 1,532 663 591 12 8514
Expenses 2,088 678 498 275 75 3,614
Allowances for credit and other losses 318 11 34 38 16 417
Share of profits of associates 19 - 6 99 - 124
Profit before tax 3,029 843 137 377 221 4,607
Income tax expense 290 127 27 84 60 588
Net profit attnbutable to shareholders 2,529 716 110 293 161 3,809
Total assets before goodwill 225,678 56,577 35,317 16,860 13,799 348231
Goodwll 4,802 - - - - 4,802
Total assets 230,480 56,577 35,317 16,860 13,799 353,033
Non-current assets® 2,189 355 11 21 2 2,678

(a) Rest of Greater China includes branch, subsidiary and associate aperations i Mainfand China and Tawan
(B) South and Southeast Asia includes branch, subsidiary and associate operations in India, indonesia, Malaysia Vietnam and the Philippines
() Rest of the World includes branch aperations in South Korea Japan, Dubar Uruted States of Amenca and United Kingdom

() Includes investment in associates properties and other fixed assets
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45 COMPARATIVES
Prior period comparatives have been aligned to the current presentation (refer to Note 2 3} The table below provides a reconciliation of the
current Balance Sheet presentation to the old Balance Sheet presentation for 2012 balances
In $ mifhons Current Prior
2013 Line 1item 2012 Line item presentation presentation
Government securities and treasury bills 36,426
Singapore Government securities and treasury bills 12,092
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5,334
Financial mvestments 15,952
Securities pledged and transferred 3,048
Due from banks 29,406
Due from banks 28,808
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 598
Bank and corporate securities 25,448
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4,484
Financial investments 19.615
Securities pledged and transferred 1,349
Loans and advances to customers 210,519
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,124
Loans and advances to customers 209,395
Other assets 8,702
Other assets 8,611
Deferred tax assets 91
Properties and other fixed assets 1,442
Properties and other fixed assets 945
Investment properties 497
Due to banks 15.351
Due to banks 25,162
Financial liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss 746
Reclassification to deposits and balances from customers (10,557)
Deposits and balances from customers 253,464
Due to non-bank customers 241,165
Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,742
Reclassification from due to banks 10,557
Other liabiities 11,429
Financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,843
Bills payable 316
Current tax habilittes 824
Deferred tax habilities 30
Other liabilities 8,416
Other debt securities 13,754
Finanaal habilities at fair value through profit or loss 3,518

Other debt securities in 1ssue

10,236
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DBS Bank Ltd

for the year ended 31 December 2013
In $ millions Note 2013 2012
Income
Interest Income 5.614 5,396
Interest expense 1,502 1,571
Net interest income 4,112 3,825
Net fee and commission income 1,276 1,085
Net trading income 491 690
Net income from investment securities 248 366
Other income 2 372 380
Total mcome 6,499 6,346
Expenses
Employee benefits 1,298 1,140
Other expenses 1,177 1,116
Allowances for credit and other losses 556 342
Total expenses 3,031 2,598
Profit before tax 3,468 3,748
Income tax expense 463 450
Net profit 3,005 3,298

(see notes on pages 179 to 180 which form part of these financial staternents)
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DBS Bank Ltd
for the year ended 31 December 2013

In $ mullions 2013 2012
Net profit 3,005 3,298
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations (52) 2
Available-for-sale financial assets and others

Net valuation taken to equity (530} 599

Transferred to income statement (163) {327)

Tax on items taken directly to or transferred from equity 40 (43)
Other comprehensive iIncome, net of tax (705) 231
Total comprehensive income 2,300 3,529

(see notes on pages 179 to 180 which form part of these financial staternents)
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DBS Bank Ltd

as at 31 December 2013
In $ milhons Note 2013 2012
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 11,652 11,652
Government secunties and treasury bills 23,640 31,520
Due from banks 31,686 22,661
Derivatives 16,764 16,982
Bank and corporate securities 30,481 22,694
Loans and advances to customers 191,887 160,567
Other assets 4,997 5,083
Associates 431 649
Subsidiaries 3 18,222 15,690
Properties and other fixed assets 567 552
Total assets 330,327 288,050
Liabilities
Due to banks 12,276 13,613
Deposits and balances from customers 224,649 193,577
Derivatives 17.535 17,283
Other habiliities 6,031 5,999
Other debt securities 21,476 12,486
Due to holding company 1,406 822
Due to subsidiaries 4 9,391 7.129
Subordinated term debts 5,544 5,505
Total habilities 298,308 256,414
Net assets 32,019 31,636
Equity
Share capital 5 17,096 17,096
Other reserves 6 2,274 2,979
Revenue reserves 6 12,649 11,561
Shareholders’ funds 32,019 31,636
Total equity 32,019 31,636

{see notes on pages 179 to 180 which form part of these hinancial statements)
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DBS Bank Lid

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2013

The supplementary financial statements of DBS Bank Ltd (the Bank}
are extracted from the Audited Statutory Financial Statements of
DBS Bank Ltd and its subsidianes (the Bank Group} for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013 The statutory financial statements of
the Bank and the Bank Group which contained an ungualfied audit
report, will be delivered to the Accounting & Corporate Regulatory
Authonty in accordance with the Singapore Companies Act

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies applied by the Bank and the Bank Group
are consistent with those applied by the Group as disclosed in Note
2 of the “Notes to the Financial Statements” (Notes) in the Group’s
Consohdated Financial Statements

2 OTHER INCOME

Other income includes the following

In $ milhions 2013 2012
Dvidends from subsidiaries 193 7
Dwvidends from associates 41 82
Total 234 89

3 SUBSIDIARIES

n $ millions 2013 2012
Unquoted equity shares® 12,578 12,434
Less impairment allowances 741 736
Sub-total 11,837 11,698
Due from subsidiaries 6,382 3,990
Total 18,219 15,688

(a) The carrying amounts of certain investments which are designated as hedged
items in & far value hedge are adpsted for fawr value changes attnbutabie to the
hedged risks

Movements in imparrment allowances dunng the year are as follows

In $ millions 2013 2012
Balance at 1 January 736 813
Chargef(Wnte-back} to income statement 5 {7)
Write-off against investment cost - (70)
Balance at 31 December M 736

4 DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

In $ milhons 2013 2012

Subordinated term debts 1ssued to
DBS Capital Funding Corporation il

{Note 4 1} 1,500 1,500
Due to subsidiaries 7.891 5,629
Total 9,391 7,129
41 The %$1,500 million 5 75% subordinated note was issued

on 27 May 2008 by the Bank to DBS Capttal Funding Il Corparation,
both wholly-owned subsidiaries of DBSH Interest is payable semi-
annually on 15 June and 15 December at a fixed rate of 5 75%

per annum up to 15 June 2018 If these are not redeemed at the
tenth year, interest will be payable quarterly on 15 March, 15 June,
15 September and 15 December at a floating rate of three-month
Singapore Dollar Swap Offer Rate plus a stepped-up spread of

3 415% per annum

5 SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid up 2013 2012

2,233,102,635 (2012 2,233,102,635)

ordinary shares 2,233 2,233
6,800{2012 6,800)4 7%

Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible,

Non-Voting Preference Shares

Catlable in 2020 # #
8,000,000 (2012 8,000,000} 4 7%

Non-Cumulative, Non-Convertible,

Non-Voting Preference Shares

Callable in 2020 8 8
Total number of shares {millions) 2,241 2,241
Total Share Capital (in $ milhons) 17,096 17,096

#  Amount under 500,000

6 OTHER RESERVES

61 OTHER RESERVES

In § milhons 2013 2012
Avallable-for-sale revaluation reserves (10} 630
Cash flow hedge reserves (14) m
General reserves 2,360 2,360
Capital reserves (62) (10)

Total 2,274 2,979
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Movements (n other reserves for the Bank duning the year are as follows

Available- Cash flow

for-sale revaluation hedge General Capital
In $ miilions reserves reserves reserves@ reserves®™ Total
2013
Balance at 1 January 630 n 2,360 (10) 2,979
Net exchange translation adjustments - - - (52) (52)
Avallable-for-sale financial assets and others
— net valuation taken to equity {495) (35) - - (530)
— transfetred to income statement (184) 21 - - (163)
—tax on items taken directly to or transferred from equity 39 1 - - 40
Balance at 31 December {10) (14) 2,360 {62) 2,274
2012
Balance at 1 January 416 (16) 2,360 (12} 2,748
Net exchange translation adjustments - - - 2 2
Avallable-for-sale financial assets and others
- net valuation taken to equity 590 9 - - 599
— transferred to Income statement (335) 8 - - (327)
— tax on items taken directly to or transferred from equrty {41} (2) - - (43)
Balance at 31 December 630 m 2,360 (10 2,979

(a} The General reserves are mantained in accordance with the provisions of apphicable laws and regulations  These reserves are nion distnbutable unless otherwise approved
by the refevant authonties Under the Banking (Reserve Fund) (Transitional Provision) regulations 2007, which came into effect on 11 june 2007, the Bank may distnibute

or utihise its statutory reserves provided that the amount distributed or utilised for each finanaal year does not exceed 20% of the reserves as at 30 March 2007

(b) Capital reserves include net exchange transfation adjustments ansing from translation differences on net investments in foreign branches and the related foreign currency

instruments designated as a hedge

62 REVENUE RESERVES

In $ millions 2013 2012
Balance at 1 January 11,561 9,580
Net profit attributable to shareholders 3,005 3,298
Amount available for distnbution 14,566 12,878
Less  Special dwvidend 1,800 1,200

4 7% tax exempt preference dvidends (2012 4 7% tax exempt) 117 117
Balance at 31 December 12,649 11,561
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DBS Group Holdings 1 td and 1ts Subsidiaries

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Durectors are pleased to submit their report to the Members together with the audited consolidated finanaal statements of DBS Group
Holdings Ltd (the Company or DBSH) and its subsidianies (the Group) and the balance sheet of the Company for the financial year ended

31 December 2013, which have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Companies Act) and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, as modified by the requirements of Notice to Banks No 612 “Credit Files, Grading and Provisioning”
1ssued by the Monetary Authonty of Singapore

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors in office at the date of this report are

Peter Seah Lim Huat - Charrman

Piyush Gupta - Chief Executive Officer
Bart Joseph Broadman

Euleen Goh Yiu Kiang

Ho Tian Yee

Nihal Viyaya Devadas Kaviratne CBE

Andre Sekulic

Danny Teoh Leong Kay

Woo Foong Pheng (Mrs Ow Foong Pheng)

Mr Pryush Gupta, Dr Bart Joseph Broadman and Mr Ho Tian Yee will retire In accordance with Article 95 of the Company's Articles of
Association at the forthcoming annual general meeting (AGM) and will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM

Mr Nihal Vijaya Devadas Kaviratne CBE, who will be attaining the age of 70 years before the forthcoming AGM, 1s required to retire pursuant
to Section 153 of the Companies Act As such, Mr Nihal Kaviratne CBE has to be re-appointed by the Members at the forthcoming AGM to
continue in office as a director until the next AGM

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Nerther at the end of nor at any time duning the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement, the object of which is to enable
the directors to acquire benefits through the acquisitron of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, save as
disclosed in this report

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The following directors, who held office at the end of the finanaial year, had, according to the register of directors’ shareholdings required to be
kept under Section 164 of the Companies Act, an interest n shares of the Company and related corporations as stated below

Holdings in which

Holdings tin which Directors are deemed
Directors have a direct interest to have an interest
As at As at As at As at
31 Dec 2013 1 Jan 2013 31 Dec 2013 1Jan 2013
DBS Group Holdings Ltd (DBSH) ordinary shares
Peter Seah 38,532 16,306 - -
Piyush Gupta 200,140 100,576 118,000 118,000
Bart Broadman 15,449 10,000 - -
Euleen Goh 12,545 4,185 - -
Ho Tian Yee 3,444 - - -
Nihal Kaviratne CBE 4,767 300 - -
Andre Sekulic 2,693 - - -
Danny Teoh 11,540 6,000 18,723 18,427

Ow Foong Pheng 4,257 4,120 - -
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Holdings 1n which

Holdings in which Directors are deemed
Directors have a direct interest to have an interest
As at As at As at As at

31 Dec 2013 1Jan 2013 31 Dec 2013 1 Jan 2013
Share awards (unvested) granted under the DBSH Share Plan
Peter Seah 32,697 37,736 - -
Piyush Gupta®™ 937,553 669,629 - -
Bart Broadman 8,248 9,926 - -
Euleen Goh 13,410 15,726 - -
Ho Tian Yee 2,960 2,960 - ~
Nihal Kaviratne CBE 4,008 4,008 - -
Danny Teoh 7,534 7,977 - -
DBS Bank 4 7% non-cumulative non-convertible
perpetual preference shares
Euleen Goh 3,000 3,000 - -
Pryush Gupta - - - 10,000
Danny Tech - 2,000 - -

(1) Mr Gupta’s share awards form part of his remuneration Details of the DBSH Share Plan are set out in Note 38 of Notes to the 2013 Company's financial statements

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests between the end of the financial year and 21 January 2014

DIRECTORS" CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financal year, no director has received or has become entitled to recewve a benefit under a contract which (s
required to be disclosed by Section 201(8) of the Companies Act save as disclosed in this report or in the financial statements of the Company
and of the Group

DBSH SHARE OPTION PLAN

Particulars of the share options granted under the DBSH Share Option Plan in 2003, 2004 and 2005 have been set out in the Directors’ Reports
for the years ended 31 December 2003, 2004 and 2005 respectively No grants were made under the DBSH Share Option Plan since 2006

The movements of the unissued ordinary shares of the Company in outstanding DBSH options granted under the DBSH Share Option Plan were
as follows

Number of Number of Exercise
unissued During the year unissued price
DBSH Options ordinary shares ordinary shares per share Expiry date
1 January 2013 Exercised Forfeited/Expired 31 December 2013
February 2003 1,118,407 1,021,655 96,752 - $8 84 24 February 2013
March 2004 1,403,654 519,088 3,935 880,631 $12 53 02 March 2014
March 2005 723,351 158,523 10,584 554,244 $12 81 01 March 2015
3,245,412 1,699,266 111,271 1,434,875

The DBSH Share Option Plan expired on 19 June 2009 and 1t was not extended or replaced Therefore, na further options were granted by

the Company duning the financial year The termination of the DBSH Share Option Plan will not affect the nghts of holders of any outstanding
existing options

The persons to whom the DBSH options have been granted do not have any right to participate by wirtue of the DBSH options in any share i1ssue
of any other company
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DBSH SHARE PLAN

During the finanaial year, time-based awards In respect of an aggregate of 5,741,878 ordinary shares were granted pursuant to the DBSH Share
Plan, to selected employees of the Group This included 367,488 ordinary shares compnsed in awards granted to executive director Mr Piyush
Gupta, which formed part of his remuneration During the financial year, certain non-executive directors receved an aggregate of 41,815
ordinary shares comprised in time-based awards, which formed part of their directors’ fees Detalls are set out below

Share awards granted during Share awards vested during
Directors of the Company the financial year ended 31 December 2013 the finanaal year ended 31 December 2013
Peter Seah'? 16,299 21,338
Pryush Gupia 367,488M 99,5604
Bart Broadman®@ 3,771 5,449
Euleen Goh®? 6,044 8,360
Ho Tian Yee'? 3,444 3,444
Nihal Kaviratne CBE® 4,467 4,467
Andre Sekulic® 2,693 2,693
Danny Tegh® 5,097 5,540

(1) Mr Gupta's awards formed part of his remuneration for 2012

{2) The awards of these non-executive directcrs formed part of thewr directors” fees for 2012 which had been approved by the shareholders at DBSH s Annual General
Meeting held on 29 April 2013

Information on the DBSH Share Plan 15 as follows

(1 Awards over DBSH's ordinary shares may be granted to DBSH Group executives who hold such rank as may be determined by the
Compensation and Management Development Committee of DBSH from time to time  Awards may also be granted to (amongst
others) executives of associated companies of DBSH who hold such rank as may be deterrmined by the Compensation and Management
Development Committee from time to time, and non-executive directors of DBSH

The participants of the DBSH Share Plan shall not be eligible to parucipate in the DBSH Employee Share Plan or other equivalent plans

(1) Where time-based awards are granted, parttcipants are awarded ordinary shares of DBSH, their equivalent cash value or a combination of

both as part of their deferred bonus, at the end of the prescribed vesting penods Awards are granted under the DBSH Share Plan at the
absolute discretion of the Compensation and Management Development Committee

{n) The DBSH Share Plan shall continue to be in force at the discretion of the Compensation and Management Development Committee,
subject to a maximum pernod of ten years At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 8 April 2009, the DBSH Share Plan was extended
for another ten years, from 18 September 2009 to 17 September 2019, prowided always that the DBSH Share Plan may continue beyond

the above supulated period with the approval of the shareholders of DBSH by ordinary resolution in general meeting and of any relevant
authorities which may then be required

(iv) Awards under the DBSH Share Ptan may be granted at any time In the course of a finanaal year, and may lapse by reason of cessation of
service of the partiopant, or the retirement, redundancy, il health, injury, disability, death, bankruptcy or misconduct of the participant,

or by reason of the participant, being a non-executive director, ceasing to be a director, or in the event of a take-over, winding up or
reconstruction of DBSH

(v) Subject to the prevailing legislation and the rules of the Singapore Exchange Secunties Trading Limited, DBSH will have the flexibility to
delver ordinary shares of DBSH to participants upon vesting of their awards by way of an 1ssue of new ordinary shares and/or the transfer
of exisung ordwnary shares (which may include ordinary shares held by the Company in treasury)

(vi} The class and/or number of ordinary shares of DBSH compnised in an award to the extent not yet vested, and/or which may be granted to
participants, are subject to adjustment by reason of any vanation in the ordinary share capital of BBSH {whether by way of a capitalisation
of profits or reserves or nghts 1ssue, reduction, subdivision, consolidation, or distribution) or if DBSH makes a capital distribution or a
declaration of a special dvidend {whether in cash or in specte), upon the written confirmation of the auditor of DBSH that such adjustment
(other than in the case of a capitalisation issue) 1s fair and reasonable
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee compnised non-executive directors Mr Danny Teoh (Chairman), Mr Nihal Kaviratne CBE, Mr Peter Seah, Mr Andre Sekulic
and Mrs Ow Foong Pheng

The Audit Committee performed its functions in accordance with the Companies Act, the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Banking (Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2005, the MAS Guidehnes for Carporate Governance and the Code of Corporate Governance, which include, inter

aha, the following
() reviewing the Group’s consolidated financial statements and financial announcements prior to submission to the Board,
(N reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls,

() reviewing with the external auditor, its audit plan, its audit report, its evaluation of the internal accounting controls of DBS and assistance
given by the management to the external auditor,

(V) reviewing the internal auditor’s plans and the scope and results of audits, and

(v} overseeing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, and the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the
external auditor

In 1ts review of the audsted financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Commuttee has discussed with
management and the external auditor the accounting principles that were applied and their judgement on the items that might affect the

financials Based on the review and discussions with rmanagement and the external auditor, the Audit Committee 1s of the view that the
financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting prinaples in all material aspects

The Audit Commuttee has received the requisite information from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) and has considered the financial, business
and professional relationship between PwC and the Group It1s of the view that such relationship 1s compatible with maintaining PwC’s

independence

The Audit Comnuttee recommends to the Board of Directors the re-appointment of PwC as independent external auditor at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company on 28 April 2014

INDEPENDENT AUDITCR

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment as independent external auditor

On behalf of the Directors

Peter Seah Lim Huat

Piyush Gupta

13 February 2014
Singapore
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DBS Group Holdings Ltd and its Subsidiaries

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS

We, Peter Seah Lim Huat and Piyush Gupta, being two of the Directors of DBS Group Holdings Ltd (the Company), state that, in the opinion
of the Directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group, consisting of the Company and its subsidianes and the balance sheet of
the Company, together with the notes thereon, as set out on pages 110 to 175, are drawn up so as to give a true and farr view of the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2013, and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the

finanaal year ended on that date and there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the Group will be able to pay their debts
as and when they fall due

On behalf of the Directors

Peter Seah Lim Huat

Piyush Gupta

13 February 2014
Singapore
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DBS Group Holdings Ltd and its Subsidiartes

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TG THE MEMBERS OF DBS GROUP HOLDINGS LTD (INCORPORATED IN SINGAPORE)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DBS Group Holdings Ltd {the “Company“) and its subsidiaries {the “Group"} set
out on pages 110 to 175, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet of the Group and balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2013, the consolidated income statement, statement of comprehensive iIncome, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of
the Group for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting paolicies and other explanatory information

Management’s responsibiiity for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Companies Act (the “Act”} and Singapore Finanaal Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaming a system of internat
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safequarded against loss from unauthonised use or disposition,
and transactions are properly authonsed and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss
accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets

Audrtor’s responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with
Singapore Standards on Auditing Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtan
reasonable assurance about whether the financal statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the nisks of material misstaterment of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate n the arcumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit ewidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit apinton

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company are properly drawn up In accordance
with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, including the madification of the requirements of FRS 39

Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement in respect of loan loss provisioning by Notice 1o Banks No 612 “Credit Files, Grading
and Provisioning” i1ssued by Monetary Authonity of Singapore, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2013, and the results, changes In equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on that date

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In our apinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidianies iIncorporated in
Singapore of which we are the auditors, have been properly kept In accordance with the provisions of the Act

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants

13 February 2014
Singapore
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Group 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Selected income statement items ($ millions)
Total income 8,927 8,064 7,631 7,066 6,603
Profit before allowances 5,009 4,450 4,328 4,141 3,999
Allowances 710 417 722 911 1,529
Profit before tax 4,318 4,157 3,733 3,332 2,536
Net profit excluding one-time items

and goodwaill charges 3,501 3,359 3,035 2,650 2,064
One-time tems*" 171 450 - - (23)
Goodwill charges - - - 1,018 -
Net profit 3,672 3,809 3,035 1,632 2,041
Selected balance sheet items (§ millions)
Total assets 402,008 353,033 340,847 283,710 258,644
Customer loans 248,654 210,519 194,720 152,094 130,583
Total liabilities 364,322 317,035 307,778 250,608 229,145
Customer deposits? 292,365 253,464 225,346 193,692 183,432
Total shareholders’ funds 34,233 N,737 28,794 26,599 25,373
Per ordinary share {$)
Earnings excluding one-time items

and goodwili charges 143 139 130 115 091
Earnings 150 157 130 070 090
Net asset value 13 61 12 96 1199 1125 10 85
Dividends 058 0 56 056 056 056
Selected finanaial ratios (%)
Bividend cover for ordinary shares {(number of times) 258 279 228 125 157
Net interest margin 162 170 177 184 202
Cost-to-income 439 448 433 a1 4 394
Return on assets® 0N 097 097 098 080
Return on shareholders’ funds® 108 112 no 102 84
Loan/deposit ratio 850 831 864 785 712
Non-performing loan rate 11 12 13 19 29
Loss allowance coverage 135 142 126 100 83
Caprtal adequacy™

Common Equity Tier 1 — Transitional 137 - - - -

Common Equity Tier 1 - Final 19 - - - -

Ter | 137 140 129 151 131

Total 163 171 158 184 167

{1) One-tme items mclude gains on sale of investments impairment charges for investments, and an amount set aside to establish the DBS Foundauon
{2) includes deposits related to fund management actnities of institutional investors from 2012 onwards Prior to 2012, these deposits were classified as “Due to Banks™

{3) Excluding one-time 1tems and goodwill charges

{4) Calculated based on net profit attnbutable to the shareholders net of dividends on preference shares and other equity mstruments Non-controling interests, preference
shares and other equity instruments are not included as equity i the computation of return of equity

(5) Wiath effect from 1 January 2013, Basel il capital adequacy requirements came into effect in Singapore Changes due to Basel il affected both elgible capital and nisk-
weighted assets Unless othenwise stated, capital adequacy disclosures relating to dates prior to [ January 2013 are calculated i accordance with the then prevailing
caprtal adequacy regulations and are thus not directly comparable to those pertaining to dates from 1 January 2013
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

as at 28 February 2014

Peter Seah Lim Huat, 67

Chamrman

Non-Executive and Independent Director

Bachelor of Business Admunstration (Honours)
National Unwversity of Singapore

« Date of first appointment as a director
16 November 2009

« Date of appointment as Chairman
1 May 2010

« Date of last re-electon as a director
25 Apnt 2012

+ Llength of service as a director
4 years 3 months

Board committee(s) served on

Compensation and Management
Development Committee {Chairman)

Executive Committee (Chairman)

Nominating Commuttee (Charman)

Audit Committee (Member)

Board Risk Management Committee (Member)

Present Directorships

Piyush Gupta, 54
Chief Executive Officer
Executive and Non-Independent Director

Post Graduate Diploma in Management
indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad, India

Bachelor of Arts, EConomics
Unwversity of Delhi, india

Date of first appointment as a directer
9 November 2009

Date of last re-election as a director
25 Apnl 2012

Length of service as a director

4 years 3 months

Board committee(s) served on
Executive Committee (Member)

Present Directorships
Other Listed Compantes

Nl

Other Prinapal Commitments

Other Listed Compames

« Capitatand Limrted_ Deputy Chairman
» Level 3 Communications Inc Director
= StarHub Ltd Director
* STATS ChipPAC Ltd Director
Other Principal Commitments

« DBS Bank Ltd N Chairman
+ DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited Chairman
*  GIC Private Limited Director
+ Asia Mobile Holdings Pte Ltd Director
« Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd Drrector
« LaSalle College of the Arts Lirited _ Chatrman
+ Singapore Health Services Pte Ltd Charrman
+ STT Communications Lid _ . Deputy Charrman
Past Directorships in listed companies held

over the preceding 3 years

= Singapore Technologies Engineening Ltd _ _ . Charman

DBS Bank Ltd o Chief Executive Officer & Director
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited . Vice Chanrman
The Islamic Bank of Asia Limited Director
Human Capital Leadership institute Board Member
Institute of International Finance,

Washington Board Member

Dr Goh Keng Swee Scholarship Fund Director
MasterCard Asia/Pacific, Middle East

and Afnca - Regional Adwvisory Board Director
Asian Bureau of Finance

and Economic Research Counci! Member

_ Councid Member
Councill Member
Council Member

Singapore Business Federation

The Association of Banks in Singapore
The Institute of Banking & Finance
Sim Kee Boon Institute for

Financial Economics

Indian Business-leaders Roundtable
under Singapore Indian Development
Association (SINDA)

Member, Adwsory Board

Member, Managing Counci!

Past Directorships in listed compames held
over the preceding 3 years

Nil
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i
Bart Joseph Broadman, 52 Euleen Goh Y Kiang, 58
Non-Executive Non-Executive
_A and Independent Director and Independent Director
Bachelor of Science in Agricuitural Saience and Management Member of the folfowing institutions
University of California at Davis Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
Chartered institute of Taxation, UK
MBA in Financial Economics Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
Unwersity of Southern Califorma, Graduate School of Business Institute of Financial Services, UK
Ph D in Financial Economics « Date of first appomntment as a director
University of Southern Califormia, Graduate School of Business 1 December 2008
. T » Date of last re-election as a director
» Date of first appointment as a director 29 Apnl 2013
17 December 2008 * Length of service as a director
« Date of last re-election as a director S years 3 months
28 Apnil 2011
+ Length of serwice as a director Board committee(s) served on
5 years 3 months Board Risk Management Commuittee (Charman)
Compensation and Management
Board committee(s) served on Development Committee (Member)
Board Risk Management Committee (Member) Executive Commuttee (Member)
Compensation and Management Nominating Committee (Member)
Development Commuttee (Member)
Present Directorships
Present Directorships Other Listed Companies
Other Listed Compamies
« CapitaLand Limited Director
Nil « SATS Ltd i _. Drrector
Other Prinapal Commitments Other Principal Commitments
« DBS Bank Ltd Director « DBS Bank Ltd Director
+ Alphadyne Asset Management Pte Ltd Director « DBS Foundation Ltd . .. Chairman
« Alphadyne {UK) Holdings Limited Director « NorthLight School Chairman,
+ Alphadyne Asset Management, LLC . Managing Mermnber Board of Governors
+ Monetary Authonity of Singapore Member, = Singapore Chinese Girls’ Schoo! Chairmar
Financial Research Council + Singapore International Foundation i Chatrman,
+ Nanyang Technological University N Member, Board of Governors
investment Commuttee « NUS Bustness Schoot o Member, Management
Adwvisory Board
Past Dwrectorships in histed companies held « Singapore Institute of
over the preceding 3 years International Affaws oo .. Trustee,
Endowment Fund
Nil
Past Directorships in histed companies held
over the preceding 3 years
« Aviva PLC ; R Director
+ Singapore Arrlines Limited _ _ Director
» Singapore Exchange Limited . Director
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Ho Tian Yee, 61
Non-Executive
and Independent Director

Bachelor of Arts (Honours), Economics (CNAA)
Portsmouth Unnersity, UK

» Date of first appotntment as a director
29 April 2011

» Date of last re-election as a director
25 Apri 2012

« Length of service as a director
2 years 10 months

Board committee(s} served on
Board Risk Management Commuttee (Member)

Nominating Committee (Member)

Present Directorships

D8S ANNUAL REPGRT 2013

Nihal Vijaya Devadas Kaviratne CBE, 69
Non-Executive
and Independent Director

Bachelor of Arts, Economics (Honours)
Bombay University, India

« Date of first appointment as a director
29 Apnl 2011

« Date of last re-election as a director
25 April 2012

« Length of service as a director
2 years 10 months

Board committee(s} served on
Audit Committee (Member)

Board Risk Management Committee (Member)

Present Directorships

Other Listed Companres Other Listed Companies

« SP AusNet™ « Akzo Nobel India Limited ) Chatrman
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd Director

Other Princapal Commitments SATS Ltd ; Director
StarHub Ltd Director

« DBS Bank Ltd

= Pacific Asset Management (S) Pte Ltd
» Fullerton Fund Management Co Ltd
» Hexa-Team Planners Pte Ltd

« Singapore Power Ltd

= Blue Edge Advisors Pte Ltd

Past Directorships n listed companies held
over the preceding 3 years

_ Managing Director

Other Principal Commitments

Investment Advisor

* Fraser and Neave Limited
+ Singapore Exchange Limited

(1) 5P AusNet, a stapled secunty comprises SP Australia Networks
(Dstribution) Lid, SP Australia Networks (RE) Ltd and SP Austrafa
Networks (Transmussion) Ltd

DBS Bank Ltd Drrector
DBS Foundation Ltd Director
TVS Motor {Singapore) Pte Limited Director
Wildlife Reserves Singapore Pie Ltd . Director
PT TVS Motor Company President Commussioner
Bain & Company SE Asia, Inc Member, Advisory
Board for South East

Asialindonesia

Past Directorships in listed companies held
over the preceding 3 years

Titan Industries Ltd {now known as
Titan Company Limited) Director




Andre Sekulic, 63
Non-Executive
and independent Director

il

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 191

Unwversity of Sydney

« Date of first appointment as a director
26 April 2012

» Date of last re-election as a director
29 April 2013

» Length of service as a director
1 year 10 months

Board committee(s) served on

Audit Committee (Member)

Compensation and Management
Development Committee (Member)

Present Directorships
Other Listed Companies

Nl

Other Principal Commuitments

Danny Teoh Leong Kay, 58
Non-Executive
and Independent Director

institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
Associate Member

Newecastle-upon-Tyne Polytechric, England
Diplorna in Accounting

« Date of first appointment as a director
1 October 2010

= Date of |ast re-election as a director
29 April 2013

« Length of service as a director
3 years 5 months

Board committee(s) served on

Audit Committee (Chairman)

Board Risk Management Committee (Member)
Nominating Committee (Member)

Present Directorships
Other Listed Compantes

« DBS Bank Ltd

« comGateway (S) Pte Ltd

» PSP International (Europe) Limited
» Hussar Pty Ltd

» Insourcing International Pty Ltd

e PSPIP Pty Ltd

+ Queenstar Pty Ltd

Past Directorships in histed companies held
over the preceding 3 years

Director
Chawrman
Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Nil

» Keppel Corporation Limited R Director
« CapitaMalt Trust Management Limited

(the Manager of CapitaMall Trust) Director
Other Principal Commitments
« DBS Bank Ltd ) N Director
« DBS Bank (China) Limited Director
« DBS Foundation Lid Director
» Changi Airport Group (Singapore) Pte Ltd Director
» ITC Corporation _ . Director
« Singapore Olympic Foundation, Director

Past Directorships in listed companies held
over the preceding 3 years:

Nil
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Woo Foong Pheng

(Mrs Ow Foong Pheng), 50
Non-Executive

and Non-independent Director

Master of Science m Management
Stanford University, USA

Bachelor of Arts, Politics, Philosophy and Economics
St John's College, Oxford University
« Date of first appointment as a director
26 April 2012
« Date of fast re-election as a director
29 Apnl 2013
« Length of service as a director
1 year 10 months

Board commuttee(s) served on
Audit Committee (Member)
Nominating Committee {Member}

Present Directorships
Other Listed Compantes

« Mapletree Greater China Commercial
Trust Management Ltd (the Manager of
Mapletree Greater China Commercial Trust) __ Dwector

Other Principal Commitments

« DBS Bank Ltd . ) : Director
« Ministry of Trade and Industry _ | _ _Permanent Secretary

Past Directorships in listed companies held
over the preceding 3 years

Nit
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GROUP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Group Management Committee comprises a total of 19 members,
including members of the Group Executive Committee

1 Piyush Gupta*

Chuef Executive Officer

Piyush 1s Chief Executive Officer and Director of DBS Group,

as well as Director of DBS Bank {Hong Kong) and The Islamic Bank
of Asia Prior to joining DBS, he was Citigroup’s Chief Executive
Officer for South £ast Asia, Australia and New Zealand His external
appointments clude serving on the boards of the Institute of
International Finance, Washington, The Institute of Banking and
Finance, Dr Goh Keng Swee Scholarship Fund, the MasterCard
Asig/Pacrfic, Middle East and Africa Regional Adwisory Board and
Human Capital Leadership Institute

2 EncAng

Caprtal Markets

Eric started his career wath DBS in 1978 and 1s currently responsible
for Capital Markets Within the DBS Group, he serves on a number
of boards including DBS Asta Capital, Hwang-DBS (Malaysia) Berhad
and The Islamic Bank of Asia

3 Sanyv Bhasin

DBS india

Sanjw 1s the country head of D8S Bank Ltd, India, a role he has
held since 2008 A seascned banker, Sanpv started his career with
HSBC India 1n 1979 where he was previously Chief Operating
Officer Sanpwv has worked In various capacities spanning corporate,
mnvestment banking, credit and nsk management in India, Londen
and Mauritius Before joining DBS, he was the CEQ and Managing
Director of Rabo India Finance

4 Jerry Chen

DBS Taiwan

Jerry 1s the country head of DBS Bank Ltd, Tawan Prior to joining
DBS in 2008, he was the President of Ta Chong Bank for four years,
during which he significantly increased the bank’s asset quality

to attract foreign investments Jerry has extensive expenience in
Corporate Banking, Consumer Banking and Treasury busimesses
and spent over 25 years in CQitibank, Tarwan

5 Chng Sok Hur*

Chuef Financial Officer

Sok Hur was awarded the DBS scholarship and joined DBS in

1983 She was appointed Group CFO m 2008, and prior to this
appointment, she was Group Head of Risk Managemaent for six years
She 1s the Supervisor of DBS Bank (China) Board and a board member
of the Housing & Development Board, and the Inland Revenue
Authority of Singapore She has served on the Accounting Standards
Counal in Singapore since 2009 Sok Hui received the Best CFO
award at the Singapore Corporate Awards 2013 Her professional
qualifications include CFA / FRM / FICP / CA (Singapore)}

6 Domenic Fuda

Consumer Banking and Wealth Management Group

Domenac 1s the Deputy Group Head for the Consumer & Wealth
Management business Domenic joined DBS in 2010 as CFO for
the Consumer Banking Group Prior to joining DBS, he spent over
16 years with Citigroup 1n a variety of senior management roles
across business, risk management and finance Domenicis a
director of AXS Pie Ltd, Hutchison DBS Card Limited and Network
for Electronic Transfers (Singapore) Pte Ltd (NETS)

7 NelGe

DBS China

Neil 1s the country head of DBS Bank {China} Ltd A seasoned
banker, he has aver 20 years of international experience spanning
Beiing, Shanghar, Hong Kong, Tokyo and New York Formerly
Managing Director at Credit Suisse’s Shanghai office, Neil played
an instrumental role in building up the joint venture between
Credit Suisse and Founder Securities

8 Dawd Gledhili*

Group Technology & Operationis

Dawid brings with him over 25 years of experience in the financial
services industry and has spent over 20 years in Asia Prior to
joning DBS m 2008, he held progressively sentor positions with
regional responsibilities in JP Morgan where he was involved
with several mergers, offshoring as well as the regionalisation

of the bank's operations Dawid is a Director of Singapore
Clearing House Pte Ltd and a member of IBM Adwisory Board

9 Suelynn¥oo

Group Legal, Compliance & Secretariat

Sue Lynn oversees the legal, compliance and board support functions
for DBS Group Prior to joining DBS, she served as Managing Director
and General Counsel of Korea Exchange Bank, and previously worked
for Prudential Financial, Inc and Morrison & Foerster LLP

10 Lee Yan Hong

Group Human Resources

With more than 25 years of Human Resources expernience in a
diverse range of industnies, Yan Hong is responsible for driving the
strategic people agenda of DBS Group Prior to joining DBS in 2011,
Yan Hong was Citigroup’s Managing Director of Human Resources,
Singapore She has also worked at General Motors and Hewlett
Packard previously
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11 Andrew Ng*

Treasury and Markets

Andrew joined DBS in 2000 and has over 28 years of expenence

in the treasury business Prior to joining DBS, he was Executive
Director at Canadian Impenal Bank of Commerce (CIBC) from 1995
to 1999 He set up CIBC's trading platform and derivative capabilities
on Asian currencies Between 1986 and 1995, Andrew was Head of
North Asia Trading and Treasurer of Chase Manhattan Bank in Taipe

12 hmmy Ng

Group Audit

Jimmy Ng 1s the Head of Group Audit at DBS Bank In this role,

he 1s responsible for strengthening the bank’s control environment,
risk management and governance process He has over 20 years of
banking experience across a broad range of functions including T&O,
Risk Management, Product Controt and Audit His international career
has spanned multiple geographies including Singapore, London and
Amsterdam, focusing on setting up of new functions and migration
of cross border operatiens  Prior to DBS, he held progressively senior
positions in Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, ABN
AMRO Bank and Royal Bank of Scotland

13 Karen Ngu

Group Strategic Marketing & Cormmunications

Karen 15 responsible for corporate communications, brand
rmanagement, strategic marketing and corporate social responsibility
She has over 25 years of experience 1n the financial sector and prior
to joining DBS In 2005, was the Global Head of Brand Management
and Strategic Marketing at Standard Chartered Bank She sits on the
Board of Governors of the Singapore International Foundation

14 Sebastian Paredes*

DBS Hohg Kong

Sebastian 1s the CEQ of DBS Bank {(Hong Kong} Ltd and DBS
Hong Kong Branch He 1s a non-executive Director of DBS China
and a member of DBS Group Executtive Committee A banker
of over 28 years, Sebastian has a strong track record in building
franchises across multiple markets Prior {0 joining DBS, Sebastian
was President Director of PT Bank Danamon Indonesia where
he solrdified the bank’s position 1n retail, SME and micro finance
Prior to that, he spent 20 years at Citi in South America,

Middle East, Europe and Africa

15 Elbert Pattin*

Chief Risk Officer

Elbert has been Chief Risk Officer for DBS since October 2008

Prior to that, he was Head of Specialised Corporate and Investment
Banking at the bank Before DBS, he was Head of Debt Products
Origination, Asia for ING Bank He has previously held the position
of Head of Counterparty Risk, Country Risk, Risk Research and
Modelling for ING Group in Amsterdam Elbert has also worked
for Barclays and ABN AMRO

16 Sim 5 Lim*

D85 Singapore

Sim 1s the first DBS country head with dedicated oversight for
Singapore He 1s responsible for helping the bank to denve greater
synergy and value across the Singapore franchise He spent the bulk
of his 31-year banking career in Asia, where he assumed a wide
variety of roles Prior to joining DBS, Sim was the President and
CEQ of Citigroup Global Markets Japan inc

17 Tan Su Shan*

Consumer Banking and Wealth Management Group

Su Shan 15 responsible for growing DBS’ regional wealth management
and consumer banking business which encompasses DBS Private
Bank, DBS Treasures Private Client, DBS Treasures and our regional
consumer banking business Prior to joining the bank, Su Shan was
Morgan Stanley’s Head of Private Wealth Management for Southeast
Asia She has also worked at Citi Private Bank as the Region Head for
Singapore, Malaysia and Bruner Su Shan 1s the co-chairman of the
Monetary Authority of Singapore Private Banking Adwisory Group

18 Melvin Teo

DBS Indonesa

President Director of PT Bank DBS Indonesia, Melvin is responsible
for leading the team and drving business growth in Indonesia
Prior to this, he was the country head of DBS Bank (China) Limited
During his three-year stint as country head of China, Melvin
successfully grew and strengthened the China franchise

19 Jeanette Wong*

institutional Banking Group

Jeanette oversees DBS’ corporate banking and global transaction
services businesses She was the CFQ of DBS far five years before
taking on her current responsibiiities in 2008 Prior to joining DBS 1n
2003, Jeanette spent 16 years at JP Morgan Jeanette charrs the board
of DBS Bank (Taiwan) and 15 also on the boards of DBS Bank (China),
Neptune Orient Lines and Singapore International Arbitration Centre
She also chairs the Advisory Board of SMU Lee Kong Chian School

of Business

Thase marked by * are als0 in the Group Executive Commitiee




195

INTERNATIONAL BANKING OFFICES

CHINA

DBS Bank (China) Limited
18th Floor DBS Bank Tower
1318 Lu Jia Zui Ring Road
Pudong

Shanghai 200120

People’s Republic of China
Tel {8621) 3896 8888

Fax {8621) 3896 8989

HONG KONG

| DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
11th Floor, The Center

} 99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Keng
Tel (852) 3668 0808

| Fax (852) 2167 8222

DBS Bank Hong Kong Branch
18th Floor, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central
Heng Keng
Tel (852) 3668 1900

\ Fax (852) 2596 0577

INDIA

{ DBS Bank India

Fort House, 3rd Floor
221, Dr DN Road, Fort
Mumbai 400001, Ind:a
Tel (9122) 6638 8888
Fax (9122) 6638 8899

INDONESIA

PT Bank DBS Indonesia
DBS Bank Tower, Lobby, 33rd - 37th floor
Ciputra World 1
lalan Prof Dr Satrio Kav 3-5
! Jakarta 12940, indonesia
Tel (6221) 2988 5000
| Fax (6221) 2988 5005

JAPAN

DBS Bank Tokyo Branch

508 Yurakucho Denki Building
7-1 Yurakucho 1-chome
Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 1000006, Japan

Tel (813) 3213 4411

Fax (813) 3213 4415 -

KOREA
DBS Bank Seoul Branch

18th Floor, Seoul Finance Center
136 Sejong-daero Jung-Gu
Seoul Republic of Korea

Tel (822) 6322 2660

Fax (822) 6322 2670 !

MACAU
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Macau Branch

Nos 5 a 7E da Rua de Santa Clara, Edif Ribeiro
Loja Ce D, Macau

Tel. (853) 28329338

Fax (853) 28323711

MALAYSIA

DBS Bank Kuala Lumpur
Representative Office

#08-01, Menara Keck Seng
203 Jalan Bukit Bintang

55100 Kuzla Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel (603) 2148 8338

Fax (603) 2148 7338

DBS Bank Labuan Branch

Level 10 (A} Main Office Tower
Financial Park Labuan

Jalan Merdeka

87000 W P Labuan, Malaysia
Tel (6087) 595 500

Fax (6087) 423376
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MYANMAR

DBS Bank Myanmar Representative Office

Unit 1002 Sakura Tower, Level 10

339 Bogyoke Aung San Road, Kyauktada Township

Yangon

Myanmar

Tel (951) 255 299
Fax. (951} 255 239

PHILIPPINES

DBS Bank Manila
Representative Office

18th Floor, BPI Buillding
Ayala Avenue corner

Paseo de Roxas

Makati City, The Phihppines
Tel (632) 8455112

Fax {632) 750 2144

TAIWAN

DBS Bank (Taiwan) Limited
17F, No 36

Songren Road

Xiny1 District

Taipe: Gty 10RO C

Tel (8862) 6612 9889

Fax (B862) 6612 9285

THAILAND

DBS Bank Bangkok
Representative Office

989 Siam Tower 15th Floor
Rama 1 Road, Pathumwan
Bangkok 10330, Thailand
Tel (662) 658 1400-1

Fax (662) 658 1402
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UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

DBS Bank DIFC Branch

Surte 5, 3rd Floor, Building 3
Gate Preanct, DIFC

PO Box 506538

Dubai, UAE

Tel (971) 4364 1800

Fax (971) 4364 1801

UNITED KINGDOM

DBS Bank London Branch
4th Floor, Paternoster House
65 St Paul's Churchyard
London EC4M BAB, UK

Tel (44 207) 489 6550

Fax (44 207) 489 5850

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

DBS Bank Los Angeles Agency
725 South Figueroa Street
Suite 2000, Los Angeles

CA 90017, USA

Tel (1213) 627 0222

Fax (1213) 627 0228

VIETNAM

DBS Bank Hanoi
Representative Office
Room 1404

14th Floor, Pacific Place
83B Ly Thuong Kiet Street
Hanol, Vietnam

Tel (844) 3946 1688

Fax (844) 3946 1689

DBS Bank Ho Chi Minh City Branch
11th floor, Satigon Centre

65 Le Lot Boulevard, District 1

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Tel (84 8) 3914 7888

Fax (84 8) 3914 4488
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MAIN SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

DBS BANK LTD (“DBS BANK")

12 Marina Boulevard

Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

Tel (65) 6878 8888

100% owned by DBS Group Holdings Ltd

AXS PTE LTD

61 Mohamed Sultan Road

#01-11 Sultan Link

Singapore 239001

Tel (65) 6560 2727

Fax (65) 6636 4550

26 41% owned by DBS Bank and 59 77%
owned by Pnmefield Company Pte Ltd,

a wholly-owned subsidiary of DBS Bank

CENTRAL BOULEVARD
DEVELOPMENT PTE LTD

8 Marina Boulevard #04-01

Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 1
Singapore 018981

33% owned by Heedum Pte Ltd,

a wholly-owned subsidiary of DBS Bank

CHANGSHENG FUND MANAGEMENT
COMPANY LIMITED

21F Building A, Chengjian Plaza

18 Beitaipingzhuang Road

Haidian District, Beipping 100088
People’s Republic of China

Tel (86 10) 8201 9988

Fax {86 10) 8225 5988

33% owned by DBS Bank

DBS ASIA CAPITAL LIMITED
17th Floor, The Center

99 Queen's Road Central
Hong Kong

Tel (852) 3668 1148

Fax (852) 2868 0250

100% owned by DBS Bank

DBS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED
18th Floor DBS Bank Tower
1318 Lu Jia Zu1 Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai 200120
People’s Republic of China
Tel (86 21) 3896 8888

Fax (86 21} 3896 8989
100% owned by DBS Bank

DBS BANK {HONG KONG) LIMITED

11th Floor, The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel (852) 3668 0808

Fax (852) 2167 8222

100% owned by DBS Diarmond Holdings Ltd,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of DBS Bank

DBS BANK (TAIWAN) LTD
15th, 16th, 17th Floor,

No 32 & 36 Songren Road
Xiny) District, 110 Taiper ity
Taiwan, RO C

Tel (886 2) 6612 9889

Fax (886 2) 6612 9285

100% owned by DBS Bank

DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE} LIMITED
12 Marnna Boulevard

Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

Tel (65) 6878 8888

Fax (65) 6338 8936

100% owned by DBS Bank

DBS TRUSTEE LIMITED

12 Marina Boulevard

Marina Bay Finanaal Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

Tel (65) 6878 8888

Fax (65) 6878 3977

100% owned by DBS Bank

DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (SINGAPORE)
PTE LTD

12 Marina Boulevard Level 3

Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

Tel (65) 6327 2288

100% owned by DBS Vickers Securities
Holdings Pte Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of DBS Bank

DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd
1s the man operating entity in Singapore
of the DBS Vickers Group, which

has operations of varying scope

and complexity in ather jurisdictions
including Hong Kong, Indonesia,
Thailland, Malaysia and the US

DBSN SERVICES PTE LTD

12 Marmna Boulevard

Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

Tel (65) 6878 8888

Fax (65) 6338 8936

100% owned by DBS Bank

HUTCHISON DBS CARD LIMITED

22nd Floor, Hutchison House

10 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Tel (852) 2128 1188

Fax (852) 2128 1705

50% owned by DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Lirmited

HWANG-DBS (MALAYSIA) BHD

Level 8, Wisma 5n Pinang

60 Green Hall, 10200 Penang

Malaysia

Tel (604) 263 6996

Fax (604) 263 9597

4 15% owned by DBS Bank and 23 51%
owned by DBS Vickers Secunities (Malaysia)
Pte Ltd, an ndirect wholly-owned subsichary
of DBS Bank

NETWORK FOR ELECTRONIC
TRANSFERS (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD
298 Tiong Bahru Road, #04-01/06
Central Plaza

Singapore 168730

Tel (65) 6272 0533

Fax (65) 6272 2334

33 33% owned by DBS Bank

PT BANK D8S INDONESIA

DBS Bank Tower, Lobby

33rd to 37th Floor, Gputra World 1
Jalan Prof Dr Satrio Kav 3-5
Jakarta 12940

Indonesia

Tel (62 21) 2988 5000

Fax (62 21) 2988 5005

99% owned by DBS Bank

THE ISLAMIC BANK OF ASIA LIMITED
12 Marina Boulevard #15-03

Marnna Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

Tel (65) 6878 5522

Fax (65) 6878 5500

50% owned by DBS Bank
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AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

Firing On All Engines Across Businesses And Geographies

DBS GROUP

-

Best Managed Bank, Asia-Pacific

- The Asian Banker

Best CEO (Pyush Gupta), Asia-Pacific
- The Astan Banker

Lifetime teadership Achievement
Award (Peter Seah), Asia-Pacific

— The Asian Banker

Safest Bank in Asia - Glabaf finance
Asia’s Best Brand - MO Asia

Asia’s Most Promising Brand in Banking
— World Research & Consulting Corporation

Best Investor Relations by CEO,
Southeast Asia - investor Refations Magazine
Best Investor Relations in Finance,
Southeast Asia - investor Relations Magazine

Best Brand in Singapore - 8rand Finance
Best Domestic Bank, Singapore

— Alpha Southeast Asia

Best Domestic Bank, Singapore

— Asiamoney

Best Domestic Bank, Singapore

— Euromoney

Best Domestic Bank, Singapore

- FinanceAsia

Best Managed Bank, Singapore

- The Asian Banker

Best Managed Company, Singapore
— Aslamoney

Best CEQ, Singapore (Piyush Gupta)
— The Asian Banker

Best CEQ, Singapore (Piyush Gupta)
— The Busmness Times

Best CEQ, Singapore (Piyush Gupta)
— FinanceAsia

Best CFO, Singapore (Chng Sok Hur)
-~ The Business Times

Best Executive, Singapore

(Piyush Gupta) - Asiamoney

Asian Corporate Director Recogmition
Award, Singapore (Piyush Gupta)

— Corporate Governance Asia

Asia’s Icon in Corporate Governance,
Singapore - Corporate Governance Asia
Singapore Corporate

Governance Award -

Securtties Investors Association (Singapore)
fnternal Audit Excellence Award,
Singapore - Securities Investors
Association (Singapore)

Most Transparent Company

for Finance, Singapore -

Securtties Investors Association (Singapore)

Top Gun CEQ Designation Award,
Singapore (Piyush Gupta)

- Securtties investors Association (Smgapore)
Platinum Award, Most Engaging Annual
Report Worldwide - LACP Awards

Most Inngvative Banking, Hong Kong
— Global Banking & Finance Review

Best Foreign Banker (Sanyiv Bhasin),
India - The Sunday Standard

Best Bank {with assets above

Rp 25-100 tnllion), Indonesia

- Investor Magazine

Banking Efficiency Award, Indonesia
— Brsrus indonesia

INSTITUTIONAL BANKING

Loan of the Year, Asia-Pacific

(Focus Media) - IFRAFR Asia

Best LBO, Asia (Focus Media) - The Asset
Best Leveraged Loan, Asia (Focus Media)
- FinanceAsia

Best Leveraged Financing, Asia
{Focus Meda) - Astamoney

Best Loan, Asia {Alibaba) — financedsia
Best Syndicated Loan, Asia (Alibaba)
— Asiamoney

Best Syndicated Loan, Asia (Alibaba)
— The Asset

Loan Deal of the Year, Asia (Alibaba)
~ The Banker

Best Cross Border M&A, Asia
(Shuanghus International Holdings)
— The Asset

M&A Deal of the Year, Asia (F&N)

- The Banker

Best Project Finance, Asia-Pacific
(Nghi Son) - The Asset

Best Deal of the Year, Asia-Pacific
(Reliance)} - Global Trade Review
Healthcare Deal! of the Year,
Asia-Pacific (Bendigo Hospital)

— Project Finance Magazine
Petrochemical Deal of the Year,
Asia-Pacific (Nght Son)

- Project Ainance international

« Petrochemicals Deal of the Year,

Asia-Pacific (Nghi Son)

- Project Finance Magazine
+ Ports Deal of the Year,
Asia-Pacific {(Botany & Kembla)
- Project Finance Magazine
PPP Deal of the Year, Asia-Pacific
(Sydney Convention Centre)
- Project Finance International
+ PPP Deal of the Year, Asia-Pacific
(Sydney Convention Centre)
- Project finance Magazine
Refinancing Deal of the Year,
Asta-Pacific (Senoko)
- Project Finance Magazine
Sowal Infrastructure Deal of the Year,
Asia-Pacific (Bendigo Hospital)
- Project Finance international
Transport Deal of the Year,
Asia-Pacific (NSW Ports)
- Project Finance International

* Port Deal of the Year, Middle East &
Africa (Mersin — Project Finance International

= Best Deal for Minonty Shareholders,
Southeast Asia {F&N) - Alpha Southeast Asa
Best Cross Border M&A Deal, Southeast
Asia (F&N) - Ajpha Southeast Asia

* Best Deal, Singapore (F&N) - FinanceAsia
« Best Domestic Investment Bank,
Singapore - The Asset

Best Investment Bank, Singapore
- Alpha Southeast Asia

Best Investment Bank, Singapore
- ftnanceAsia

Best Investment Bank, Singapore
- Global Ainance

Loan House of the Year, Singapore
- IR Asia

Best M&A Advisory, Singapore

- Euromoney

Project Finance Bank of the Year,
Singapore - Asian Banking & Finance

« SME Bank of the Year, Hong Kong

- Asian Banking & Finance

Best SME Bank, Hong Kong

- Global Banking & Finance Revew

Best SME Partner, Hong Kong

— HK General Chamber of Small & Medium Busiress

.



Best Growth Syndication Institution,
China - shanghar Banking Association
Best Deal, China (Alibaba) - Assmoney
Best Deal, China (Chongqing Grain}
- Shanghat Banking Association
Best Deal, China (Shuanghui
International Holdings) - 7he Asset
Best Foreign Bank, China
— China Association of Small & Medium Enterprises
+ Best Small Business Lending, China

- Global Finance
* SME Banking Competitive Excellence
Award, China - China Business Journal

* Loan House of the Year, Indonesia
- IFR Asia

GLOBAL TRANSACTION SERVICES
* Best Global Cash Management Bank,
Asia-Pacific - Asamoney
Best Bank for Emerging Corporates,
Asia Pacific - The Asset
+ Best in Receivables Financing,
Asia-Pacific - Fast & Partners
Most Innovative Transaction Bank,
Asia-Pacific - The Banker
Best Asian International Transaction
Bank — The Asian Banker
+ Best Online Cash Management in Asia
- Global Finance
¢ Best Trade Finance Services In Asia
- Global Finance
» Editor’s Triple Star IDEAL 3 O - The Asset

* Best Risk Management Solution,

Middle East {Oman Trading
International) - The Asset

* Best Transaction Bank, ASEAN
- Alpha Southeast Asia

* Best in Working Capital and Trade
Finance, Southeast Asia — The Asset

* Best Transaction Bank, Singapore

— The Asset

Best Cash Management Bank,

Singapore — The Asian Banker

Best Cash Management Bank,

Singapore — The Asset

Best Local Cash Management Bank,

Singapore — Asamoney

» Cash Management Bank of the Year,
Singapore — Asian Banking & Finance

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

Best Structured Trade Finance Bank,
Singapaore — The Asset

Best Trade Finance Bank, Singapore
- The Asset

Best Trade Finance Bank, Singapore
- The Corporate Treasurer

Best Custodian Bank, Singapore

— The Asset

Best Sub-custodian Bank, Singapore
- Global Finance

Leading Counterparty Bank, Singapore
— The Asian Banker

Best Corporate/institutional Internet
Bank, Singapore - Global Finance

Best Foreign Cash Management Bank,
Hong Kong - Asiemoney

Best Overall Domestic Cash
Management Service, Hong Keng

- Asiamoney

Best Overall Cross-Border Cash
Management Service, Hong Keng

- Asiamoney

Best E-Banking Implementation,

Hong Kong {Aviva) - The Asset

Best Foreign Cash Management Bank,
China - asiamoney

Best Overall Domestic Cash
Management Service, China - Astamaney
Best Overall Crass-Border Cash
Management Service, China — Asiamoney
Best Cash Management, China
(Shanghal Huisheng Motors
Corporation) - Eurofinance

Best Working Capital Management,
China (GA Holdings) - Eurofinance

Mast Innovative Treasury Solutions,
China (Shanghai Huisheng Motors
Corporation) — Eurofinance

Top Funding Solutions, China (CNOQC)
- Eurofinance

Best E-Banking Implementation, China
(China Automation Motor Group)

- The Asset

Best Cash Management Solutton, China
(Sumitomo Mitsut Finance and Leasing)
~ The Asset

Best Liquidity Management Solution,
China (Fortune Motor) - The Asset

Best Trade Finance Solution,

China {RMB Trade Settlement for
Heillengpiang Qi) — The Asser
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Rising Star Transaction Bank, India

- The Asset

Best Foreign Cash Management Bank,
India - Asiamoney

Best Trade Finance Bank, India - The Asset
Best Structured Trade Finance

Solution, India (Sterling & Wilson
Co-Gen Solutions) - The Asset

Best Trade Finance Solution, India
(Fecpro Systems) — The Asset

Best Transaction Bank, Indonesia

— The Asset

Best MNC Bank for Treasury Warking
Capital Management, Indonesia

- The Asset

Best Foreign Cash Management Bank,
Indonesia - Asamoney

Best Overall Cross-Border Cash
Management Bank, Indonesia - Asiamoney
Best Cash Management Solution,
Indonesia (Multi Bintang) — The Asset
Best Risk Management Solution,
Indonesia (Kasih Industr) — The Asset

Best Overall Domestic Cash
Management Service, Tawan — Asamoney
Best Overall Cross-Border Cash
Management Service, Tawan - Asiamoney

TREASURY & MARKETS

Structured Finance Issue of the Year,
Asia-Pacific (TG Master) - JFRIFR Asia
Best Cross Border Securitisation,
Asia (BMW Financial Services Korea)
— The Asset

Best Dim Sum Bond, Asia (21Vianet)
— The Asset

Best Foreign Exchange Bank,
Southeast Asia - Global Finance
Best Local Currency Bond Deal,
Southeast Asia (Swiber Caprial)
- Alpha Southeast Asta

House of the Year, Singapore - Asia Risk
Denvatives House of the Year, Singapore
- The Asset

Best Foreign Exchange Bank, Singapore
- Alpha Southeast Asia

Best Foreign Exchange Bank, Singapore
— AnanceAsia
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Best Foreign Exchange Bank, Singapore
- Globaf Finance

Foreign Exchange Bank of the Year,
Singapore - Asian Banking & Finance

Top Currency Products, Singapore

— Asia Risk

Top Interest Rate Products, Singapore

— Asia Risk

Best Bond House, Singapore

— Alpha Southeast Asta

Best Bond House, Singapore - fnanceAsia
Best Domestic Bond House, Stngapore
— The Asset

Bond House of the Year, Singapore
—IFR Asia

Best Domestic Debt House, Singapore
- Astamoney

Best Debt Capital Markets, Singapore

- Euromoney

Best Compliant Trading Member in
China — China Foreign Exchange Trade System
Best Fareign Exchange Member in
China - China Foreign Exchange Trade System
Best Potential Market Maker in China
- China Foreign Exchange Trade System
Excellent Derivative Trading Member in
China - China Forewgn Exchange Trade System
Excellent SPOT Trading Member in
China - China Foreign Fxchange Trade System
Top 100 Banks in Interbank CNY Market
— China Foreign Exchange Trade System

Best Foreign Exchange Bank, Indonesia
- Giobal Finance

Best Deal, Taiwan (Advanced
Semiconductor Engineering) - Financedsia
Best Deal, Taiwan (Advanced
Sermiconductor Engineering) - The Asset

CAPITAL MARKETS

Best REIT House, Asla — The Asset

Best Islamic Equity, Asia {IHH Healthcare
UsD 2 2B IPO) - The Asset

Best REIT, Asia (Mapletree) - The Asset

Best Equity Deal, Southeast Asia
(Mapletree} - Alpha Southeast Asia
Best REIT Deal, Southeast Asia
(Mapletree} - Alpha Southeast Asia

DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Best Equity House, Singapore

- Alpha Southeast Asia

Best Equity House, Singapare — Asiamoney
Best Equity House, Singapore - FinanceAsia
Best Equity Finance, Singapore - furomoney
Equity House of the Year, Singapore
—IFR Asia

Distinguished Financial Industry
Competent Professional Corporate
Finance, Singapore (Kan Shik Lum)

- Instritute of Banking and Finance Singapore

BROKERAGE {DBS VICKERS)

.

Top Telecommunications Stock Picker,
Asia {Sachun Mitial)} - Wail Street Journal

Best Broker, Southeast Asia
— Alpha Southeast Asia

Best Equity Broker, Singapore

— International Finance Magazine

Best Institutional Broker, Singapore
— Alpha Southeast Asta

Best Local Brokerage, Singapore

— Asiamoney

Best Overall Country Research,
Singapore - Asiamoney

Best Overall Sales Services, Singapore
— Asiamaney

Best Execution, Singapore — Asamoney
Best In Sales Trading, Singapore

— Asiamoney

Best Research Coverage for Strategy,
Singapare - Asamoney

Best Research Coverage for Food,
Beverage & Tobacco, Singapore

— Asiamoney

Best for Events and Conferences,
Singapore - Asiamoney

Best for Roadshows and Company
Visits, Singapore — Asiamoney

Top Earmings Estimator for Retail

& Consumer Products, Singapore
(Alfie Yeo) - Thomson Reuters/Starmine

Best Research Coverage for Small Caps,
Hong Kong - Asiamoney

Top Stock Picker, Hong Kong {Carol W)
- Wall Street Journal

Best Research Coverage for Small
Caps & Telecommunications Services,
China - Asiamoney

CONSUMER BANKING GROUP
* Best Mobile Apps Strategy, Global
- MyPrivateBanking

+ Asian Retall Bank of the Year
- Retall Banker International

+ Best PR/Guerilla Marketing Stunt,
Asia (Driveshield) - Marketing Magazine

* Best Bank (POSB/DBS), Singapore

- AsiaOne

Domestic Retall Bank of the Year,

Singapore - Asian Banking & Ainance

+ Top Bank Brand for e-Commerce
Payments, Singapore - Brand Athance

*» Branch Innovation of the Year,

Singapore (MBFC Branch)

— Asian Banking & Finance

Best Card-Based Loyalty Programme,

SIngapore — Marketing Magazine

Best Credit/Debit Card, Singapore

(POSB Everyday Card) - AsiaCne

Best Integration of Mobile Apps,

Singapore - Marketing Magazine

Best Location-based Marketing,

Singapore — Marketing Magazine

Best Use of Experential & Live

Marketing, Singapore (Great DBS

Touchdown) — Marketing Magazine

+ Best Use of Multiple Mobile Channels,
Slngapore - Marketing Magazine

* Best Use of Socal & Mobile, Singapore

(DBS TravellerShield) - Marketing Magazine

Excellence in Expeniential & Event

Marketing {DBS Driveshieid)

— Marketing Magazine

* SPRING Innovation Class Award,
SINgapore - SPRING Singapore

= Domestic Retall Bank of the Year,

Hong Kong - Asian Banking & Finance

Best Creative Design for Apps,

Hong Kong - Marketing Magazine

Best CRM & Loyalty Program,

Hong Kong - Marketing Magazine

« Best mCommerce Solution, Hong Kong
— Marketing Magazine

Best Online Banking Initiative,

Hong Kong - Asian Banking & Finanice

Best Use of Search Solution, Hong Kong
(Loans Always On} - Yahoo!




Best Viral Idea, Hong Kong {(uGOWGO™)
- Marketing Magazine

Best Viral Marketing, Hong Kong

- Marketing Magazine

Customer Service Excellence

Sitver Award, Hong Kong

— HK Association for Customer Service Excellence

*» Best Foreign Consumer Bank, China
— Global Finance

Best Brand Building, China

- 215t Century Business Herafld

* Operation Excellence Awards
(Value-added Services), Ind:a
— National Payments Corporation of india

= Indenesia Young Consumer Banker
Award (Pauline Sulistianingsih)
- Indonesia Business Magazine

+ Indonesia Young Consumer
Banker Award (Asr: Nataneger)
- Indonesia Bustness Magazine

WEALTH MANAGEMENT

& PRIVATE BANKING

* Qutstanding Private Banker of the Year,
(Tan Su Shan) - prvate Banker international

* Qutstanding Indwidual Contribution
to Asian Wealth Management
(Tan Su Shan} - wealthBriefing Asia

* Best Local Private Bank, Singapore
- Euromoney
« Best Private Bank, Singapore - The Asset
« Best Private Bank, Singapore
- PWM/The Banker
Best Wealth Manager, Singapore
— The Asset
Dorminant Local Private Bank
{Highest AUM), Singapore
- Private Banker International

* Best Wealth Management, Hong Kong
- Global Banking & Finance Rewew

* China’s Best Priority Banking
(DBS Treasures} — The Secunties Times

« Best Wealth Manager, Indonesia
— The Asset

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

TECHNOLOGY AND OPERATIONS
Best Core Banking Technology, Global
- The Banker

Best International Retail Banking
Concept - Redaknion Geldinstitute

-

* Bank Technology Leadership
Achievement Award, Asia-Pacific
(Dave Gledhill) - The Asian Banker
Best Branch Automation Project,
Asia-Pacific - The Asian Banker

Best Core Banking Implementation,
Asia-Pacific - The Asian Banker

Best Secunty & Risk Management
Project, Asia-Pacific — The Asian Banker
Speech Analytics Technology Award,
Asia-Pacific - IDC Financial insights
Trallblazer of the Year, Asia-Pacific

- Banking & Payments Asia

* Channel Excellence Award (Branch),
Asia-Pacific - Banking & Payments Asia
Service Excellence Award

{Mohile Services), Asia-Pacific

- Banking & Payments Asia

Service Excellence Award

{Customer Experience), Asia-Pacific
- Banking & Payments As@a

Product Excellence Award

(NFC, Contactless Payments),
Asia-Pacific ~ Banking & Payments Asia

¢ ASEAN Business Award for Innovation
— ASEAN Business Advisory Council

+ Technology and Operations Bank of the
Year, SIngapore — Asian Banking & finance

* Best In-House Contact Centre, Singapore
— Contact Centre Association of Singapore

« Best Contact Centre Employee

Recrutment/Retention Program, Singapore

- Contact Centre Association of Singapore

Best Customer Experience, Singapore

- Contact Centre Association of Singapore

Best Customer Experience Strategy,

Singapore - Forrester Research

* Best CRM Strategy, Singapore (SSB Load
Optimisation) - Marketing Magazine

« Branch Innovation of the Year, Singapore

(DBS Remix) — Asian Banking & Finance
Business Continuity Teamn of the Year,
Singapore - 8C1 Asa

« Most Innovative Productivity
Solution, Singapore
— Contact Centre Assoaation of Singapore

* Outstanding Customer Service
Program, Hong Kong (DBS Red)
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- HK Association for Custormer Service Excellence

Operations Management Award,

Hong Kong - Best Practice Management Group

* Banking IT Excellence Award, Indonesta
- Warta Ekonom: Magazine

HUMAN RESOURCES
* Great Workplace Award, Global - Galfup

= Best Employee Engagement, Asia
- The Astan Banker

* ASEAN Business Award for Employment

— ASEAN Busiriess Advisory Council

+ Qutstanding SHARE Award, Singapore
- Communmity Chest

Best Companies for Mums, Singapore
- National Trades Unson Congress

Labour Day Gold Award, Singapore

- Natioral Trades Union Congress

-

* Best Practice Award for Employee
Engagement, Hong Kong
~ Best Practice Management Group

« Excellent Employee Engagement,
Hong Kong - institute of HR Management

+ Best Employer, East China (China)
- China Human Resources

* Best Compames to work for, India
— Econormic Times

* Future HR Leaders in Indonesta Award
— Indonesia Business Magazine

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
+ Best Corporate Social Responsibility
Practices, Asia - CMO Asia

» Corporate Social Responsibility Award,
Hong Kong - Capital Weekily

= Canng Company Award, Hong Kong
- Hong Kong Counci! of Sowial Service

* Best Supporter for Social Enterprise
Products, Taiwan - Taper City Government
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SHARE PRICE
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2009 2010 20113 2012 2013 2014

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Share Price (3)
High 15 46 1580 1573 14 99 17 90
Low 642 13 24 10 81 1159 14 30
Close 15 40 14 32 1152 14 84 17 10
Average 1148 14 30 1377 13 98 16 19
Per Ordinary Share (5}
Gross dividend yield 49 39 41 40 36
Price-to-earning ratio (number of times) ** 126 124 106 101 13
Price-to-book ratio (number of times) 11 13 11 11 12

(1) Earnings exclude one-time ttems and goodwill charges
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

02 May
Announcement of first quarter results 2013

27 June

Payment date of Final Dividends on Ordinary Shares
and Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible Preference
Shares for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

01 August

Announcement of second quarter results 2013

30 September

Payment date of Interim Dividends on Ordinary Shares
and Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible Preference
Shares for the six months ended 30 June 2013

01 November
Announcement of third quarter results 2013

31 December
Financial Year End

2014

14 February
Announcement of full year results 2013

28 April

Annual General Meeting

April
Announcement of first quarter results 2014

July

Proposed payment of Final Dividends on Ordinary
Shares and Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible
Preference Shares for the financial year ended

31 December 2013

August
Announcement of second quarter results 2014

October
Announcement of third quarter results 2014

2015

February
Announcement of full year resulis 2014
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SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS

as at 3 March 2014

Class of Shares — Ordinary shares

Voting Rights — One vote per share

Total number of issued ordinary shares — 2,450,453,676 {excluding treasury shares)

Treasury Shares — 182,000 (representing 0 007 % of the total number of 1ssued ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares)

No of No of

Size of Shareholdings Shareholders % Shares %*
1-999 7,898 17 96 1,818,406 008
1,000 - 10,000 31,774 72 24 88,285,644 360
10,001 - 1,000,000 4,282 973 147,352,258 601
1,000,001 & above 30 007 2,212,997,368 90 31
Total 43,984 100 Q0 2,450,453,676 10000
Location of Shareholders

Singapore 41,333 9397 2,428,374,910 9910
Malaysia 1,531 348 12,156,071 050
Overseas 1.120 255 9,922,695 040
Total 43,984 100 00 2,450,453,676 100 00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (as shown in the Register of Members and Depository Register)

Name of Shareholder No of Shares %>
1 Ciibank Nominees Singapore Pte Lid 438,051,235 17 88
2 Mau Holdings Pte Ltd 428,888,448 17 50
3 DBS Nominees Pte Ltd 415,017,761 16 94
4 Temasek Holdings (Private) Ltd 284,145,301 1160
5 DBSN Services Pte Ltd 252,772,355 1032
6 HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd 151,172,510 617
7 United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Lid 89,173,361 364
8 BNP Paribas Securities Services Singapore Branch 33,165,537 135
9 Raffles Norminees (Pte) Ltd 32,131,589 131
10 Lee Pineapple Company Pte Ltd 14,250,000 058
11 Lee Foundation 10,217,475 042
12 DB Nominees (S} Pte Ltd 10,080,198 oM
13 Bank of Singapore Nominees Pte Ltd 9,025,949 037
14 BNP Panbas Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 7,633,797 021
15 DBS Vickers Securitres (S) Pte Ltd 7,048,996 029
16 OCBC Securities Private Ltd 5,826,228 024
17 KEP Holdings Limited 4,033,947 016
18 UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd 2,512,004 010
19 OCBC Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 2,388,172 010
20 Kwee Siu Min @ Sudjasmin Kusmin or Dianawati Tjendera 2,181,203 009
Total 2,199,716,066 8978

*

Percentage s calculated based on the total number of issued ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares

Class of Shares — Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares ("NVRCPS"}
Voting Rights — Please see Article 6A of the Articles of Association
Sole Shareholder of 30,011,421 NVRCPS Maju Holdings Pte Ltd
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SUBSTANTIAL ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS (as shown in the Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 3 March 2014)

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
No of Shares Yo No of Shares %*
Maju Holdings Pte Ltd 428,888,448 17 50 0 000
Temasek Holdings (Private} Limited 284,145,301 160 433,338,229 17 68

-

Percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares

1 Maju Holdings Pte Ltd ("Maju"} 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (" Temasek"}
2 Ternasek, a company wholly-owned by the Minister for Finance, 1s deemed to be interested in all the ordinary shares held by Maju
3 In addition, Temasek 15 deemed to be interested in 4,449,781 ordinary shares in which its other subsidianies and associated companies

have or are deemed to have an interest pursuant to Section 4 of the Secunities and Futures Act, Chapter 289

As at 3 March 2014, approximately 70 39% of 1ssued ordinary shares of DBS Group Holdings Ltd are hetd by the public and, therefore,
Rule 723 of the SGX Listing Manual 1s complied with
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

DBS GROUP HOLDINGS LTD (Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
Company Registration No  199801152M

To All Shareholders

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of DBS Group Holdings Ltd {the “Company™) will
be held at NTUC Auditorium, One Manina Boultevard, Level 7, Singapore 018989 on Monday, 28 Apnl 2014 at 10 00 am to transact the

following business

ORDINARY BUSINESS ORDINARY RESOLUTION NO.

To receive and consider the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year Resolution 1
ended 31 December 2013 and the Auditors’ Report thereon

To declare a one-tier tax exempt Final Dividend of 30 cents per ordinary share, for the year ended | Resolution 2
31 Decemnber 2013 [2012 Final Dividend of 28 cents per ordinary share, one-tier tax exempt]

To declare a one-tier tax exempt Final Dividend of 2 cents per Non-Voting Resolution 3
Redeemable Convertible Preference Share, for the year ended 31 December 2013
[2012 2 cents per Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible Preference Share,
one-tier tax exempt]

To approve the amount of $3,687,232 proposed as Directors’ remuneration for the year ended Resolution 4
31 December 2013 [2012 $2,923,438]

To re-appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors of the Company and Resolution 5
to authorise the Directors to fix thesr remuneration

To re-elect the following Direciors, who are retining under Article 95 of the Company's Articles of
Association and who, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

{a) Mr Piyush Gupta Resolution &
{b) Dr Bart Joseph Broadman Resolution 7
() Mr Ho Tian Yee Resolution 8

Key information on Mr Gupta, Dr Sroadman and Mr Ho can be found on pages 188, 189 and 190 respectively
of the 2013 Annual Report

To re-appoint Mr Nihal Vijaya Devadas Kaviratne CBE as a Director pursuant to Section 153(6) of Resolution 9
the Companies Act, Chapter 50

Key information on Mr Kaviratne can be found on page 180 of the 2013 Annual Report
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SPECIAL BUSINESS ORDINARY RESOLUTION NO.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions as
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

(@

(b)

{1

(2)

That authority be and i1s hereby given to the Directors of the Company to

allot and issue from time to tme such number of ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company {“DBSH Ordinary Shares*} as may be required to be issued pursuant to the
exercise of options under the DBSH Share Opticn Plan, and

offer and grant awards in accordance with the provistons of the DBSH Share Plan and
to allot and sssue from time to time such number of DBSH Ordinary Shares as may be
required to be issued pursuant to the vesting of awards under the DBSH Share Plan,

PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT

the aggregate number of new DBSH Ordinary Shares to be 1ssued pursuant to the exercise
of options granted under the DBSH Share Option Plan and the vesting of awards granted

or to be granted under the DBSH Share Plan shall not exceed 5 per cent of the total number
of 1ssued shares (excluding treasury shares) sn the capital of the Company from time to

time, and

the aggregate number of new DBSH Ordinary Shares under awards to be granted pursuant
to the DBSH Share Plan dunng the period commencing from the date of this Annual General
Meeting of the Company and ending on the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company s required
by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, shall not exceed 2 per cent of the total number of
issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company from tme to time

Resolution 10

()

That authority be and s hereby given to the Directors of the Company to

() 1ssue shares in the capital of the Company ("shares”) whether by way of nghts,
bonus or otherwise, and/or

(1)  make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectvely, ”Instruments ) that rught
or would require shares to be 1ssued, incuding but not imited to the creation and
1ssue of (as well as adjustments to) warrants, debentures or other instruments
convertible into shares,

at any time and upon such terms and condittons and for such purposes and to such
persans as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit, and

(b) {notwithstanding the authonty conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force)

issue shares In pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while this
Resolution was in force,

Resolution 11
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SPECIAL BUSINESS ORDINARY RESOLUTION NO.

provided that

(1)

2

(4)

DBS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

the aggregate number of shares to be 1ssued pursuant to this Resolution (ncluding shares

to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does
not exceed 50 per cent of the total number of ssued shares (excluding treasury shares) in
the capital of the Company {as calculated in accordance with paragraph (2) below), of which
the aggregate number of shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders
of the Company (including shares to be 1ssued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted
pursuant to this Resofution) shall be less than 10 per cent of the total number of issued
shares {excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance
with paragrapgh (2) below),

{(subject to such manner of calculation and adjustments as may be prescribed by the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST)), for the purpose of determining
the aggregate number of shares that may be 1ssued under paragraph (1) above, the
percentage of 1ssued shares shall be based on the total number of 1ssued shares (exctuding
treasury shares} in the capital of the Company at the time this Resolution is passed, after
adjusting for

(1) new shares ansing from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share
options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time this
Resolution (s passed, and

() any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdvision of shares,

in exercising the authonty conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with
the provisions of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force {(uniess such
compliance has been warved by the SGX-5T) and the Articles of Assoaiation for the time
being of the Company, and

{unless revoked or varied by the Company Iin general meeting) the authornity conferred by
this Resolution shall continue in force untdl the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company 1s required by law to be held, whichever is the earlter

That authority be and 1s hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and

1ssue such number of new ordinary shares and new Non-Votng Redeemable Convertible
Preference Shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be allotted

and 1ssued pursuant to the application of the DBSH Scnp Dividend Scheme to the

final dividends of 30 cents per ordinary share and 2 cents per Non-Voting Redeemable
Convertible Preference Share, for the year ended 31 December 2013

Resolution 12
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SPECIAL BUSINESS ORDINARY RESOLUTION NO.

That authorty be and 15 hereby given to the Directors of the Company to apply the DBSH Resolution 13
Scrip Dvidend Scheme to any dividend(s) which may be declared for the year ending

31 December 2014 and to allot and 1ssue such number of new ordinary shares and new

Neon-Voting Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares in the capital of the Company as

may be required to be allotted and 1ssued pursuant thereto

By Order of The Board

Goh Peng Fong (Mr)
Group Secretary
DBS Group Holdings Ltd

31 March 2014
Singapore

NCTES A member of the Company entitfed to attend and vote at the Meeting s entitied to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and to vote 1 fus stead
A member of the Company which is a corporation 1s entitled to appoint its authonsed representative or proxy to vote on its behalf

A proxy need not be a member of the Company

The instrument appomnting a proxy must be deposited at the Campany s office at 12 Marina Boulevard, Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3,
Level 12, Singapore 018982 (Attention to Group Secretanat) at least 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting

EXPLANATORY NOTES
ORDINARY BUSINESS

Ordinary Resolution 4 Directors’ Remuneration for 2013

Resolution 4 1s to approve the payment of an aggregate amount of $3,687,232 as Directors’ remuneration for the non-executive Directors

of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 If approved, each of the non-executive Directors {(with the exception of those named
below) will recerve 70% of his or her Directors’ fees in cash and 30% of his or her Directors’ fees in the form of share awards granted pursuant
to the DBSH Share Plan The share awards will not be subject to a vesting period, but will be subject to a selling moratorium whereby each
non-executive director will be required to hold the equivalent of one year’s basic retainer for the duration of his or her tenure as a director,

and for one year after the date he or she steps down as a director The actual number of shares to be awarded will be determined by reference
to the volume-weighted average pnce of a share on the SGX-ST over the 10 trading days immediately following the date of the forthcoming
2014 Annual General Meeting, rounded down to the nearest share, and any residual balance will be paid in cash The Birector’s fees for

Mrs Ow Foong Pheng will be paid in cash to a government agency, the Directorship & Consultancy Appointments Counal In addition,

Dr Christopher Cheng, who stepped down as a Director of the Company on 29 April 2013, will receive all of hus Director’s fees {calculated on a

pro-rated basis) in cash Please refer 1o pages 64 and 65 of the Corporate Governance Report for more detads on the annual fee structure for
the Board and Board committees for 2013

Ordwnary Resolutions 6, 7 and 8 Re-election of Directors retiring under Article 95

(8) Mr Piyush Gupta, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as @ member of the Executive Committee Mr Gupta is a
non-independent Director

(b) Dr Bart Joseph Broadman, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as a member of each of the Board Risk Management
Committee and Compensation and Management Development Committee, and will be considered independent

{c) Mr Ho Tian Yee, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as a member of each of the Board Risk Management Commitiee
and Norminating Committee, and will be considered independent
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Ordinary Resolution 9 Re-appoimntment of Director pursuant to Section 153(6) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50

As Mr Nihal Vijaya Devadas Kaviratne CBE 15 over 70 years of age, his office will be vacated at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and he
will be standing for re-appointment thereat Upon re-appointment as a Director of the Company, Mr Kaviratne will remain as a member of each
of the Audit Committee and Board Risk Management Committee, and will be considered independent

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Ordinary Resolution 10 DB5H Share Option Plan and DBSH Share Plan

Resolution 10 1s to empower the Directors to 1ssue ordinary shares in the capital of the Company pursuant to the exercise of opttons under the
DBSH Share Option Plan and to offer and grant awards and to issue ordinary shares in the capital of the Company pursuant to the DBSH Share
Plan, provided that (a) the maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued under the DBSH Share Option Plan and the DBSH Share
Plan 15 limited to 5 per cent of the total number of 1ssued shares in the capital of the Company {(excluding treasury shares) from time to time
and (b) the aggregate number of new ordinary shares under awards which may be granted pursuant to the DBSH Share Plan from this Annual
General Meeting to the next Annuat General Meeting shall not exceed 2 per cent of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the
Company (excluding treasury shares} from time to time

Ordmary Resolution 11 Share Issue Mandate

Resolution 11 1s to empower the Directors to 1ssue shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant instrumenits (such as warrants or
debentures) convertible into shares, and to issue shares in pursuance of such instrumnents, up to a number not exceeding In total 50 per cent of
the total number of 1ssued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company, of which the number of shares that may be issued
other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders must be less than 10 per cent of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares)
For the purpose of determining the aggregate number of shares that may be 1ssued, the percentage of 1ssued shares shall be based on the
total number of 1ssued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company at the time that Resolution 11 15 passed, after adjusting
for {a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting of share awards which are
outstanding or subsisting at the time that Resolution 1115 passed, and (b) any subsequent bonus 1ssue, consolidation or subdivision of shares

Ordinary Resolution 12 DBSH Scrip Dividend Scheme

Resolution 12 15 to empaower the Directors to ssue such number of new ordinary shares and new Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible
Preference Shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be 1ssued pursuant to the application of the DBSH Scrip Dwvidend
Scherme (the “Scheme”) to the final dwidends of 30 cents per ordinary share and 2 cents per Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible Preference
Share, for the year ended 31 December 2013 (“FY2013")

In the announcement dated 14 February 2014, the Company proposed that the Scheme would be applied to the final dvidends for FY2013,
subject to shareholder approval being obtatned for the said final dimdends for FY2013

Ordmary Resolution 13 DBSH Scrip Dividend Scheme

Resolution 1315 to authonse the Directors to apply the Scheme to any dividend(s) which may be declared for the year ending 31 December
2014 ("FY2014"), and to empower the Directors to issue such number of new ordinary shares and new Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible
Preference Shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be 1ssued pursuant thereto The authonity conferred by this Resolution
will lapse at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company 1s required by law to be held, whichever 15 the earlier

If Resolution 13 1s passed at the Annual General Meeting, and if the Directors should decide to apply the Scheme to a divdend declared in
respect of FY2014, the current ntenton 15 that no discount will be given for the scrip shares If the Directors decide not to apply the Scheme
to a dwidend for FY2014, such dividend will be paid in cash to shareholders in the usual way



IMPORTANT
1 For mvestors who have used their CPF monies to buy DBS Group Holdings Ltd shares,

the annual report Is forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees
DBS GROUP HOLDINGS LTD and 15 sent solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY
{Incarporated n the Republic of Singapore) 2 For holders of Non-Voting Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares (NVRCPS),
Company Registration Number 199901152M the annual report is forwarded to them solely FOR INFORMATION QONLY
3 This Proxy form s not vald for use by CPF Investors and NVRCPS holders and shall
be wneffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by themn

Annual General Meeting

*YWe (NRIC/Passport No )
of being an Ordinary Shareholder of DBS Group Holdings Ltd
{the *Company”) hereby appoint

ADDRESS NRIC/PASSPORT NUMBER PROPORTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS {%)

or faring *hirv/her, the Chairman of the Meeting or such person{s) as he may nominate, as *my/our proxy/proxies, to vote far *me/us and on *my/our behalf and,
If necessary, to demand a poll, at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held at NTUC Auditorium, One Manna Boulevard, Level 7,
Ssngapore 018989 on Monday, 28 April 2014 at 10 00 am and at any adjournment thereof in the following manner

RESOLUTIONS AGAINST

Ordinary Business

1 Adoption of audited Financial Statements and Directors’ and Auditors’ Report

2 Declaration of Final Dmdend on Ordinary Shares

3 Declaration of Final Dividend on Non-Voting Redeernable Convertible Preference Shares

4 Approval of proposed Directors’ remuneration of SGD 3,687,232 for FY2013

5 Re-appointment of PnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP as Auditors

6 Re-election af Mr Piyush Gupta as a Director retinng under Article 95

7 Re-election of Dr Bart Joseph Broadman as a Director retiring under Article 95

8 Re-election of Mr Ho Tian Yee as a Director retinng under Article 95

9 Re-appointment of Mr Nihal Vijaya Devadas Kaviratne CBE as a Director pursuant to Section 153(6} of the
Companies Act, Chapter 50

10 Authority 1o 1ssue shares under the DBSH Share Option Plan, and to grant awards and 1ssue shares under
the DBSH Share Plan

1 General authonty to 1ssue shares subject to imits

12 Authority to 1ssue shares pursuant to the DBSH Scrip Pmdend Scherne for the FY2013 Final Dwidends { 1

13 Authonity to apply the DBSH Scrip Dvidend Scheme to dividends for FY2014, and to issue shares pursuant thereto [

If you wish to exercise all your votes For or Against, please uck with “¥ ™ Alternatively, please indicate the number of votes For or Agatnst each resolution

The proxy may vote or abstamn as the proxy deems fit on any of the above resolutions if ne voting instruction 1s speafied, and on any other matter anising at the
Annual General Meeting

As witness *my/our hand(s) this day of 2014

No. of Ordinary
Shares held

IMPORTANT PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF
Signature or Comimen Seal of Shareholder * delete as appropriate




Asia’s Sates
Asia’s Best

Safest Bank, Asia Best Managed Bank
2009-2013 Asia-Pacific 2013

Global Finance The Asian Banker

12 Marina Boulevard

hi Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3

Scan this to read Singapore 018982
the Annual Report Tel- (65) 6878 8888
www.dbs.com

ﬁ www.facebook.com/dbs Co. Reg. No. 199901152M

DBS. Living, Breathing Asia ZVX:Z DBS




